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Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This annual report contains statements that constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. In addition, in the future the Company, and others on its behalf, may make statements that constitute
forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements may include, without limitation, statements relating to the Company’s plans, objectives or goals;
future economic performance or prospects; the potential effect on the Company’s future performance of certain contingencies; and assumptions underlying any
such statements.

» » <« EENTH

Words such as “believes,” “anticipates,” “expects,” “intends” and “plans” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements but
are not the exclusive means of identifying such statements. The Company does not intend to update these forward-looking statements except as may be required
by applicable laws.

By their very nature, forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties, both general and specific, and risks exist that predictions,
forecasts, projections and other outcomes described or implied in forward-looking statements will not be achieved. The Company cautions you that a number of
important factors could cause results to differ materially from the plans, objectives, expectations, estimates and intentions expressed in such forward-looking
statements. These factors include (i) market and interest rate fluctuations; (ii) the effects of, and changes in, fiscal, monetary, trade and tax policies, and currency
fluctuations; (iii) political and social developments, including war, civil unrest or terrorist activity; (iv) the Company’s ability to maintain sufficient liquidity and
access to capital markets; (v) operational factors such as systems failure, human error, or the failure to properly implement procedures; (vi) actions taken by
regulators with respect to the Company’s business; (vii) the effects on the Company of changes in laws, regulations or accounting policies or practices,

(viii) competition in the geographic and business area in which the Company conducts its operations; (ix) the Company’s ability to retain and recruit qualified
personnel; (x) the Company’s ability to maintain its reputation and promote its products and services; (xi) the Company’s ability to increase market share and
control expenses; (xii) technological changes; (xiii) the timely development and acceptance of its products and services and the perceived overall value of these
products and services by users; (xiv) the adverse resolution of litigation and other contingencies; and (xv) the Company’s success at managing the risks involved
in the foregoing.

The Company cautions you that the foregoing list of important factors is not all inclusive; when evaluating forward-looking statements, you should
carefully consider the foregoing factors and other uncertainties and events, as well as the risks discussed under “Risk Factors” in this Annual Report on Form 10-
K.

PART I

Item 1. Business
Overview

Telos is an information technology leader focused on designing and providing advanced technologies to deliver solutions that secure the vital assets of the
world’s most demanding enterprises. These assets include the critical operational and tactical systems of our customers so that they can safely conduct their global
missions. Our customer base consists primarily of military, intelligence and civilian agencies of the federal government and NATO allies around the world.

Our innovations in secure solutions range from unified communications to governance risk and compliance to secure mobile networks to global access
solutions.

We generate approximately 83.5% of our revenues by delivering these solutions at a fixed price to our customers. This focus on fixed price delivery has
enabled us to significantly reduce life cycle costs for our customers. We have been able to achieve this by investing in intellectual property development so that
we can use automation, when appropriate.

While we were incorporated in 1971, we liquidated and/or sold our original businesses and refocused on delivering secure solutions beginning in 1997. Our
Company includes Telos Corporation, Xacta Corporation, Teloworks, Inc. and a 60% interest in Telos Identity Management Solutions, LLC (“TIMS LLC”).

We are incorporated in Maryland, and our headquarters are located at 19886 Ashburn Road, Ashburn, VA 20147, and our telephone number is (703) 724-
3800. Our website is www.telos.com.

Our Mission

Our mission is to secure critical assets by protecting communications, systems, networks, and access.

We believe that our customer focus is the foundation of our success to date. We also believe that this focus is critical for the creation of long-term value.

How We Provide Value to Our Customers

We serve our customers by developing solutions that are quickly and efficiently deployed so that our customers have the assurance that they can safely
conduct their vital missions around the world. Some of the key benefits we offer our customers include:

Protecting and Securing Assets. Whether we are guarding access to systems, networks, communications, or people, our solutions work to protect what is
most important to today’s security-conscious enterprises.
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Applying Specialized Expertise. Our teams of security professionals, such as those we provide to protect the Pentagon’s critical networks, are some of the
industry’s most experienced in the design and operation of communications systems that must be reliable and secured 24/7.

Achieving Regulatory Compliance. From embedding the latest security standards in our information assurance software, to complying with network
security requirements on a particular military base, our solutions give our customers the confidence of meeting established security regulations.

Ensuring the Reliability of Operations. Our testing is comprehensive, assuring our customers of a dependable product when delivered. Our support is
worldwide, extending from helpdesk resources for government agencies throughout the country, to field support in Iraq and beyond.

Leveraging Customers’ Existing Infrastructure. Our pre-deployment assessment of our customers’ environments, ranging from secure network site surveys
to evaluations of physical security access, assures our customers of the technical and operational compatibility of our solutions.

Selected Examples of How We Accomplish Our Mission

We protect the communications of our customers through the development and delivery of our Automated Message Handling System (“AMHS”). AMHS
has been adopted by the Department of Defense to carry all official message traffic and is implemented throughout all branches of the military, the intelligence
community and other critical civilian agencies. AMHS is also used by US Central Command to meet its critical organization and communications requirements in
Operation Iraqi Freedom.

We protect the systems of our customers through the development and delivery of our Xacta IA Manager software (“Xacta”). Our Xacta solution is the
dominant provider of continuous certification and is used throughout the Department of Defense, intelligence communities and civilian government. To date, we
have performed over 3,000 certifications. In 2008, our consultants performed over 300 certifications alone, enabling our customers to understand their
vulnerability and risk posture, and the appropriate steps to improve thereon.

We protect and extend the networks of our customers by developing and delivering over 30,000 high speed, long range, secure tactical wireless network
modules providing last mile connectivity between our warfighters around the world and the US Army logistics networks.

Through an exclusive subcontractor relationship with TIMS LLC, we assess, design and deliver identity and access solutions to protect national security
assets, people and facilities. Among these programs, is the premier federal identity application, which has issued over 12,000,000 secure credentials for active and
retired military, military dependents and contractors. Additionally, we provide near real-time data collection on personnel movement and location information for
operating forces, government civil servants and government contractors in specified operational theaters. This system has captured over 23,000,000 scans of more
than 655,000 individuals.

We would not be able to design, deliver, install, and support any of our solutions without our employees. They are a vital element of our success. Our
employees know this because we reflect it in their compensation and benefits.

Solutions For Our Customers

Our solution development philosophy involves rapid development and continuous innovation in an effort to keep pace with the dynamic and evolving
nature of our customers’ requirements.

Our IT solutions consist of the following:

»  Secure Networks — Secure wired and wireless network solutions for DoD and federal agencies. We provide an extensive range of wired and wireless
voice, data, and video secure network solutions and services to support defense and civilian missions.

» Information Assurance — Software products and consulting services to automate, streamline, and enforce IT security and risk management processes
enterprise-wide. We offer information assurance consulting services and Xacta brand GRC (governance, risk, and compliance) solutions to protect
and defend IT systems, ensuring their availability, integrity, authentication, and confidentiality.

*  Secure Messaging — The next-generation messaging solution supporting warfighters throughout the world. Our Automated Message Handling
System (AMHS) offers secure, automated, web-based solutions for distributing and managing enterprise messages formatted for DMS (Defense
Messaging System).

*  Identity Management — End-to-end logical and physical security from the gate to the network. Our identity management solutions provide control of
physical access to bases, offices, workstations, and other facilities, as well as control of logical access to databases, host systems, and other IT
resources.
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The Technology Behind Our Solutions

»  Techniques: We employ development and production methodologies such as Agile and ISO 9001 to ensure predictability, repeatability, and quality.
Techniques such as continuous integration are employed to accelerate the solution development and testing process while at the same time reducing
cost and improving quality. We believe such techniques are critical for providing our customers with a high quality user experience.

»  Architecture: The nature of our customers’ missions requires our solutions to be highly secure and scaleable. Aside from architecting our solutions
with these core objectives in mind, we also employ open standards and technologies that afford a high degree of flexibility and interoperability
needed to support web-based and netcentric operations.

Intellectual Property

We invest in the creation of intellectual property and employ various forms of legal intellectual property protection mechanisms to include copyrights,
trademarks, patents, and trade secret laws in North America and other jurisdictions. We have intellectual property reviews as an integral part of our development
process in order to identify intellectual property as early as possible in the development process so the appropriate form of protection can be applied. We also
vigorously control access to intellectual property via physical and logical protection mechanisms. All of our employees sign agreements which govern intellectual
property ownership and confidentiality. We also enter into intellectual property, confidentiality and non-disclosure agreements with partners and other third
parties.

Telos, Xacta, Xacta IA Manager, Xacta WebC&A, and Xacta Commerce Trust are trademarks of Telos Corporation.

Patents, Trademarks, Trade Secrets and Licenses

Intellectual property is critical to the long-term value and success of the Company and accordingly we have focused our efforts on intellectual property,
including patents, copyrights, trademarks, service marks, and other proprietary assets. We are committed to vigilant protection of our intellectual property and
proprietary information and will use every available resource to protect such investment. Among other things, we require all employees and consultants to
execute confidentiality and non-disclosure agreements which limit the disclosure of confidential information to certain circumstances set forth in such
agreements. Patents for our products extend for varying periods based on the date of the patent filing or grant. Trademark and service mark protection continues
for as long as the marks are used. Generally, copyright protection continues for a term of at least 70 years.

Sales and Marketing

We target decision makers in government agencies and departments, and commercial businesses who have a need for secure enterprise solutions. Decisions
regarding contract awards by our customers typically are based upon an assessment of the quality of our past performance, responsiveness to proposal
requirements, uniqueness of the offering itself, price, and other competitive factors.

Our products and services in many instances combine a wide range of skills drawn from each of our major product and service offerings. Accordingly, we
must maintain expert knowledge of federal agency policies, procedures and operations.

We employ marketing and business development professionals who identify, qualify, and sell opportunities for us. Virtually all of our officers and
managers, including the chief executive officer, executive officers, vice presidents, and division managers, actively engage in new business development.

We have strategic business relationships with certain companies in the information technology industry. These strategic partners have business objectives
compatible with ours, and offer products and services that complement ours. We intend to continue developing such relationships wherever they support our
marketing, growth and solution offering objectives.

The majority of our business is awarded through submission of formal competitive bids. Commercial bids are frequently negotiated as to terms and
conditions such as schedule, specifications, delivery and payment. However, in government proposals, in most cases, the customer specifies the terms, conditions
and form of the contract.

Our contracts and subcontracts are generally composed of a wide range of contract types including indefinite delivery/indefinite quantity (“IDIQ”) and
government-wide acquisition contracts (known as “GWACS”) which are generally firm fixed-priced or time-and-materials contracts. For 2008, the Company’s
revenue derived from firm fixed-price and time-and-material contracts was 83.5% and 16.5%, respectively.
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In 2008, we derived substantially all of our revenues from contracts and subcontracts with the U.S. Government. Revenue by customer sector for the last
three fiscal years is as follows:

2008 2007 2006
(amount in thousands)
Department of Defense $174,404 80.3% $195,871 86.5% $121,039 85.9%
Federal Civilian 39,718 18.3% 29,545 13.0% 17,859 12.7%
Commercial 2,945 1.4% 1,169 0.5% 1,975 1.4%
Total $217,067 100.0% $226,585 100.0% $140,873 100.0%

We build market awareness of Telos and our solutions through a variety of marketing programs, including regular briefings with industry analysts, public
relations activities, government relations initiatives, Web seminars, trade show exhibitions, speaking engagements and Web site marketing. When appropriate, we
pursue joint marketing and selling efforts with our strategic partners. In addition, we host an annual conference, Security Solutions, which is a unique, three-day
learning and information-sharing event that consistently attracts top security professionals from all military branches, government agencies, and the intelligence

field.

Our People and Culture

As of December 31, 2008, we employed 614 people, which includes 57 from Teloworks, and 67 from TIMS LLC. 412 of our people hold security
clearances of secret or better. As of December 31, 2007, we employed 544 people, which includes 60 from Teloworks, and 62 from TIMS LLC.

Our people are proficient in many fields such as computer science, information security and vulnerability testing, networking technologies, physics,
engineering, operations research, mathematics, economics, and business administration. We place a high value on our people. As a result, we seek to remain
competitive in terms of salary structures, incentive compensation programs, fringe benefits, opportunities for growth, and individual recognition and award

programs.
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Our management team is committed to maintaining a corporate culture that fosters mutual respect and job satisfaction for our people, while delivering
innovation and value to customers and shareholders. This commitment is reflected in our core values.

Always with integrity, at Telos we:
+ Build trusted relationships
»  Work hard together
» Design and deliver superior solutions, and
* Have fun doing it
These values are woven throughout the fabric of Telos. They are reflected in our hiring practices, reinforced regularly, and reviewed during appraisals.

They are written into annual and quarterly objectives for staff and managers alike, as well as department and company business goals. Employees are encouraged
to challenge themselves and each other to exhibit the core values in everyday activities.

Our employees also are given avenues of communication and interaction should they observe activities that are inconsistent with the Company’s core
values. Encouraged first to speak openly about any issues, a hotline provides an opportunity to express concerns anonymously.

We consider the foundational value of integrity to be a non-negotiable requirement of employment, and an expectation of suppliers, partners, and our
customers. We guard our reputation and will take aggressive action to protect it. An essential part of our brand promise is that we always engage with employees,
customers, partners, suppliers, and investors with integrity.

Competition

We operate in a highly competitive marketplace. There are other companies that provide solutions similar to ours. Although these companies provide
offerings that overlap with some of our solutions, we are not aware of any single company that provides competitive solutions in all of the areas where we
compete.

The majority of our business is in response to competitive requests from potential and current customers. Decisions regarding contract awards by our
customers typically are based upon an assessment of the quality of our past performance, responsiveness to proposal requirements, uniqueness of the offering
itself, price, and other competitive factors.

Aside from other companies that compete in our space, we sometimes face indirect competition from solutions that are developed “in-house” by some of
our customers.

Government Contracts and Regulation

Our business is heavily regulated. We must comply with and are affected by laws and regulations relating to the formation, administration and performance
of U.S. Government and other contracts. These laws and regulations, among other things:

+ impose specific and unique cost accounting practices that may differ from U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and therefore
require reconciliation;

+ impose acquisition regulations that define reimbursable and non-reimbursable costs; and

»  restrict the use and dissemination of information classified for national security purposes and the export of certain products and technical data.

Government contracts are subject to congressional funding. Consequently, at the outset of a program, a contract is usually partially funded, and Congress
annually determines if additional funds are to be appropriated to the contract. All of our customers have the right to terminate their contract with us at their
convenience or in the event that we default.

A portion of our business is classified by the U.S. Government and cannot be specifically described. The operating results of these classified programs are
included in our consolidated financial statements.

Backlog

Many of our contracts with the U.S. Government are funded year to year by the procuring U.S. Government agency as determined by the fiscal
requirements of the U.S. Government and the respective procuring agency. Such a contracting process results in two distinct categories of backlog: funded and
unfunded. Total backlog consists of the aggregate contract revenues remaining to be earned by us at a given time over the life of its contracts, whether funded or
not. Funded backlog consists of the aggregate contract revenues remaining to be earned by us at a given time, but only to the extent, in the case of U.S.
Government contracts, when funded by the procuring U.S. Government agency and allotted to the specific contracts. Unfunded backlog is the difference between
total backlog and funded backlog. Included in unfunded backlog are revenues which may be earned only when and if customers exercise delivery orders and/or
renewal options to continue such existing contracts.
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A number of contracts that we undertake extend beyond one year, and accordingly portions of contracts are carried forward from one year to the next as
part of the backlog. Because many factors affect the scheduling and continuation of projects, no assurance can be given as to when revenue will be realized on
projects included in our backlog.

At December 31, 2008 and 2007, we had total backlog from existing contracts of approximately $692.9 million and $118.5 million, respectively. Such
amounts are the maximum possible value of additional future orders for systems, products, maintenance and other support services presently allowable under
those contracts, including renewal options available on the contracts if fully exercised by the customer.

Funded backlog as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 was $177.7 million and $99.1 million, respectively.

While backlog remains a measurement consideration, in recent years we, as well as other U.S. Government contractors, experienced a material change in
the manner in which the U.S. Government procures equipment and services. These procurement changes include the growth in the use of General Services
Administration (“GSA”) schedules which authorize agencies of the U.S. Government to purchase significant amounts of equipment and services. The use of the
GSA schedules results in a significantly shorter and much more flexible procurement cycle, as well as increased competition with many companies holding such
schedules. Along with the GSA schedules, the U.S. Government is awarding a large number of omnibus contracts with multiple awardees. Such contracts
generally require extensive marketing efforts by the multiple awardees to procure such business. The use of GSA schedules and omnibus contracts, while
generally not providing immediate backlog, provide areas of growth that we continue to aggressively pursue.

Seasonality

We derive substantially all of our revenue from U.S. Government contracting, and as such we are annually subject to the seasonality of the U.S.
Government purchasing. As the U.S. Government fiscal year ends on September 30, it is not uncommon for U.S. Government agencies to award extra tasks in the
weeks immediately prior to the end of its fiscal year in order to avoid the loss of unexpended fiscal year funds. As a result of this cyclicality, we have historically
experienced higher revenues in the third and fourth fiscal quarters, ending September 30, and December 31, respectively, with the pace of orders substantially
reduced during the first and second fiscal quarters ending March 31 and June 30, respectively.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to other information in this Form 10-K, the following risk factors should be carefully considered in evaluating the Company and its businesses
because these factors currently have, or may have, a significant impact on our business, operating results or financial condition. Actual results could differ
materially from those projected in the forward-looking statements contained in this Form 10-K as a result of the risk factors discussed below and elsewhere in this
Form 10-K.

Our inability to maintain sufficient liquidity and access to capital markets, including the inability to successfully restructure our consolidated balance
sheet may have a significant impact on our business.

We maintain a revolving credit facility (“the Facility”) with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. (“Wells Fargo Foothill”). Borrowings under the Facility are
collateralized by substantially all of our assets including inventory, equipment, and accounts receivable. The amount of available borrowings fluctuates based on
the underlying asset-borrowing base, in general 85% of our trade accounts receivable, as adjusted by certain reserves (as further defined in the Facility
agreement). The Facility provides us with virtually all of the liquidity we require to meet our operating, investing and financing needs. Therefore maintaining
sufficient availability on the Facility is the most critical factor in our liquidity. While a variety of factors related to sources and uses of cash, such as timeliness of
accounts receivable collections, vendor credit terms, or significant collateral requirements, ultimately impact our liquidity, such factors may or may not have a
direct impact on our liquidity, based on how the transactions associated with such circumstances impact our availability under the Facility. For example, a
contractual requirement to post collateral for a duration of several months, depending on the materiality of the amount, could have an immediate negative effect
on our liquidity, as such a circumstance would utilize availability on the Facility without an near-term cash inflow back to us. Likewise, the release of such
collateral could have a corresponding positive effect on our liquidity, as it would represent an addition to our availability without any corresponding near-term
cash outflow. Similarly, a slow-down of payments from a customer, group of customers or government payment office would not have an immediate and direct
effect on our availability on the Facility unless the slowdown was material in amount and over an extended period of time. Any of the examples described above
could have an impact on the Facility, and therefore our liquidity.

We depend on the U.S. Government for a significant portion of our sales and a significant decline in purchases by the U.S. Government could have an
adverse impact on our financial condition and results of operations.

Our sales are highly concentrated with the U.S. Government. The customer relationship with the U.S. Government involves certain risks that are unique. In
each of the past three years, substantially all of our net sales were to the U.S. Government. U.S. defense spending has historically been cyclical. Defense budgets
have received their strongest support when perceived threats to national security raise the level of concern over the country’s safety. As these threats subside,
spending on the military tends to decrease. Accordingly, while Department of Defense funding has grown rapidly over the past few years, there is no assurance
that this trend will continue. Rising budget deficits, the cost of the global war on terrorism and increasing costs for domestic programs continue to put pressure on
all areas of discretionary spending, which could ultimately impact the defense budget. Wartime support for defense spending could wane if the country’s troop
deployments in support of operations in Iraq and Afghanistan are reduced. A decrease in U.S. Government defense spending or changes in spending allocation
could result in one or more of our programs being reduced, delayed or terminated. Reductions in our existing programs, unless offset by other programs and
opportunities, could adversely affect our ability to sustain and grow our future sales and earnings.

U.S. Government contracts generally are not fully funded at inception and are subject to termination, which places a significant portion of our revenues
at risk and could adversely impact our earnings.

Our U.S. Government sales are funded by customer budgets, which operate on an October-to-September fiscal year. In February of each year, the President
of the United States presents to the Congress the budget for the upcoming fiscal year. This budget proposes funding levels for every federal agency and is the
result of months of policy and program reviews throughout the Executive branch. From February through September of each year, the appropriations and
authorization committees of Congress review the President’s budget proposals and establish the funding levels for the upcoming fiscal year in appropriations and
authorization legislation. Once these levels are enacted into law, the Executive Office of the President administers the funds to the agencies. There are two
primary risks associated with this process. First, the process may be delayed or disrupted. Changes in congressional schedules, negotiations for program funding
levels or unforeseen world events can interrupt the funding for a program or contract. Second, funds for multi-year contracts can be changed in subsequent years
in the appropriations process. In addition, the U.S. Government has increasingly relied on indefinite delivery, indefinite quantity (“IDIQ”) contracts and other
procurement vehicles that are subject to a competitive bidding and funding process even after the award of the basic contract, adding an additional element of
uncertainty to future funding levels. Delays in the funding process or changes in funding can impact the timing of available funds or can lead to changes in
program content or termination at the government’s convenience. The loss of anticipated funding or the termination of multiple or large programs could have an
adverse effect on our future sales and earnings.

We are subject to substantial oversight from federal agencies that have the authority to suspend our ability to bid on contracts.

As a U.S. Government contractor, we are subject to oversight by many agencies and entities of the U.S. Government that may investigate and make
inquiries of our business practices and conduct audits of contract performance and cost accounting. Depending on the results of any such audits and
investigations, the U.S. Government may make claims against us. Under U.S. Government procurement regulations and practices, an indictment of a U.S.
Government contractor could result in that contractor being fined and/or suspended for a period of time from eligibility for bidding on, or for the award of, new
U.S. Government contracts. A conviction could result in debarment for a specified period of time. To the best of management’s knowledge, there are no pending
investigations, inquiries, claims or audits against the Company likely to have a material adverse effect on our business or our consolidated results of operations,
cash flows or financial position.
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We depend on third parties in order to fully perform under our contracts and the failure of a third party to perform could have an adverse impact on
our earnings.

We rely on subcontractors and other companies to provide raw materials, major components and subsystems for our products or to perform a portion of the
services that we provide to our customers. Occasionally, we rely on only one or two sources of supply, which, if disrupted, could have an adverse effect on our
ability to meet our commitments to customers. We depend on these subcontractors and vendors to fulfill their contractual obligations in a timely and satisfactory
manner in full compliance with customer requirements. If one or more of our subcontractors or suppliers is unable to satisfactorily provide on a timely basis the
agreed-upon supplies or perform the agreed-upon services, our ability to perform our obligations as a prime contractor may be adversely affected.

Our future profitability depends, in part, on our ability to develop new technologies and maintain a qualified workforce to meet the needs of our
customers.

Virtually all of the products that we produce and sell are highly engineered and require sophisticated manufacturing and system integration techniques and
capabilities. The government market in which we primarily operate is characterized by rapidly changing technologies. The product and program needs of our
government and commercial customers change and evolve regularly. Accordingly, our future performance in part depends on our ability to identify emerging
technological trends, develop and manufacture competitive products, and bring those products to market quickly at cost-effective prices. In addition, because of
the highly specialized nature of our business, we must be able to hire and retain the skilled and appropriately qualified personnel necessary to perform the services
required by our customers. If we are unable to develop new products that meet customers’ changing needs or successfully attract and retain qualified personnel,
future sales and earnings may be adversely affected.

The business environment in which we operate is highly competitive and may impair our ability to achieve revenue growth.

We operate in industry segments that are diverse. Based upon our current market analysis, there is no single company or small group of companies in a
dominant competitive position. Some large competitors offer capabilities in a number of markets that overlap many of the same areas in which we offer services,
while certain companies are focused upon only one or a few of such markets. Some of the firms that compete with us in multiple areas include: Northrop
Grumman, Lockheed Martin and General Dynamics. In addition, we compete with smaller specialty companies in risk and compliance management companies,
organizational messaging companies, security consulting organizations, as well as companies that provide secure network offerings. If we do not compete
effectively, we may suffer price reductions, reduced gross margins and loss of market share.

Some of our security solutions have lengthy sales and implementation cycles, which could impact significantly our results of operations if projected
orders are not realized.

We market the majority of our security solutions directly to U.S. Government customers. The sale and implementation of our services to these entities
typically involves a lengthy education process and a significant technical evaluation and commitment of capital and other resources. This process is also subject
to the risk of delays associated with customers’ internal budgeting and other procedures for approving large capital expenditures, deploying new technologies
within their networks and testing and accepting new technologies that affect key operations. As a result, the sales and implementation cycles associated with
certain of our services can be lengthy, potentially lasting from three to nine months. Our quarterly and annual operating results could be materially harmed if
orders forecasted for a specific customer for a particular quarter are not realized.

If we are unable to protect our intellectual property, our revenues may be impacted adversely by the unauthorized use of our products and services.

Our success depends on our internally developed technologies, patents and other intellectual property. Despite our precautions, it may be possible for a
third party to copy or otherwise obtain and use our trade secrets or other forms of intellectual property without authorization. Furthermore, the laws of foreign
countries may not protect our proprietary rights in those countries to the same extent U.S. law protects these rights in the United States. In addition, it is possible
that others may independently develop substantially equivalent intellectual property. If we do not effectively protect our intellectual property, our business could
suffer. In the future, we may have to resort to litigation to enforce our intellectual property rights, to protect our trade secrets or to determine the validity and
scope of the proprietary rights of others. This type of litigation, regardless of its outcome, could result in substantial costs and diversion of management and
technical resources.

If we are unable to license third-party technology that is used in our products and services to perform key functions, the loss could have an adverse
affect on our revenues.

These third-party technology licenses may not continue to be available on commercially reasonable terms or at all. Our business could suffer if we lost the
rights to use these technologies. A third-party could claim that the licensed software infringes a patent or other proprietary right. Litigation between the licensor
and a third-party or between us and a third-party could lead to royalty obligations for which we are not indemnified or for which indemnification is insufficient, or
we may not be able to obtain any additional license on commercially reasonable terms or at all. The loss of, or our inability to obtain or maintain, any of these
technology licenses could delay the introduction of new products or services until equivalent technology, if available, is identified, licensed and integrated. This
could harm our business.
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Any potential future acquisitions, strategic investments, divestitures, mergers or joint ventures may subject us to significant risks, any of which could
harm our business.

Our long-term strategy may include identifying and acquiring, investing in or merging with suitable candidates on acceptable terms, or divesting of certain
business lines or activities. In particular, over time, we may acquire, make investments in, or merge with providers of product offerings that complement our
business or may terminate such activities. Mergers, acquisitions, and divestitures include a number of risks and present financial, managerial and operational
challenges, including but not limited to:

» diversion of management attention from running our existing business;

»  possible additional material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting;

» increased expenses including legal, administrative and compensation expenses related to newly hired or terminated employees;
+ increased costs to integrate the technology, personnel, customer base and business practices of the acquired company with us;
+  potential exposure to material liabilities not discovered in the due diligence process;

»  potential adverse effects on reported operating results due to possible write-down of goodwill and other intangible assets associated with
acquisitions; and

» unavailability of acquisition financing or unavailability of such financing on reasonable terms.

Any acquired business, technology, service or product could significantly under-perform relative to our expectations, and may not achieve the benefits we expect
from possible acquisitions. For all these reasons, our pursuit of an acquisition, investment, divestiture, merger, or joint venture could cause its actual results to
differ materially from those anticipated.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable to us as we are not an “accelerated filer”, “large accelerated filer” or “well-known seasoned issuer” as such terms are defined in Rule 12b-2
under the Exchange Act.

Item 2. Properties

We lease 191,700 square feet of space for our corporate headquarters, integration facility, and primary service depot in Ashburn, Virginia. The lease expires
in March 2016, with a ten-year extension available at our option.

We sublease 5,500 rentable square feet of space at the Ashburn, Virginia facility to our affiliate, Enterworks, Inc. which serves as Enterworks’ corporate
headquarters. This sublease was terminated February 28, 2009, and accordingly, Enterworks relocated its corporate headquarters.

We sublease 27,000 rentable square feet of space at the Ashburn, Virginia facility to our affiliate, TIMS LLC which serves as TIMS LLC’s corporate
headquarters. This sublease will expire April 20, 2009.

We lease additional office space in 7 separate facilities located in California, Massachusetts, Maryland, New Jersey, Virginia and the District of Columbia
under various leases expiring through September of 2013. The lease for the Germany office ended December 31, 2008.

We believe that the current space is substantially adequate to meet our operating requirements.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Information regarding legal proceedings may be found in Note 14 — Contingencies to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Not applicable.
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PART I1
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

No public market exists for the our Class A or Class B Common Stock. As of March 31, 2009, there were 178 holders of our Class A Common Stock and 5
holders of our Class B Common Stock. We have not paid dividends on either class of our Common Stock during the last two fiscal years. For a discussion of
restrictions on our ability to pay dividends, see Item 7 — Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity and
Capital Resources and Note 7 — Current Liabilities and Debt Obligations.

No public market exists for our Series A-1 and Series A-2 Redeemable Preferred Stock (“Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock”). See Note 8 — Redeemable
Preferred Stock.

As previously disclosed, effective July 13, 2007, our Public Preferred Stock is no longer quoted on the OTCBB, and is now quoted as TLSRP in the Pink
Sheets. See Note 8 — Redeemable Preferred Stock.

On February 5, 2008, our Board adopted the Telos Corporation 2008 Omnibus Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “2008 Plan”), which was subsequently
approved by our Class A and Class B Common stockholders at a special meeting of stockholders held on February 21, 2008. The number of shares available for
issuance under the 2008 Plan is 15,000,000 (fifteen million).

On May 27, 2008, we made an offer to certain of our employees who were also accredited investors to exchange certain outstanding stock options for
restricted shares of our Class A Common Stock. Subsequently, in June 2008, we issued a total of 4,774,273 shares of restricted stock (Class A common) in
exchange for 2,908,749 stock options outstanding under the Telos Corporation stock option plans; 2,498,564 stock options outstanding under the Xacta
Corporation stock option plan; and 983,379 stock options outstanding under the Telos Delaware, Inc. stock option plan. In addition, in June 2008 we granted
7,141,501 shares of restricted stock to our executive officers and employees. In September 2008, we granted 480,000 shares of restricted stock to certain of our
directors.

As of December 31, 2008, the number of shares available for issuance under the 2008 Plan was 2,617,014.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following should be read in connection with the accompanying information presented in Item 7 and Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

OPERATING RESULTS
Years Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(amounts in thousands)
Sales $217,067 $226,585 $140,873 $142,595 $116,340
Operating income (loss) 14,613 9,353 (9,025) (5,863) 5,944
Income (loss) before minority interest and income taxes 7,103 6,936 (29,669) (15,051) (2,894)
Net income (loss) 10,688 5,546  (29,681) (14,060) (2,953)
FINANCIAL CONDITION
As of December 31,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(amounts in thousands)
Total assets $62,701 $67,456 $48,460 $41,862 $58,517
Senior credit facility (1) 12,162 12,849 12,568 12,159 11,416
Senior subordinated debt (1) 4,179 5,179 5,179 5,179 5,179
Capital lease obligations, long-term (2) 7,559 8,129 8,722 9,239 9,727
Senior redeemable preferred stock (3) 9,871 9,447 9,023 8,599 8,175
Public preferred stock (3) 97,160 92,837 87,987 71,008 65,424

(1) See Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 regarding our debt obligations.
(2) See Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 regarding our capital lease obligations.
(3) See Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 regarding our redeemable preferred stock.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
General

We previously reported two operating segments in our public filings: Managed Solutions and Xacta. Managed Solutions was primarily our traditional IT-
product reselling business. Xacta comprised several business lines that together made up our security solutions brand. Beginning in late 2006, we undertook
various cost reduction and reorganization strategies in order to address our poor operating results which were caused in part by an unsustainable revenue mix
composed of a large proportion of IT-product reselling revenue that contributed a smaller proportion of margin to support our operations. As a result, we decided
to focus and invest more in our higher-margin business areas. In late 2007, the Managed Solutions segment was realigned under the Secure Networks business
line. While we continue to offer certain of the Managed Solutions products and services as part of our strategy of offering a broad range of IT solutions to our
customers, the decision to consolidate the Managed Solutions segment with the Secure Networks business line resulted in a change in our reportable operating
segments.

Accordingly, as of January 1, 2008, we have reflected the change in segment reporting in accordance with the criteria for segment reporting as set forth in
SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,” and we no longer report multiple segments.

Our goal is to deliver superior IT solutions that meet or exceed our customers’ expectations. We focus on secure enterprise solutions that address the unique
requirements of the federal government, the military, and the intelligence community, as well as commercial enterprises that require secure solutions. Our IT
solutions consist of the following:

»  Secure Networks — Secure wired and wireless network solutions for DoD and federal agencies. We provide an extensive range of wired and wireless
voice, data, and video secure network solutions and services to support defense and civilian missions.

* Information Assurance — Software products and consulting services to automate, streamline, and enforce IT security and risk management processes
enterprise-wide. We offer information assurance consulting services and Xacta brand GRC (governance, risk, and compliance) solutions to protect
and defend IT systems, ensuring their availability, integrity, authentication, and confidentiality.

*  Secure Messaging — The next-generation messaging solution supporting warfighters throughout the world. Our Automated Message Handling
System (AMHS) offers secure, automated, web-based solutions for distributing and managing enterprise messages formatted for DMS (Defense
Messaging System).

+ Identity Management — End-to-end logical and physical security from the gate to the network. Our identity management solutions provide control of
physical access to bases, offices, workstations, and other facilities, as well as control of logical access to databases, host systems, and other IT
resources.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments based upon estimates and assumptions that are inherently
uncertain. Such judgments affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.
Management continuously evaluates its estimates and assumptions including those related to contract percentage of completion methodology (on a proportional
performance basis for service contracts) for revenue recognition purposes, allowance for doubtful accounts receivable, allowance for inventory obsolescence,
valuation allowance for deferred tax assets, long-lived assets, warranty obligations, income taxes, contingencies and litigation and the carrying values of assets
and liabilities. Management bases its estimates on historical experience and/or on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

The following is a summary of the most critical accounting policies used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

Estimating future costs and, therefore, revenues and profits, is a process requiring a high degree of management judgment. In the event of a change in total
estimated contract cost or profit, the camulative effect of a change is recorded in the period the change in estimate occurs. In the event cost estimates indicate a
loss on a contract, the total amount of such loss, excluding general and administrative expense, is recorded in the period in which the loss is first estimated.
Revenue for maintenance contracts is recognized over the term of the maintenance contracts.

Revenues are recognized in accordance with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 104, “Revenue Recognition.” We consider amounts earned upon
evidence that an arrangement has been obtained, services are delivered, fees are fixed or determinable, and collectability is reasonably assured. Additionally,
revenues on arrangements requiring the delivery of more than one product or service are recognized in accordance with EITF 00-21, “Accounting for Revenue
Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables” except as the pronouncement states, on contracts where higher-level GAAP (such as Statement of Position (“SOP”)
97-2 as described below) prevails.
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We recognize revenues for software arrangements upon persuasive evidence of an arrangement, delivery of the software, and determination that collection
of a fixed or determinable license fee is probable. Revenues for software licenses sold on a subscription basis are recognized ratably over the related license
terms. For arrangements where the sale of software licenses are bundled with other products, including software products, upgrades and enhancements, post-
contract customer support (“PCS”), and installation, the relative fair value of each element is determined based on vendor-specific objective evidence (“VSOE”).
VSOE is defined by SOP 97-2, “Software Revenue Recognition” (“SOP 97-2”), and SOP 98-9, “Modification of SOP 97-2, Software Revenue Recognition With
Respect to Certain Transactions” (“SOP 98-9”), and is limited to the price charged when the element is sold separately or, if the element is not yet sold separately,
the fair value assigned under the residual method or the price set by management having the relevant authority. If VSOE does not exist for the allocation of
revenue to the various elements of the arrangement, all revenue from the arrangement is deferred until the earlier of the point at which (1) such VSOE does exist
or (2) all elements of the arrangement are delivered. PCS revenues, upon being unbundled from a software license fee, are recognized ratably over the PCS
period.

Substantially all of our contracts are contracts with the U.S. Government involving the complex delivery of technology products and services. Accordingly,
these contracts are within the scope of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountant’s Audit and Accounting Guide for Audits of Federal Government
Contractors. To the extent contracts are incomplete at the end of an accounting period, revenue is recognized on the percentage-of-completion method, on a
proportional performance basis, using costs incurred in relation to total estimated costs.

We may use subcontractors in the course of performing on services contracts. Some of such arrangements may fall within the scope of EITF 99-19
“Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent.” We presume that revenues on services contracts are recognized on a gross basis, but evaluate
the various criteria specified in EITF 99-19 in making the determination of whether revenue should be recognized on a gross or net basis. The revenue recognized
on services on a net basis for the current and prior years has been insignificant.

A description of the business lines, the typical deliverables, and the revenue recognition criteria in general for such deliverables follows:

Secure Messaging — We provide Automated Message Handling Software (“AMHS”) and services to our customers. The software and accompanying services fall
within the scope of SOP 97-2, as fully discussed above. Other services fall within the scope of SAB 104 for arrangements that include only time-and-materials
(“T&M?”) contracts and EITF 00-21 for contracts with multiple deliverables such as T&M elements and firm fixed-price (“FFP”) services where objective reliable
evidence of fair value of the elements is available. Under such arrangements, the T&M elements are established by direct costs. Revenue is recognized on T&M
contracts according to specified rates as direct labor and other direct costs are incurred. Revenue for FFP services is recognized on a proportional performance
basis. FFP services may be billed to the customer on a percentage-of-completion basis or based upon milestones, which may approximate the proportional
performance of the services under the agreements, as specified in such agreements. To the extent that customer billings exceed the performance of the specified
services, the revenue would be deferred.

Secure Networking Solutions (formerly Secure Wireless) — We provide wireless and wired networking solutions consisting of hardware and services to our
customers. The solutions are generally sold as FFP bundled solutions. Certain of these networking solutions involve contracts to design, develop, or modify
complex electronic equipment configurations to a buyer's specification or to provide network engineering services related to the performance of such contracts,
and as such fall within the scope of SOP 81-1, “Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and Certain Production-Type Contracts.” Revenue is earned
upon percentage of completion based upon proportional performance, such performance generally being defined by performance milestones. Certain other
solutions fall within the scope of SAB 104, such as resold information technology products, like laptops, printers, networking equipment and peripherals, and
EITF 00-21. Revenue is recognized based upon objective reliable evidence of fair value of the elements, such as upon delivery of the hardware product or other
direct costs (“ODC”) and the ongoing maintenance. For product sales, revenue is recognized upon proof of acceptance by the customer, otherwise it is deferred
until such time as the proof of acceptance is obtained. For example, in delivery orders for Department of Defense customers, which comprise the majority of the
Company’s customers, such acceptance is achieved with a signed Department of Defense Form DD-250. Services provided under these contracts are generally
provided on a FFP basis, and as such fall within the scope of SAB 104. Revenue for services is recognized based on proportional performance, as the work
progresses. FFP services may be billed to the customer on a percentage-of-completion basis or based upon milestones, which may approximate the proportional
performance of the services under the agreements, as specified in such agreements. To the extent that customer billings exceed the performance of the specified
services, the revenue would be deferred. Revenue is recognized under T&M services contracts based upon specified billing rates and other direct costs as
incurred.

Information Assurance (“IA”) Services — We provide consulting services to our customers under either a FFP or T&M basis. Such contracts fall under the
scope of SAB 104. Revenue for FFP services is recognized on a proportional performance basis. FFP services may be billed to the customer on a percentage-of-
completion basis or based upon milestones, which may approximate the proportional performance of the services under the agreements, as specified in such
agreements. To the extent that customer billings exceed the performance of the specified services, the revenue would be deferred. Revenue is recognized under
T&M contracts based upon specified billing rates and other direct costs as incurred.
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Identity Management — We provide our identity management services and sell information technology products, such as computer laptops and specialized
printers, and consumables, such as identity cards, to our customers. The solutions are generally sold as FFP bundled solutions, which would typically fall within
the scope of EITF 00-21 and SAB 104. Revenue is recognized based upon objective reliable evidence of fair value of the elements, such as upon delivery of the
hardware product or ODC’s and the ongoing maintenance. Revenue for services recognized based on proportional performance, as the work progresses. FFP
services may be billed to the customer on a percentage-of-completion basis or based upon milestones, which may approximate the proportional performance of
the services under the agreements, as specified in such agreements. To the extent that customer billings exceed the performance of the specified services, the
revenue would be deferred. Revenue is recognized under T&M contracts based upon specified billing rates and other direct costs as incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, where cost is determined primarily on the weighted average cost method. Inventories consist primarily
of purchased customer off-the-shelf hardware and software, and component computer parts used in connection with system integration services that we perform.
Inventories also include spare parts utilized to support certain maintenance contracts. Spare parts inventory is amortized on a straight-line basis over two to five
years, which represents the shorter of the warranty period or estimated useful life of the asset. An allowance for obsolete, slow-moving or non-salable inventory is
provided for all other inventory. This allowance is based on our overall obsolescence experience and our assessment of future inventory requirements.

Warranty Obligations

We record a liability in connection with various warranty obligations. Such warranty obligations are affected by product failure rates and material usage
and service delivery costs incurred in correcting a product failure. Should actual product failure rates, material usage or service delivery costs differ from
estimates, revisions to the estimated warranty liability would be required, resulting in additional income statement charges.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Under SFAS No. 109, deferred tax assets and liabilities
are computed based on the difference between the financial statement and income tax bases of assets and liabilities using the enacted marginal tax rate. SFAS
No. 109 requires that the net deferred tax asset be reduced by a valuation allowance if, based on the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of the net deferred tax asset will not be realized.

Results of Operations

We derive substantially all of our revenues from contracts and subcontracts with the U.S. Government. Our revenues are generated from a number of
contract vehicles and task orders. In general, we believe our contract portfolio is characterized as having low to moderate financial risk due to the limited number
of long-term fixed price development contracts. Our firm fixed- price contracts consist principally of contracts for the purchase of computer equipment at
established contract prices or contracts for certification and accreditation services offerings. Our time-and-material contracts generally allow the pass-through of
allowable costs plus a profit margin. For 2008, revenue by contract type was as follows: firm fixed-priced 83.5%, and time-and-materials 16.5%.
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Statement of Operations Data

The following table sets forth certain consolidated financial data and related percentages for the periods indicated:

Years Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006
(dollar amounts in thousands)

Revenue $217,067 100.0% $226,585 100.0% $140,873 100.0%
Cost of sales 172,640 79.6 185,005 81.6 119,024 84.5
Selling, general and administrative expenses 29,814 13.7 32,227 14.2 30,874 21.9
Operating income (loss) 14,613 6.7 9,353 4.2 (9,025) (6.4)
Other income (expenses):

Gain on sale of TIMS LLC membership interest — — 5,803 2.5 — —

Non-operating income 191 0.1 131 — 67 —

Losses from affiliates — — — — (134) 0.1)

Interest expense (7,701) (3.5) (8,351) 3.7) (20,577) (14.6)
Income (loss) before minority interest and income taxes 7,103 3.3 6,936 3.0 (29,669) (21.1)
Minority interest (2,146) (1.0) (1,110) (0.5) — —
Income (loss) before income taxes 4,957 2.3 5,826 2.5 (29,669) (21.1)
Income tax benefit (provision) 5,731 2.6 (280) (0.1) (12) —
Net income (loss) $ 10,688 49% $ 5,546 2.4% $(29,681) (21.1)%

Results of Operations
Years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

Revenue. Revenue decreased by 4.2% to $217.1 million for 2008 from $226.6 million for 2007. Such decrease is primarily attributable to decreased sales of
Secured Networks solutions from the U.S. Air Force NETCENTS (Network-Centric Solutions) contract, offset by an increase in sales of Identity Management
solutions from the Defense Manpower Data Center (“DMDC”) contract. Product revenue for 2008 decreased by 25.7% to $105.3 million from $141.7 million for
2007, primarily attributable to a decrease in sales of product reselling activities of $56.0 million of Secured Networks solutions due to our decision to outsource
the reselling business and focus on higher value solutions, and a decrease of $8.3 million in sales of proprietary software, offset by an increase in sales of Identity
Management solutions of $26.7 million under the DMDC contract awarded in May 2008. Services revenue increased by 31.7% to $111.8 million for 2008 from
$84.9 million for 2007, primarily attributable to increases in revenue of $12.0 million for Secure Networks solutions, $5.5 million for Secure Messaging
solutions, $6.5 million for Information Assurance, and $2.9 million for Identity Management solutions, as a result of our continued emphasis on selling solutions
and services.

Revenue increased by 60.8% to $226.6 million for 2007 from $140.9 million for 2006. Such increase is primarily attributable to increased sales from the
U.S. Air Force NETCENTS (Network-Centric Solutions) contract, which in 2007 performed major site installations of its network solutions. Product revenue
increased by 86.0% to $141.7 million for 2007 from $76.2 million for 2006, primarily attributable to an increase in product reselling activities of $66.0 million of
Secured Networks solutions. Services revenue increased by 31.2% to $84.9 million for 2007 from $64.7 million for 2006, primarily attributable to an increase in
revenue of $20.3 million of Secure Networks solutions, resulting from major site installations as noted above.

Cost of sales. Cost of sales decreased by 6.7% to $172.6 million for 2008 from $185.0 million for 2007. Cost of sales increased by 55.5% to $185.0 million
for 2007 from $119.0 million for 2006. Cost of sales as a percentage of revenue decreased to 79.6% for 2008 from 81.6% for 2007, and from 84.5% for 2006.
This trend is a direct result of continued emphasis on selling solutions and services while outsourcing product sales.

Gross profit. Gross profit increased by 6.8% to $44.4 million for 2008 from $41.6 million for 2007, and by 90.3% from $21.8 million for 2006. Gross
margin increased 2.0% to 20.4% for 2008 from 18.4% for 2007, and by 2.9% from 15.5% for 2006, primarily attributable to the continued emphasis on selling
solutions and services while outsourcing product sales as noted above.

17



Table of Contents

Selling, general, and administrative expenses. Selling, general, and administrative expenses decreased 7.5% to $29.8 million in 2008 from $32.2 million
for 2007. Such decrease is primarily attributable to decreases in litigation-related expenses of $4.0 million, net of insurance reimbursements, bonus accrual of
$0.7 million, and bad debt accrual of $0.6 million, offset by increases in labor costs of $1.7 million, and audit fees of $1.0 million.

Selling, general, and administrative expenses increased 4.4% from $30.9 million for 2006 to $32.2 million for 2007. Such increase is primarily attributable
to $5.0 million for bonus accrual, offset by decreases in litigation-related and other legal expenses of $0.6 million, net of insurance reimbursements, and
reductions of $1.8 million in labor costs and $1.3 million in other costs resulting from a company-wide reorganization and cost reduction plan implemented in
2006.

Interest expense. Interest expenses decreased 7.8% to $7.7 million for 2008 from $8.4 million for 2007, primarily due to a decrease in the accrual of
accretion of the Public Preferred Stock and a decrease in interest expense incurred resulting from the $1.0 million repayment of the senior subordinated notes.
Interest expenses decreased 59.4% from $20.6 million for 2006 to $8.4 million for 2007, primarily due to the accretion and dividend accrual adjustments in 2006
on the Public Preferred Stock. Components of interest expense are as follows:

December 31,

2008 2007 2006
(amounts in thousands)
Commercial and subordinated note interest incurred $2,954 $3,077 $ 3,173
Preferred stock interest accrued 4,747 5,274 17,404
Total $7,701 $8,351 $20,577

Provision for income taxes. We recorded a benefit of $5.7 million in 2008, primarily attributable to the release of the valuation allowance of $6.0 million on
our deferred tax assets. Our decision to release the valuation allowance was based on our determination that it is more likely than not that we will be able to
realize the benefit. We have been profitable in seven out of eight quarters and we project positive results in the future based in part on our large funded backlog.
We recorded provision for income taxes of $280,000 and $12,000 for 2007 and 2006, respectively. The income tax provision of $280,000 for 2007 represents
primarily the federal alternative minimum tax and certain state income tax liabilities. The income tax provision of $12,000 for 2006 represents certain minimum
state income tax liabilities.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

As described in more detail below, we maintain a revolving credit facility (“the Facility”) with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. (“Wells Fargo Foothill”).
Borrowings under the Facility are collateralized by substantially all of our assets including inventory, equipment, and accounts receivable. The amount of
available borrowings fluctuates based on the underlying asset-borrowing base, in general 85% of our trade accounts receivable, as adjusted by certain reserves (as
further defined in the Facility agreement). The Facility provides us with virtually all of the liquidity we require to meet our operating, investing and financing
needs. Therefore maintaining sufficient availability on the Facility is the most critical factor in our liquidity. While a variety of factors related to sources and uses
of cash, such as timeliness of accounts receivable collections, vendor credit terms, or significant collateral requirements, ultimately impact our liquidity, such
factors may or may not have a direct impact on our liquidity, based on how the transactions associated with such circumstances impact our availability under the
Facility. For example, a contractual requirement to post collateral for a duration of several months, depending on the materiality of the amount, could have an
immediate negative effect on our liquidity, as such a circumstance would utilize availability on the Facility without a near-term cash inflow back to us. Likewise,
the release of such collateral could have a corresponding positive effect on our liquidity, as it would represent an addition to our availability without any
corresponding near-term cash outflow. Similarly, a slow-down of payments from a customer, group of customers or government payment office would not have
an immediate and direct effect on our availability on the Facility unless the slowdown was material in amount and over an extended period of time. We discuss
any significant unusual circumstances, such as these the examples described above, that could have an impact on the Facility, and therefore our liquidity.
However, management believes that the Company’s borrowing capacity is sufficient to fund our capital and liquidity needs for the foreseeable future.

Cash used in operating activities was $0.3 million in the year ended December 31, 2008, compared to cash provided by operating activities of $0.1 million
for 2007. Cash provided by or used in operating activities is primarily driven by our operating income, the timing of receipt of customer payments, the timing of
payments to vendors and employees, and the timing of inventory turnover, adjusted for certain non cash items that do not impact cash flows from operating
activities. Additionally and more specifically, in 2008, net income was $10.5 million, which included $6.0 million to reflect the release of valuation allowance
against the deferred tax assets. Further, in 2007, net income was $5.5 million, including $5.8 million for the gain on sale of TIMS LLC membership interest, the
proceeds from which were reflected as an investing activity. Cash provided by operating activities was $1.4 million for 2006, due to an adjustment to cash flows
from operating activities of $29.7 million resulting primarily from the accretion and dividend accrual adjustment in 2006 on the Public Preferred Stock.

Cash provided by investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $3.4 million, compared to $1.1 million for 2007. The investing activities
in 2008 consisted of the maturity of $4.0 million of certain restricted investments, offset by the purchase of $0.6 million of property and equipment. The investing
activities in 2007 consisted of the net proceeds of $5.8 million from sale of TIMS LLC membership interest, offset by the purchase of $4.1 million of restricted
investments and $0.6 million of property and equipment. Cash used in investing activities was $0.8 million for 2006, primarily due to the purchase of property
and equipment.

Cash used in financing activities for year ended December 31, 2008 was $3.1 million, compared to $1.3 million for 2007, and $0.5 million for 2006. The
financing activities in 2008 consisted of the payments of $0.5 million under capital leases, payments of $1.0 million of senior subordinated notes, and distribution
of $1.8 million to Class B Member of TIMS LLC, offset by net borrowings $0.4 million from the Facility. The financing activities in 2007 consisted of the
payments of $0.6 million under capital leases, and distribution of $0.9 million to Class B Member of TIMS LLC. The financing activities in 2006 consisted
principally of payments under capital leases.

Additionally, our capital structure consists of subordinated notes, redeemable preferred stock, and common stock. The capital structure is complex and
requires an understanding of the terms of the instruments, certain restrictions on scheduled payments and redemptions of the various instruments, and the
interrelationship of the instruments especially as it relates to the subordination hierarchy. Therefore a thorough understanding of how our capital structure impacts
our liquidity is necessary and accordingly we have disclosed the relevant information about each instrument as follows:

Senior Revolving Credit Facility

Effective January 31, 2008, we amended our $15 million revolving credit facility (the “Facility”) with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. (“Wells Fargo Foothill”) to
increase the limit on the Facility to $20 million through March 31, 2008, and to accommodate increased operational needs. In March 2008, we renewed the
Facility and amended its terms. Under the amended terms, the maturity on the Facility was extended to September 30, 2011, and the limit on the Facility was
increased to $25 million to accommodate current and projected financing needs. Pursuant to the terms of the Facility, the interest rate is established as the Wells
Fargo Foothill “prime rate” plus 1%, the Federal Funds rate plus 11/2%, or 7.00%, whichever is higher. In lieu of having interest charged at the rate based on the
Wells Fargo Foothill prime rate, we have the option to have interest on all or a portion of the advances on such Facility be charged at a rate of interest based on
the LIBOR Rate (the greater of the LIBOR rate three business days prior to the commencement of the requested interest period or 3%), plus 4.00%.

Additionally, subsequent to the March 2008 renewal, Wells Fargo Foothill and the Company amended the Facility and the Company obtained waivers for
various defaults of provisions under the Facility. Such defaults included failure to provide audited annual financial statements within the required 90 day period
due to the late filing of the 2007 Form 10-K, as well as various administrative defaults resulting from certain of the Company’s investments and financing
arrangements.
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Effective January 1, 2007, we amended the Facility with Wells Fargo Foothill to provide additional availability through the relief of certain reserves against
available collateral through April 30, 2007, to establish Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization (“EBITDA”) covenants for 2007, to give
consent to the formation of TIMS LLC and subsequent sale of a portion of the membership interests in TIMS LLC (disclosed in Note 2—Sale of Assets), and to
provide various waivers in accordance with the Facility.

The Facility has various covenants that may, among other things, affect our ability to merge with another entity, sell or transfer certain assets, pay dividends
and make other distributions beyond certain limitations. The Facility also requires us to meet certain financial covenants, including, EBITDA as defined in the
Facility. As of December 31, 2008, we were in compliance with the Facility’s financial and EBITDA covenants. Based on our current projection of EBITDA, we
expect that we will remain in compliance with our EBITDA covenants, and accordingly, the Facility is classified as a noncurrent liability as of December 31,
2008.

As of December 31, 2008, the interest rate on the Facility was 7.00%. Pursuant to the terms of the Facility, during 2008 the interest rate was the Wells
Fargo Foothill “prime rate” plus 1% (as of December 31, 2008 the Wells Fargo Foothill “prime rate” was 6.00%) or 5.75%, whichever was higher. As of
December 31, 2008, we had not elected the LIBOR rate option.

At December 31, 2008, we had outstanding borrowings of $12.2 million and unused borrowing availability of $3.8 million on the Facility. The effective
weighted average interest rates (including various fees paid whether capitalized or expensed pursuant to the Facility agreement and related amendments) on the
outstanding borrowings under the Facility were 11.47% and 13.32% for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Senior Subordinated Notes

In 1995, we issued Senior Subordinated Notes (“Notes”) to certain shareholders. Such Notes are classified as either Series B or Series C. The Series B
Notes are secured by our property and equipment, but are subordinate to the security interests of Wells Fargo Foothill. The Series C Notes are unsecured. Our
Notes are held principally by common shareholders and totaled $4.2 million at December 31, 2008. These subordinated notes bear interest at rates between 14%
and 17%, due and payable on December 31, 2011. During 2008, we paid $686,000 in interest to subordinated note holders. In addition, these notes have a
cumulative prepayment premium of 13.5% per annum payable only upon certain circumstances, which if in effect, would be approximately $19.4 million at
December 31, 2008, which has not been accrued. See Note 7 — Current Liabilities and Debt Obligations.

In June and July of 2008, we repaid $0.5 million, respectively, of the outstanding Series B Notes. The prepayment penalties on the repayment of such Notes
were waived by the note holders. Additionally, Wells Fargo Foothill granted a waiver and amendment to the Facility to allow the repayment of such Notes.

Redeemable Preferred Stock

We currently have two primary classes of redeemable preferred stock - Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock and Public Preferred Stock. Each class carries
cumulative dividend rates of 12% to 14.125%. We accrue dividends and provide for accretion related to the redeemable preferred stock. At December 31, 2008,
the total carrying amount of redeemable preferred stock, including accumulated and unpaid dividends was $107.0 million. During 2008, we accrued $4.7 million
of dividends on the two classes of redeemable preferred stock, and such amounts have been included in interest expense.

Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock

Redemption for all shares of the Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock plus all accrued dividends on those shares was scheduled, subject to limitations
detailed below, on October 31, 2005. However, on April 14, 2005, Toxford Corporation, the holder of 72.6% of the Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock, extended
the maturity of its instruments to October 31, 2008. Subsequently, on March 17, 2008, Toxford Corporation further extended the maturity of its instruments to
December 31, 2011. Additionally, on June 4, 2008, North Atlantic Smaller Companies Investment Trust PLC and North Atlantic Value LLP A/C B, the holders of
7.9% and .06%, respectively, of the Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock, also extended the maturity of their instruments to December 31, 2011. Among the
limitations with regard to the scheduled redemptions of the Senior Redeemable Public Preferred Stock is the legal availability of funds, pursuant to Maryland law.
Accordingly, due to our current financial position and the terms of the Facility agreement, we are precluded by Maryland law from making the scheduled
payment. As the Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock is not due on demand, or callable, within twelve months from December 31, 2008, the remaining 18.9% is
also classified as noncurrent.
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Public Preferred Stock

Redemption Provisions

Redemption for the Public Preferred Stock is contractually scheduled from 2005 through 2009. Since 1991, we have not declared or paid any dividends on
our Public Preferred Stock, based upon our interpretation of restrictions in our Articles of Amendment and Restatement, filed with the State of Maryland on
January 5, 1992, as amended on April 14, 1995 (“Charter”), limitations in the terms of the Public Preferred Stock instrument, specific dividend payment
restrictions in the Facility entered into with Wells Fargo Foothill, and other senior obligations and limitations pursuant to Maryland law. Pursuant to their terms,
we are scheduled, but not required, to redeem the Public Preferred Stock in five annual tranches during the period 2005 through 2009. However, due to our
substantial senior obligations, limitations set forth in the covenants in the Facility, foreseeable capital and operational requirements, restrictions and prohibitions
of our Charter, and provisions of Maryland law, and assuming sufficient liquidity to undertake any stock redemption (which is presently unquantifiable), we
believe that we will continue to be unable to meet the redemption schedule set forth in the terms of the Public Preferred Stock instrument. Moreover, the Public
Preferred Stock is not payable on demand, nor callable, for failure to redeem the Public Preferred Stock in accordance with the redemption schedule set forth in
the instrument. Therefore, we have classified these securities as noncurrent liabilities in the balance sheet as of December 31, 2008 and 2007.

We are parties with certain of our subsidiaries to the Facility agreement with Wells Fargo Foothill, whose term expires on September 30, 2011. Under the
Facility, we agreed that, so long as any credit under the Facility is available and until full and final payment of the obligations under the Facility, we would not
make any distribution or declare or pay any dividends (other than common stock) on our stock, or purchase, acquire, or redeem any stock, or exchange any stock
for indebtedness, or retire any stock. We continue to actively rely upon the Facility and expect to continue to do so until the Facility expires on September 30,
2011.

Accordingly, as stated above, we will continue to classify the entirety of its obligation to redeem the Public Preferred Stock as a long-term obligation. The
Public Preferred Stock by its terms cannot be redeemed if doing so would violate the terms of an agreement regarding the borrowing of funds or the extension of
credit which is binding upon us or any of our subsidiaries, and it does not include any other provisions that would otherwise require any acceleration of the
redemption of or amortization payments with respect to the Public Preferred Stock. Thus, the Public Preferred Stock is not and will not be due on demand, nor
callable, within twelve months from December 31, 2008. This classification is consistent with ARB No. 43 and Statement of Financial Accounting Standard
(“SFAS”) No. 78, “Classification of Obligations that are Callable by the Creditor.”

Paragraph 7 of Chapter 3A of ARB No. 43 defines a current liability, as follows:

“The term current liabilities is used principally to designate obligations whose liquidation is reasonably expected to require the use of existing
resources properly classifiable as current assets, or the creation of other current liabilities. As a balance sheet category, the classification is intended
to include obligations for items that have entered into the operating cycle, such as payables incurred in the acquisition of materials and supplies to be
used in the production of goods or in providing services to be offered for sale; collections received in advance of the delivery of goods or
performance of services; and debts that arise from operations directly related to the operating cycle, such as accruals for wages, salaries,
commissions, rentals, royalties, and income and other taxes. Other liabilities whose regular and ordinary liquidation is expected to occur within a
relatively short period of time, usually 12 months, are also intended for inclusion, such as short-term debts arising from the acquisition of capital
assets, serial maturities of long-term obligations, amounts required to be expended within 1 year under sinking fund provisions, and agency
obligations arising from the collection or acceptance of cash or other assets for the account of third persons.”

Paragraph 5 of SFAS No. 78, provides the following:

“The current liability classification is also intended to include obligations that, by their terms, are due on demand or will be due on demand
within one year (or operating cycle, if longer) from the balance sheet date, even though liquidation may not be expected within that period. It is also
intended to include long-term obligations that are or will be callable by the creditor either because the debtor’s violation of a provision of the debt
agreement at the balance sheet date makes the obligation callable or because the violation, if not cured within a specified grace period, will make the
obligation callable...”

If, pursuant to the terms of the Public Preferred Stock, we do not redeem the Public Preferred Stock in accordance with the scheduled redemptions
described above, the terms of the Public Preferred Stock require us to discharge its obligation to redeem the Public Preferred Stock as soon as we are financially
capable and legally permitted to do so. Therefore, by its very terms, the Public Preferred Stock is not due on demand or callable for failure to make a scheduled
payment pursuant to its redemption provisions and is properly classified as a noncurrent liability.



Dividend Provisions

We pay dividends on the Public Preferred Stock, when and if declared by the Board of Directors and are required to be paid out of legally available funds in
accordance with Maryland law. The Public Preferred Stock accrues a semiannual dividend at the annual rate of 12% ($1.20) per share, based on the liquidation
preference of $10 per share and is fully cumulative. Dividends in additional shares of the Public Preferred Stock for 1990 and 1991 were paid at the rate of 6% of
a share for each $.60 of such dividends not paid in cash. For the cash dividends payable since December 1, 1995, we have accrued $65.3 million as of
December 31, 2008. In 2008, we accrued cumulative Public Preferred Stock dividends of $3.8 million, which was recorded as interest expense.
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The carrying value of the accrued Paid-in-Kind (“PIK”) dividends on the Public Preferred Stock for the period 1992 through June 1995 was $4.0 million.
Had we accrued such dividends on a cash basis for this time period, the total amount accrued would have been $15.1 million. However, as a result of the
redemption of the 410,000 shares of the Public Preferred Stock in November 1998, such amounts were reduced and adjusted to $3.5 million and $13.4 million,
respectively. Our Charter, Section 2(a) states, “Any dividends payable with respect to the Exchangeable Preferred Stock (“Public Preferred Stock”) during the
first six years after the Effective Date (November 20, 1989) may be paid (subject to restrictions under applicable state law), in the sole discretion of the Board of
Directors, in cash or by issuing additional fully paid and nonassessable shares of Exchangeable Preferred Stock ...”. Accordingly, the Board had the discretion to
pay the dividends for the referenced period in cash or by the issuance of additional shares of Public Preferred Stock. During the period in which we stated our
intent to pay PIK dividends, we stated our intention to amend our Charter to permit such payment by the issuance of additional shares of Public Preferred Stock.
In consequence, as required by applicable accounting requirements, the accrual for these dividends was recorded at the estimated fair value (as the average of the
ask and bid prices) on the dividend date of the shares of Public Preferred Stock that would have been (but were not) issued. This accrual was $9.9 million lower
than the accrual would be if the intent was only to pay the dividend in cash, at that date or any later date.

In May 2006, the Board concluded that the accrual of PIK dividends for the period 1992 through June 1995 was no longer appropriate. Since 1995, we
have disclosed in the footnotes to our audited consolidated financial statements the carrying value of the accrued PIK dividends on the Public Preferred Stock for
the period 1992 through June 1995 was $4.0 million, and that had we accrued cash dividends during this time period, the total amount accrued would have been
$15.1 million. As stated above, such amounts were reduced and adjusted to $3.5 million and $13.4 million, respectively, due to the redemption of 410,000 shares
of the Public Preferred Stock in November 1998. On May 12, 2006, the Board voted to confirm that our intent with respect to the payment of dividends on the
Public Preferred Stock for this period changed from its previously stated intent to pay PIK dividends to that of an intent to pay cash dividends. We therefore
changed the accrual from $3.5 million to $13.4 million, the result of which was to increase our negative shareholder equity by the $9.9 million difference between
those two amounts, by recording an additional $9.9 million charge to interest expense for the second quarter of 2006, resulting in a balance of $97.2 million and
$92.8 million for the principal amount and all accrued dividends on the Public Preferred Stock as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. This action is a
considered a change in assumption that results in a change in accounting estimate as defined in SFAS 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections” which
replaces APB No. 20, “Accounting Changes” and SFAS No. 3, “Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements.”

Borrowing Capacity

Our working capital was $10.8 million as of December 31, 2008. Our working capital deficit was $0.4 million as of December 31, 2007, primarily due to
amounts resulting from unreimbursed litigation-related and other legal expenses.

In accordance with the terms of one of our government contracts for services, we were required to provide a performance bond and a payment bond for a
system installation at a customer site. The amount of such bond was approximately $4.1 million and we were required to collateralize the entire amount of the
bond. We provided such collateral on or about October 31, 2007. The terms of the bond requirement allow for a release of a significant amount of the collateral
subject to satisfactory performance. Consequently, $1.7 million, $1.7 million, and $0.6 million in collateral were released in accordance with such satisfactory
performance in May, July and November 2008, respectively. As of December 31, 2008, the remaining collateral balance is approximately $103,000, which is
expected to be released in December of 2009, which is one year after anticipated satisfactory completion of the contract.

At December 31, 2008, we had outstanding debt and long-term obligations of $130.9 million, consisting of $12.2 million under the Facility, $4.2 million in
subordinated debt, $7.5 million in capital lease obligations and $107.0 million in redeemable preferred stock, which is classified as liability in accordance with
SFAS No. 150.

We believe that available cash and borrowings under the amended Facility will be sufficient to generate adequate amounts of cash to meet our needs for
operating expenses, debt service requirements, and projected capital expenditures for 2009. We anticipate the continued need for a credit facility upon terms and
conditions substantially similar to the amended Facility in order to meet our long term needs for operating expenses, debt service requirements, and projected
capital expenditures. Although no assurances can be given, we expect that we will be in compliance throughout the term of the amended Facility with respect to
the financial and other covenants.

In April 2007, as a result of the sale of a membership interest in TIMS LLC, we received $6 million in cash consideration which was used to address
working capital requirements. See Note 2 — Sale of Assets.

Additionally, in late 2007, we experienced delayed payments from one of our significant government payment offices due to complications arising from
that office’s payment system conversion. As a result, anticipated payments from this government payment office have been received significantly later than the
payment due dates. We have been able to utilize our Facility to mitigate the effect of these payment delays. This slow down in payment has since been resolved.
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Contractual Obligations

The following summarizes our contractual obligations and our redeemable preferred stock at December 31, 2008 (in thousands):

Payments due by Period

2016 and
Total 2009 2010 -2012 2013 - 2015 later
Capital lease obligations (1) $ 14,456 $2,022 $ 5998 $ 5941 $ 495
Senior revolving credit facility (2) 12,162 — 12,162 — —
Senior subordinated notes 4,179 — 4,179 — —
Interest on senior subordinated notes (3) 1,851 617 1,234 — —
Operating lease obligations 1,558 614 890 54 —
$ 34,206 $3,253 $ 24,463 $ 5995 $ 495
Senior preferred stock (4) $ 9,871
Public preferred stock (5) 97,160
$107,031
Total $141,237
1) Includes interest expense: $ 6,252 $1,378 $ 3326 $ 1534 $ 14
) Amount does not include interest on the Facility as we are unable to predict the amounts of interest due to the short-term nature of the
advances and repayments. Interest expense for 2008 was $1.0 million.
3) Amounts calculated based on principal balance as of December 31, 2008, at interest rates ranging from 14% to 17%.
4) In accordance with SFAS No. 150, the senior preferred stock was reclassified from equity to liability in July 2003. Amount represents the

carrying value as of December 31, 2008, and includes accrual of accumulated dividends of $6.9 million. Payment of such amount presumes
conditions precedent being satisfied (See Note 8 — Redeemable Preferred Stock) and as such, redemption date is unknown and accordingly
payment is not reflected in a particular period. Amount does not reflect additional dividends through the redemption date as such date is
unknown. Such additional dividends accrue annually in the amount of $424,000.

5) In accordance with SFAS No. 150, the public preferred stock was reclassified from equity to liability in July 2003. Amount represents the
carrying value as of December 31, 2008, and includes accrual of accumulated dividends and accretion of $90.8 million. Payment of such
amount presumes conditions precedent being satisfied (See Note 8 — Redeemable Preferred Stock) and as such, redemption date is unknown
and accordingly payment is not reflected in a particular period. Amount does not reflect additional dividends and accretion through the
redemption date as such date is unknown. Such additional dividends accrue annually in the amount of $3.8 million. Such accretion accrued
in the amount of $500,000 in 2008, and has been fully accreted as of December 31, 2008.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements (as defined in Item 303, paragraph (a)(4)(ii) of Regulation S-K) that have or are reasonably likely to have a
material current or future effect on its financial condition, changes in financial condition, sales or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or
capital resources.

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures for property and equipment were $0.6 million in 2008, $0.6 million in 2007 and $0.8 million in 2006. We presently anticipate capital
expenditures of approximately $1.7 million in 2009; however, there can be no assurance that this level of capital expenditures will occur. We believe that
available cash and borrowings under the amended Facility will be sufficient to generate adequate amounts of cash to fund our projected capital expenditures for
2009.

Capital Leases and Related Obligations

We have various lease agreements for property and equipment that, pursuant to SFAS No. 13 “Accounting for Leases,” require us to record the present
value of the minimum lease payments for such equipment and property as an asset in our consolidated financial statements. Such assets are amortized on a
straight-line basis over the term of the related lease or their useful life, whichever is shorter.

Inflation

The rate of inflation has been moderate over the past five years and, accordingly, has not had a significant impact on the Company. We have generally been
able to pass through any increased costs to customers through higher prices to the extent permitted by competitive pressures.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies of the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of recently issued accounting
pronouncements.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We are exposed to interest rate volatility with regard to our variable rate debt obligations under the Facility. Interest on the Facility is charged at 1% over
the Wells Fargo Foothill “prime rate” (as of December 31, 2008 the Wells Fargo Foothill “prime rate” was 6.00%), or 5.75%, whichever is higher. The effective
average interest rates, including all bank fees, of the Facility in 2008 and 2007 were 11.47% and 13.32%, respectively. The Facility had an outstanding balance of
$12.2 million at December 31, 2008.

Our restricted investments are reported at fair value, in accordance with SFAS No. 115. The restricted investments consist of one treasury note with fixed
interest rate of 3.849% due September 30, 2009. The balance at December 31, 2008 was pledged as collateral on a performance bond and payment bond for one
of our government contracts for services.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Telos Corporation
Ashburn, Virginia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Telos Corporation and Subsidiaries (“the Company”) as of December 31, 2008 and 2007
and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ deficit, and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is
not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Telos Corporation and
Subsidiaries at December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ BDO Seidman, LLP

Bethesda, Maryland
April 14, 2009
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Telos Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ deficit and cash flows of Telos Corporation and
Subsidiaries (Company) for the year ended December 31, 2006. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is
not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated results of operations and cash flows
of Telos Corporation and Subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

/s/ Goodman & Company, L.L.P.

Norfolk, Virginia
April 23, 2007
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TELOS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(amounts in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006
Revenue (Note 6)
Products $105,269 $141,686 $ 76,179
Services 111,798 84,899 64,694

217,067 226,585 140,873

Costs and expenses

Cost of sales — Products 88,419 122,098 71,136
Cost of sales — Services 84,221 62,907 47,888
Selling, general and administrative expenses 29,814 32,227 30,874
202,454 217,232 149,898
Operating income (loss) 14,613 9,353 (9,025)
Other income (expenses)
Gain on sale of TIMS LLC membership interest (Note 2) — 5,803 —
Non-operating income 191 131 67
Losses from affiliates (Note 4) — — (134)
Interest expense (7,701) (8,351) (20,577)
Income (loss) before minority interest and income taxes 7,103 6,936 (29,669)
Minority interest (Note 2) (2,146) (1,110) —
Income (loss) before income taxes 4,957 5,826 (29,669)
Benefit (provision) for income taxes (Note 10) 5,731 (280) (12)
Net income (loss) $ 10,688 $ 5,546 $(29,681)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

28



Table of Contents

TELOS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(amounts in thousands)

ASSETS
December 31,
2008 2007
Current assets (Note 7)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2 $ 83
Restricted investments 103 4,005
Accounts receivable, net of reserve of $225 and $553, respectively (Note 6) 39,916 39,907
Inventories, net of obsolescence reserve of $1,709 and $1,482, respectively 7,132 11,918
Deferred income taxes (Note 10) 2,864 —
Other current assets 2,604 3,770
Total current assets 52,641 59,683
Property and equipment (Note 7)
Furniture and equipment 8,472 8,124
Leasehold improvements 1,520 1,425
Property and equipment under capital leases 14,146 14,126
24,138 23,675
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (17,279) (16,029)
6,859 7,646
Deferred income taxes, long-term (Note 10) 3,169 —
Other assets (Note 7) 32 127
Total assets $ 62,701 $ 67,456

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TELOS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(amounts in thousands, except share data)

LIABILITIES, REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK,
AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT

December 31,
2008 2007

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and other accrued payables (Note 7) $ 26,905 $ 40,765

Accrued compensation and benefits 7,008 8,032

Deferred revenue 3,715 5,549

Current portion, capital lease obligations (Note 11) 645 618

Other current liabilities 3,482 5,070

Total current liabilities 41,755 60,034
Senior revolving credit facility (Note 7) 12,162 12,849
Senior subordinated notes (Note 7) 4,179 5,179
Capital lease obligations (Note 11) 7,559 8,129
Senior redeemable preferred stock (Note 8) 9,871 9,447
Public preferred stock (Note 8) 97,160 92,837

Total liabilities 172,686 188,475
Minority interest (Note 2) 563 217
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 11 and 14)
Stockholders’ deficit (Note 9)

Class A common stock, no par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized, 33,554,188 shares issued and outstanding 65 65

Class B common stock, no par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized, 4,037,628 shares issued and outstanding 13 13

Capital in excess of par 103 103

Accumulated deficit (110,729) (121,417)

Total stockholders’ deficit (110,548) (121,236)

$ 62,701 $ 67,456

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TELOS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(amounts in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Operating activities:
Net income (loss) $ 10,688 $ 5,546 $ (29,681)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to cash (used in) provided by operating activities:
Gain on sale of TIMS LLC membership interest — (5,803) —
Losses from affiliates — — 134
Minority interest 2,146 1,110 —
Dividends and accretion of preferred stock as interest expense 4,747 5,274 17,404
Stock-based compensation — — 103
Depreciation and amortization 1,431 1,751 1,761
Provision for inventory obsolescence 229 739 465
(Benefit) provision for doubtful accounts receivable (223) 155 (86)
Amortization of debt issuance costs 35 160 —
Deferred income tax benefit (6,033) — —
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 214 (14,352) (711)
Decrease (increase) in inventories 4,557 (5,579) (3,225)
Decrease (increase) in other assets 1,303 2,863 (4,010)
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable and other accrued payables (14,963) 6,168 16,015
(Decrease) increase in accrued compensation and benefits (1,024) 3,234 341
(Decrease) increase in deferred revenue (1,834) (2,595) 3,935
(Decrease) increase in other current liabilities (1,588) 1,440 (998)
Cash (used in) provided by operating activities (315) 111 1,447
Investing activities:
Net proceeds from sale of TIMS LLC membership interest — 5,803 —
Purchases of property and equipment (644) (616) (753)
Purchases of restricted investments — (4,109) —
Maturity of restricted investments 4,005 — —
Minority interest — TIMS LLC Class B member — 7 —
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities 3,361 1,085 (753)
Financing activities:
Proceeds from senior credit facility 229,170 192,651 156,224
Repayment of senior credit facility (229,857) (192,370) (155,815)
Increase (decrease) in book overdrafts 1,103 — (471)
Payments under capital lease obligations (543) (569) (459)
Repayment of senior subordinated notes (1,000) — —
Debt issuance costs (180) (160) —
Distributions to minority investor of TIMS LLC (1,800) (900) —
Cash used in financing activities (3,107) (1,348) (521)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalent (61) (152) 173
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 83 235 62
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 22 $ 83 $ 235
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Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest

Income taxes

Noncash:
Interest on redeemable preferred stock

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Balance December 31, 2005
Stock-based compensation
Net loss for the year
Balance December 31, 2006
Net income for the year
Balance December 31, 2007
Net income for the year

Balance December 31, 2008

TELOS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
(amounts in thousands)

Class A Class B Capital Stockholders
Common Common In Excess Accumulated Total
Stock Stock of Par Deficit Deficit
$ 65 $ 13 $§ — $ (97,282)  $ (97,204)
— — 103 — 103
— — — (29,681) (29,681)
$ 65 $ 13 $ 103 $ (126,963) $(126,782)
_ — — 5,546 5,546
$ 65 $ 13 $ 103 $(121,417) $(121,236)
— — — 10,688 10,688
$ 65 $ 13 $ 103  $(110,729)  $(110,548)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TELOS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Business and Organization

Telos Corporation (the “Company” or “Telos” or “We”) is an information technology solutions and services company addressing the needs of U.S.
Government and commercial customers worldwide. We own all of the issued and outstanding share capital of Xacta Corporation, a subsidiary that develops,
markets and sells government-validated secure enterprise solutions to government and commercial customers. We also have a 60% ownership interest in Telos
Identity Management Solutions, LLC (“TIMS LLC”) and a 100% ownership interest in Teloworks, Inc. (“Teloworks™).

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Telos and its subsidiaries including Ubiquity.com, Inc., Xacta Corporation and
Telos Delaware, Inc., all of whose issued and outstanding share capital is owned by the Company (collectively, the “Company” or “We”). We have also
consolidated the results of operations of TIMS LLC (see Note 2 — Sale of Assets). Significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated on consolidation.
Effective January 1, 2008, we also own 100% of Teloworks, Inc. (“Teloworks”) which we were required to consolidate in prior periods, as we previously owned
60% of Teloworks. However, as our investment in Teloworks is immaterial to our consolidated financial statements, we have recorded all fundings to Teloworks
as expense in our consolidated statement of operations. See Note 3 — Investment in Teloworks.

Segment Reporting

We previously reported two operating segments in our public filings: Managed Solutions and Xacta. Managed Solutions was primarily our traditional IT-
product reselling business. Xacta comprised several business lines that together made up our security solutions brand. Beginning in late 2006, we undertook
various cost reduction and reorganization strategies in order to address the our poor operating results which were caused in part by an unsustainable revenue mix
comprised of a large proportion of IT-product reselling revenue, which contributed a smaller proportion of margin to support our operations. As a result, we
decided to focus and invest more in our higher-value business areas. In late 2007, the Managed Solutions segment was realigned under the Secure Networks
business line. While certain of the Managed Solutions products and services continue to be offered by us as part of our strategy of offering a broad range of IT
solutions to our customers, the decision to consolidate the Managed Solutions segment with the Secure Networks business line resulted in a change in our
reportable operating segments.

Accordingly, as of January 1, 2008, we have reflected the change in segment reporting in accordance with the criteria for segment reporting as set forth in
SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information” and no longer report multiple segments.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant
estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements include revenue recognition, allowance for doubtful accounts
receivable, allowance for inventory obsolescence, the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets, warranty obligations, income taxes, contingencies and
litigation, and assumptions used in evaluating potential impairments of intangible assets, stock-based compensation, restricted investments, and accretion of
Public Preferred Stock.

Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recognized in accordance with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 104, “Revenue Recognition.” We consider amounts earned upon
evidence that an arrangement has been obtained, services are delivered, fees are fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. Additionally,
revenues on arrangements requiring the delivery of more than one product or service are recognized in accordance with EITF 00-21, “Accounting for Revenue
Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables” except as the pronouncement states, on contracts where higher-level GAAP (such as Statement of Position (“SOP”)
97-2 as described below) prevails.

We recognize revenues for software arrangements upon persuasive evidence of an arrangement, delivery of the software, and determination that collection
of a fixed or determinable license fee is probable. Revenues for software licenses sold on a subscription basis are recognized ratably over the related license
terms. For arrangements where the sale of software licenses are bundled with other products, including software products, upgrades and enhancements, post-
contract customer support (“PCS”), and installation, the relative fair value of each element is determined based on vendor-specific objective evidence (“VSOE”).
VSOE is defined by SOP 97-2, “Software Revenue Recognition” (“SOP 97-2”), and SOP 98-9, “Modification of SOP 97-2, Software Revenue Recognition With
Respect to Certain Transactions” (“SOP 98-9”), and is limited to the price charged when the element is sold separately or, if the element is not yet sold separately,
the fair value assigned under the residual method or the price set by management having the relevant authority. If VSOE does not exist for the allocation of
revenue to the various elements of the arrangement, all revenue from the arrangement is deferred until the earlier of the point at which (1) such VSOE does exist
or (2) all elements of the arrangement are delivered. PCS revenues, upon being unbundled from a software license fee, are recognized ratably over the PCS
period.
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Substantially all of our contracts are contracts with the U.S. Government involving the complex delivery of technology products and services. Accordingly,
these contracts are within the scope of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountant’s Audit and Accounting Guide for Audits of Federal Government
Contractors. To the extent contracts are incomplete at the end of an accounting period, revenue is recognized on the percentage-of-completion method, on a
proportional performance basis, using costs incurred in relation to total estimated costs.

We may use subcontractors in the course of performing on services contracts. Some of such arrangements may fall within the scope of EITF 99-19
“Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent”. We presume that revenues on services contracts are recognized on a gross basis, in accordance
with EITF 99-19, as we generally provide significant value-added services, assume credit risk, and reserve the right to select subcontractors, but we evaluate the
various criteria specified in the guidance in making the determination of whether revenue should be recognized on a gross or net basis. The revenue recognized on
services on a net basis for the current and prior years has been insignificant.

A description of the business lines, the typical deliverables, and the revenue recognition criteria in general for such deliverables follows:

Secure Messaging — We provide Automated Message Handling Software (“AMHS”) and services to our customers. The software and accompanying services fall
within the scope of SOP 97-2, as fully discussed above. Other services fall within the scope of SAB 104 for arrangements that include only time-and-materials
(“T&M?”) contracts and EITF 00-21 for contracts with multiple deliverables such as T&M elements and firm-fixed price (“FFP”) services where objective reliable
evidence of fair value of the elements is available. Under such arrangements, the T&M elements are established by direct costs. Revenue is recognized on T&M
contracts according to specified rates as direct labor and other direct costs are incurred. Revenue for FFP services is recognized on a proportional performance
basis. FFP services may be billed to the customer on a percentage-of-completion basis or based upon milestones, which may approximate the proportional
performance of the services under the agreements, as specified in such agreements. To the extent that customer billings exceed the performance of the specified
services, the revenue would be deferred.

Secure Networking Solutions (formerly Secure Wireless) — We provide wireless and wired networking solutions consisting of hardware and services to our
customers. The solutions are generally sold as FFP bundled solutions. Certain of these networking solutions involve contracts to design, develop, or modify
complex electronic equipment configurations to a buyer’s specification or to provide network engineering services related to the performance of such contracts,
and as such fall within the scope of SOP 81-1, “Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and Certain Production-Type Contracts.” Revenue is earned
upon percentage of completion based upon proportional performance, such performance generally being defined by performance milestones. Certain other
solutions fall within the scope of SAB 104, such as resold information technology products, like laptops, printers, networking equipment and peripherals, and
EITF 00-21. Revenue is recognized based upon objective reliable evidence of fair value of the elements, such as upon delivery of the hardware product or other
direct costs (“ODC”) and the ongoing maintenance. For product sales, revenue is recognized upon proof of acceptance by the customer, otherwise it is deferred
until such time as the proof of acceptance is obtained. For example, in delivery orders for Department of Defense customers, which comprise the majority of the
Company’s customers, such acceptance is achieved with a signed Department of Defense Form DD-250. Services provided under these contracts are generally
provided on a FFP basis, and as such fall within the scope of SAB 104. Revenue for services is recognized based on proportional performance, as the work
progresses. FFP services may be billed to the customer on a percentage-of-completion basis or based upon milestones, which may approximate the proportional
performance of the services under the agreements, as specified in such agreements. To the extent that customer billings exceed the performance of the specified
services, the revenue would be deferred. Revenue is recognized under T&M services contracts based upon specified billing rates and other direct costs as
incurred.

Information Assurance (“IA”) Services — We provide consulting services to our customers under either a FFP or T&M basis. Such contracts fall under the
scope of SAB 104. Revenue for FFP services is recognized on a proportional performance basis. FFP services may be billed to the customer on a percentage-of-
completion basis or based upon milestones, which may approximate the proportional performance of the services under the agreements, as specified in such
agreements. To the extent that customer billings exceed the performance of the specified services, the revenue would be deferred. Revenue is recognized under
T&M contracts based upon specified billing rates and other direct costs as incurred.

Identity Management — We provide our identity management services and sells information technology products, such as computer laptops and specialized
printers, and consumables, such as identity cards, to our customers. The solutions are generally sold as FFP bundled solutions, which would typically fall within
the scope of EITF 00-21 and SAB 104. Revenue is recognized based upon objective reliable evidence of fair value of the elements, such as upon delivery of the
hardware product or ODC’s and the ongoing maintenance. Revenue for services recognized based on proportional performance, as the work progresses. FEP
services may be billed to the customer on a percentage-of-completion basis or based upon milestones, which may approximate the proportional performance of
the services under the agreements, as specified in such agreements. To the extent that customer billings exceed the performance of the specified services, the
revenue would be deferred. Revenue is recognized under T&M contracts based upon specified billing rates and other direct costs as incurred.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less at the date of purchase to be cash equivalents. Our cash
management program utilizes zero balance accounts. Accordingly, all book overdraft balances have been reclassified to accounts payable, to the extent that
availability of funds exists on our revolving credit facility.

Restricted Investments

We account for our investments under SFAS No. 115,“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” We consider our holdings of
short-term and long-term securities, consisting primarily of fixed income securities to be available-for-sale securities. The difference between cost or amortized
cost (cost adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts that are recognized as adjustments to interest income) and fair value, representing
unrealized holdings gains or losses, net of the related tax effect, if any, is immaterial and therefore not presented as a separate component of stockholders’ deficit.
Gains and losses on the sale of debt securities are determined on a specific identification basis. Realized gains and losses are included in other income (expense)
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the invoiced amount, less allowances for doubtful accounts, which approximates fair value given their short-term due
dates. Collectability of accounts receivable is regularly reviewed based upon managements’ knowledge of the specific circumstances related to overdue balances.
The allowance for doubtful accounts is adjusted based on such evaluation. Accounts receivable balances are written off against the allowance when management
deems the balances uncollectible.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, where cost is determined on the weighted average method. Substantially all inventories consist of
purchased customer off-the-shelf hardware and software, and component computer parts used in connection with system integration services that we perform.
Inventories also include spare parts with a net book value of $196,000 and $400,000 at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, which are utilized to support
maintenance contracts. Spare parts inventory is amortized on a straight-line basis over two to five years, which represents the shorter of the warranty period or
useful life. An allowance for obsolete, slow-moving or nonsalable inventory is provided for all other inventory. This allowance is based on our overall
obsolescence experience and its assessment of future inventory requirements. This charge is taken primarily due to the age of the specific inventory and the
significant additional costs that would be necessary to upgrade to current standards as well as the lack of forecasted sales for such inventory in the near future.
Gross inventory is $8.8 million and $13.4 million at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. As of December 31, 2008, it is management’s judgment that we
have fully provided for any potential inventory obsolescence.

The components of the allowance for inventory obsolescence are set forth below (in thousands):

Balance Additions Balance
Beginning Charge to End
of Costs and of
Year Expense Deductions Year
Year Ended December 31, 2008 $ 1,482 $ 229 $ ) $1,709
Year Ended December 31, 2007 $ 922 $ 739 $ (179 $1,482
Year Ended December 31, 2006 $ 482 $ 465 $ (25) $ 922

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method at rates based on the estimated useful lives of the
individual assets or classes of assets as follows:

Buildings 20 Years

Machinery and equipment 3-5 Years

Office furniture and fixtures 5 Years

Leasehold improvements Lesser of life of lease or useful life of asset

Leased property meeting certain criteria is capitalized at the present value of the related minimum lease payments. Amortization of property and equipment
under capital leases is computed on the straight-line method over the lesser of the term of the related lease and the useful life of the related asset.

Upon sale or retirement of property and equipment, the costs and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts, and any gain or loss
on such disposition is reflected in the consolidated statement of operations. For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, such amounts are negligible.
Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to operations as incurred.
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Our policy on internal use software is in accordance with Statement of Position 98-1 (“SOP 98-1”), “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software
Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.” This standard requires companies to capitalize qualifying computer software costs which are incurred during the
application development stage and amortize them over the software’s estimated useful life. We expensed all such software development costs in 2008, 2007 and
2006, as we believe that such amounts are immaterial.

Depreciation and amortization expense related to property and equipment, including property and equipment under capital leases, and related to Enterworks

Process Exchange™ (“EPX”) software in other assets, was $1.4 million, $1.8 million and $1.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

Other Assets

The balance of other assets at December 31, 2008 consists of refundable deposits in the amount of $32,000. The balance of other assets as of December 31,
2007 consisted of the long-term portion of the restricted investments in the amount of $103,000 and refundable deposits in the amount of $24,000.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes under SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Under this asset and liability method, deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences of temporary differences and income tax credits. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured by
applying enacted statutory tax rates that are applicable to the future years in which deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be settled or realized for
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of existing assets and liabilities. Any change in tax rates on deferred tax assets and
liabilities is recognized in net income in the period in which the tax rate change is enacted. We record a valuation allowance that reduces deferred tax assets when
it is “more likely than not” that deferred tax assets will not be realized.

On January 1, 2007, we adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48 , “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes” (“FIN 48”), which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with FASB
Statement No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” FIN 48 provides guidance on the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods,
disclosures, and transition. Our analysis of uncertain tax positions as required under FIN 48 determined that we had no significant unrecorded liabilities.

As of January 1, 2007, December 31, 2007 and 2008, we had no unrecognized tax benefits, nor did we have any that would have an effect on the effective
tax rate. Income taxes are provided based on the liability method for financial reporting purposes. No interest or penalties were accrued as of January 1, 2007 as a
result of the adoption of FIN 48. For the year ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, there was no interest or penalties recorded or included in tax expense.

Stock-Based Compensation

We adopted SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payments,” using the modified prospective transition method as of January 1, 2006. Under this method,
compensation cost is recognized based on the requirements of SFAS No. 123(R) for all share-based awards granted subsequent to January 1, 2006 and for all
awards granted, but not vested, prior to January 1, 2006. There were no options granted on or after December 31, 2005.

Restricted Stock Grants

In June 2008, we issued 4,774,273 shares of restricted stock (Class A common) in exchange for the majority of stock options outstanding under the Telos
Corporation, Xacta Corporation and Telos Delaware, Inc. stock option plans. In addition, we granted 7,141,501 shares of restricted stock to our executive officers
and employees. In September 2008, we granted 480,000 shares of restricted stock to certain of our directors. Such stock is subject to a vesting schedule as
follows: 25% of the restricted stock vests immediately on the date of grant, thereafter, an additional 25% will vest annually on the anniversary of the date of grant
subject to continued employment or services. In accordance with SFAS No. 123(R), we reported no compensation expense for any of the issuances as the value of
the common stock was negligible, based on the deduction of our outstanding debt, capital lease obligations, and preferred stock from an estimated enterprise
value, which was estimated based on discounted cash flow analysis, comparable public company analysis, and comparable transaction analysis.

Research and Development

For all years presented, we charge all research and development costs to expense as incurred. For software research and development costs, such costs are
capitalized once technological feasibility is reached. Technological feasibility is established when all planning, designing, coding and testing activities have been
completed, and all risks have been identified. To date, no such costs have been capitalized, as costs incurred after reaching technological feasibility have been
insignificant. During 2008, 2007, and 2006, we incurred salary costs for research and development of approximately $1.1 million, $0.9 million, and $1.0 million,
respectively, which are recorded as selling, general and administrative expense in the consolidated statements of operations.

Earnings per Share

As we do not have publicly held common stock or potential common stock, no earnings per share data is reported for any of the years presented.
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Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes changes in equity (net assets) during a period from non-owner sources. We have no comprehensive income (loss)
components other than our net income (loss).

Financial Instruments

We use various methods and assumptions to estimate the fair value of our financial instruments. Due to their short-term nature, the carrying value of cash
and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses approximates fair value. The fair value of long-term debt is based on the
discounted cash flows for similar term borrowings based on market prices for the same or similar issues. See Note 7 — Current Liabilities and Debt Obligations
and Note 8 — Redeemable Preferred Stock to the Consolidated Financial Statements for fair value disclosures of senior subordinated notes and senior redeemable
preferred stock.

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market information. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve matters
of judgment and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Combinations.” SFAS No. 141(R) requires reporting entities to record fair value
estimates of contingent consideration and certain other potential liabilities during the original purchase price allocation, expense acquisition costs as incurred and
does not permit certain restructuring activities previously allowed under EITF 95-3 to be recorded as a component of purchase accounting. SFAS No. 141(R) is
effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2008 and should be applied prospectively for all business acquisitions entered into after the date of
adoption. The provisions of SFAS No. 141(R) will generally only impact us if we are a party to a business combination after the pronouncement has been
adopted.

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 157, “Fair
Value Measurements,” which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with U.S. GAAP and expands disclosures about
fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 indicates, among other things, that a fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell an asset or transfer a
liability occurs in the principal market for the asset or liability or, in the absence of a principal market, the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
SFAS No. 157 defines fair value based upon an exit price model. SFAS No. 157 establishes a valuation hierarchy for disclosure of the inputs to valuation used to
measure fair value.

A financial asset or liability’s classification within the hierarchy is determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement. SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, which is January 1, 2008 for us. In
February 2008, the FASB issued Staff Position No. 157-1, “Application of FASB Statement No. 157 to FASB Statement No. 13 and Other Accounting
Pronouncements That Address Fair Value Measurements for Purposes of Lease Classification or Measurement under Statement 13” and 157-2, “Effective Dates
of FASB Statement No. 157,” which defer the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for one year for certain non-financial assets and liabilities and remove certain
leasing transactions from its scope. In October 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. 157-3, “Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset When the
Market for That Asset is Not Active.” (“FSP SFAS 157-3”). FSP SFAS 157-3 clarifies the application of SFAS No. 157 in a market that is not active and provides
an example to illustrate key considerations in determining the fair value of a financial asset when the market for that financial asset is not active. FSP SFAS 157-3
was effective upon issuance, including for prior periods for which financial statements have not been issued. The implementation of SFAS No. 157 for financial
assets and financial liabilities, effective January 1, 2008, did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations and FSP
SFAS 157-3 did not impact our financial position or results of operations. We are still assessing the impact that SFAS No. 157 will have as it relates to non-
financial assets and liabilities in 2009.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities — Including an Amendment of
FASB No. 115,” which permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value at specified election dates. A
business entity is required to report unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected in earnings at each subsequent reporting
date. We adopted SFAS No. 159 on January 1, 2008 and there was no effect on the consolidated financial statements as we did not elect the fair value option for
assets and liabilities within the scope.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interest in Consolidated Financial Statements — an amendment of ARB No. 51.”
SFAS No. 160 requires (i) that noncontrolling (minority) interests be reported as a component of shareholders’ equity, (ii) that net income attributable to the
parent and to the noncontrolling interest be separately identified in the consolidated statement of operations, (iii) that changes in a parent’s ownership interest
while the parent retains its controlling interest be accounted for as equity transactions, (iv) that any retained noncontrolling equity investment upon the
deconsolidation of a subsidiary be initially measured at fair value, and (v) that sufficient disclosures are provided that clearly identify and distinguish between the
interests of the parent and the interests of the noncontrolling owners. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2008. We are
currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of SFAS No. 160 will have on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.
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In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities — an Amendment of SFAS No. 133”
(“SFAS No. 161”). This Standard requires enhanced disclosures regarding derivatives and hedging activities, including: (a) the manner in which an entity uses
derivative instruments; (b) the manner in which derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities;” and (c) the effect of derivative instruments and related hedged items on a entity’s financial position, financial
performance, and cash flows. SFAS No. 161 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15,

2008. As SFAS No. 161 relates specifically to disclosures, the Standard will have no impact on our consolidated financial condition, results of operations, or cash
flows.

In November 2008, the FASB issued Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) EITF 08-1, “Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables” (“EITF 08-
1”). EITF 08-1 is effective for revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified in fiscal years beginning on or after December 31, 2009 and shall be
applied on a prospective basis. Earlier application is permitted as of the beginning of a fiscal year. EITF 08-1 addresses some aspects of the accounting by a
vendor for arrangements under which it will perform multiple revenue-generating activities. We plan to adopt EITF 08-1 on January 1, 2010, and we are still
evaluating the possible impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In November 2008, the FASB issued EITF 08-6, “Equity Method Investment Accounting Considerations” (“EITF 08-6”). EITF 08-6 is effective in fiscal
years beginning on or after December 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years. EITF 08-6 shall be applied prospectively. EITF 08-6 clarifies the
accounting for certain transactions and impairment considerations involving equity method investments. We will adopt EITF 08-6 effective January 1, 2009, and
we do not expect it to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2007 and 2006 consolidated financial statements to conform to the current year presentation.
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Note 2. Sale of Assets

On April 11, 2007, Telos Identity Management Solutions, LLC (“TIMS LLC”) was formed as a limited liability company under the Delaware Limited
Liability Company Act. We contributed substantially all of the assets of our Identity Management business line and assigned our rights to perform under our U.S.
Government contract with the Defense Manpower Data Center (“DMDC”) to TIMS LLC at their stated book values. The net book value of assets we contributed
totaled $17,000. Until April 19, 2007, we owned 99.999% of the membership interests of TIMS LLC and certain private equity investors (“Investors”) owned
0.001% of the membership interests of TIMS LLC. On April 20, 2007, we sold an additional 39.999% of the membership interests to the Investors in exchange
for $6 million in cash consideration. In accordance with SAB 51, “Accounting for Sales of Stock by a Subsidiary,” we recognized a gain of $5.8 million, which is
included in other income (expenses) on the consolidated statements of operations. As a result, we own 60% of TIMS LLC, and therefore continue to account for
the investment in TIMS LLC using the consolidation method. Legal and investment banking expenses directly associated with the transaction amounted to
approximately $190,000. The brother of John B. Wood, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, indirectly held a 2% effective ownership interest in TIMS
LLC as a result of the transaction, which was subsequently sold in the fourth quarter of 2008.

The Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of TIMS LLC (“Operating Agreement”) provides for a Board of Directors comprised of five members.
Pursuant to the Operating Agreement, John B. Wood, Chairman and CEO of Telos, has been designated as the Chairman of the Board of TIMS LLC. The
Operating Agreement also provides for two subclasses of membership units: Class A, held by us and Class B, held by certain private equity investors. The Class A
membership unit owns 60% of TIMS LLC, as mentioned above, and as such is allocated 60% of the profits, which was $3.2 million and $1.7 million for 2008 and
2007, respectively, and is entitled to appoint three members of the Board of Directors. The Class B membership unit owns 40% of TIMS LLC, and as such is
allocated 40% of the profits, which was $2.1 million and $1.1 million for 2008 and 2007, respectively, and is entitled to appoint two members of the Board of
Directors.

In accordance with the Operating Agreement, quarterly distributions of $450,000 were required to be made to the Class B member for the initial eighteen
month period after the sale of the TIMS LLC membership interests. During the year ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Class B member received a total of
$1.8 million and $0.9 million, respectively, of such distributions. Further, subsequent to the initial eighteen month period, distributions shall be made to the
members only when and to the extent determined by the TIMS LLC’s Board of Directors, in accordance with the Operating Agreement.

In addition, in April 2007, we entered into a corporate services agreement with TIMS LLC whereby we provide certain administrative support services to
TIMS LLC, including finance, accounting and human resources services.

40



Table of Contents

Note 3. Investment in Teloworks, Inc. (formerly Enterworks International, Inc.)

In December 2003, we entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement and the Stockholder Agreement (“Teloworks Agreements”), whereby we purchased a 50%
interest in Teloworks, which at the time of the transaction was a wholly owned subsidiary of Enterworks, for $500,000. The investment was founded upon
anticipated future cost savings on projected labor costs, or an acquired “assembled workforce” (an acquired intangible asset). As techniques to measure the value
of an assembled workforce and the related intellectual capital with sufficient reliability were not available and, as Teloworks was not expected to generate any
substantial cash flows going forward, the investment was written-off as of December 31, 2003, consistent with paragraph 17 of SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets.” Furthermore, in accordance with the terms of the Teloworks Agreements, we agreed to fund operating costs and certain direct expenses. Since
2004, we have recorded all fundings to Teloworks as expense in our consolidated statement of operations, as the Teloworks balance sheet and operating results
not already recorded were and continue to be immaterial to our consolidated financial statements. For 2008, 2007, and 2006, we incurred expenses related to
Teloworks in the amounts of approximately $1.6 million, $1.2 million and $1.0 million, respectively. We continue to utilize Teloworks for technical services.

Pursuant to the Teloworks Agreements, we were required to fund the operations of Teloworks jointly with Enterworks according to a funding schedule as
set forth in the Teloworks Agreements. In 2005, we funded in excess of our proportionate share of Teloworks services by $58,000. Additionally, in 2005,
Enterworks was unable to fund its proportionate share of the scheduled funding, which amounted to $664,000, and as such we separately funded and expensed the
$664,000. However, as a result of Enterworks’ recapitalization effort, the $664,000 was converted into 1,793,903 shares of Enterworks’ Series B-1 Preferred
Stock and was recorded as an investment in Enterworks in our consolidated balance sheet. See Note 4 — Investment in Enterworks.

As of May 19, 2006, Enterworks was again unable to fund its proportionate share of the scheduled funding, which amounted to $245,000. Consistent with
subsection 3.4(d) of the Teloworks Agreements, the non-defaulting party (Telos) has the right to transfer ownership (pursuant to a Penalty Ownership calculation)
of the defaulting party’s interest in Teloworks. The Teloworks Agreements also provide for a cure period for the defaulting party, which was waived by the
defaulting party. On May 19, 2006, we provided notice to Enterworks of its default and, pursuant to the waiver of the cure period by Enterworks, exercised our
rights under the Teloworks Agreements to transfer the calculated ownership percentage to us. The amount of the Enterworks default set forth in the notice was
approximately $303,000, which was comprised of the $58,000 overfunded amount in 2005 and the $245,000 funding on Enterworks’ behalf as stated above. As a
result of such exercise of our rights under the Teloworks Agreements, we owned 80.0% of Teloworks effective May 19, 2006.

For 2006, we funded in excess of our proportionate share of Teloworks operations by approximately $296,000. This amount was comprised of the
$245,000 funded on behalf of Enterworks as described above, which was part of the basis for the transfer of an additional 30% ownership interest from
Enterworks to Telos. The remaining overfunded amount of $51,000 for 2006 was carried forward to be applied to our 2007 funding requirements.

On March 16, 2007, Enterworks completed a private financing through the issuance of 42,857,143 shares of Series D Preferred Stock to various investors,
including Telos. We participated in the private financing as a result of amounts credited to us by Enterworks, including $500,000 for funding prior Enterworks’
obligations to Teloworks (which also resulted in a 20% recapture of Enterworks’ forfeited interest in Teloworks for approximately $204,000), and approximately
$100,000 due to us, which had previously been fully reserved in connection with the services and sublease agreement as described in Note 4 — Investment in
Enterworks. As described above, as a result of the 20% recapture of Enterworks’ forfeited interest in Teloworks, we owned 60% of Teloworks. Subsequently in
2007, Enterworks was unable to fund its entire share of the scheduled funding obligation to Teloworks. We funded $250,000 on Enterworks’ behalf for which we
received a note from Enterworks and warrants to purchase 1,785,714 underlying common stock shares. We recorded this note as a note receivable, however, due
to uncertainty regarding the timing and amount of repayment of the note, we recorded a full reserve against the note. We provided Enterworks with a notice of
default in accordance with the Teloworks Agreements due to its repeated defaults on its funding obligations. Enterworks waived its rights under the Teloworks
Agreements to cure such default. Accordingly, effective January 1, 2008, Telos owns 100% of Teloworks.

In 2008, Teloworks formed a wholly owned subsidiary, Teloworks BPO Solutions Philippines, Inc., for the purpose of starting up a business-process
outsourcing (“BPO”) business in the Philippines. Through December 31, 2008, of the $1.6 million funded to Teloworks, approximately $0.2 million was used to
fund the BPO business, which is currently in the pre- operational stage.
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Note 4. Investment in Enterworks

As of December 31, 2008, we own 671,301 shares of common stock, 729,732 shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock, 1,793,903 shares of Series B-1
Preferred Stock, and 8,571,429 shares of Series D Preferred Stock of Enterworks, and warrants to purchase 1,785,714 underlying common stock shares,
representing a fully diluted ownership percentage of 10.5%. Since our initial investment in Enterworks, we accounted for such investment as prescribed by APB
Opinion No. 18 (“APB 18”), “The Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in Common Stock,” due to our significant influence on Enterworks’ operations
through our representation on the Board of Directors of Enterworks. However, effective January 1, 2008, we discontinued the equity method of accounting for our
investment in Enterworks due to our significantly diminished role in Enterworks’ operations. We previously reduced the carrying value of our investment in
Enterworks to zero.

Prior to October 14, 2005, we owned 17,153,059 shares of Enterworks common stock, 1,785,714 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, and
warrants to purchase 6,374,997 underlying common stock shares, representing a fully diluted ownership percentage of 25.1%. Additionally, we owned $4.0
million of notes receivable whose carrying amounts were previously reduced to zero in accordance with APB 18 and Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 98-13
“Accounting by an Equity Method Investor for Investee Losses when the Investor has Loans to and Investments in Other Securities of the Investee.”

As of December 31, 2005, and as a result of an Enterworks’ recapitalization which occurred on October 14, 2005, we owned 671,301 shares of common
stock, 729,732 shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock and 1,793,903 shares of Series B-1 Preferred Stock of Enterworks, representing a fully diluted ownership
percentage of 19.4%.

On April 30, 2006, Enterworks completed a transaction in which it purchased 100% of the common stock of Ennovative Commerce Solutions, Inc., a
content publishing company. In consideration for this purchase, Enterworks issued approximately 8.1 million shares of its common stock to the acquired
company’s stockholders. As a result of this transaction, our ownership in Enterworks, on a fully diluted basis, was reduced to 12.6%.

In May and June of 2006, Enterworks completed a private financing through the issuance of 13.8 million shares of its Series C Preferred Stock to various
investors. As a result of this transaction, our ownership in Enterworks, on a fully diluted basis, was reduced to 8.2%.

On June 30, 2006, Enterworks completed a transaction in which it purchased 100% of the common stock of Saltmine, Inc., a services company. In
consideration for this purchase, Enterworks issued approximately 21.1 million shares of its common stock to the acquired company’s stockholders. As a result of
this transaction, our ownership in Enterworks, on a fully diluted basis, was reduced to 5.3%. As of December 31, 2006, as a result of issuance of additional
common stock by Enterworks, our ownership, on a fully diluted basis, was reduced to 4.7%.

In May 2006, we amended the Agreement for Services and Sublease (“Agreement”) with Enterworks effective as of January 1, 2006. Pursuant to the
Agreement, we shall continue to sublease office space in our Ashburn facility and provide certain general, administrative and support services to Enterworks, for
the amount of $210,000 for a period of one year, payable in 12 equal installments of $17,500 per month. Pursuant to its terms, upon execution of the Agreement,
the equivalent of five monthly payments, or $87,500, for the period from January 1, 2006 through May 31, 2006, became due to us from Enterworks. Under the
terms of the third amendment to the Agreement, Telos and Enterworks had agreed to a payment plan to bring the arrearage current by December 31, 2006.
Enterworks was unable to make all payments under the Agreement and arrearage plan, resulting in a balance due to us of $100,000 as of December 31, 2006. We
recorded a full reserve against the balance due because of uncertainty regarding the timing and amount of repayment of the balance.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, our share of Enterworks losses totaled $134,000. In accordance with APB 18, we recognized our share of
Enterworks losses by reducing the carrying value of our investment in Enterworks from $92,000 to zero. In accordance with EITF 98-13 — “Accounting by an
Equity Method Investor for Investee Losses when the Investor Has Loans to and Investments in Other Securities of the Investee,” we recorded the remaining
$42,000 of our proportional share of Enterworks losses as losses from affiliate, reducing the carrying value of the receivable balance due to $354,000. We have
evaluated the remaining balance for impairment consistent with SFAS No. 114, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan” and consequently have
recorded a full valuation allowance in the amount of $354,000.

On March 16, 2007, Enterworks completed a private financing through the issuance of 42,857,143 shares of Series D Preferred Stock to various investors,
including Telos. We participated in the private financing through amounts credited to us, including $500,000 for funding prior Teloworks obligations on
Enterworks behalf (including a 20% recapture of Enterworks’ forfeited interest in Teloworks for approximately $204,000), and an amount due to us of
approximately $100,000, which had previously been fully reserved, in connection with the services and sublease agreement as described above. As a result of this
financing, we acquired 8,571,429 shares of Enterworks Series D Preferred Stock, increasing our fully diluted ownership percentage from 4.7% as of
December 31, 2006 to 10.8% as of March 16, 2007. The private financing did not result in any change to management’s belief that the value of the investment in
Enterworks was impaired at the time of the transaction; therefore, the recorded value of the investment remains zero as we expensed the amounts associated with
this transaction.

In April 2007, we amended our Agreement with Enterworks effective as of January 1, 2007. Pursuant to the amended Agreement, we continued to sublease
office space in its Ashburn facility and provide certain general, administrative and support services to Enterworks, for the amount of $180,000 for a period of one
year, payable in 12 equal installments of $15,000 per month.
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Subsequently in 2007, Enterworks was unable to meet the entire share of its scheduled funding obligations to Teloworks. We funded $250,000 on
Enterworks’ behalf for which we received a note from Enterworks, and warrants to purchase 1,785,714 underlying common stock shares. We recorded this note
as a note receivable, however, due to uncertainty regarding the timing and amount of repayment of the note, we recorded a full reserve against the note. We have
provided Enterworks with a notice of default in accordance with the Teloworks Agreements due to its repeated defaults on its funding obligations to Teloworks.
As disclosed in Note 3 — Investment in Teloworks, Enterworks has waived its rights under the Teloworks Agreements to cure such default. Accordingly, effective
January 1, 2008 we own 100% of Teloworks.

In March 2008, we amended the Agreement with Enterworks effective as of January 1, 2008. Pursuant to the amended Agreement, we subleased office
space in our Ashburn facility and provided certain general, administrative and support services to Enterworks, for the amount of $180,000 for a period of one
year, payable in 12 equal installments of $15,000 per month. We terminated the Agreement with Enterworks effective February 28, 2009, and accordingly,
Enterworks relocated its corporate headquarters.

Separately, in December 2003, we entered into a two-year Original Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM”) software license agreement (“SLA”) with
Enterworks that, pursuant to an earn-out provision is comprised of cumulative license fees and/or Company services to Enterworks equal to at least $2.0 million.
We provided initial consideration of $1.0 million, comprised of a $100,000 cash payment and Company services in the amount of $900,000, including $300,000
for rent and services from July 2003 to December 2003, and an additional $600,000 for rent and services for 2004. In addition to the above-described exchange,
as part of the December 2003 agreement, we agreed to pay royalties of $1.0 million for a period of two years and, upon payment of cumulative license fees and/or
Company services to Enterworks equal to at least $2.0 million, would own a worldwide, non-exclusive, perpetual, irrevocable, royalty-free, fully paid-up license
for the EPX software. As of December 31, 2004, we paid approximately $294,000 in such royalties. In December 2004, we entered into an amended agreement
with Enterworks in which Enterworks acknowledged that we had met the earn-out requirements and now owns the above-mentioned license. As part of the
amended agreement, we paid an additional $350,000 and waived the $400,000 fee for rent and services for 2005. Additionally, Enterworks agreed to provide us
with maintenance and OEM technical product support for two years, for a fixed fee of $300,000, such fee being amortized over two years. We had the option to
renew the maintenance and OEM technical product support for $15,000 per month, and effective as of January 1, 2007 and January 1, 2008, the Company
renewed such support. We discontinued such support effective January 1, 2009. In accordance with FASB Statement No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets,” intangible assets acquired shall be initially recognized and measured at fair value. As such, we have capitalized $850,000 in consideration paid for EPX
software, and have reflected this asset on the balance sheet in “Other Assets.” The net carrying value of the asset was zero as of December 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. Amortization expense for 2008, 2007, and 2006 was $0, $250,000, and $250,000, respectively.
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Note 5. Fair Value Measurements

We adopted SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements,” which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements for financial instruments effective January 1, 2008. The framework requires the valuation of investments using a three-
tiered approach. The statement requires fair value measurement to be classified and disclosed in one of the following categories:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets and liabilities;

Level 2: Quoted prices in the markets that are not active, or inputs which are observable, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of
the asset or liability;

Level 3: Prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable (i.e. supported by
little or no market activity).

The following table displays the assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis in our consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2008 and indicates
the fair value hierarchy of the valuation techniques we used to determine the fair value:

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

(in th ds)
Quoted Prices in Significant Other Significant
Balance at Active Markets Observable Unobservable
December 31, for Identical Inputs Inputs
Description 2008 Assets (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
U.S. government securities (1) $ 103 $ 103 $ — $ —

(1)  The prior year balance of $4.1 million was collateral for a performance and a payment bond on one of our contracts. The terms of the contract permitted a
release of a significant amount of the collateral subject to satisfactory performance. Consequently, $1.7 million, $1.7 million, and $0.6 million totaling $4.0
million in collateral were released in accordance with such satisfactory performance in May, July and November 2008, respectively, and the associated
securities were sold.

The following table presents the carrying and estimated fair value of liabilities considered financial instruments under SFAS No. 107, “Disclosure about
Fair Value of Financial Instruments.” Accordingly, certain items that are not considered financial instruments are excluded from the table.

December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
(in thousands)

Financial liabilities

Senior subordinated notes $ 4,179 $ 3,720 $ 5,179 $ 5,179
Senior redeemable preferred stock 9,871 7,778 9,447 9,447
Public preferred stock 97,160 47,147 92,837 63,712

The following describes the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair value for the respective classes of financial instruments:

*  Senior subordinated notes — An income approach was used to determine the fair value of the Series B & Series C subordinated notes, whereby the
principal sum and interest payments were discounted using a market-based yield to maturity.

*  Senior redeemable preferred stock — A derivation of the income approach was used to determine the fair value of the Senior Preferred Stock,
whereby the liquidation value and all accrued dividends as of the maturity date for the security were discounted using a market-based yield to
maturity.

+  Public preferred stock — The fair value is determined using quoted market prices.

44



Table of Contents

Note 6. Revenue and Accounts Receivable

Revenue resulting from contracts and subcontracts with the U.S. Government accounted for 98.6%, 99.5%, and 98.6% of consolidated revenue in 2008,
2007, and 2006, respectively. Total consolidated revenue derived from the U.S. Government for 2008, 2007, and 2006 includes 80.3%, 86.5%, and 85.9%,
respectively, of revenue from contracts with the Department of Defense agencies, and 18.3%, 13.0%, and 12.7%, respectively, of revenue from Federal Civilian
Agencies. As our primary customer base includes agencies of the U.S. Government, we have a concentration of credit risk associated with our accounts
receivable, as 93.5% of our billed accounts receivable were directly with U.S. Government customers, and an additional 6.1% of billed accounts receivable were
with commercial prime contractors where we were the subcontractor. While we acknowledge the potentially material and adverse risk of such a significant
concentration of credit risk, our past experience of collecting substantially all of such receivables provide us with an informed basis that such risk, if any, is
manageable. We perform ongoing credit evaluations of all of our customers and generally do not require collateral or other guarantee from our customers. We
maintain allowances for potential losses. In the fourth quarter of 2007, we recorded a $276,000 adjustment to decrease the accounts receivable reserve estimate.

The components of accounts receivable are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,
2008 2007
Billed accounts receivable $31,027  $29,533
Amounts currently billable 9,114 10,927
Allowance for doubtful accounts (225) (553)

$39,916  $39,907

The activities in the allowance for doubtful accounts are set forth below (in thousands):

Balance Balance

Beginning Bad Debt End
of Year Expenses Deductions (1) of Year
Year ended December 31, 2008 $ 553 $ (223) $ (105) $ 225
Year ended December 31, 2007 $ 407 $ 155 $ 9) $ 553
Year ended December 31, 2006 $ 493 $ (86) $ — $ 407

(1)  Accounts receivable written-off, allowance reversals and recoveries, net

Revenue by Major Market and Significant Customers

We derived substantially all of our revenues from contracts and subcontracts with the U.S. Government. Revenue by customer sector for the last three fiscal
years is as follows:

2008 2007 2006
(amount in thousands)
Department of Defense $174,404 80.3% $195,871 86.5% $121,039 85.9%
Federal Civilian 39,718 18.3% 29,545 13.0% 17,859 12.7%
Commercial 2,945 1.4% 1,169 0.5% 1,975 1.4%
Total $217,067 100.0% $226,585 100.0% $140,873 100.0%
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Note 7. Current Liabilities and Debt Obligations
Accounts Payable and Other Accrued Payables

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the accounts payable and other accrued payables consisted of $18.9 million and $32.6 million, respectively, in trade
account payables and $8.0 million and $8.2 million, respectively, in accrued trade payables.

Senior Revolving Credit Facility

Effective January 31, 2008, we amended our $15 million revolving credit facility (the “Facility”) with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. (“Wells Fargo Foothill”) to
increase the limit on the Facility to $20 million through March 31, 2008, and to accommodate increased operational needs. In March 2008, we renewed the
Facility and amended its terms. Under the amended terms, the maturity on the Facility was extended to September 30, 2011 and the limit on the Facility was
increased to $25 million to accommodate current and projected financing needs. Borrowings under the Facility are collateralized by substantially all of our assets
including inventory, equipment, and accounts receivable. The amount of available borrowings fluctuates based on the underlying asset-borrowing base, as defined
in the Facility agreement. Pursuant to the terms of the Facility, the interest rate is established as the Wells Fargo Foothill “prime rate” plus 1%, the Federal Funds
rate plus 1.5%, or 7.00%, whichever is higher. In lieu of having interest charged at the rate based on the Wells Fargo Foothill prime rate, we have the option to
have interest on all or a portion of the advances on such Facility charged at a rate of interest based on the LIBOR Rate (the greater of the LIBOR rate three
business days prior to the commencement of the requested interest period or 3%), plus 4.00%.

Additionally, subsequent to the March 2008 renewal, Wells Fargo Foothill and the Company amended the Facility and the Company obtained waivers for
various defaults of provisions under the Facility. Such defaults included failure to provide audited annual financial statements within the required 90 day period
due to the late filing of the 2007 Form 10-K, as well as various administrative defaults resulting from certain of the Company’s investments and financing
arrangements.

Effective January 1, 2007, we amended the Facility with Wells Fargo Foothill to provide additional availability through the relief of certain reserves against
available collateral through April 30, 2007, to establish Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization (“EBITDA”) covenants for 2007, to give
consent to the formation of TIMS LLC and subsequent sale of a portion of the membership interests in TIMS LLC (disclosed in Note 2 — Sale of Assets), and to
provide various waivers in accordance with the Facility.

As of December 31, 2008, the interest rate on the Facility was 7.00%. Pursuant to the terms of the Facility, during 2008 the interest rate was the Wells
Fargo Foothill “prime rate” plus 1% (as of December 31, 2008 the Wells Fargo Foothill “prime rate” was 6.00%) or 5.75%, whichever was higher. As of
December 31, 2008, we had not elected the LIBOR rate option. For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, we incurred interest expense in the
amount of $0.9 million, $1.0 million, and $1.0 million, respectively, on the Facility.

The Facility has various covenants that may, among other things, affect our ability to merge with another entity, sell or transfer certain assets, pay dividends
and make other distributions beyond certain limitations. As of December 31, 2008, we were in compliance with the Facility’s financial covenants, including
EBITDA covenants. Based on our current projection of EBITDA, we expect that we will remain in compliance with our EBITDA covenants, and accordingly, the
Facility is classified as a noncurrent liability as of December 31, 2008.

At December 31, 2008, we had outstanding borrowings of $12.2 million and unused borrowing availability of $3.8 million on the Facility. The effective
weighted average interest rates (including various fees paid whether capitalized or expensed pursuant to the Facility agreement and related amendments) on the
outstanding borrowings under the Facility were 11.47% and 13.32% for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Senior Subordinated Notes

In 1995, we issued Senior Subordinated Notes (“Notes™) to certain shareholders. Such Notes are classified as either Series B or Series C. The Series B
Notes are secured by our property and equipment, but subordinate to the security interests of Wells Fargo Foothill under the Facility. The Series C Notes are
unsecured. The maturity date of such Notes as of December 31, 2008 was December 31, 2011, with interest rates ranging from 14% to 17%, and paid quarterly on
January 1, April 1, July 1, and October 1 of each year. The Notes can be prepaid at our option; however, the Notes contain a cumulative prepayment premium of
13.5% per annum payable upon certain circumstances, which include, but are not limited to, an initial public offering of our common stock or a significant
refinancing (“qualifying triggering event”), to the extent that sufficient net proceeds from either of the above events are received to pay such cumulative
prepayment premium. Due to the contingent nature of the cumulative prepayment premium, any associated premium expense can only be quantified and recorded
subsequent to the occurrence of such a qualifying triggering event. At December 31, 2008, if such a qualifying triggering event had occurred, the cumulative
prepayment premium would have been approximately $19.4 million.
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The balances of the Series B and C Notes were $1.5 million and $2.7 million, respectively, at December 31, 2008, and $2.5 million and $2.7 million,
respectively, at December 31, 2007. For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, we incurred interest expense in the amount of $0.7 million, $0.8
million, and $0.8 million, respectively, on the Notes.

In June and July of 2008, respectively, we repaid $0.5 million, of the outstanding Series B Notes. The prepayment penalties on the repayment of such Notes
were waived by the note holders. Additionally, Wells Fargo Foothill granted a waiver and amendment to the Facility to allow the repayment of such Notes.

The following are maturities of obligations presented by year (in thousands):

Year Obligation Due
Senior Subordinated Debt 2011 $ 4,179

Senior Credit Facility 2011 $ 12,1622

! Pursuant to Section 17 of the Amended and Restated Subordination Agreement entered into in conjunction with the Facility, we have extended the maturity

date of the Notes with the senior subordinated note holders to December 31, 2011.
Balance due represents balance as of December 31, 2008, however, the Senior Credit Facility is a revolving credit facility with fluctuating balances based
on our working capital requirements.
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Note 8. Redeemable Preferred Stock
Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock

The components of the authorized, issued and outstanding senior redeemable preferred stock (“Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock™) are 1,250 Series A-1
and 1,750 Series A-2 senior redeemable preferred shares, respectively, each with $.01 par value. The Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock carries a cumulative per
annum dividend rate of 14.125% of its liquidation value of $1,000 per share. The dividends are payable semiannually on June 30 and December 31 of each year.
The liquidation preference of the Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock is the face amount of the Series A-1 and A-2 ($1,000 per share), plus all accrued and unpaid
dividends. We were required to redeem all shares and accrued dividends outstanding on October 31, 2005. However, on April 14, 2005, Toxford Corporation, the
holder of 72.6% of the Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock, extended the maturity of its instruments to October 31, 2008. Subsequently, on March 17, 2008,
Toxford Corporation further extended the maturity of its instruments to December 31, 2011. Additionally, on June 4, 2008, North Atlantic Smaller Companies
Investment Trust PLC and North Atlantic Value LLP A/C B, the holder of 7.9% and 0.6%, respectively, of the Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock, also extended
the maturity of their instruments to December 31, 2011. Subject to limitations set forth below, we were scheduled to redeem 18.9% of the outstanding shares and
accrued dividends outstanding on October 31, 2005. Among the limitations with regard to the mandatory redemptions of the Senior Redeemable Public Preferred
Stock is the legal availability of funds, pursuant to Maryland law. Accordingly, due to our current financial position and the terms of the Wells Fargo Foothill
agreement, we are precluded by Maryland law from making the scheduled payment. As the Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock is not due on demand, or callable,
within twelve months from December 31, 2008, the remaining 18.9% is also classified as noncurrent.

The Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock is senior to all our other present equity, including the 12% Cumulative Exchangeable Redeemable Preferred Stock.
The Series A-1 ranks on a parity with the Series A-2. We have not declared dividends on our Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock since its issuance. At
December 31, 2008 and 2007 cumulative undeclared, unpaid dividends relating to Series A-1 and A-2 Redeemable Preferred stock totaled $6.9 million and $6.4
million, respectively.

During 2008, 2007, and 2006 we accrued senior redeemable preferred stock dividends of $424,000 in each year, respectively, which were reported as
interest expense. Prior to the effective date of SFAS No. 150 on July 1, 2003, such dividends were charged to stockholders’ deficit.

12% Cumulative Exchangeable Redeemable Preferred Stock

A maximum of 6,000,000 shares of the Public Preferred Stock, par value $.01 per share, has been authorized for issuance. We initially issued 2,858,723
shares of the Public Preferred Stock pursuant to the acquisition of the Company during fiscal year 1990. The Public Preferred Stock was recorded at fair value on
the date of original issue, November 21, 1989, and we make periodic accretions under the interest method of the excess of the redemption value over the recorded
value. We adjusted our estimate of accrued accretion in the amount of $1.5 million in the second quarter of 2006. Accretion for the years ended December 31,
2008, 2007, and 2006 was $0.5 million, $1.0 million, and $3.0 million, respectively, which were reported as interest expense in those respective years. We
declared stock dividends totaling 736,863 shares in 1990 and 1991. Since 1991, no other dividends, in stock or cash, have been declared. In November 1998, we
retired 410,000 shares of the Public Preferred Stock. The total number of shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2008 and 2007, was 3,185,586,
respectively. The stock is no longer quoted on the OTCBB, and is now quoted as TLSRP in the Pink Sheets.

Since 1991, we have not declared or paid any dividends on our Public Preferred Stock, based upon our interpretation of restrictions in our Articles of
Amendment and Restatement, limitations in the terms of the Public Preferred Stock instrument, specific dividend payment restrictions in the Facility entered into
with Wells Fargo Foothill, to which the Public Preferred Stock is subject, and other senior obligations, and limitations pursuant to Maryland law. Pursuant to their
terms, we are scheduled, but not required, to redeem the Public Preferred Stock in five annual tranches during the period 2005 through 2009. However, due to our
substantial senior obligations, limitations set forth in the covenants in the Facility, foreseeable capital and operational requirements, restrictions and prohibitions
of our Articles of Amendment and Restatement, and provisions of Maryland law, and assuming insufficient liquidity to undertake any stock redemption (which is
presently unquantifiable), we believe that the likelihood is that we will continue to be unable to meet the redemption schedule set forth in the terms of the Public
Preferred Stock. Moreover, the Public Preferred Stock is not payable on demand, nor callable, for failure to redeem the Public Preferred Stock in accordance with
the redemption schedule set forth in the instrument. Therefore, we have classified these securities as noncurrent liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007.

We are parties with certain of our subsidiaries to the Facility agreement with Wells Fargo Foothill, whose term expires on September 30, 2011. Under the
Facility, we agreed that, so long as any credit under the Facility is available and until full and final payment of the obligations under the Facility, we would not
make any distribution or declare or pay any dividends (other than common stock) on our stock, or purchase, acquire, or redeem any stock, or exchange any stock
for indebtedness, or retire any stock.

Accordingly, as stated above, we will continue to classify the entirety of our obligation to redeem the Public Preferred Stock as a long-term obligation. The
Facility prohibits, among other things, the redemption of any stock, common or preferred, until September 30, 2011. The Public Preferred Stock by its terms
cannot be redeemed if doing so would violate the terms of an agreement regarding the borrowing of funds or the extension of credit which is binding upon us or
any of our subsidiaries, and it does not include any other provisions that would otherwise require any acceleration of the redemption of or amortization payments
with respect to the Public Preferred Stock. Thus, the Public Preferred Stock is not and will not be due on demand, nor callable, within twelve months from
December 31, 2008. This classification is consistent with ARB No. 43 and SFAS No. 78, “Classification of Obligations that are Callable by the Creditor.”
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Paragraph 7 of Chapter 3A of ARB No. 43 defines a current liability, as follows:

“The term current liabilities is used principally to designate obligations whose liquidation is reasonably expected to require the use of existing resources
properly classifiable as current assets, or the creation of other current liabilities. As a balance sheet category, the classification is intended to include obligations
for items that have entered into the operating cycle, such as payables incurred in the acquisition of materials and supplies to be used in the production of goods or
in providing services to be offered for sale; collections received in advance of the delivery of goods or performance of services; and debts that arise from
operations directly related to the operating cycle, such as accruals for wages, salaries, commissions, rentals, royalties, and income and other taxes. Other liabilities
whose regular and ordinary liquidation is expected to occur within a relatively short period of time, usually 12 months, are also intended for inclusion, such as
short-term debts arising from the acquisition of capital assets, serial maturities of long-term obligations, amounts required to be expended within 1 year under
sinking fund provisions, and agency obligations arising from the collection or acceptance of cash or other assets for the account of third persons.”

Paragraph 5 of SFAS No. 78, provides the following:

“The current liability classification is also intended to include obligations that, by their terms, are due on demand or will be due on demand within one year
(or operating cycle, if longer) from the balance sheet date, even though liquidation may not be expected within that period. It is also intended to include long-term
obligations that are or will be callable by the creditor either because the debtor’s violation of a provision of the debt agreement at the balance sheet date makes the
obligation callable or because the violation, if not cured within a specified grace period, will make the obligation callable...”.

If, pursuant to the terms of the Public Preferred Stock, we do not redeem the Public Preferred Stock in accordance with the scheduled redemptions
described above, the terms of the Public Preferred Stock require us to discharge our obligation to redeem the Public Preferred Stock as soon as we are financially
capable and legally permitted to do so. Therefore, by its very terms, the Public Preferred Stock is not due on demand or callable for failure to make a scheduled
payment pursuant to its redemption provisions and is properly classified as a noncurrent liability.

On any dividend payment date after November 21, 1991, we may exchange the Public Preferred Stock, in whole or in part, for 12% Junior Subordinated
Debentures that are redeemable upon terms substantially similar to the Public Preferred Stock and subordinated to all indebtedness for borrowed money and like
obligations of ours.

We pay dividends on the Public Preferred Stock, when and if declared by the Board of Directors, and are required to be paid out of legally available funds
in accordance with Maryland law. The Public Preferred Stock accrues a semi-annual dividend at the annual rate of 12% ($1.20) per share, based on the liquidation
preference of $10 per share and is fully cumulative. Dividends in additional shares of the Public Preferred Stock for 1990 and 1991 were paid at the rate of 6% of
a share for each $.60 of such dividends not paid in cash. For the cash dividends payable since December 1, 1995, the Company has accrued $65.3 million and
$61.5 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

In accordance with SFAS No. 150, both the Senior Redeemable Preferred Stock and the Public Preferred Stock have been reclassified from equity to
liability. Consequently, for the periods ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, dividends totaling $4.2 million, $4.2 million, and $14.4 million, respectively,
were accrued and reported as interest expense in the respective periods. Prior to the effective date of SFAS No. 150 on July 1, 2003, such dividends were charged
to stockholders’ accumulated deficit.

The carrying value of the accrued Paid-in-Kind (“PIK”) dividends on the Public Preferred Stock for the period 1992 through June 1995 was $4.0 million.
Had we accrued such dividends on a cash basis for this time period, the total amount accrued would have been $15.1 million. However, as a result of the
redemption of the 410,000 shares of the Public Preferred Stock in November 1998, such amounts were reduced and adjusted to $3.5 million and $13.4 million,
respectively. Our Articles of Amendment and Restatement, Section 2(a) states, “Any dividends payable with respect to the Exchangeable Preferred Stock (“Public
Preferred Stock”) during the first six years after the Effective Date (November 20, 1989) may be paid (subject to restrictions under applicable state law), in the
sole discretion of the Board of Directors, in cash or by issuing additional fully paid and nonassessable shares of Exchangeable Preferred Stock ...” Accordingly,
the Board had the discretion to pay the dividends for the referenced period in cash or by the issuance of additional shares of Public Preferred Stock. During the
period in which we stated our intent to pay PIK dividends, we stated our intention to amend our Charter to permit such payment by the issuance of additional
shares of Public Preferred Stock. In consequence, as required by applicable accounting requirements, the accrual for these dividends was recorded at the
estimated fair value (as the average of the ask and bid prices) on the dividend date of the shares of Public Preferred Stock that would have been (but were not)
issued. This accrual was $9.9 million lower than the accrual would be if the intent was only to pay the dividend in cash, at that date or any later date.

In May 2006, the Board concluded that the accrual of PIK dividends for the period 1992 through June 1995 was no longer appropriate. Since 1995, we
have disclosed in the footnotes to its audited financial statements the carrying value of the accrued PIK dividends on the Public Preferred Stock for the period
1992 through June 1995 as $4.0 million, and that had we accrued cash dividends during this time period, the total amount accrued would have been $15.1 million.
As stated above, such amounts were reduced and adjusted to $3.5 million and $13.4 million, respectively, due to the redemption of 410,000 shares of the Public
Preferred Stock in November 1998. On May 12, 2006, the Board voted to confirm that our intent with respect to the payment of dividends on the Public Preferred
Stock for this period changed from its previously stated intent to pay PIK dividends to that of an intent to pay cash dividends. We therefore changed the accrual
from $3.5 million to $13.4 million, the result of which was to increase our negative shareholder equity by the $9.9 million difference between those two amounts,
by recording an additional $9.9 million charge to interest expense for the second quarter of 2006, resulting in a balance of $97.2 million and $92.8 million for the
principal amount and all accrued dividends on the Public Preferred Stock as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. This action is considered a change in
assumption that results in a change in accounting estimate as defined in SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections” which replaces APB No. 20,
“Accounting Changes” and SFAS No. 3, “Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements.”
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Note 9. Stockholders’ Equity, Option Plans, and Employee Benefit Plan
Common Stock

The relative rights, preferences, and limitations of the Class A common stock and the Class B common stock are in all respects identical. The holders of the
common stock have one vote for each share of common stock held. Subject to the priority rights of the Public Preferred Stock and any series of the Senior
Preferred Stock, holders of Class A and Class B common stock are entitled to receive such dividends as may be declared.

Restricted Stock Grants

In June 2008, we issued 4,774,273 shares of restricted stock (Class A common) in exchange for the majority of stock options outstanding under the Telos
Corporation, Xacta Corporation and Telos Delaware, Inc. stock option plans. In addition, we granted 7,141,501 shares of restricted stock to our executive officers
and employees. In September 2008, we granted 480,000 shares of restricted stock to certain of our directors. Such stock is subject to a vesting schedule as
follows: 25% of the restricted stock vests immediately on the date of grant, thereafter, an additional 25% will vest annually on the anniversary of the date of grant
subject to continued employment or services. In accordance with SFAS No. 123(R), we reported no compensation expense for any of the issuances as the value of
the common stock was negligible, based on the deduction of our outstanding debt, capital lease obligations, and preferred stock from an estimated enterprise
value, which was estimated based on discounted cash flow analysis, comparable public company analysis, and comparable transaction analysis. Additionally, we
determined that a significant change in the valuation estimate for common stock would not have a significant effect on the financial statements.

Stock Options

We have granted stock options to certain of our employees under five plans. The Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan was adopted in 1990 (“1990
Stock Option Plan”) and had option grants under it through 2000. In 1993, stock option plan agreements were reached with certain employees (“1993 Stock
Option Plan”). In 1996, the Board of Directors approved and the shareholders ratified the 1996 Stock Option Plan (“1996 Stock Option Plan”).

In 2000, the our Board of Directors approved two new stock option plans, one for Telos Delaware, Inc. (“Telos Delaware Stock Incentive Plan”) and one
for Xacta Corporation (“Xacta Stock Incentive Plan”), both wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company.

As determined by the members of the Compensation Committee, we generally grant options under our respective plans at the estimated fair value at the
date of grant, based upon all information available to it at the time.

1990 Stock Option Plan

Under the terms of the 1990 Stock Option Plan, 2,168,215 shares of our Class A common stock were available for issuance under options to key
employees, including officers and directors. The options expire 10 years from the date of grant. The option price determined by the Board of Directors was not
less than the estimated fair value at the date of the grant and the options generally vest over a four-year period. The 1990 Stock Option Plan expired in 2000, with
923,000 remaining unissued options canceled. There were 6,000 and 901,999 options outstanding as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. A total of
450,750 options expired in 2008, and 445,249 options were exchanged for restricted stock in June 2008.

1993 Option Plan

In 1993, stock option plan agreements were reached to provide Mr. John Wood, Executive Chairman, and Mr. Joseph Beninati, former Chairman, with
options to each purchase up to 700,459 shares of our Class A common stock from us at $0.50 per share. Under the terms of the agreements, 350,230 shares vested
immediately and the remainder vested ratably over the next twelve months. We recorded compensation expense related to these options based upon the difference
between the exercise price and the estimated fair value of $0.82 per share at the measurement date of the stock option. Mr. Beninati’s agreement was terminated
in 1996, and Mr. Beninati had not exercised any of the options. The shares subsequently available were administered under the same terms as the 1996 Stock
Option Plan. These options expired 10 years from the date of grant. The 1993 Option Plan terminated in 2003. A total of 15,000 options granted under the 1993
Option Plan expired during 2007. There were no options outstanding as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

1996 Stock Option Plan

The 1996 Stock Option Plan allowed for the award of options to purchase up to 6,644,974 shares of Class A common stock at an exercise price of not lower
than the estimated fair value at the date of grant. Vesting of the stock options for key employees is based both upon the passage of time, generally four years, and
certain key events occurring including an initial public offering or a change in control. The stock options may be exercised over a ten-year period subject to the
vesting requirements. Effective May 10, 2004, the 1996 Stock Option Plan was amended by the Board of Directors to increase the total amount of authorized
shares of Class A common stock to 7,345,433, an increase of 700,459 shares, to reflect those options granted to Mr. Wood that were not exercised under the 1993
Stock Option Plan. The 1996 Stock Option Plan expired in March 2006, with its remaining 516,000 unissued options canceled. A total of 438,750; 412,500 and
3,034,990 options granted under the 1996 Stock Option Plan expired during 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. There were 35,000 and 2,964,250 options
outstanding as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. A total of 27,000 options were canceled in 2008 and 2,463,500 options were exchanged for
restricted stock in June 2008.
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Telos Delaware Stock Incentive Plan

During the third quarter of 2000, our Board of Directors approved a new stock option plan for Telos Delaware, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Certain of our key executives and employees are eligible to receive stock options under the plan. Under the plan, we may award up to 3,500,000 shares
of common stock as either incentive or non-qualified stock options. An incentive option must have an exercise price of not lower than fair value on the date of
grant. A non-qualified option will not have an exercise price any lower than 85% of the fair value on the date of grant. All options have a term of ten years and
vest no less rapidly than the rate of 20% per year for each of the first five years unless changed by the option committee of the Board of Directors. There were
107,632 and 1,115,825 options outstanding as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. A total of 24,814 options were canceled in 2008 and 983,379 options
were exchanged for restricted stock in June 2008.

Xacta Stock Incentive Plan

In the third quarter of 2000, Xacta Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, initiated a stock option plan under which up to 3,500,000
shares of Xacta common stock may be awarded to key employees and associates. The options may be awarded as incentive or non-qualified, have a term of ten
years, and vest no less rapidly than the rate of 20% per year for each of the first five years unless changed by the option committee of the Board of Directors. The
exercise price may not be less than the estimated fair value on the date of grant for an incentive option, or less than 85% of the estimated fair value on the date of
grant for a non-qualified stock option. There were 67,070 and 2,586,698 options outstanding as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. A total of 21,064
were canceled in 2008 and 2,498,564 options were exchanged for restricted stock in June 2008.

A summary of the status of our stock options for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006 is as follows:

Weighted
Number of Average
Shares Exercise
(000’s) Price
2008 Stock Option Activity
Outstanding at beginning of year 7,569 $ 1.27
Granted — —
Exercised — —
Exchanged (6,391) 1.26
Canceled (962) 1.13
Outstanding at end of year 216 $ 234
Exercisable at end of year 216 $ 234
2007 Stock Option Activity
Outstanding at beginning of year 8,217 $ 1.26
Granted — —
Exercised — —
Canceled (648) 1.18
Outstanding at end of year 7,569 $ 1.27
2006 Stock Option Activity
Outstanding at beginning of year 11,876 $ 1.19
Granted — —
Exercised — —
Canceled (3,659) 0.94
Outstanding at end of year 8,217 $ 1.26

The aggregate intrinsic value for options outstanding and exercisable at year end 2008 is negligible. The aggregate intrinsic value represents the total pretax
intrinsic value (the difference between our fair market value as determined by management and the exercise price, multiplied by the number of share-based
awards) that would have been received by the option holders had all option holders exercised their options on December 31, 2008.
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The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2008:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted

Remaining Weighted Weighted
Number Contractual Average Number Average
Outstanding Life in Exercise Exercisable Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices (000’s) Years Price (000’s) Price
$0.50 — $0.99 87 3.9 years $ 0.72 87 $ 072
$1.00 — $2.00 21 0.1 years $ 1.35 21 $ 1.35
$3.85 — $4.00 108 1.7 years $ 3.85 108 $ 3.85

A summary of the status of our nonvested shares and changes during the year ended December 31, 2008 is presented below:

Number of Weighted
Shares Average
(000’s) Exercise Price
Nonvested at January 1, 2008 544 $ 0.65
Granted — _
Vested (507) 0.65
Forfeited or expired (37) 0.66
Nonvested at December 31, 2008 = $ —

As of December 31, 2008, there was no unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the
plans.

Telos Shared Savings Plan

We sponsor a defined contribution employee savings plan (the “Plan”) under which substantially all full-time employees are eligible to participate. The
Plan holds 3,658,536 shares of Telos Class A common stock. Since no public market exists for Telos Class A common stock, the Trustees of the Plan and their
professional advisors undertake an annual evaluation, based upon the most recent audited financial statements. To date, the Plan’s trustees have priced the stock at
the exact midpoint of the evaluated range of the value of the stock. We match one-half of voluntary participant contributions to the Plan up to a maximum
contribution by us of 3% of a participant’s salary. Our total contributions to this Plan for 2008, 2007, and 2006 were $705,000, $660,000, and $664,000,
respectively.

Additionally, effective September 1, 2007, TIMS LLC sponsors a defined contribution savings plan under which substantially all full-time employees are
eligible to participate. TIMS LLC matches one-half of voluntary participant contributions to the Plan up to a maximum Company contribution of 3% of a
participant’s salary. The total 2008 and 2007 TIMS LLC contributions to this plan were $69,000 and $16,000, respectively.
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Note 10. Income Taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxes attributable to income (loss) from continuing operations includes the following (in thousands):

For the Years Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Current provision
Federal $ 187 $ 234 § —
State 115 46 12
Total current 302 280 12
Deferred (benefit)
Federal (5,507) — —
State (526) — —
Total deferred (6,033) — —
Total (benefit) provision $ (5731) $ 280 $ 12

The (benefit) provision for income taxes related to continuing operations varies from the amount determined by applying the federal income tax statutory
rate to the income or loss before income taxes. The reconciliation of these differences is as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Computed expected income tax provision (benefit) 34.0% 34.0% (34.0)%
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 9.1) 0.8 (1.9)
Change in valuation allowance for deferred tax assets (176.2) (64.4) 15.5
Other permanent differences 3.1 2.8 0.4
Dividend and accretion on preferred stock 32.6 30.8 19.9
Other — 0.8 0.1

(115.6)% 4.8% 0.0%
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2008 and
2007 are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2008 2007
Deferred tax assets:
Accounts receivable, principally due to allowance for doubtful accounts $ 85 $ 210
Allowance for inventory obsolescence and amortization 534 303
Accrued liabilities not currently deductible 2,558 2,996
Accrued compensation 1,145 1,443
Property and equipment, principally due to differences in depreciation methods 1,435 1,127
TIMS LLC basis difference 96 —
Net operating loss carryforwards 2,216 5,948
Alternative minimum tax credit carry forward 825 638
Total gross deferred tax assets 8,894 12,665
Less valuation allowance (1,965) (11,395)
Net deferred tax assets 6,929 1,270
Deferred tax liabilities:
Unbilled accounts receivable, deferred for tax purposes (896) (1,150)
TIMS LLC basis difference — (20)
Total deferred tax liabilities (896) (1,270)
Net deferred tax assets $ 6,033 $ —
The components of the valuation allowance are as follows (in thousands):
Balance Balance
Beginning of End
Period Additions Deductions of Period
December 31, 2008 $ 11,395 5 — $ (9,430) $ 1,965
December 31, 2007 $ 15,106 $ — $ (3,711) $11,395
December 31, 2006 $ 10,136 $ 4,970 $ — $15,106

During the fourth quarter in 2008, in accordance with SFAS 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” valuation allowances against certain deferred tax assets
were released, due primarily to the evidence that it is more likely than not that such deferred tax assets will be realized.

At December 31, 2008, for federal income tax purposes there were approximately $5.0 million net operating loss carryforwards to offset future regular
taxable income. These net operating loss carryforwards expire in various years through 2027. Additionally, approximately $7.0 million of alternative minimum
tax net operating loss carryforwards are available to offset future alternative minimum taxable income. These alternative minimum tax net operating loss
carryforwards also expire in various years through 2027. In addition, we have $0.8 million of alternative minimum tax credits available to be carried forward
indefinitely to reduce future regular tax liabilities.

We adopted the provisions of FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007 and determined that there were no significant unrecognized tax benefits required to be recorded
for the years ended December 31, 2008 or 2007. We believe that the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will not significantly increase or decrease within
the next 12 months. The period for which tax years are open, 2005 to 2008, has not been extended beyond the applicable statute of limitations.
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Note 11. Commitments

Leases
We lease office space and equipment under noncancelable operating and capital leases with various expiration dates, some of which contain renewal

options.

On March 1, 1996, we entered into a twenty-year capital lease for a building in Ashburn, Virginia, that serves as our corporate headquarters. We have
accounted for this transaction as a capital lease and have accordingly recorded assets and a corresponding liability of approximately $12.3 million.

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum payments under capital leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments
as of December 31, 2008 (in thousands):

Property Equipment Total
2009 $ 1,979 $ 43 $ 2,022
2010 1,979 43 2,022
2011 1,979 11 1,990
2012 1,979 7 1,986
2013 1,979 1 1,980
Remainder 4,455 1 4,456
Total minimum obligations 14,350 106 14,456
Less amounts representing interest (ranging from 4.4% to 17.4%) (6,235) (17) (6,252)
Net present value of minimum obligations 8,115 89 8,204
Less current portion (611) (34) (645)
Long-term capital lease obligations at December 31, 2008 $ 7,504 $ 55 $ 7,559

In accordance with the Ashburn lease agreement, every three years the rent is subject to adjustments in accordance with changes in the United States
Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Price Index (“CPI”). Accordingly, effective April 2008, the adjustment in monthly rent payment based
on the change in CPI is $16,000 per month, from $149,000 to $165,000.

Accumulated amortization for property and equipment under capital leases at December 31, 2008 and 2007 is $9.1 million and $8.4 million, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments for all noncancelable operating leases at December 31, 2008 are as follows (in thousands):

2009 $ 614
2010 553
2011 248
2012 89
2013 54
Total minimum lease payments $1,558

Rent expense charged to operations for 2008, 2007, and 2006, totaled $1.1 million, $0.8 million, and $0.6 million, respectively.
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Warranties

We provide product warranties for products sold through certain U.S. Government contract vehicles. We accrue a warranty liability at the time that we
recognize revenue for the estimated costs that may be incurred in connection with providing warranty coverage. Warranties are valued using historical warranty
usage trends; however, if actual product failure rates or service delivery costs differ from estimates, revisions to the estimated warranty liability may be required.
Accrued warranties are reported as other current liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Balance Balance
Beginning Warranty End
of Year Accruals Expenses of Year
(amount in thousands)
Year Ended December 31, 2008 $ 2,406 $ (242) $ (478) $1,686
Year Ended December 31, 2007 $ 1,380 $1,673 $ (647) $2,406
Year Ended December 31, 2006 $ 1,627 $ 810 $(1,057) $1,380

As discussed more fully in Note 1, under “Segment Reporting”, in late 2007 the Managed Solutions segment, through which warranty service is provided,
was realigned under the Secure Networks business line as part of an ongoing cost reduction and reorganization strategy to address our prior poor operating results
through increased focus of our efforts on growth of higher-margin business. The series of decisions related to this change resulted in a shift in our focus to an
increased proportion of contracts with the Original Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM”) warranty requirements, which primarily involve referrals to the OEM for
service calls. While certain contracts and programs continue to require that we provide an enhanced level of warranty coverage, this shift to OEM-coverage
contracts, and additionally, current reduced Company call center demand trends by certain large customers, resulted in a reduction of the estimates related to our
warranty liabilities. Accordingly, we adjusted our accrued warranty liability down by approximately $1.1 million in the first quarter of 2008.

Note 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information concerning certain relationships and related transactions between the us and certain of our current shareholders and former officers is set forth
below.

Mr. John R. C. Porter, the owner of 1.4% of our Class A Common Stock, had a consulting agreement with us whereby he was compensated for consulting
services provided to us in the areas of marketing, product development, strategic planning and finance as we requested. We paid Mr. Porter $260,000 for 2008,
2007 and 2006 pursuant to this agreement, which amounts were determined by negotiation between us and Mr. Porter. Effective January 1, 2009, the consulting
agreement with Mr. Porter was terminated.

The brother of the our Chairman and CEO, Emmett Wood, has been an employee of ours since 1996. The amounts paid to this individual as compensation
for 2008, 2007, and 2006 were $220,000, $205,000, and $144,000, respectively.

As reported in Note 2 — Sale of Assets, as a member of certain private equity investors, the brother of our Chairman and CEO, Nicholas Wood, indirectly
held a 2% effective ownership interest in TIMS LLC. Such ownership interest was sold in the fourth quarter of 2008.
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Note 13. Summary of Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of selected quarterly financial data for the previous two fiscal years (in thousands):

Quarters Ended
March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31

2008

Revenue $47,605 $46,487 $56,638 $66,337

Gross profit 10,742 9,010 12,759 11,916

Income before minority interest and income taxes 2,284 1,131 2,149 1,539

Net income (1) 2,065 977 796 6,850
2007

Revenue $40,215 $61,395 $60,993 $63,982

Gross profit 12,868 11,415 8,985 8,312

Income (loss) before minority interest and income taxes 1,712 7,891 798 (3,465)

Net income (loss) (2) 1,712 7,823 337 (4,326)

(1) Changes in net income are the result of several factors, including: (a) adjustment to warranty liability of $1.1 million in the first quarter, which resulted in
$1.1 million credit to warranty expense, (b) the release of valuation allowance against the deferred tax assets of $6.0 million in the fourth quarter.

(2) Changes in net income (loss) are the result of several factors, including: (a) changes in the product mix (specifically higher sales of proprietary software)
from the first quarter to the following quarters resulting in lower gross margins, specifically in the third and fourth quarters, (b) the sale of TIMS LLC
membership interest (see Note 2 — Sale of Assets), produced significantly higher net income in the second quarter, (c) the accrual of $2.2 million for the
corporate bonus pool in the fourth quarter, and (d) litigation-related expenses, net of reimbursements by our insurers, in the amount of $1.7 million in the
fourth quarter.
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Note 14. Contingencies
Financial Condition and Liquidity

As described in Note 7 — Current Liabilities and Debt Obligations, we maintain a revolving credit facility (“the Facility”) with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc.
(“Wells Fargo Foothill”). Borrowings under the Facility are collateralized by substantially all of our assets including inventory, equipment, and accounts
receivable. The amount of available borrowings fluctuates based on the underlying asset-borrowing base, in general 85% of our trade accounts receivable, as
adjusted by certain reserves (as further defined in the Facility agreement). The Facility provides us with virtually all of the liquidity we require to meet our
operating, investing and financing needs. Therefore maintaining sufficient availability on the Facility is the most critical factor in our liquidity. While a variety of
factors related to sources and uses of cash, such as timeliness of accounts receivable collections, vendor credit terms, or significant collateral requirements,
ultimately impact our liquidity, such factors may or may not have a direct impact on our liquidity, based on how the transactions associated with such
circumstances impact our availability under the Facility. For example, a contractual requirement to post collateral for a duration of several months, depending on
the materiality of the amount, could have an immediate negative effect on our liquidity, as such a circumstance would utilize availability on the Facility without
an near-term cash inflow back to us. Likewise, the release of such collateral could have a corresponding positive effect on our liquidity, as it would represent an
addition to our availability without any corresponding near-term cash outflow. Similarly, a slow-down of payments from a customer, group of customers or
government payment office would not have an immediate and direct effect on our availability on the Facility unless the slowdown was material in amount and
over an extended period of time. We discuss any significant unusual circumstances, such as these the examples described above, that could have an impact on the
Facility, and therefore our liquidity.

We believe that available cash and borrowings under the amended Facility will be sufficient to generate adequate amounts of cash to meet our needs for
operating expenses, debt service requirements, and projected capital expenditures for 2009. We anticipate the continued need for a credit facility upon terms and
conditions substantially similar to the amended Facility in order to meet our long term needs for operating expenses, debt service requirements, and projected
capital expenditures. Our working capital was $10.8 million as of December 31, 2008. Our working capital deficit was $0.4 million as of December 31, 2007.
Although no assurances can be given, we expect that we will be in compliance throughout the term of the amended Facility with respect to the financial and other
covenants.

Legal Proceedings
Costa Brava Partnership III, L.P., et al. v. Telos Corporation, et al.

As previously reported, Costa Brava Partnership III, L.P. (“Costa Brava®), a holder of our 12% Cumulative Exchangeable Redeemable Preferred Stock
(“ERPS” or “Public Preferred Stock”), filed a lawsuit (hereinafter the “Complaint”) on October 17, 2005 in the Circuit Court for the City of Baltimore in the State
of Maryland (“the Court”) against the Company, its directors, and certain of its officers. As of December 31, 2008, Costa Brava owns 16.4% of the outstanding
Public Preferred Stock.

The Complaint alleged that the Company and its officers and directors had engaged in tactics to avoid paying mandatory dividends on the Public Preferred
Stock, and asserted that the Public Preferred Stock had characteristics of debt instruments even though it was issued by the Company in the form of stock. Costa
Brava alleged, among other things, that the Company and an independent committee of the Board of Directors had done nothing to improve what they claimed to
be the Company’s insolvency, or its ability to redeem the Public Preferred Stock and pay accrued dividends. They also challenged the bonus payments to the
Company’s officers and directors, and consulting fees paid to the holder of a majority of the Company’s common stock.

On December 22, 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors established a special litigation committee (“Special Litigation Committee”) composed of
independent directors to review and evaluate the matters raised in the derivative suit filed against the Company by Costa Brava.

On January 9, 2006, the Company filed a motion to dismiss the Complaint or, in the alternative, to stay the action until the Special Litigation Committee
had sufficient time to properly investigate and respond to Costa Brava’s demands. On March 30, 2006, the Court granted the motion to dismiss in part and denied
it in part, and denied the alternative request for a stay.

On February 8, 2006, Wynnefield Small Cap Value, L.P. (“Wynnefield”) filed a motion to intervene. An order was entered on May 25, 2006 by the Court,
designating Wynnefield Partners as the plaintiff with Costa Brava in the lawsuit. On May 31, 2006, an Amended Complaint was filed in which Wynnefield joined
as a Plaintiff. Costa Brava and Wynnefield are hereinafter referred to as “Plaintiffs.”

On May 26, 2006, Plaintiffs filed a motion for a preliminary injunction to prevent the sale or disposal of Xacta Corporation, a subsidiary of the Company,
or any of its assets until the lawsuit is resolved on the merits. Subsequently, an order was issued dismissing the motion without prejudice on October 26, 2006,
and then reissued on January 26, 2007.

On August 30, 2006, Plaintiffs filed a motion for receivership following the resignations of six of the nine members of the Board of Directors on
August 16, 2006. Within a week of the resignations, three new independent board members were added and two more were added in October 2006, bringing the
total board membership to eight. Thus, the board and all board committees, including the Special Litigation Committee and the Transaction Committee, were
fully reconstituted. The Plaintiffs’ motion for receivership was denied on November 29, 2006. In its Memorandum Opinion denying the motion for receivership,
the Court concluded that the Plaintiffs’ holdings in the Public Preferred Stock represented a minority equity interest, (not a fixed liability), and that their minority
equity interest did not provide a guarantee to payment of dividends or redemption of their shares. The Court further stated that it could not find that the Plaintiffs’
expectations were objectively reasonable, and concluded that the Plaintiffs had not been denied any rights as defined by the proxy statement and prospectus
forming the terms of the Public Preferred Stock.
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On February 15, 2007, the Plaintiffs filed their second Motion for Preliminary Injunction to prevent the sale or disposal of any corporate assets outside the
ordinary course of business until such time that two new Class D directors could be elected. On April 19, 2007, the Court denied the Plaintiffs’ motion. Two new
Class D Directors, Messrs. Seth W. Hamot and Andrew R. Siegel, were elected at the June 18, 2007 special meeting of the holders of Public Preferred Stock.

On February 27, 2007, the Plaintiffs filed a Second Amended Complaint and added Mr. John R. C. Porter, then majority shareholder, as a defendant. The
Company filed its motion to strike/dismiss and motion for summary judgment on March 28, 2007. On June 6, 2007, the Court granted the motion to dismiss in
part and denied it in part. The following counts were dismissed: allegations of fraudulent conveyance (Count I); request for permanent and preliminary injunction
related to the fraudulent conveyance allegations (Count II); and allegations of shareholder oppression against Mr. John Porter (Count V). The following counts
were not dismissed: request for appointment of a receiver (Count III); request to dissolve the corporation (Count IV); breach of fiduciary duty by directors (Count
VI); and breach of fiduciary duty by officers (Count VII).

On May 29, 2007, Telos filed a Counterclaim (“Telos Counterclaim”) against the Plaintiffs alleging interference with its relationship with Wells Fargo
Foothill, and a related motion for a preliminary injunction. On June 4, 2007, the Court entered a consent order in which the Plaintiffs agreed to cease and desist
communications with Wells Fargo Foothill. On August 28, 2007, the Court issued a ruling granting Telos’ motion for a preliminary injunction.

On July 20, 2007, counsel for the Special Litigation Committee issued its final report, which found that the available evidence did not support the
derivative claims, and there was no instance of bad faith, breach of fiduciary duty or self-interested action or inaction that would make it in the Company’s best
interests to support the derivative claims. Further, Special Litigation Committee counsel recommended that the Company take all action necessary, appropriate
and consistent with such findings.

Thus, on August 24, 2007, the Company filed a motion to dismiss the derivative claims as recommended by the Special Litigation Committee and its
report. On January 7, 2008, the Court granted the Company’s motion to dismiss the derivative claims and dismissed Counts VI and VII of the Second Amended
Complaint, leaving only Counts III and IV remaining. Accordingly, all counts against the individual defendants were dismissed. Subsequently, the Company filed
a motion for Summary Judgment on February 1, 2008 to dismiss the remaining counts.

On February 12, 2008, the Plaintiffs filed a Third Amended Complaint which included all the previous counts from the original Complaint and the Second
Amended Complaint as well as additional counts. The additional counts were as follows: breach of contract against Telos (Count VIII); preliminary and
permanent injunction to prevent the Company from entering into a transaction to dispose of assets that allegedly would unjustly enrich the officers and directors
(Count IX); and a request for an accounting alleging that the Company failed to prepare financial statements as required under Maryland law (Count X). The
Company filed a Motion to Dismiss or to Strike the Third Amended Complaint or for Summary Judgment on February 19, 2008.

On March 3, 2008, the Plaintiffs and all the Defendants to the litigation entered into a Stipulation regarding the Third Amended Complaint. All parties
stipulated that the Third Amended Complaint alleges causes of action against the Company only and not against the individual defendants. The parties stipulated
that, for purposes of appellate preservation only, the Third Amended Complaint contained allegations concerning parties who, and causes of action which, had
been dismissed by prior orders of the Court. The parties further stipulated that all causes of action asserted against the individual defendants in the Third
Amended Complaint, and Counts I, II, V, VI and VII of the Third Amended Complaint, were dismissed with prejudice in accordance with the Court’s prior
rulings. The parties stipulated that the Plaintiffs were not seeking reconsideration of the Court’s previous rulings concerning parties or causes of action that had
been dismissed.

On April 15, 2008, the Court issued an order dismissing with prejudice the remaining counts (Counts III, IV, VIII, IX, and X) of the Plaintiff’s Third
Amended Complaint against the Company.

On June 19, 2008, the Plaintiffs filed a Motion for Leave to Serve Discovery on Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. in connection with the Telos Counterclaim. The
Company filed its opposition to the motion on July 8, 2008. On December 2, 2008, the Company filed a motion for voluntary dismissal of the counterclaim
without prejudice, and the Plaintiffs filed their opposition to the motion on December 19, 2008. A hearing was held on January 23, 2009 before Judge W. Michel
Pierson. On the same day, Judge Pierson issued an order granting the Company’s motion to dismiss the counterclaim without prejudice and denying the Plaintiffs’
motion for leave to service discovery as moot.

On February 23, 2009, the Plaintiffs filed a Notice of Appeal to the Court of Special Appeals of Maryland.

On March 6, 2009, the Plaintiffs (now Appellants) filed the Civil Appeal Information Report. The Appellees include the Company and the directors and
officers previously named in the dismissed complaints. The Appellants listed a total of 12 issues and sub-issues for review.

On March 13, 2009, the Company filed an Information Report with the Court of Special Appeals in response to the Appellants filing. The Company’s
Information Report notes, among other things, that the Appeal was filed a day late under the Maryland Rules of Civil Procedure. Subsequently, on March 16,
2009, the Company filed a Motion for Prehearing Conference for Limitation of Issues on Appeal. This motion was filed in an effort to facilitate a cooperative
process to narrow, focus and clarify the issues on appeal. On March 26, 2009, the Appellants filed their opposition to the Motion for Prehearing Conference. On
April 13, 2009, the Court of Special Appeals denied the Company’s Motion for Prehearing Conference.

On April 8, 2009, the Appellants filed a Petition for Writ of Certiorari to Court of Special Appeals with the Court of Appeals of Maryland. This petition is
currently pending.

At this stage of the appeal process, it is impossible to reasonably determine the degree of probability related to Plaintiffs’ (Appellants’) success in any of
their assertions. Although there can be no assurance as to the ultimate outcome of this appeal process, the Company and its officers and directors strenuously deny
Plaintiffs’ claims, will continue to vigorously defend the matter, and oppose the relief sought.
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Hamot et al. v. Telos Corporation

On August 2, 2007, Messrs. Seth W. Hamot and Mr. Andrew R. Siegel, principals of Costa Brava Partnership III L.P. (“Costa Brava”) and Class D
Directors of Telos (“Class D Directors™), filed a verified complaint against the Company and a motion for a temporary restraining order in the Circuit Court for
the City of Baltimore, Maryland (“the Court” or “Circuit Court”). The complaint alleged that certain company documents and records had not been promptly
provided to them as requested, and that these documents were necessary to fulfill their fiduciary duty as directors.

On August 22, 2007 the Class D Directors filed an amended verified complaint and an amended motion for temporary restraining order alleging that the
Company was denying them the ability to effectively review, examine, consider and question future regulatory filings and other important actions and
undertakings of the Company.

On August 28, 2007, the Court converted the motion for temporary restraining order into a request for a preliminary injunction and entered a preliminary
injunction stating that the Class D Directors were entitled to documents in response to reasonable requests for information pertinent and necessary to perform
their duties as members of the Board. In addition, the Court noted that during the pendency of the shareholder litigation, it was not inclined to permit the Class D
Directors, through the guise of their newly acquired director status, to avoid their currently binding commitments under the stipulation and protective order
entered on July 7, 2006. Pursuant to the terms of that order the Company is entitled to designate documents produced in discovery or submitted to the Court as
“confidential” or “highly confidential” and to withhold from the Class D Directors information protected by the work product doctrine or attorney-client
privilege.

On September 24, 2007, the Class D Directors filed a new motion for temporary restraining order and a second amended verified complaint in which they
requested that the Court “compel Telos to adhere to the Telos Amended and Restated Bylaws” and alleged that provisions concerning the noticing of Board
committee meetings and the recording of Board meeting minutes had been violated and that Mr. Wood’s service as both CEO and Chairman of the Board was
improper and impermissible under the Company’s Bylaws. The Court denied the Class D Directors’ motion on October 12, 2007. On the same day, the Court
issued an amended preliminary injunction stating that the Class D Directors are entitled to receive written responses to requests for Board of Directors or Board
committee minutes within seven (7) days of any such requests and copies of such minutes within fifteen (15) days of any such requests, as well as written
responses to all other requests for information and/or documents related to their duties as directors within seven (7) days of such requests, and all Board of
Directors appropriate information and/or documents within thirty (30) days of any such requests. The Court further stated that in all other respects, the
preliminary injunction order of August 28, 2007 shall remain in full force and effect.

On April 16, 2008, the Company’s independent auditor, Reznick Group, P.C. (“Reznick”), resigned. In its resignation letter addressed to the Chairman of
the Audit Committee, Reznick stated that it believed that its independence had been impaired due to communications from the Class D Directors that it perceived
as threats of litigation and attempts to influence its opinion on certain accounting issues. The communications included a March 28, 2008 letter that was sent on
the letterhead of Roark, Rearden & Hamot Capital Management, LL.C (“RRHCM?”), which is the general partner of Costa Brava, and of which Seth Hamot, Class
D Director, is the managing member, to Goodman & Company, L.L.P. (“Goodman”), which had served as the Company’s independent auditor prior to the
engagement of Reznick. The letter also was blind-copied to Reznick. The letter demanded that Goodman withdraw its audit opinion for the years 2006, 2005, and
2004, and threatened further legal action against Goodman, stating “Costa Brava reserves its right to bring claims against Goodman for any damages resulting
from clean audit opinions relating to past or future financial statements.”

After Reznick resigned citing impairment to its independence as a result of communications from the Class D Directors, the Company filed a Counterclaim
on April 23, 2008, in an effort to prevent the Class D Directors from engaging in any further acts of misrepresentation, interference and improper influence upon
the Company’s independent auditors regarding, among other things, a specific accounting treatment (from that of a non-current liability to that of a current
liability) for their holdings in the Company’s 12% Cumulative Exchangeable Redeemable Preferred Stock (“ERPS” or “Public Preferred Stock”). The
Counterclaim states claims against the Class D Directors for Tortious Interference with Contractual Relationship with Goodman (Count I); Tortious Interference
with Contractual Relationship with Reznick (Count II); Tortious Inference with Economic or Business Relations with Goodman (Count IIT); Tortious Inference
with Economic or Business Relations with Reznick (Count IV); Breach of Fiduciary Duty by Hamot (Count V); and Breach of Fiduciary Duty by Siegel (Count
VI).

On May 1, 2008, the Court issued an order “to preserve the status quo until a hearing may be conducted.” The Status Quo Order, among other things, stated
that the Class D Directors must “cease, desist and refrain from any and all direct or indirect, verbal or written, contact or communication with the Company’s
past, current and future auditors, including without limitation Goodman & Company, LLP, (“Goodman”) and Reznick Group (“Reznick”), acting either singly or
in concert with others, and either directly with any such auditors and/or with their agents or employees.”

On June 20, 2008, the Company filed its First Amended Counterclaim supplementing and updating its allegations.

On June 27, 2008, the Court granted the Company’s Motion for Preliminary Injunction against the Class D Directors regarding their interference with the
Company’s relationship with its current and former auditors. The Court ordered Hamot and Siegel to:

... cease, desist and refrain from any and all direct and indirect contact or communications (whether verbal, written, or otherwise) with Goodman, Reznick,
or any other former, current or future auditors of Telos Corporation, or with any agents or representatives of any such auditors, regarding the conduct herein
prohibited, during the pendency of this litigation or until such time as Telos obtains audited financial statements for 2007 and files its 10-K with the SEC.
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The Court further prohibited Hamot and Siegel from:

... engaging in contacts, communications or other conduct prohibited by this Order acting either singly or in concert with others, including any entities that
they control or through which they operate, including, but not limited to, Costa Brava, RRHCM and RRH [Roark, Rearden, & Hamot Capital Management, LLC
and Roark, Rearden & Hamot entities, respectively]. It also specifically prohibits any such actions or conduct undertaken through or in concert or collusion with
other persons or entities, including, but not limited to, Wynnefield Partners Small Cap Value, L.P. (“Wynnefield”), Paul Berger or any other ERPS holders.

The Order further states:

In this case, Telos has contractual relationships with both Reznick and Goodman, which are reflected in their engagement letters with Telos, and Hamot and
Siegel had knowledge of these relationships. The record further indicates that Hamot and Siegel intentionally interfered with these relationships, and that their
interference caused the non-performance by Reznick and Goodman of the services they were engaged to perform, as well as Reznick’s termination of the
engagement. Thus, Telos has raised a substantial claim for tortious interference with contract under the facts presented.

... As discussed above, the record indicates that Telos is likely to demonstrate that Hamot and Siegel intentionally sought to interfere with Reznick’s audit
through questionable and potentially misleading communications and barely-veiled threats of litigation, and that their interference caused Reznick to resign.
Telos, therefore, has also raised claims going to the merits of its count for tortious interference with business or economic relations.

The Order also states that “Telos is likely to demonstrate that their conduct was not just wrongful, but unlawful.” It further states that “Telos is likely to
show that Hamot and Siegel used potentially misleading communications and threats of litigation in an effort to dictate the accounting treatment that Reznick
should adopt, thereby running afoul of Sarbanes-Oxley section 303 and SEC Rule 13b2-2 and providing another basis for liability for tortious interference with
business or economic relations.”

In addition, the Order states:

Here, the conduct by Hamot and Siegel indicates that they put their interests ahead of the corporation they were supposed to be serving and sought to
disrupt the company’s essential relationships to serve their own ends. Indeed, even after being advised at Telos’ April 2, 2008, board meeting that their conduct
was jeopardizing the company’s relationship with its auditor, they continued to send more communications to Reznick attempting to influence its opinions. ...
Given the record before the Court, it appears that Telos likely will be able to demonstrate that Hamot and Siegel breached their fiduciary duties to the company.

Lastly, the Order states that “the public interest favors Telos.” It states:

When directors with conflicted interests are allowed to interfere with [the audit] process, the public’s interest in the integrity of the process — and its interest
in the integrity of the financial information that ultimately will be provided to the investing public — suffers. Moreover, it also is in the public interest to protect
the operational status quo of an ongoing viable business, which employs over 500 people and provides essential services to the United States military.

The Class D Directors filed a Motion to Dismiss the Counterclaim on May 21, 2008 and it was denied on July 24, 2008.

On July 16, 2008, the Class D Directors filed a Motion for Stay of Enforcement of Interlocutory Order in the Circuit Court seeking a stay of enforcement of
the June 27, 2008 preliminary injunction. The Circuit Court denied the Class D Directors’ motion on August 15, 2008.

On July 25, 2008, the Class D Directors filed a Notice of Appeal of the June 27, 2008 Preliminary Injunction.

On July 30, 2008, the Class D Directors filed in the Court of Special Appeals of Maryland a motion to stay enforcement of the June 27, 2008 preliminary
injunction pending appeal of the preliminary injunction. The motion was denied without prejudice on August 5, 2008. The Class D Directors filed a renewed
motion to stay the preliminary injunction in the Court of Special Appeals on August 20, 2008 and that motion was denied on September 15, 2008.

On October 2, 2008, the Company filed a Second Amended Counterclaim which added a Count VII, requesting that the Court issue a declaratory judgment
that the Class D Directors are not entitled to indemnification or the advancement of expenses under Maryland law.

The oral argument on the Class D Directors’ appeal of the June 27, 2008 preliminary injunction took place before the Court of Special Appeals on
November 3, 2008. The Court of Special Appeals took the matter under advisement and, to date, has not issued a decision on the appeal.

Through a letter dated December 17, 2008, the Company informed the Court of Special Appeals that the audit of the Company’s 2007 financial statements
had been completed and the Company had filed its 2007 Form 10-K with the SEC as of that date. In their response letter of December 19, 2008 to the Court of
Special Appeals, the Class D Directors reiterated their position that the “controversy between the parties is capable of repetition, yet evading appellate review”
and further argued that, in any event, the Court should decide the issue of whether the appeal was moot “only upon a fully-briefed motion.” The Company
responded on December 23, 2008 that it would be amenable to additional briefing. Thus, on December 30, 2008, the Court of Special Appeals issued an order
directing the parties to submit further briefing on the issue of whether the Company’s filing of its 2007 Form 10-K mooted the Class D Directors appeal of the
June 27, 2008 preliminary injunction or whether the appeal remained justicable, and if so, under what theory. The Company and the Class D Directors filed their
respective Supplemental Memoranda on the mootness issue on January 14, 2009. On January 21, 2009, the Company and the Class D Directors filed their
respective Supplemental Reply Memoranda on the mootness issue. To date, the Court of Special Appeals has not ruled on this pending matter.
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On April 1, 2009, the Class D Directors filed a Petition for Constructive Civil Contempt with the Circuit Court for Baltimore County. The Petition alleges
that the Company violated the Court’s August 28, 2007 and October 12, 2007 Orders, referenced above, for failing to provide requested documents or information
that the Class D Directors allege is “pertinent and necessary to Plaintiffs” duties as Telos’ directors.”

At this stage of the litigation and appeal process, it is impossible to reasonably determine the degree of probability related to the Class D Directors’ success
in any of their assertions. Although there can be no assurance as to the ultimate outcome of these proceedings, the Company and its officers and directors
strenuously deny the Class D Directors’ claims, and will vigorously defend the matter, and continue to oppose the relief sought.

Other Litigation

In addition, the Company is a party to litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, while the results of such litigation
cannot be predicted with any reasonable degree of certainty, the final outcome of such known matters will not, based upon all available information, have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

As previously disclosed in public filings, on July 9, 2007, our previous principal independent registered public accountant, Goodman & Company, L.L.P.
(“Goodman”) resigned as the Company’s independent accountant effective July 24, 2007. Goodman resigned because it believed that its independence had been
impaired. In particular, Goodman determined that it could no longer serve as our independent accountant because Seth W. Hamot and Andrew R. Siegel, the Class
D members of the Board of Directors, had been elected to our Board effective June 18, 2007.

Following such resignation, effective September 17, 2007, the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors retained Reznick Group, P.C. (“Reznick™) as our
principal independent registered public accountant. However, on April 16, 2008, Reznick resigned, stating that “As a result of certain communications from Class
D members of the Board of Directors, Reznick Group believes that its independence has been impaired.” Reznick perceived these communications as threatening
litigation and attempts to influence its opinion on certain accounting issues. On April 23, 2008, the Company filed a Counterclaim and a Motion for Preliminary
Injunction against the Class D members for their improper communications with Reznick. On June 27, 2008, the Court entered a Preliminary Injunction and
ordered Mr. Seth Hamot and Mr. Andrew Siegel, the Class D members, to:

... cease, desist and refrain from any and all direct and indirect contact or communications (whether verbal, written, or otherwise) with Goodman,
Reznick, or any other former, current or future auditors of Telos Corporation, or with any agents or representatives of any such auditors, regarding the
conduct herein prohibited, during the pendency of this litigation or until such time as Telos obtains audited financial statements for 2007 and files its 10-K
with the SEC.

Following such resignation, effective September 5, 2008, the Audit Committee of the Company engaged BDO Seidman, LLP (“BDO”) as our principal
independent registered public accountant. Pursuant to such engagement, BDO was retained to audit our financial statements for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2007. BDO also performed a review of the unaudited condensed quarterly financial statements included in Form 10-Qs filed with the SEC for
quarters ended June 30, 2007, March 31, 2008, June 30, 2008, and September 30, 2008; and of the unaudited financial information for the quarters ended
March 31, 2007, September 30, 2007 and December 31, 2007 included in a note to the annual financial statements included in the Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2007.

Our Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2007 was reviewed by Reznick. Reznick resigned as our principal independent registered public
accounting firm effective April 16, 2008. Goodman served as our principal independent registered public accounting firm from the quarter ended June 30, 2004 to
the quarter ended March 31, 2007, and audited our financial statements included in the Form 10-K for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006.

During our two most recent fiscal years and subsequent interim periods, there have been no disagreements, as defined in Item 304 of Regulation S-K, with
our former principal independent registered public accountants on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosures, or auditing
scope or procedure, which disagreements if not resolved to the satisfaction of such accountants would have caused them to make reference thereto in their report
on the financial statements for such years as required by Item 304(a)(1)(iv) of Regulation S-K. In addition, during such periods, there have been no reportable
events as defined by Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K.
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Item 9A(T). Controls and Procedures
Inherent Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls

Our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, believes that our disclosure controls and procedures and internal
control over financial reporting are effective at the reasonable assurance level. However, management does not expect that such disclosure controls and
procedures or internal control over financial reporting will prevent all errors and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can
provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that
there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no
evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been detected. These inherent limitations include
the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of a simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be
circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people or by management override of the controls. The design of any system of
controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in
achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions; over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of
compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of December 31, 2008, an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)
promulgated under the Exchange Act), was performed under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including the Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in its reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms, and that information
required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports the Company files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Internal control over financial reporting
is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and Rule 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act as a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s principal executive
and principal financial officers and effected by the company’s board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Internal control over financial reporting includes policies and procedures that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008 based on the criteria set forth by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, known as COSO, in Internal Control — Integrated Framework. Based on that assessment,
management has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2008.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of our independent registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial
reporting. Management’s report was not subject to attestation by our independent registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities
and Exchange Commission that permit us to provide only management’s report in this annual report.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2008 that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

63



Table of Contents

Item 9B. Other Information

As previously disclosed, effective July 13, 2007, our Public Preferred Stock is no longer quoted on the OTCBB, and is now quoted as TLSRP in the Pink

Sheets.

PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The following is certain biographical information concerning our directors and executive officers. The term of each of the directors to be elected at the
Annual Meeting continues until the next annual meeting of shareholders and until his successor is elected and qualified, except the Class D Directors, whose
terms will expire when all accumulated dividends on the Public Preferred Stock have been paid, or their successors are elected and qualified, whichever occurs

earlier.

Directors

Name

John B. Wood

Bernard C. Bailey

David Borland

William M. Dvoranchik

Age
45

55
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Biographical Information
President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of the Company. Mr. Wood joined the Company in 1992
as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer (“COO”) and in 1994 was named President and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEO”). In March 2000, he was appointed to the newly created position of Executive Chairman of
the Board, which he held until he became Chairman of the Board subsequent to a restructuring of the Board of
Directors in 2002. In January 2003, Mr. Wood resumed the positions of President and CEO. Mr. Wood has also served
as Chairman of Enterworks, Inc., since January 1996; and as CEO of Enterworks, Inc. from January 1996 to November
2005. From January 2005 to December 2007, Mr. Wood served as Enterworks, Inc.’s Executive Chairman. As of
January 2008 Mr. Wood serves as Enterworks, Inc.’s Non-Executive Chairman. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Wood worked on Wall Street for Dean Witter Reynolds, UBS Securities, and his own boutique investment bank. Mr.
Wood graduated from Georgetown University where he earned a Bachelor of Science in Business Administration in
finance and computer science. Mr. Wood also serves on several advisory boards and one foundation board.

President and CEO of Paraquis Solutions LLC, a privately held consulting and IT services firm, since 2006. Mr.
Bailey’s career spans over two decades of management experience in the high technology and security industries. He
served most recently from August 2002 to September 2006 as the President and CEO of Viisage Technology, Inc., a
leading provider of advanced technology identity solutions. Under his four years of leadership, Viisage’s market
capitalization grew from $60 million to over $1 billion. During that period, the company executed nine acquisitions,
eventually culminating in the formation of L1 Identity Solutions, a NYSE listed company. Prior to Viisage, from
January 2001 to August 2002, Mr. Bailey served in various executive roles, including COO at Art Technology Group, a
leading provider of e-commerce software. From 1984 to 2001, Mr. Bailey held a variety of finance, sales, marketing,
and operations positions at IBM, where he also served in executive roles involved in the growth and development of
IBM Global Service’s systems integration and consulting business lines. Mr. Bailey has been a member of the
Company’s Board of Directors since October 2006. In addition to his duties with Telos, Mr. Bailey serves as a director
on the board of Lasercard Corporation (NASDAQ: LCRD); Spectrum Control, Inc. (NASDAQ:SPEC); and Point Blank
Solutions, Inc. (Pink Sheets:PBSO).

President of the Borland Group, an information technology consulting company, since January 2004. Mr. Borland was
elected to the Board of Directors in March 2004 after retiring as Deputy Chief Information Officer (“CIO”) of the U.S.
Army with more than 30 years of experience in the U.S. Government. Mr. Borland’s career Army experience also
includes serving as Vice Director of Information Systems for Command, Control, Communications, and Computers;
Director of the Information Systems Selection and Acquisition Agency; and numerous other positions. From 1966
through 1970, Mr. Borland served in the U.S. Air Force. Mr. Borland has received numerous awards, including the
Meritorious Presidential Rank Award for Senior Executive Service Members (1996 and 2003), the Distinguished
Presidential Rank Award (2000), and the United States Army Decoration for Exceptional Civilian Service (1998 and
2003).

Retired President, Electronic Data Systems (“EDS”) Federal Government. Mr. Dvoranchik was elected to the
Company’s Board of Directors in October 2006. From 1999 to 2001, Mr. Dvoranchik was President of EDS Federal
Government, where he oversaw all aspects of EDS’ relationship with the U.S. Government. He retired in August 2001
after more than 30 years with EDS. Mr. Dvoranchik joined EDS as a systems engineer in 1971, and later was appointed
manager of the National Information Systems account. He next served as Vice President for EDS’s savings and loan
business division, and as division manager for banking and thrift institutions. He became Vice President of EDS
Government Services in 1986 and President in 1989. Mr. Dvoranchik was appointed President of EDS State and Local
Government in 1997. He was appointed President of EDS Government Enterprise Solutions in January 1999 and
assumed the position of President of EDS Federal Government in September of that year. For over 10 years, Mr.
Dvoranchik served as chairman of the board of the EDS Employees Federal Credit Union, with assets of more than
$400 million.
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Managing Member, Roark, Rearden & Hamot Capital Management, LLC (“RRHCM?”), and owner of Roark, Rearden
& Hamot, Inc. (“RRHI”), since 1997, and President of Roark, Rearden & Hamot, LLC (“RRH”) since 2002. Mr. Hamot
has been a director of the Company since June 18, 2007. Mr. Hamot was nominated for election to the Board of the
Company by Costa Brava Partnership III L.P. (“Costa Brava”), an investment fund and a holder of the Company’s
Public Preferred Stock. Since 1997, Mr. Hamot has been the Managing Member of RRHCM and the owner of RRHI,
the corporate predecessor of RRHCM. RRHCM is the investment manager to Costa Brava, whose principal business is
to make investments in, buy, sell, hold, pledge and assign securities. Mr. Hamot is also the President of RRH, the
general partner of Costa Brava. Prior to 1997, Mr. Hamot was one of the partners of the Actionvest entities. Mr. Hamot
is presently a Director of CCA Industries, Inc., an AMEX listed manufacturer of health and beauty aids, and serves as a
member of the audit and compensation committees of CCA Industries, Inc. He is also a director of Orange 21, Inc. and
TechTeam Global, Inc., both NASDAQ companies.

Retired, United States Army Lieutenant General. Mr. Harris was elected to the Board in August 2006. He retired from
the United States Army in September of 1989 after more than 33 years of continuous active duty. At the time of his
retirement, Mr. Harris was the Director of Information Systems for Command, Control, Communications and
Computers in the Office of the Secretary of the Army, Washington, D.C. In that capacity, he served as the principal
advisor to the Secretary and Chief of Staff of the Army on all aspects of policy, planning, resourcing and acquisition of
communications, automation, information management and command and control systems in the United States Army.
Since his retirement, Mr. Harris has worked with many of America’s leading corporations as a consultant on matters
relating to the development of strategic and business plans, resource planning and budget formulation. Mr. Harris is
also a director of Hunter Defense Technologies, a privately held company focused on the development of
comprehensive solutions to provide shelter, heat, power generation and chem/bio protection for a wide variety of
military and homeland security applications.

Retired Vice President and General Manager of the Law Enforcement and Security strategic business unit of DynCorp
International, a company providing technology and professional services solutions to government and commercial
clients worldwide, where he served from January 2007 to July 2008. From July 2006 to December 2006, he served first
as President and Chief Operating Officer of Horne Engineering Services, LLC, an engineering services firm, and then
as Chief Operating Officer of Horne International, an affiliate of Home Engineering Services, LLC. From July 2005 to
July 2006, he was Vice President of Homeland Security and Defense for SAP Public Services, Inc. (a U.S. business unit
of the German software giant, SAP AG), where he led both SAP’s Homeland Defense practice and its business
development efforts supporting federal, state, and local government organizations. Immediately following his
November 2003 retirement from the Army, where he attained the rank of Lieutenant General and served as the Army’s
Deputy Chief of Staff for Logistics, Mr. Mahan joined The Home Depot, Inc., a home repair materials company,
serving as Senior Director of its Government Solutions Group. Mr. Mahan has been a member of the Telos’ Board of
Directors since August 2006. He currently serves on the National Board of Directors of The Society of International
Logistics, the National Board of Trustees for the Fisher House Foundation, and the National Defense Industrial
Association (Washington Chapter).

Executive Vice President, Special Projects for the Company. Mr. Marino joined the Company in 1988 as Senior Vice
President of Sales and Marketing. In 1990, his responsibilities were expanded to include Program Management in
addition to Sales and Marketing. In January 1994, Mr. Marino was appointed to President of Telos Systems Integration,
a division of the Company, and in January 1998, he was appointed to Chief Sales and Marketing Officer, a position he
held until June 2004 at which time he was appointed Executive Vice President for Special Projects. Prior to joining the
Company in February 1988, Mr. Marino held the position of Senior Vice President of Sales and Marketing with Centel
Federal Systems and M/A.com Information Systems, both of which are U.S. Government contractors. Mr. Marino was
elected to the Board of Directors of the Company in June 2004.

Senior Vice President, RRHCM since 2005. Mr. Siegel has been a director of the Company since June 18, 2007. Mr.
Siegel was nominated by Costa Brava, a holder of the Company’s Public Preferred Stock. Mr. Siegel is currently a
director of TechTeam Global Inc., a NASDAQ company, and serves as a member of that company’s audit committee.
Prior to joining RRHCM, from July 2003 to February 2004, Mr. Siegel was a member of DebtTraders Ltd. Prior to that,
from 2000 to 2002, he worked for Deutsche Bank Securities. In addition, in 2002, he was the founding member of
White Bay Capital LLC of which he remains a member. Mr. Siegel received a Bachelor’s Degree from American
University and a Masters Degree in Business Administration from the University of Maryland.

Retired United States Navy Vice Admiral. Mr. Tuttle was elected to the Board of Directors in August 2006. He retired
from the United States Navy in 1993 following a 39-year career that included assignments to numerous attack and
fighter squadrons as well as leadership of key information technology programs. Mr. Tuttle is widely regarded as an
information technology strategist, having created Navy’s 41 Joint Operations Tactical System. In 1989, he became
Director, Space and Electronic Warfare, an assignment he held until retirement. Since February 2002, he has been
President and CEO of J.O.T. Enterprises, an information systems and command, control, communications, intelligence,
surveillance and reconnaissance consulting company. Previous executive positions were, from June 2000 to February
2002, as President of REL-TEK Systems & Design (now Savantage Financial Services), an employee-owned software
development firm; from 1996 to 2000, as President of ManTech International’s largest subsidiary, ManTech Systems
Engineering; and, from 1993 to 1996, as Vice President for business development and chief staff officer with Oracle
Government.
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Audit Committee
Members: Bernard C. Bailey (Chairman), William M. Dvoranchik, Charles S. Mahan

The Audit Committee was established in accordance with Section 3(a)(58)(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Pursuant to Rule
4200(a)(15) of the NASDAQ Marketplace, the Audit Committee consists of independent directors Bailey (Chairman), Dvoranchik, and Mahan, and was
established to review, in consultation with the independent auditors, our financial statements, accounting and other policies, accounting systems and systems of
internal controls. Mr. Bailey and Mr. Dvoranchik serve as the audit committee financial experts as defined in the applicable SEC rules. The Board of Directors
has adopted an Audit Committee charter which is available on our website at www.telos.com.

Management Development and Compensation Committee (“Compensation Committee”)
Members: William M. Dvoranchik (Chairman), David Borland, Bruce R. Harris

The Management Development and Compensation Committee is comprised of three members of the Board of Directors, who meet the independence
requirements pursuant to Rule 4200(a)(15) of the NASDAQ Marketplace. The Compensation Committee is comprised of independent directors William M.
Dvoranchik (Chairman), David Borland, and Bruce R. Harris. None of these individuals is a former officer or employee of Telos or has served as an officer or
employee of Telos during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008. In addition, no member of the Compensation Committee was engaged in any related person
transactions as defined under the Exchange Act. The Board of Directors has adopted a Compensation Committee charter which is available on our website at
www.telos.com.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee (“Nominating Committee”)
Members: David Borland (Chairman), Jerry O. Tuttle, John B. Wood

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is comprised of three members of the Board of Directors, with a majority of independent directors.
The Nominating Committee consists of directors Borland (Chairman) and Tuttle, serving as independent directors pursuant to Rule 4200(a)(15) of the NASD; and
Mr. Wood who, pursuant to that rule, is not independent. The Board of Directors has adopted a Nominating Committee charter which is available on our website
at www.telos.com.

Meetings of the Board of Directors and Committees of the Board of Directors

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008, the Board of Directors held 12 meetings. Each director attended over 75 percent of the aggregate number
of meetings of the Board and the committees of the Board on which he served.

Executive Officers

Set forth below is biographical information concerning our executive officers, who are appointed by the Board of Directors and serve until their successors
are appointed and qualified.

Name Age Biographical Information

Michael P. Flaherty 64 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Administrative Officer. Mr. Flaherty joined the Company in
January 2001 as Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Administrative Officer. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Flaherty was “of counsel” with the law firm of O’Donnell & Shaeffer, LLC and principal shareholder
and CEO of First Continental Group, Inc. Mr. Flaherty has extensive experience in all aspects of civil litigation, serving
as lead trial counsel for major corporations. Mr. Flaherty has also served as General Counsel of the U.S. House of
Representatives Committee on Banking, Finance and Urban Affairs and Counsel to the Speaker of the House of
Representatives. Additionally, Mr. Flaherty is the past chairman of the Executive Committee of the Federal Bar
Association’s Banking Law Committee. Mr. Flaherty holds a Bachelor of Arts from Boston University and a Juris
Doctor from the Columbus School of Law of Catholic University of America.

Edward L. Williams 48 Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Williams joined the Company in 1993 as a Senior Vice
President responsible for finance, pricing, purchasing, and Defense Contract Audit Agency compliance. In 1994, his
responsibilities were expanded to include accounting and business development. In 1996, Mr. Williams was appointed
to manage the Company’s networking business unit. In 2000, his responsibilities were expanded to include management
of the Company’s operations. Mr. Williams was named Executive Vice President and COO in 2003 and Interim CFO in
October 2003. He stepped down as Interim CFO of the Company in January 2005. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Williams was the CFO for Centel Federal Systems and M/A.com Information Systems, both of which are U.S.
Government contractors. Mr. Williams has a Bachelor of Science in Finance from the University of Maryland.
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Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer. Ms. Nakazawa joined the Company in March 2004 as Vice President
and Controller. In January 2005, Ms. Nakazawa was promoted to Senior Vice President and appointed to serve as CFO.
Ms. Nakazawa has over 20 years experience in finance and accounting. Prior to joining the Company, she held various
positions, including CFO of Ubizen, Inc., a U.S. subsidiary of a publicly-held Belgian company, from 1999 to 2003;
Controller and Treasurer of National Security Analysts, Inc. from 1991 to 1997, and financial analyst for Federal
Systems Division of IBM, Inc. from 1983 to 1990. Ms. Nakazawa is a Certified Public Accountant and holds a Masters
of Science in Accounting from American University and a Bachelor of Arts in Chemistry from Goucher College.

Senior Vice President, Identity and Security Solutions. Mr. Brandewie joined the Company in November 2007 as
Senior Vice President of Identity and Security Solutions. He is responsible for directing the Company’s efforts in
assisting government organizations in effectively meeting increased security challenges with innovative services and
software solutions. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Brandewie was a Public Sector Solutions group vice president for
Activldentity Corp., a provider of identity assurance solutions for business and government worldwide, from July 2006
to November 2007, and a director of the Defense Manpower Data Center (“DMDC”) from July 2004 to July 2006. Mr.
Brandewie had joined DMDC in 1974 and in his 32 years at DMDC, was responsible for the management of a dozen
major operational programs. He was an architect of DoD’s Common Access Smart Card system, and was responsible
for the oversight of the largest and most comprehensive automated personnel database in the department. Mr.
Brandewie has a Bachelor of Arts in psychology from the University of Connecticut and a Master of Arts in
administrative sciences from Yale University. Mr. Brandewie has received numerous awards, including the Presidential
Rank Award of Distinguished Executive (2006) and the Secretary of Defense Medals for Meritorious and Exceptional
Civilian Service, respectively.

Senior Vice President, Chief Security Officer, Chief Technology Officer. Mr. Tracy joined the Company in October
1986 and held a number of management positions within the Company’s New Jersey operation. In February 1996, he
was promoted to Vice President of the Telos information security group and in this capacity established a formidable
information security consulting practice. In February 2000, Mr. Tracy was promoted to Senior Vice President for
operations and helped launch the Xacta business lines, the Company’s segment focusing on information security. Since
that time, Mr. Tracy has pioneered the development of innovative and highly scaleable enterprise risk management
technologies that have become industry-leading solutions within the federal government and the financial services
verticals. He is the principal inventor listed on four patents and seven patents pending for Xacta software. Mr. Tracy
assumed the role of Chief Security Officer for Telos and Xacta in 2004 and Chief Technology Officer in 2005 and
President of the Company’s subsidiary, Teloworks, Inc. in 2008.

Senior Vice President, General Manager, Xacta Division, since 2008. Mr. Whitehead joined Telos in 1999 as Vice
President of New Business Opportunities, focusing on emerging business areas including Information Security, Secure
Messaging and Data Integration. In 2000, he became Vice President, Program Management. Prior to Telos, Mr.
Whitehead spent 28 years in the Army, retiring as Chief of Staff of the Defense Information Systems Agency
(“DISA”). During his four years as Chief of Staff, he was responsible for coordinating the Agency’s 8000-person staff
and its $4.0 billion budget. He was instrumental in establishing the DoD’s Computer Emergency Response Team and
integrating it into the Global Network Operations Center. Mr. Whitehead has a Bachelor of Arts from Virginia
Polytechnic Institute and State University, and a Master of Public Administration from George Washington University.

Senior Vice President, General Manager, Secure Networks Division, since 2008. Mr. Malloy joined the Company in
1996, serving initially as a senior account executive before being promoted to director of DoD Sales, and later to Vice
President of DoD Sales. In January 2005, he was appointed Senior Vice President of sales. He currently leads the
Secure Networking Solutions organization in support of opportunities in DoD, federal agencies, and the intelligence
community, as well as channel relationships through the Telos Partner Program. He held previous sales positions with
QMS Federal and Printer Plus. Mr. Malloy is a 1988 graduate of Curry College.

Vice President, Business Development. Mr. Buona joined the Company in September 1994 and was promoted to Vice
President of Business Development in September 1995, cultivating new business in the areas of information
operations/assurance, enterprise management, enterprise integration, wireless networking, advanced messaging, and
traditional systems integration. During the year 2007, he oversaw the Company’s Managed Solutions division and in
2008, he returned to lead the Company’s business development. Prior to joining the Company, he served with Contel
Information Systems, Federal Information Technologies, and Cincinnati Bell Information Systems. Mr. Buona began
his career as an Air Force officer and concluded with the Air Force Space Command and NORAD where he was
responsible for managing software development and IA activities associated with the advanced early warning missile
defense systems. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Management from the United States Air Force Academy
and a Masters of Science in Systems Management from the University of Southern California.
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Ronald J. Dorman 46 Vice President, Information Assurance. Mr. Dorman joined the Company in July 2004 as program director for
messaging and information security. He was promoted to Vice President of Information Assurance in November 2005
and presently provides oversight and program management for IA solutions including Xacta IA Manager and IA
services engagements for DoD and federal customers. From August 1999 to July 2004, Mr. Dorman served with DISA,
becoming Deputy Director of the C4I Program Integration, then Principal Director for Interoperability, where he was
responsible for end-to-end interoperability between systems within the Global Information Grid. Mr. Dorman led the
DoD PKI Program’s design, implementation, and operations, and successfully partnered with other agencies and
services to field Common Access Cards globally at military bases and other sites. He served earlier with NATO, the
Department of the Navy, and with McLaughlin Research Corporation. Mr. Dorman has a Bachelor of Science in
Mechanical Engineering from Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University.

Mark Griffin 49 President, General Manager, Telos Identity Management Solutions LLC. Mr. Griffin joined the Company in 1984 as
program manager. He was promoted to Vice President for the Company’s Traditional Business Division in January
2004 and to Vice President, Identity Management, effective January 2007. He was appointed in April 2007 to head the
newly formed Telos Identity Management Solutions, LLC (doing business as Xacta Identity Management Solutions).
Mr. Griffin has over 20 years experience in government IT contracting, materials management and systems integration
projects in the electronics and communications fields. He has been involved in day-to-day operations of and has had
overall management responsibility for many of Telos” most critical programs for the Army, Navy, Federal Aviation
Administration, DMDC, General Services Administration and Immigration and Naturalization Services. Mr. Griffin
holds a Bachelor of Science in Engineering from Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University.

David S. Easley 38 Controller. Mr. Easley joined the Company in April 2005 as Director of Finance & Accounting. In October 2005, Mr.
Easley was promoted to Controller. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Easley held various positions, including
Controller for Applied Predictive Technologies, Inc., a software and consulting company from 2000 until joining the
Company; and Senior Accountant with Beers & Cutler PLLC in Washington, D.C. Mr. Easley is a Certified Public
Accountant and holds a Bachelor of Science in Accounting from the University of Kentucky.

Masters, Francis M. 64 Vice President, Secure Messaging Solutions. Mr. Masters joined the Company in 1999 as an automated message
handling systems engineer and program manager and was appointed Vice President, Secure Messaging Solutions, in
October 2005. Before joining Telos, Mr. Masters served in the U.S. Air Force for 20 years as an air intelligence officer,
targeting officer and signals intelligence officer. He also has extensive experience as a systems architect and project
engineer and served as Vice President of Communications Systems at California Microwave Inc., now the California
Microwave Systems division of Northrop Grumman, between February 1987 and July 1999. Mr. Masters earned a
Bachelor of Arts in government and economics from the University of North Texas in 1966 and attended the Law
School at the University of Houston beginning in 1967. Additionally, he is a graduate of the Air Force School of
Applied Crypotologic Sciences and the U.S. Air Force’s Squadron Officer School and Air Command and Staff
College. He is a member of the Armed Forces Communications and Electronics Association.

Each of our directors and executive officers is a United States citizen.

Legal Proceedings Involving Directors, Officers, Affiliates and/or Beneficial Owners

For a discussion of legal proceedings involving current and former directors, officers, and beneficial owners, see Note 14 — Contingencies to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1933 requires officers, directors and beneficial owners of more than 10% of any class of our equity
securities to file reports, including reports of changes in ownership of the Company’s registered equity securities, with the Securities and Exchange Commission
and to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) reports so filed.

Based on a review of the copies of reports received and on written representations from our reporting persons, we have determined that Mr. Marino did not
file a Form 4, until March 2009 reporting a December 19, 2008 divestiture of 65,000 shares of Class A Common Stock.

Corporate Governance

We have adopted a Code of Ethics applicable to all of our employees, including the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, and the Controller,
which is available on our website at www.telos.com. In the event that we amend our Code of Ethics or grant a waiver from our restrictions to a person covered by
the Code of Ethics, we intend to provide this information on our website.

There have been no changes in the procedures by which shareholders may recommend nominees to our board of directors.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation
Compensation Discussion and Analysis

For discussion concerning our Management Development and Compensation Committee, see Item 10 — Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate
Governance — Management Development and Compensation Committee.

Compensation Philosophy and Objectives

Our compensation program is designed to support the achievement of our business and financial goals. The program is periodically reviewed by the
Management Development and Compensation Committee (“Compensation Committee”) which is responsible for implementing and monitoring adherence to our
compensation philosophy.

The primary objectives of the compensation program are:
+ To attract and retain highly talented and results-oriented executives who are critical to our long-term success and growth;
»  To align the goals of our key employees, including its named executive officers, with the best interests of the Company;
*  Toreward performance; and
*  To achieve shareholder value.
The individual components of the compensation program (annual salary; short-term incentive compensation; long-term incentive compensation; and
perquisites) are designed to meet these objectives and together are intended to be competitive in the marketplace. The Compensation Committee has not

established fixed goals concerning the percentage composition of each element of compensation. The overall compensation package is, however, based on the
following considerations:

»  Compensation should consist of fixed and at-risk compensation, with the at-risk compensation encouraging improved annual and long-term
performance;

+  Compensation should be a mix of annual and long-term compensation, with the long-term compensation encouraging retention and attainment of
long-term performance goals;

»  Compensation should be a mix of cash and equity, with cash rewarding achievement of goals and equity encouraging retention and long-term
performance. Additionally, the Compensation Committee continues to believe in equity ownership by the management team to align the interests of
management with our long-term corporate performance.

The Compensation Committee uses Watson Wyatt, an independent compensation consulting firm, as its advisor for compensation-related issues.

Elements of Compensation and Benefits

Determination of management’s compensation is primarily within the discretion of the Compensation Committee which considers individual performance
and teamwork, and makes other qualitative judgments.

Base Salary

We provide our executive officers and employees with a base salary to compensate them for services rendered during the fiscal year. The relative levels of
base salary for executive officers are designed to reflect each executive officer’s professional expertise and scope of responsibility and accountability within the
Company, the Company’s financial performance and the named executive officer’s individual performance. Base salaries are generally established at levels
sufficient to attract and retain an effective management team when considered in connection with the performance-based components of our overall compensation
program.

Each year, the CEO of the Company proposes the compensation level for the executives reporting directly to him. The Compensation Committee reviews
these recommendations and, following discussion with the CEO, makes final recommendations with respect to the compensation for those executives. The CEO
has no role in the establishment of his compensation.

The Company’s 2008 budget, as approved by the Board of Directors, included a 4% increase for base salaries. The Compensation Committee approved a
$45,000 increase for Ms. Nakazawa, effective July 1, 2008, based on her performance and teamwork throughout the period of extraordinary legal, regulatory, and
audit engagement activities. Mr. Wood received no base salary increase for 2008. Base salary changes for 2008 were as follows:

(€)] [(€)] Percentage
Name 2008 Base Salary 2007 Base Salary Increase Increase
John B. Wood $ 450,000 $ 450,000 $ — —
Michele Nakazawa $ 280,000 $ 235,000 $45,000 19.1%
Michael P. Flaherty $ 327,600 $ 315,000 $12,600 4.0%
Edward L. Williams $ 338,000 $ 325,000 $13,000 4.0%
Brendan D. Malloy $ 207,979 $ 200,000 $ 7,979 4.0%

(1) Amount represents the base salary in effect at the end of year
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Short-Term Incentive Compensation

The short-term incentive compensation for executive officers and key employees is the performance-based cash bonus paid during and subsequent to fiscal
year end. Participants in the incentive bonus plan are senior managers, including the named executive officers. A portion of the bonus pool may be utilized to
recognize and reward other key contributors company-wide.

For 2008, the bonus plan had two distinct pools: the quarterly bonus pool to award division business line management and their respective employees based
on achievement of quarterly targets, and the management incentive plan pool which includes the executive officers and is paid on an annual basis after
performance for the fiscal year is known. Awards under the management incentive plan to the executive officers are based upon achievement of annual
performance metrics. The performance metric for 2008 was EBITDA, as adjusted for extraordinary expenses related to certain legal, regulatory, and accounting
activities. This singular target was selected because the Company was transitioning its reselling business to that of an outside supplier which would impact several
financial measurements. The Compensation Committee determined, as a result, that the adjusted EBITDA was the most critical financial indicator of the
Company’s performance. The Compensation Committee’s goal is to expand the number of quantitative and qualitative measurements in the future.

The adjusted EBITDA is evaluated based upon actual performance versus target. Actual achievement is measured and compared to the goal. As it relates to
the management incentive plan pool, if the goal is exceeded, 20% of the over-achievement is added to the pool and 80% retained by the Company. The
Compensation Committee established $14.0 million of adjusted EBITDA as the target for 2008. Pursuant to the short-term incentive compensation plan and in
accordance with actual 2008 over-achievement of the adjusted EBITDA target, the total earned 2008 bonus for both pools was funded at $4.4 million.

No performance-based bonuses were paid to the named executive officers for 2006. In 2007, the targets established for the short-term incentive
compensation plan were greatly exceeded and resulted in the following bonuses paid and/or accrued for 2007: Mr. Wood $600,000; Mr. Williams $500,000;
Mr. Flaherty $300,000; Ms. Nakazawa $270,000; and Mr. Malloy $200,000. Some portion of the accrued bonus was deferred and paid after year-end 2008. These
amounts were as follows: Mr. Wood $150,000; Mr. Williams $100,000; Mr. Flaherty $50,000; and Ms. Nakazawa $50,000. In 2008, the following bonuses were
paid and/or accrued: Mr. Wood $582,000; Mr. Williams $330,000; Mr. Flaherty $188,000; Ms. Nakazawa $240,000; and Mr. Malloy $180,000.

Long-Term Incentive Compensation

In 2007, the Compensation Committee obtained the advice of Watson Wyatt, concerning the replacement of our stock option plans and the stock option
plans of two of our subsidiaries, Xacta Corporation and Telos Delaware, Inc., with the goal of providing a better plan for long-term compensation. Watson Wyatt
recommended establishing an omnibus long-term incentive plan, allowing, among other things, for the issuance of stock options and restricted stock. As a
consequence, at the recommendation of the Compensation Committee, on February 5, 2008 the Board adopted the Telos Corporation 2008 Omnibus Long-Term
Incentive Plan (“2008 Plan”) which was subsequently approved by our Class A and Class B Common Stockholders at a special meeting of stockholders held on
February 21, 2008.

The Compensation Committee determined that the interests of the Company, its employees, as well as its stockholders would be served best if the holders
of stock options were given the choice to exchange their stock options for restricted stock. Such approach would provide the employees with the opportunity to
choose between the more certain benefit associated with restricted stock and the potentially more valuable, though less certain, benefit they might realize by
retaining their stock options, and better align the employees’ interests with the Company’s goals.

On March 10, 2008, the Board, at the recommendation of the Compensation Committee, approved the grant of up to 15,000,000 shares of restricted stock
pursuant to the 2008 Omnibus Long-Term Incentive Plan, in exchange for the stock options outstanding under the Telos Corporation, Xacta Corporation and
Telos Delaware, Inc. stock option plans. In June 2008, the Company exchanged stock options for restricted stock and granted the following additional shares of
restricted stock to its named executive officers: Mr. Wood: 1,172,500 shares from exchanged options and 2,589,965 shares granted; Ms. Nakazawa: 10,000 shares
from exchanged options and 690,250 shares granted; Mr. Flaherty: 635,000 shares from exchanged options and 230,000 shares granted; Mr. Williams: 480,300
shares from exchanged options and 594,700 shares granted; Mr. Malloy: 91,600 shares from exchanged options and 408,400 shares granted.
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Perquisites

We provide a limited number of perquisites to our executive officers, designed to allow the executives to work more efficiently and to help us remain
competitive by retaining talented and dedicated executives. The Compensation Committee believes that the perquisites are consistent with our overall
compensation program. See “All Other Compensation” of the Summary Compensation Table below for details about perquisites provided to the named executive
officers.

*  Health club allowance in the amount of $1,200 per year

+  Executive long-term care insurance ranging, depending on age, between $10,779 and $13,717 per year

«  Payment of golf club membership, ranging between $4,445 and $25,575 per year

«  Home office expense reimbursement of up to $3,000 per year

+  Option to make charitable contributions ranging from $5,000 to $20,000 per year

*  Car allowance in the amount of $12,000 per year ; effective January 1, 2009, such car allowance is included in the executive officers’ base salary

*  Executive life insurance premiums in the following amounts per year: Mr. Wood $18,650; Mr. Flaherty $7,475; and Mr. Williams $945

Executive Officer Employment Agreements

We are a party to employment agreements with certain of our named executive officers, namely Mr. John B. Wood, President, CEO, Chairman and
Director; Mr. Michael P. Flaherty, Executive Vice President, General Counsel and CAO; Mr. Robert J. Marino, Executive Vice President — Special Projects and
Director; Mr. Edward J. Williams, Executive Vice President and COO; and Ms. Michele Nakazawa, Senior Vice President and CFO. The agreements of Messrs.
Wood, Flaherty and Williams, and Ms. Nakazawa are for a one-year term, and thereafter automatically renew for consecutive one-year periods unless terminated
in accordance with the provisions thereof. The agreements provide for payment of a base salary, discretionary bonus (based upon our annual short-term incentive
compensation and performance achievements of the Company and the executive), eligibility for stock option grants under our stock option plans, vacation days,
and participation in all plans that we maintain, including, without limitation, pension, profit-sharing or other retirement plans, life, accident, disability, medical,
hospital or similar group insurance programs and any other benefit plan, subject to the normal terms and conditions of such plans.

According to the employment agreements with Messrs. Wood, Flaherty and Williams, and Ms. Nakazawa, in case of termination of the respective
executive without cause, or due to disability, or death, the employment agreements provide for (i) a lump-sum payment equivalent to the remaining unpaid
portion of the executive’s salary for the period ending on the date of termination, (ii) a lump-sum payment for all accrued and unused vacation days, (iii) any
other payments or benefits to be provided to the executive by us pursuant to any employee benefit plans or arrangements adopted by us (to the extent such
benefits are earned and vested or are required by law to be offered), (iv) in the case of Mr. Wood, a payment equivalent to 24 months of base salary then in effect,
and for Mr. Flaherty, Mr. Williams, and Ms. Nakazawa a payment equivalent to 18 months base salary then in effect, payable in a lump sum or in accordance with
our payroll cycle. In addition, each executive is also entitled to continued coverage under the medical, dental, short and long-term disability, and life insurance
and other similar plans, as if the executive was still employed by the Company for 18 months for Messrs. Flaherty and Williams, and 24 months for Mr. Wood
following termination. If, pursuant to the terms and conditions of such benefit programs, such continued coverage cannot be provided, each executive is entitled
to payment of the cash equivalent of such benefits based on the terms and conditions of the programs then in place. Each executive is also entitled to immediate
vesting of the unvested portion of any outstanding stock options.

Pursuant to the agreements with Messrs. Wood, Flaherty and Williams, and Ms. Nakazawa, in the case of termination for cause, or if the executive
terminates the agreement for any reason, such executive would only be entitled to receive (i) a lump-sum payment equivalent to the remaining unpaid portion of
the executive’s salary for the period ending on the date of termination, (ii) a lump-sum payment for all accrued and unused vacation days, and (iii) any other
payments or benefits to be provided by us to the executive pursuant to any employee benefit plans or arrangements adopted by the Company (to the extent such
benefits are earned and vested or are required by law to be offered) through the date of termination.

Pursuant to the agreements with Messrs. Wood, Flaherty and Williams, and Ms. Nakazawa, termination by the Company “without cause” means
involuntary termination at our discretion which is not based on cause, death, or disability. “Cause” is defined as gross negligence or willful and continued failure
by the executive to substantially perform his duties as an employee of ours (other than any such failure resulting from incapacity due to physical or mental
illness); executive’s dishonesty, fraudulent misrepresentation, willful misconduct, malfeasance, violation of fiduciary duty relating to our business, or conviction
of a felony. The executive is deemed “disabled” if he or she is eligible for disability benefits under our long-term disability plan, or has a physical or mental
disability which renders the executive incapable, after reasonable accommodation, of performing substantially all of executive’s duties under the agreement for a
period of 180 consecutive or non-consecutive days in any 12-month period.
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2008 Changes to Executive Officer Employment Contracts

Effective December 11, 2008, we entered into amendments to the employment agreements (“Amendment”) with Messrs. Wood, Williams and Flaherty, and
Ms. Nakazawa to ensure compliance with the requirements of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (“Section 409A”). Generally, the
provisions in each Amendment regarding the performance of services and compensation remain the same, but the Amendments clarify the language to alleviate
any confusion in the existing agreement. The Amendment states that, in the case of termination without cause, death or disability, the unvested portion of any
outstanding stock option and any outstanding share of restricted stock would immediately vest notwithstanding any contrary terms in any restricted stock
agreement applicable to such executive. Also, any bonus which has been earned by the executive but which remains unpaid as of the date of the executive’s
termination of employment shall be paid to the executive at such time and in such manner as if the executive had continued to be employed by us. In addition, in
the event of termination following a change in control, the executive would receive compensation equivalent to the amount payable in the case of a termination
without cause.

Effective December 11, 2008, the Company is a party to a new agreement with Mr. Robert Marino. The new agreement contains terms that are consistent
with the terms and conditions of the other executives. In case of termination without cause, disability, death, or following a termination after change in control for
any reason, the new employment agreement provides for (i) a lump-sum payment equivalent to the remaining unpaid portion of Mr. Marino’s salary for the period
ending on the date of termination, (ii) any bonus which has been earned by Mr. Marino but which remains unpaid as of the date of his employment termination,
paid at such time and in such manner as if he had continued to be employed by the Company, (iii) a lump-sum payment for all accrued and unused vacation days,
(iv) any other payments or benefits to be provided to Mr. Marino by the Company pursuant to any employee benefit plans or arrangements adopted by the
Company (to the extent such benefits are earned and vested or are required by law to be offered) for 3 months following termination, and (v) a payment
equivalent to 3 months of base salary then in effect, payable in a lump sum or in accordance with the Company’s payroll cycle and subject to the requirements of
Section 409A. Accordingly, Mr. Marino would receive payment equivalent to 3 months of annual base salary of $236,178. The definition of “cause” and
“disabled” are the same as the agreements with the other executives. In the case of termination for cause or if Mr. Marino terminates the agreement for any
reason, he would only be entitled to receive (i) a lump-sum payment equivalent to the remaining unpaid portion of his salary for the period ending on the date of
termination, (ii) any bonus which has been earned by Mr. Marino but which remains unpaid as of the date of his employment termination, paid at such time and in
such manner as if he had continued to be employed by the Company, (iii) a lump-sum payment for all accrued and unused vacation days, and (iv) any other
payments or benefits to be provided to Mr. Marino by the Company pursuant to any employee benefit plans or arrangements adopted by the Company (to the
extent such benefits are earned and vested or are required by law to be offered) through the date of termination.

Other Employment Benefits

We maintain employee benefit and perquisite programs for our executive officers and other employees. We have no current plans to provide additional
benefits for our executive officers. We believe that the benefits provided are competitive and consistent with industry practice.

Welfare Benefits. We have broad-based health, dental, vision, life and disability benefit programs that are available to all employees on an equal basis.

401(k) Savings Plan (“Telos Shared Savings Plan”). We sponsor a defined contribution employee savings plan which enables employees to contribute a certain
percentage of their base salary to their savings plan accounts on a pre-tax basis, subject to federal tax limitations under the Internal Revenue Code. Presently, we
match one half of employee contributions to the Telos Shared Savings Plan up to a maximum of 3% of such employee’s yearly base salary. Participant
contributions vest immediately; Company contributions vest at the rate of 20% for each year, with full vesting to occur after completion of five years of service.
For additional information concerning the Telos Shared Savings Plan, see also Note 10—Stockholders’ Equity, Option Plan, and Employee Benefit Plan.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

None of the individuals that served as a member of the Compensation Committee during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008 were at any time officers
or employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. No executive officer of the Company serves as a member of a board of directors or compensation
committee of any entity that has one or more of the entity’s executive officers serving as a member of the Company’s Board of Directors or Compensation
Committee.

Management Development and Compensation Committee Report

The Management Development and Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis required by
Item 402(b) of Regulation S-K with management and, based on such review and discussions, the Compensation Committee recommended to the Board that the
Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Submitted by the Management Development and Compensation Committee of the Board,

William M. Dvoranchik
David Borland
Bruce R. Harris
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The following table summarizes the compensation earned for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 by the chief executive officer, chief

financial officer, and the three other most highly-compensated executive officers.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Restricted Non-Equity
Stock Option Incentive Plan
Awards Awards Compensation
Name and Principal Position Year Salary [€)) 2) 3)
John B. Wood 2008 $450,000 $37,625 $ — $ 582,000
(Chairman, President and CEO) 2007 429,167 — — 600,000
2006 350,002 — 21,595 —
Michele Nakazawa 2008 255,625 7,003 — 240,000
(Senior V.P. and CFO) 2007 231,875 — — 270,000
2006 160,000 — 269 —
Michael P. Flaherty 2008 324,975 8,650 — 188,000
(Exec. V.P,, General Counsel and CAO) 2007 314,376 — — 300,000
2006 300,019 — 9,917 —
Edward L. Williams 2008 335,292 10,750 — 330,000
(Exec. V.P. and COO) 2007 322,084 — — 501,500
2006 255,008 — 9,917 —
Brendan D. Malloy 2008 206,317 5,000 — 180,000
(Senior V.P.- Secure Networks) 2007 198,958 — — 200,000

“)
®)

©
(7

®)
®

(10)
(1)

(12)
(13)

All Other
Compensation
(14) Total
$ 313,791 $1,383,416
57,742 1,086,909
45,092 416,689
36,679 539,307
36,602 538,477
32,635 192,904
101,929 623,554
66,650 681,026
52,695 362,631
93,610 769,652
58,092 881,676
45,581 310,506
34,015 425,332
35,623 434,581

(1) Represents the dollar amount of reported taxable income for the shares issued under the 2008 Plan based on the issuance price of $0.01 per share for all
shares issued. See assumptions made in the valuation of these awards for financial statement reporting purposes in accordance with FAS 123(R) in Note 1 —

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

(2) Represents the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes with respect to fiscal year 2006 computed in accordance with SFAS

No. 123(R), primarily related to Telos and Xacta stock options granted in 2004.

(3) Amounts reported in this category relate to payments pursuant to the short-term incentive compensation plan

(4) Amount earned in 2008; $582,000 to be paid in 2009

(5) Amount earned in 2007; $450,000 paid in 2008; $150,000 paid in 2009

(6) Amount earned in 2008; $25,000 paid in 2008; $215,000 to be paid in 2009

(7)  Amount earned in 2007; $25,000 paid in 2007; $195,000 paid in 2008; $50,000 paid in 2009
(8) Amount earned in 2008, $25,000 paid in 2008; $163,000 to be paid in 2009

(9) Amount earned in 2007; $25,000 paid in 2007; $225,000 paid in 2008; $50,000 paid in 2009
(10) Amount earned in 2008; $330,000 to be paid in 2009

(11) Amount earned in 2007; $101,500 paid in 2007 which included $1,500 anniversary bonus; $300,000 paid in 2008; $100,000 paid in 2009

(12) Amount earned in 2008; $50,000 paid in 2008; $130,000 to be paid in 2009
(13) Amount earned in 2007; $60,000 paid in 2007; $140,000 paid in 2008
(14) Amounts presented consist of the following:
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Name

John B. Wood

Michele Nakazawa

Michael P. Flaherty

Edward L. Williams

Brendan D. Malloy

Potential Payments Upon Termination

ear
2008
2007
2006

2008
2007
2006

2008
2007
2006

2008
2007
2006

2008
2007

Life
Insurance
and
Long- Savings
Health Term Plan Long- Vacation Total All
Car Club Disability =~ Company Golf Club Term Cash- Other
Allowance  Allowance Premiums Match Membership Care Out Compensation
$12,000 $ 1,200 $19,058 $ 6,900 $ 12,915 $10,779 $250,939 $ 313,791
12,000 1,200 1,708 6,750 25,305 10,779 — 57,742
12,000 1,200 1,708 6,600 12,805 10,779 — 45,092
12,000 1,200 399 6,900 4,445 11,735 — 36,679
12,000 1,200 272 6,750 4,645 11,735 — 36,602
12,000 1,200 272 3,031 4,397 11,735 — 32,635
12,000 1,200 7,883 6,900 12,792 13,717 47,438 101,929
12,000 1,200 7,883 6,750 25,100 13,717 — 66,650
12,000 1,200 7,883 5,090 12,805 13,717 — 52,695
12,000 1,200 1,353 6,900 6,657 11,214 54,287 93,610
12,000 1,200 1,353 6,750 25,575 11,214 — 58,092
12,000 1,200 1,353 6,600 13,214 11,214 — 45,581
12,000 1,200 340 6,900 — 10,456 3,119 34,015
12,000 1,200 297 6,750 4,920 10,456 — 35,623

As disclosed above, the Company has entered into employment agreements with each of the named executive officers which provide for potential
payments upon termination. The table below summarizes the potential payouts to Messrs. Wood, Flaherty, Williams, Malloy and Ms. Nakazawa, for the
termination events described above assuming such termination occurred on December 31, 2008, the last business day of the Company’s last completed fiscal year.

John B. Wood

Termination without cause
Termination due to disability
Termination due to death
Termination for cause
Voluntary termination

Michele Nakazawa

Termination without cause
Termination due to disability
Termination due to death
Termination for cause
Voluntary termination

Cash Number of
2007 and Accrued and Equivalent Shares of
2008 Unused Continuation of Registrant’s
Salary Bonus Vacation as of Medical/ Company Vested
Continuation Earned of Welfare Match to Stock on
for 24 but December 31, Benefits for 401(k) for December 31,
Months Unpaid 2008 24 Months 24 Months Total 2008
$ 900,000 $732,000 $ 51,923 $ 122,849 $ 13,800 $ 1,820,572 3,762,465a
900,000 732,000 51,923 122,849 13,800 1,820,572 3,762,465a
900,000 732,000 51,923 122,849 13,800 1,820,572 3,762,465a
— 732,000 51,923 — — 783,923 940,616
— 732,000 51,923 — — 783,923 940,616b
Cash Number of
2007 and Accrued and Equivalent Shares of
2008 Unused Continuation of Registrant’s
Salary Bonus Vacation as of Medical/ Company Vested
Continuation Earned of Welfare Match to Stock on
for 18 but December 31, Benefits for 401(k) for December 31,
Months Unpaid 2008 18 Months 18 Months Total 2008
$ 420,000 $265,000 $ 26,923 $ 61,411 $ 10,350 $783,684 700,250a
420,000 265,000 26,923 61,411 10,350 783,684 700,250a
420,000 265,000 26,923 61,411 10,350 783,684 700,250a
— 265,000 26,923 — — 291,923 175,063b
— 265,000 26,923 — — 291,923 175,063
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Cash Number of
2007 and Accrued and Equivalent Shares of
2008 Unused Continuation of Registrant’s
Salary Bonus Vacation as of Medical/ Company Vested
Continuation Earned of Welfare Match to Stock on
for 18 but December 31, Benefits for 401(k) for December 31,
Michael P. Flaherty Months Unpaid 2008 18 Months 18 Months Total 2008
Termination without cause $ 491,400 $213,000 $ 31,500 $ 72,618 $ 10,350 $818,868 865,000a
Termination due to disability 491,400 213,000 31,500 72,618 10,350 818,868 865,000a
Termination due to death 491,400 213,000 31,500 72,618 10,350 818,868 865,000a
Termination for cause — 213,000 31,500 — — 244,500 216,250
Voluntary termination — 213,000 31,500 — — 244,500 216,250b
Cash Number of
2007 and Accrued and Equivalent Shares of
2008 Unused Continuation of Registrant’s
Salary Bonus Vacation as of Medical/ Company Vested
Continuation Earned of Welfare Match to Stock on
for 18 but December 31, Benefits for 401(k) for December 31,
Edward L. Williams Months Unpaid 2008 18 Months 18 Months Total 2008
Termination without cause $ 507,000 $430,000 $ 32,500 $ 65,166 $ 10,350 $ 1,045,016 1,075,000a
Termination due to disability 507,000 430,000 32,500 65,166 10,350 1,045,016 1,075,000a
Termination due to death 507,000 430,000 32,500 65,166 10,350 1,045,016 1,075,000a
Termination for cause — 430,000 32,500 — — 462,500 268,750
Voluntary termination — 430,000 32,500 — — 462,500 268,750
Cash Number of
Accrued and Equivalent Shares of
2008 Unused Continuation of Registrant’s
Bonus Vacation as of Medical/ Company Vested
Earned of Welfare Match to Stock on
Salary but December 31, Benefits for 401(k) for December 31,
Brendan D. Malloy Continuation Unpaid 2008 18 Months 18 Months Total 2008
Termination without cause $ — $130,000 $ 15,055 $ — $ — $145,055 125,000
Termination due to disability — 130,000 15,055 — — 145,055 125,0000
Termination due to death — 130,000 15,055 — — 145,055 125,0000
Termination for cause — 130,000 15,055 — — 145,055 125,000
Voluntary termination — 130,000 15,055 — — 145,055 125,000
a represents immediate vesting of restricted stock upon termination

b represents 25% of total restricted stock held as of December 31, 2008

Non-Competition, Confidentiality, Non-Solicitation, and Release Provisions

Pursuant to their respective employment agreements, Messrs. Flaherty and Williams, and Ms. Nakazawa are subject to non-competition, confidentiality,
and non-solicitation provisions which are applicable to each executive during their respective employment terms and for a period of 18 months subsequent to the
date of any termination. Similarly, Mr. Wood is subject to non-competition, confidentiality, and non-solicitation provisions during his employment term and for a

period of 24 months subsequent to the date of any termination.
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Compensation of Directors

Effective January 1, 2008, the Board of Directors adopted a new structure for the annual compensation of the Board members which provides for the
following annual compensation: $10,000 basic annual retainer plus the following annual fees for committee chairmen and members: $40,000 for the Audit
Committee chairman; $25,000 for the Strategy Committee chairman; $20,000 for the respective chairman of the other committees; $20,000 for the members of
the Audit Committee; $15,000 for the respective members of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, the Strategy Committee, and the
Government Security Committee; and $10,000 for the respective members of the Management Development and Compensation Committee, the Proxy Board (we
operate under a Proxy Agreement which governs the relationship between the Company and the foreign shareholders that, directly and indirectly, own a majority
stake in the Company. Pursuant to such Proxy Agreement, a Proxy Board has been established which consists of independent Board members Harris, Mahan, and
Tuttle), and the Special Litigation Committee.

The following table summarizes the director compensation paid during the year ended December 31, 2008:

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION FOR 2008

Restricted
Stock
Name Fees Paid Shares (3)
Bernard Bailey $ 75,000 (2) 80,000
David Borland 55,000 80,000
William Dvoranchik 65,000 (2) 80,000
Seth W. Hamot — —
Bruce Harris 60,000 80,000
Charles Mahan 55,000 80,000
Robert J. Marino — 1) —
Andrew R. Siegel — —
Jerry Tuttle 60,000 80,000
John B. Wood — 1) —
$370,000 480,000

(1) Employee directors received no compensation for service as directors
(2) Additionally, $5,000 was paid to Messrs. Bailey and Dvoranchik for representation on the board of TIMS LLC
(3) Restricted shares granted in September 2008 under the 2008 Plan

Additionally, in September 2008, we granted 80,000 shares of restricted stock each to the following Board members: Mr. Bailey, Mr. Borland,
Mr. Dvoranchik, Mr. Harris, Mr. Mahan, and Mr. Tuttle.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Title of Class
Class A Common Stock

Class A Common Stock

Class A Common Stock

Class B Common Stock

Class B Common Stock

Class B Common Stock

Class B Common Stock

Class A Common Stock
Class A Common Stock
Class A Common Stock
Class A Common Stock
Class A Common Stock
Class A Common Stock
Class A Common Stock
Class A Common Stock
Class A Common Stock
Class A Common Stock
Class A Common Stock
Class A Common Stock
Class A Common Stock
Class A Common Stock
Class A Common Stock

Series A-1 Redeemable Preferred Stock

Series A-1 Redeemable Preferred Stock

Amount and Nature of Percent
Name and Address of Beneficial Ownership as of
Beneficial Owner of March 31, 2009 Class

Toxford Corporation 15,328,480 shares 45.7%
Place de Saint Gervais 1
1211 Geneva
Switzerland
John R.C. Porter 473.322 shares 1.4%
Chalet Petit Monde
1936 Verbier
Switzerland
Telos Corporation Shared 3,658,536 shares 10.9%
Savings Plan
19886 Ashburn Road
Ashburn, VA 20147
Graphite Enterprise Trust PLC 1,681,960 shares (A) 41.7%
Berkley Square House, 4 ™ Floor
London W1J 6BQ England
Graphite Enterprise Trust LP 420,490 shares (A) 10.4%
Berkley Square House, 4 ™ Floor
London W1J 6BQ England
North Atlantic Smaller Companies Investment Trust PLC 1,186,720 shares 29.4%
c/o North Atlantic Value LLP
Ground Floor, Ryder Court
14 Ryder Street
London SW1Y 6QB England
Cudd & Company 669,888 shares 16.6%
c/o INVESCO Asset Management Limited
30 Finsbury Square
London EC2A 1AG England
John B. Wood 3,811,113 shares (B) 11.4%
Michael P. Flaherty 871,824 shares (B) 2.6%
Edward L. Williams 1,177,521 shares (B) 3.5%
Michele Nakazawa 700,948 shares (B) 2.1%
Brendan D. Malloy 505,866 shares (B) 1.5%
Robert J. Marino 1,003,644 shares (B) 3.0%
Bernard C. Bailey 80,000 shares (C) 0.2%
David Borland 100,000 shares (C)(D) 0.3%
William M. Dvoranchik 80,000 shares (C) 0.2%
Seth W. Hamot — —
Bruce R. Harris 80,000 shares (C) 0.2%
Charles S. Mahan, Jr. 80,000 shares (C) 0.2%
Andrew R. Siegel — —
Jerry O. Tuttle 80,000 shares (C) 0.2%
All officers and directors 10,196,571 shares (E) 30.4%
As a group (22 persons)
North Atlantic Smaller Companies Investment Trust PLC 99 shares 7.9%
c/o North Atlantic Value LLP
Ground Floor, Ryder Court
14 Ryder Street
London SW1Y 6QB England
Graphite Enterprise Trust PLC 140 shares 11.2%

Berkley Square House, 4 " Floor
London W1J 6BQ England
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Series A-1 Redeemable Preferred Stock

Series A-2 Redeemable Preferred Stock

Series A-2 Redeemable Preferred Stock

Series A-2 Redeemable Preferred Stock

12% Cumulative Exchangeable
Redeemable Preferred Stock

12% Cumulative Exchangeable
Redeemable Preferred Stock

12% Cumulative Exchangeable
Redeemable Preferred Stock

12% Cumulative Exchangeable
Redeemable Preferred Stock

12% Cumulative Exchangeable
Redeemable Preferred Stock

12% Cumulative Exchangeable
Redeemable Preferred Stock

Toxford Corporation
Place de Saint Gervais 1
1211 Geneva
Switzerland

North Atlantic Smaller Companies Investment Trust PLC
c/o North Atlantic Value LLP

Ground Floor, Ryder Court

14 Ryder Street

London SW1Y 6QB England

Graphite Enterprise Trust PLC
Berkley Square House, 4 ™ Floor
London W1J 6BQ England

Toxford Corporation
Place de Saint Gervais 1
1211 Geneva,
Switzerland

Value Partners, Ltd.

Ewing & Partners

Timothy G. Ewing

4514 Cole Avenue, Suite 808
Dallas, TX 75205

Wynnefield Partners Small Cap Value, L.P.
Wynnefield Partners Small Cap Value, L.P. I
Channel Partnership II, L.P.

Wynnefield Small Cap Value Offshore Fund, Ltd.
Wynnefield Capital Management, LLC
Wynnefield Capital, Inc.

Nelson Obus

Joshua Landes

450 Seventh Avenue, Suite 509

New York, NY 10123

Athena Capital Management, Inc.
Minerva Group, LP

David P. Cohen

50 Monument Road, Suite 201
Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004

Victor Morgenstern

Faye Morgenstern

Judd Morgenstern

Morningstar Trust - Faye Morgenstern Trustee
106 Vine Avenue

Highland Park, IL 60035

Costa Brava Partnership III, LP
Roark, Rearden & Hamot, LI.C

Seth W. Hamot

White Bay Capital Management, LLC
Andrew R. Siegel

237 Park Avenue, Suite 800

New York, NY 10017

Grand Slam Asset Management, LLC
Grand Slam Capital Master Fund, Ltd.
2200 Fletcher Avenue

Fort Lee, NJ 07024
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12% Cumulative Exchangeable Brown Advisory Holdings Incorporated 323,931 (L) 10.2%
Redeemable Preferred Stock Brown Advisory Securities, LLC
Brown Investment Advisory & Trust Company
901 South Bond Street, Suite 400
Baltimore, MD 21231

(A) Graphite Enterprise Trust PLC and Graphite Enterprise Trust LP did not provide us with the addresses of the respective beneficial owners.

(B) Messrs. Wood, Marino and Williams directly hold 8,392; 2,052 and 70,976 shares of our Class A Common Stock, respectively. In addition, the common
stock holdings of Messrs. Wood, Flaherty, Williams, Malloy, Marino and Ms. Nakazawa include 40,256; 6,824; 31,545; 5,866; 26,592 and 698 shares of
our Class A Common Stock, respectively, held for their beneficial interest by the Telos Corporation Savings Plan. Additionally, in June 2008, as a result of
the 2008 Omnibus Long-Term Incentive Plan, Messrs. Wood, Flaherty, Williams, Malloy, Marino and Ms. Nakazawa hold 3,762,465; 865,000; 1,075,000;
500,000; 975,000 and 700,250 shares of our restricted Class A Common Stock, respectively.

(C) These holdings are comprised of restricted Class A Common Stock granted in September 2008 under the 2008 Omnibus Long-Term Incentive Plan.

(D) Mr. Borland holds options to acquire 20,000 shares of our Class A Common Stock, which are exercisable within 60 days of March 1, 2009.

(E) The common stock holdings of our executive officers and directors as a group include 100,220 shares of our Class A Common Stock held directly; 175,286
shares of our Class A Common Stock held for their beneficial interest by the Telos Corporation Savings Plan, and 9,901,065 shares of restricted Class A
Common Stock issued under the 2008 Omnibus Long-Term Incentive Plan.

(F)  Value Partners Ltd. (“VP”), Ewing & Partners (“E&P”), and Timothy G. Ewing filed a joint Schedule 13D indicating that they may act as a “group” within
the meaning of Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act. Each of the reporting persons disclosed that it might be deemed to beneficially own the
aggregate of 501,317 shares of the Public Preferred Stock held of record by the reporting persons collectively. According to the Schedule 13D, VP has the
sole power to vote or direct the vote and the sole power to dispose and to direct the disposition of, and E&P and Timothy G. Ewing have the shared power
to vote or direct the vote and the shared power to dispose and to direct the disposition of 501,317 shares.

(G) Wynnefield Partners Small Cap Value, L.P., (“WPSCV”), Wynnefield Partners Small Cap Value L.P. I (“WPSCVT”), Channel Partnership II, L.P. (“CP”),
Wynnefield Small Cap Value Offshore Fund, Ltd. (“WSCVOF”), Wynnefield Capital Management, LLC (“WCM”), Wynnefield Capital, Inc. (“WCI”),
Mr. Nelson Obus and Mr. Joshua H. Landes filed a joint Schedule 13D indicating that they may be deemed to act as a “group” within the meaning of
Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act and that such group might be deemed to beneficially own the aggregate of 373,500 shares of the Public
Preferred Stock held of record by the reporting persons collectively. According to the Schedule 13D, WCM is the sole general partner of WPSCV and
WPSCVI and has the sole power to direct the voting and disposition of the shares beneficially owned by WPSCV and WPSCVI. Messrs. Obus and Landes
are the co-managing members of WCM and each shares with the other the power to direct the voting and disposition of the shares that WCM may be
deemed to beneficially own. WCI is the sole investment manager of WSCVOF and has the sole power to direct the voting and disposition of the shares that
WSCVOF beneficially owns. Messrs. Obus and Landes are executive officers of WCI and each shares with the other the power to direct the voting and
disposition of the shares that WCI may be deemed to beneficially own. Mr. Obus is the general partner of CP and has the sole power to direct the voting
and disposition of the shares beneficially owned by CP. WPSCV has the sole power to vote or direct the vote and the sole power to dispose or direct the
disposition of 131,800 shares. WSCVOF has the sole power to vote or direct the vote and the sole power to dispose or direct the disposition of 85,400
shares. WPSCVT has the sole power to vote or direct the vote and the sole power to dispose or direct the disposition of 142,800 shares. CP has the sole
power to vote or direct the vote and the sole power to dispose or direct the disposition of 13,500 shares. Mr. Obus has the sole power to vote or direct the
vote and the sole power to dispose or direct the disposition of 13,500 shares, and shared power to vote or direct the vote and the sole power to dispose or
direct the disposition of 360,000 shares. Mr. Landes has shared power to vote or direct the vote and the shared power to dispose or direct the disposition of
360,000 shares. WCM has the sole power to vote or direct the vote and the sole power to dispose or direct the disposition of 274,600 shares. WCI has the
sole power to vote or direct the vote and the sole power to dispose or direct the disposition of 85,400 shares.

(H) Athena Capital Management, Inc. (“ACM”), Minerva Group, LP (“MG”), and Mr. David Cohen filed a joint Schedule 13G/A indicating that ACM has the
shared power to vote or to direct the vote and the shared power to dispose or to direct the disposition of 110,146 shares; MG and Mr. Cohen have the sole
power to vote or to direct the vote and the sole power to dispose or to direct the disposition of 44,410 and 7,433 shares, respectively.

(I)  Victor Morgenstern (“VM”), Faye Morgenstern (“FM”), Judd Morgenstern (“JM”), Jennifer Morgenstern Irrevocable Trust (“Jennifer Trust”), Robyn
Morgenstern Irrevocable Trust (“Robyn Trust”), and Judd Morgenstern Irrevocable Trust (“Judd Trust”), filed a joint Schedule 13D/A indicating that VM
has the sole power to vote and dispose of 50,000 shares, and shared power to dispose of 132,000 shares; FM has the sole power to vote or direct the vote of
17,000 shares and shared power to dispose or direct the disposition of 92,000 shares; JM has the sole power to vote or direct the vote of 40,000 shares and
shared power to dispose or direct the disposition of 115,000 shares; Jennifer Trust has the sole power to vote or direct the vote of 25,000 shares and shared
power to dispose or direct the disposition of 25,000 shares; Robyn Trust has the sole power to vote or direct the vote of 25,000 shares and shared power to
dispose or direct the disposition of 25,000 shares; and Judd Trust has the sole power to vote or direct the vote of 25,000 shares and shared power to dispose
or direct the disposition of 25,000 shares.
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(J)  Costa Brava Partnership III, LP (“CBP”), Roark, Rearden & Hamot, LLC (“RRH”), White Bay Capital Management, LLC (“WBCM?”). Mr. Seth W. Hamot
and Mr. Andrew R. Siegel filed a joint Schedule 13D indicating that CBP has the sole power to vote or to direct the vote and to dispose or direct the
disposition of 506,811 shares; RRH, WBCM and Mr. Hamot have the shared power to vote or to direct the vote and dispose or direct the disposition of
506,811 shares; Mr. Siegel has the sole power to vote or direct the vote and to dispose or direct the disposition of 14,476 shares, and the shared power to
vote and dispose or direct the vote or disposition of 506,811 shares.

(K) Grand Slam Asset Management, LLC (“GSAM?”) and Grand Slam Capital Master Fund, Ltd. (“GSCMF”) filed a joint Schedule 13D indicating that
GSCMF directly owns and has the power to vote or direct the vote and to dispose or direct the disposition of 164,477 shares. GSAM may be deemed to
control GSCMEF, directly or indirectly, to have shared power to vote or direct the vote and dispose or direct the disposition of the shares and to beneficially
own the shares held by GSCMF.

(L) Brown Advisory Holdings Incorporated (“BAHI”), in its capacity as a parent holding company, Brown Advisory Securities, LLC (“BAS”), and Brown
Investment Advisory & Trust Company (“BIATC”) filed a joint schedule 13G/A indicating that 322,631 shares are owned by the clients of BAS and 1,300
shares are owned by the clients of BIATC. Those clients have the right to receive, or the power to direct the receipt of, dividends from, or the proceeds from
the sale of, such securities. BAHI has the sole power to dispose or to direct the disposition of 1,300 shares; BAHI and BAS have the shared power to
dispose or to direct the disposition of 322,631 shares.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Mr. John R.C. Porter, the owner of 1.4% of our Class A Common Stock, had a consulting agreement with us whereby he was compensated for consulting
services provided to us in the areas of marketing, product development, strategic planning and finance as we requested. We paid Mr. Porter $260,000 for 2008,
2007 and 2006 pursuant to this agreement, which amounts were determined by negotiation we conducted with Mr. Porter. Effective January 1, 2009, the
consulting agreement with Mr. Porter was terminated.

The brother of our Chairman and CEO, Emmett Wood, has been an employee of the Company since 1996. The amounts paid to this individual as
compensation for 2008, 2007, and 2006 were $220,000, $205,000, and $144,000, respectively.

As reported in Note 2 — Sale of Assets, as a member of certain private equity investors, the brother of our Chairman and CEO, Nicholas Wood, indirectly
held a 2% effective ownership interest in TIMS LLC. Such ownership interest was sold in the fourth quarter of 2008.

Our policies and practices with respect to related person transactions were adopted on October 25, 2007, and are available on our website at
www.telos.com. The policy is set forth below:

L. Purpose

This Related Person Transaction Policy was adopted by the Board of Directors of Telos Corporation (the “Company™) to ensure the timely identification,
review, approval and ratification of transactions with related persons and to assist the Company in the timely disclosure of such transactions in the
Company’s filings with the SEC, as required by the Securities Act of 1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and related rules and regulations.

This policy is intended to supersede other policies of the Company such as the Code of Conduct and the Corporate Governance Principles that may be
applicable to transactions with related persons.

I1. Definitions
For purposes of this policy, the following definitions apply:

“Related Person Transaction” means any transaction or series of transactions in which (i) the Company or a subsidiary is a participant, (ii) the aggregate
amount involved exceeds $120,000 and (iii) any “Related Person” has a direct or indirect material interest.

“Related Person” means:

. Any director or executive officer of the Company;

. Any immediate family member of a director or executive officer of the Company;

. Any nominee for director and the immediate family members of such nominee;

. A 5% beneficial owner of the Company’s voting securities or any immediate family member of such owner; and

. Any firm, corporation or other entity in which any of the foregoing persons is employed or is a partner or principal or in a similar position or

in which such person has a 10% or greater beneficial ownership interest.

“Immediate Family Member” means any child, stepchild, parent, stepparent, spouse, sibling, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-
law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law of a person, and any person (other than a tenant or employee) sharing the household of such person.
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I11. Review/Report

Related Person Transactions shall be reviewed by the Board of Directors acting through the Audit Committee at regularly scheduled committee
meetings, except that the Chairman of the Audit Committee may call a special committee meeting to review a proposed Related Person Transaction.
That transaction is subject to the approval and/or ratification of the full Board of Directors. If the proposed Related Person Transaction involves a
director, then that director may participate in the deliberations pursuant to the last paragraph of this policy below, but may not vote with respect to
such approval or ratification.

Each individual executive officer and director shall be responsible for reporting any potential Related Person Transaction to the General Counsel
and/or the Audit Committee. The Company shall take such steps as it deems reasonable and appropriate to inform such executive officers and
directors about this Related Person Transactions policy, which shall include:

+  Distributing (as soon as reasonably practicable following the completion of each fiscal year) a formal questionnaire to all executive
officers and directors requiring these persons to evaluate and disclose whether or not during the preceding fiscal year they were
involved in, or aware of, any Related Person Transaction;

»  Posting this policy on the Company website and including it in the Company’s 2007 proxy statement;
»  Periodically distributing this policy to the Company’s executive officers and directors; and
»  Periodically making internal inquiries regarding Company relationships with known entities that qualify as Related Persons.

Whether the Related Person’s interest in a proposed transaction is material or not will depend on all facts and circumstances, including whether a
reasonable investor would consider the person’s interest in the transaction important, together with all other available information, in deciding
whether to buy, sell or hold the Company’s securities. In preparing the Company’s SEC filings and in determining whether a transaction is subject to
this policy, the Company’s General Counsel is entitled to make the determinations of whether a particular relationship constitutes a material interest
by a Related Person. In administering this policy, the Audit Committee shall be entitled (but not required) to rely upon such determinations of
materiality by the Company’s General Counsel.

In reviewing a proposed Related Person Transaction, the Committee shall consider all relevant facts and circumstances, including the commercial
reasonableness of the terms, the benefit, or lack thereof, to the Company, opportunity costs of alternate transactions, the materiality and character of
the Related Person’s direct or indirect interest, and the actual or apparent conflict of interest of the Related Person. The Audit Committee shall
forward to the full Board of Directors its recommendations in regards to any Related Person Transaction involving a director or an executive officer
of the Company for final determination.

Independence of the Board of Directors

We have adopted director independence standards which are summarized below. Our director independence standards are based upon NASD Rules 4200(a)
(15) and 4350. Pursuant to such rules, a majority of directors of the Board will be independent. Pursuant to NASD Rule 4200(a)(15), a director will not be
independent if,

(A) At any time during the past three years he was employed by the Company;

(B) He accepted, or has a family member who accepted, any compensation from the Company in excess of $120,000 during any period of twelve
consecutive months within the three years preceding the determination of independence other than the following: (i) compensation for board or
board committee service; (ii) compensation paid to a family member who is an employee (other than an executive officer) of the Company;

(iii) benefits under a tax-qualified retirement plan, or non-discretionary compensation;

(C) He is a family member of an individual who is, or at any time during the past three years was, employed by the Company as an executive officer;

(D) He is, or has a family member who is, a partner in, or a controlling shareholder or executive officer of, any organization to which the Company
made, or from which the Company received, payments for property or services in the current or any of the past three fiscal years that exceed 5% of
the recipient’s consolidated gross revenues for that year, or $200,000, whichever is more, other than the following: (i) payments arising solely from
investments in the Company’s securities; or (ii) payments under non-discretionary charitable contribution matching programs.

(E) He is, or has a family member who is, employed as an executive officer of another entity where at any time during the past three years any of the
executive officers of the issuer served on the compensation committee of such other entity.

(F) He is, or has a family member who is, a current partner of the Company’s outside auditor, or was a partner or employee of the Company’s outside

auditor who worked on the Company’s audit at any time during any of the past three years.

Pursuant to the independence standards set forth above, the Board has determined that the following directors meet our independence standards and
therefore are independent: Bernard C. Bailey, David Borland, William M. Dvoranchik, Bruce R. Harris, Charles S. Mahan, and Jerry O. Tuttle. Based on these
standards, the Board determined that the following directors are not independent: Seth W. Hamot, Robert J. Marino, Andrew R. Siegel, and John B. Wood.
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Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
Aggregate fees for professional services billed to us by BDO Seidman, LLP for the year ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 are summarized as follows:

2008 2007
BDO Seidman, LLP:
Audit fees $605,000 $650,075
Audit-related fees — —
Tax fees 25,000 9,052
All other fees —_ —
Total $630,000 $659,127
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
1. Financial Statements

As listed in the Index to Financial Statements and Supplementary Data on page 25.
2. Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules are omitted as the required information is not applicable or the information is presented in the consolidated financial statements or related
notes.

3. Exhibits:
Exhibit
Number Description
3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of C3, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement No. 2-84171 filed June 2,
1983)
3.2 Articles of Amendment of C3, Inc. dated August 31, 1981 (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement No. 2-84171 filed June
2,1983)
3.3 Articles supplementary of C3, Inc. dated May 31, 1984 (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-K report for the fiscal year ended

March 31, 1987)

34 Articles of Amendment of C3, Inc. dated August 18, 1988 (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-K report for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 1989)

3.5 Articles of Amendment and Restatement Supplementary to the Articles of Incorporation dated August 3, 1990. (Incorporated by reference to C3, Inc.
10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1990)

3.6 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of the Company, filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Maryland on January 14, 1992 (Incorporated
by reference to C3, Inc. Form 8-K filed January 29, 1992)

3.7 Articles of Amendment of C3, Inc. dated April 13, 1995 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.7 filed with the Company’s Form 10-K report for the
year ended December 31, 1995)

3.8 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company, as amended on October 3, 2007. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Form 8-
K filed on October 5, 2007)

4.1 Form of Indenture between the Registrant and Bankers Trust Company, as Trustee, relating to the 12% Junior Subordinated Debentures Due 20009.
(Incorporated by reference to C3’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed October 20, 1989)

4.2 Form of the terms of the 12% Cumulative Exchangeable Redeemable Preferred Stock of the Registrant (Incorporated by reference to C3’s Registration
Statement on Form S-4 filed October 20, 1989)

10.1 Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note due October 1, 2000 as of October 13, 1995 between the Company and Sir Leslie Porter (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.62 filed with the Company’s Form 10-Q report for the quarter ended September 30, 1995)

10.2 Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note due October 1, 2000 as of October 13, 1995 between the Company and Toxford Corporation (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.64 filed with the Company’s Form 10-Q report for the quarter ended September 30, 1995)

10.3 Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note due October 1, 2000 as of October 13, 1995 between the Company and Sir Leslie Porter (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.69 filed with the Company’s Form 10-Q report for the quarter ended September 30, 1995)

10.4 Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note due October 1, 2000 as of October 13, 1995 between the Company and Toxford Corporation
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.71 filed with the Company’s Form 10-Q report for the quarter ended September 30, 1995)

10.5 1996 Stock Option Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.74 filed with the Company’s Form 10-Q report for the quarter ended March 31,
1996)

10.6 Employment Agreement — Michael P. Flaherty (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.98 filed with the Company’s Form 10-K report for the year

ended December 31, 2005)

10.7 Employment Agreement — Robert J. Marino (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.99 filed with the Company’s Form 10-K report for the year
ended December 31, 2005)

10.8 Employment Agreement — Michele Nakazawa (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.100 filed with the Company’s Form 10-K report for the year
ended December 31, 2005)

10.9 Employment Agreement — Edward L. Williams (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.101 filed with the Company’s Form 10-K report for the year
ended December 31, 2005)

10.10 Employment Agreement — John B. Wood (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.102 filed with the Company’s Form 10-K report for the year ended
December 31, 2005)

10.11 Membership Interest Purchase & Assignment Agreement and Other Related Transaction Documents among the Company, Telos Identity Management
Solutions, LL.C and Hoya ID Fund A, LLC (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 filed with the Company’s Form 10-Q report for the quarter
ended June 30, 2007)

10.12 Telos Corporation 2008 Omnibus Long-Term Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 filed with the Company’s Form 10-K report
for the year ended December 31, 2007)
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10.13

10.14*

10.15*

10.16*
10.17*

10.18*
10.19*
10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

21*
31.1*
31.2*
32%

Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement between the Company and Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. dated March 31, 2008 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.22 filed with the Company’s Form 10-K report for the year ended December 31, 2007)

Amended and Restated Subordination Agreement between Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc., Subordinated Noteholders, and U.S. Bank National Association,
dated April 4, 2008

Preferred Stockholders Standby Agreement between Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. and North Atlantic Smaller Companies Investment Trust PLC, dated
April 14, 2008

Preferred Stockholders Standby Agreement between Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. and North Atlantic Value LLP A/C B, dated April 14, 2008

Series A-1 and Series A-2 Redeemable Preferred Stock Extension of Redemption Date — North Atlantic Smaller Companies Investment Trust PLC,
dated April 6, 2008

Series A-1 and Series A-2 Redeemable Preferred Stock Extension of Redemption Date — North Atlantic Value LLP A/C B, dated April 6, 2008
Series A-1 and Series A-2 Redeemable Preferred Stock Extension of Redemption Date — Toxford Corporation, dated March 13, 2008

Waiver and First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement between the Company and Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. dated
August 26, 2008 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 filed with the Company’s Form 10-K report for the year ended December 31, 2007)

Amendment to Employment Agreement — John B. Wood (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 filed with the Company’s Form 10-K report for the
year ended December 31, 2007)

Amendment to Employment Agreement — Michele Nakazawa (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 filed with the Company’s Form 10-K report
for the year ended December 31, 2007)

Amendment to Employment Agreement — Michael P. Flaherty (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 filed with the Company’s Form 10-K report
for the year ended December 31, 2007)

Amendment to Employment Agreement — Edward L. Williams (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 filed with the Company’s Form 10-K report
for the year ended December 31, 2007)

Employment Agreement — Robert J. Marino (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 filed with the Company’s Form 10-K report for the year ended
December 31, 2007)

Waiver under Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement between the Company and Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. dated August 25, 2008
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 filed with the Company’s Form 10-K report for the year ended December 31, 2007)

Waiver under Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement between the Company and Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. dated December 12, 2008
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 filed with the Company’s Form 10-K report for the year ended December 31, 2007)

List of subsidiaries of Telos Corporation
Certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
Certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Certification pursuant to 18 USC Section 1350.

* filed herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Telos Corporation has duly caused this report to be signed on its

behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

TELOS CORPORATION

By:  /s/ John B. Wood

John B. Wood
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board

Date: April 15, 2009

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following persons on behalf of Telos Corporation and in

the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ John B. Wood
John B. Wood Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board April 15, 2009
/s/ Michele Nakazawa
Michele Nakazawa Chief Financial Officer April 15, 2009
/s/ Bernard C. Bailey
Bernard C. Bailey Director April 15, 2009
/s/ David Borland
David Borland Director April 15, 2009
/s/ William M. Dvoranchik
William M. Dvoranchik Director April 15, 2009
Seth W. Hamot Director
/s/ Bruce R. Harris
Bruce R. Harris, Lt. Gen., U.S. Army (Ret.) Director April 15, 2009
/s/ Charles S. Mahan, Jr.
Charles S. Mahan, Jr. Lt. Gen., U.S. Army (Ret) Director April 15, 2009
/s/ Robert J. Marino
Robert J. Marino Director April 15, 2009
Andrew R. Siegel Director
/s/ Jerry O. Tuttle
Jerry O. Tuttle, Vice Admiral, USN (Ret.) Director April 15, 2009
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Exhibit 10.14
AMENDED AND RESTATED SUBORDINATION AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED SUBORDINATION AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), dated as of April 4, 2008, entered into between Wells Fargo
Foothill, Inc. (formerly known as Foothill Capital Corporation), as agent (“Agent”) for itself and for the Lenders (defined below), each of the parties identified on
the signature pages hereto as a “Subordinated Noteholder” (collectively, the “Subordinated Noteholders” and each, a “Subordinated Noteholder”) and U.S. Bank
National Association (successor in interest to State Street Bank and Trust Company), in its capacity as collateral trustee with respect to the Series B Collateral
described below (the “Trustee”; Trustee and each Subordinated Noteholder are collectively, the “Creditors” and each, a “Creditor”).

WHEREAS, Subordinated Noteholders are financially interested in Telos Corporation, a Maryland corporation (“Company”), in that Company is indebted
to Subordinated Noteholders with respect to (i) those certain Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Notes due October 31, 2008 in the aggregate current principal
amount of Two Million Five Hundred Thirty-Seven Thousand Eight Hundred Sixty-Nine and *4/100 Dollars ($2,537,869.74) (the “Series B Subordinated Notes™),
copies of which are attached hereto as Exhibit A-1 and (ii) those certain Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Notes due October 31, 2008 in the aggregate
current principal amount of Two Million Six Hundred Forty Thousand Six Hundred Eighty-Four and 2!/100 Dollars ($2,640,684.21) (the “Series C Subordinated
Notes” and, together with the Series B Subordinated Notes, the “Subordinated Notes”), copies of which are attached hereto as Exhibit A-2;

WHEREAS, the obligations of Company in respect of the Series B Subordinated Notes are secured by liens on certain assets of Company specified on
Exhibit B attached hereto (the “Series B Collateral”) pursuant to the terms of the collateral documentation attached hereto as Exhibit C (the “Series B Collateral
Documents”);

WHEREAS, the Trustee has been designated by the holders of the Series B Subordinated Notes as collateral trustee with respect to the Series B Collateral
pursuant to the terms of the Series B Collateral Documents;

WHEREAS, Company is indebted to Agent and Lenders in connection with the advances of monies and other financial arrangements by Agent and
Lenders to Company;

WHEREAS, such advances of monies and other financial arrangements are evidenced by various agreements, instruments and documents, including,
without limitation, that certain Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement dated as of April 3, 2008, but effective as of March 31, 2008 among
Company, certain financial institutions from time to time party thereto as lenders (“Lenders”) and Agent (the “Loan Agreement”); and



WHEREAS, Agent, Subordinated Noteholders and Trustee are party to a Subordination Agreement dated as of October 21, 2002 (the “Original
Subordination Agreement”) and desire to amend and restate the Original Subordination Agreement on the terms provided herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by Creditors, Creditors
and the Trustee hereby agree with Agent as hereinafter set forth.

Company or any other party, by setoff or in any other manner:

(a) The whole or any part of any indebtedness, obligations and liabilities which may now or hereafter be owing by Company, or any successor or
assign of Company, including, without limitation, a receiver, trustee or debtor in possession (the term “Company” hereinafter shall include any such successor and
assign of Company), to such Creditor in respect of the Subordinated Notes and the Series B Collateral Documents (all such indebtedness, obligations and
liabilities being hereinafter referred to as the “Subordinated Debt”); or

(b) Any security for any of the foregoing (other than the Series B Collateral); unless and until all obligations, liabilities, and indebtedness of
Company to Agent and Lenders, whether now existing or hereafter arising directly between Company and Agent or any Lender, or acquired outright,
conditionally or as collateral security from another by Agent or any Lender, shall have been fully paid and satisfied in cash with interest, including, without
limitation, any interest accruing after the commencement of insolvency proceedings with respect to Company, whether or not such interest is allowed as a claim
in such proceeding (all such obligations, indebtedness and liabilities of Company to Agent and each Lender being hereinafter referred to as the “Senior Debt”)
and all financing arrangements between Company, Agent and Lenders have been terminated. All liens and security interests of each Creditor, whether now or
hereafter arising and howsoever existing, in any assets of Company or any assets securing the Senior Debt (including, without limitation, the Series B Collateral)
shall be and hereby are subordinated to the rights and interests of Agent and Lenders in those assets irrespective of whether Agent’s liens and security interests
have been perfected, or the time or order of attachment or perfection of liens or security interests, or the time of filing or recording of financing statements,
mortgages or other agreements or documents, or the time of giving or failure to give notice of acquisition of purchase money or other security interests or liens;
no Creditor shall have any right to possession of any such assets, to notify account debtors of Company or to foreclose upon or exercise any other right or remedy
with respect to any such assets, whether by judicial action or otherwise, unless and until all of the Senior Debt shall have been fully paid and satisfied in cash and
all financing arrangements between Company, Agent and Lenders have been terminated. Each Creditor also hereby agrees that, (i) the Senior Debt shall include
all obligations, indebtedness and

-



liabilities of Company to Agent and each Lender, notwithstanding the invalidity or unenforceability of all or any part of the Senior Debt, or any right or power of
Company or any other entity or individual to assert any claim or defense as to the invalidity or unenforceability of any such obligation, indebtedness or liability
and no such claim or defense shall affect or impair the agreements and obligations of such Creditor hereunder; and (ii) regardless of whether the Senior Debt is
secured or unsecured, Agent and Lenders shall be subrogated for such Creditor with respect to such Creditor’s claims with respect to the Subordinated Debt
against Company and such Creditor’s rights, liens and security interests, if any, in any of Company’s assets (including, without limitation, the Series B Collateral)
and the proceeds thereof until all of the Senior Debt shall have been fully paid and satisfied in cash and all financing arrangements between Company, Agent and
Lenders have been terminated.

2. Modifications to Subordinated Notes. Except as contemplated by Section 17 below, Company and Creditors hereby agree and understand that the
terms of the Subordinated Debt, the Subordinated Notes and the Series B Collateral Documents may not be modified or amended without Agent’s prior written
consent.

3. Subordinated Debt Owed Only to Creditors. Each Subordinated Noteholder warrants and represents (a) that such Subordinated Noteholder has not
previously assigned or transferred any interest in the Subordinated Debt, (b) that no other party owns an interest in the Subordinated Debt other than Subordinated
Noteholders, (c) that the Subordinated Debt had not been guaranteed by any person and Company is the only obligor with respect to the Subordinated Debt and
(d) that the entire Subordinated Debt is owing only to Subordinated Noteholders and covenants that the entire Subordinated Debt shall continue to be owing only
to Subordinated Noteholders unless assigned or transferred subject to the terms of this Agreement. No Subordinated Noteholder or the Trustee will, without the
prior written consent of Agent: (a) cancel, waive, forgive, or subordinate to any other indebtedness of Company (other than the Senior Debt), any of the
Subordinated Debt or any rights in respect thereof; (b) except for the Series B Collateral, take any collateral security for any of the Subordinated Debt; (c) take
any guaranty from any person with respect to all or any portion of the Subordinated Debt; or (d) commence, or join with any other creditor in commencing, any
bankruptcy, reorganization or insolvency proceedings with respect to Company.

or involuntary, by operation of law or otherwise, of all or any part of the assets of Company or the proceeds thereof to the creditors of Company or readjustment
of the obligations and indebtedness of Company, whether by reason of liquidation, bankruptcy, arrangement, receivership, assignment for the benefit of creditors
or any other action or proceeding involving the readjustment of all or any part of the Subordinated Debt, or the application of the assets of Company to the
payment or liquidation thereof, or upon the dissolution, liquidation, cessation or other winding up of Company’s business, or upon the sale of all or substantially
all of
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Company’s assets, then, and in any such event, (i) Agent, for the benefit of itself and Lenders, shall be entitled to receive payment in cash in full of any and all of
the Senior Debt then owing prior to the payment of all or any part of the Subordinated Debt and (ii) any payment or distribution of any kind or character, whether
in cash, securities or other property, which shall be payable or deliverable upon or with respect to any or all of the Subordinated Debt shall be paid or delivered
directly to Agent for application on any of the Senior Debt, due or not due, until such Senior Debt shall have first been fully paid and satisfied in cash. Agent is
hereby irrevocably authorized and empowered, in its discretion, to make and present for and on behalf of any Creditor such proofs of claim against Company on
account of the Subordinated Debt as Agent may deem expedient or proper and to vote such proofs of claim in any such proceeding and to receive and collect any
and all dividends or other payments or disbursements made thereon in whatever form the same may be paid or issued and to apply the same on account of any of
the Senior Debt. Each Creditor irrevocably authorizes and empowers Agent to demand, sue for, collect and receive each of the aforesaid payments and
distributions and give acquaintance therefor and to file claims and take such other actions, in Agent’s own name or in the name of such Creditor or otherwise, as
Agent may deem necessary or advisable for the enforcement of this Agreement; and such Creditor will execute and deliver to Agent such powers of attorney,
assignments and other instruments or documents, including notes (together with such assignments or endorsements as Agent shall deem necessary or appropriate)
as may be requested by Agent in order to enable Agent to enforce any and all claims upon or with respect to any or all of the Subordinated Debt and to collect and
receive any and all payments and distributions which may be payable or deliverable at any time upon or with respect to the Subordinated Debt, all for the benefit
of Agent and Lenders. Following payment in full of the Senior Debt in cash, Agent will remit to Creditors, to the extent of Creditors’ interest therein, all
dividends or other payments or distributions paid to and held by Agent in excess of the Senior Debt.

5. Payments Received by Creditors; Consent to Sale; Allocation.

(a) Should any payment, distribution, security or instrument, or any proceeds thereof, be received by any Creditor upon or with respect to the
Subordinated Debt prior to the satisfaction of all of the Senior Debt in cash and termination of all financing arrangements between Company, Agent and Lenders,
such Creditor shall receive and hold the same in trust, as trustee, for the benefit of Agent and Lenders and shall forthwith deliver the same to Agent in precisely
the form received (except for the endorsement or assignment by such Creditor where necessary), for application on any of the Senior Debt, due or not due, and,
until so delivered, the same shall be held in trust by such Creditor as the property of Agent. In the event of the failure of any Creditor to make any such
endorsement or assignment to Agent, Agent, or any of its officers or employees, is hereby irrevocably authorized to make the same.

(b) In the event Company desires to dispose of any of the Collateral (as herein defined) and Agent consents to such disposition, each Creditor shall
be deemed to have consented to such disposition free and clear of any liens and security interests of such
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Creditor in such Collateral (including, without limitation, the Series B Collateral) and such Creditor agrees that any purchaser of any Collateral may rely on this
Agreement as evidence of such Creditor’s consent to such disposition free and clear of any liens and security interests of such Creditor in such Collateral
(including, without limitation, the Series B Collateral). Each Creditor agrees to execute such releases with respect to the Collateral (including, without limitation,
the Series B Collateral) to be disposed of as Company or as Agent requests; provided, that (i) the failure of such Creditor to execute such releases shall not affect
the right of the purchaser of such Collateral (including, without limitation, the Series B Collateral) to rely on this Agreement and (ii) in furtherance of the
foregoing, such Creditor hereby irrevocably appoints Agent its attorney-in-fact, with full authority in the place and stead of such Creditor and in the name of such
Creditor, to execute and deliver the releases which such Creditor may be required to deliver pursuant to this Section 5(b). In the event any Creditor receives any
proceeds of Collateral to which Agent is entitled under this Agreement, such Creditor shall hold such proceeds in trust and promptly remit such proceeds in the
same form received to Agent unless the Senior Debt has been paid in full in cash.

6. Instrument Legend; Amendments. Any instrument or certificate evidencing any of the Subordinated Debt, or any portion thereof, will be inscribed
with a legend conspicuously indicating that payment thereof is subordinated to the claims of Agent and Lenders pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, and a
copy thereof will be delivered to Agent. Any instrument or certificate evidencing any of the Subordinated Debt, or any portion thereof, which is hereafter
executed by Company will, on the date thereof, be inscribed with the aforesaid legend and a copy thereof will be delivered to Agent on the date of its execution or
within five (5) business days thereafter and the original thereof will be delivered as and when described hereinabove. Each Creditor hereby authorizes Agent to
take such action as Agent deems appropriate to evidence the subordination effected hereunder, including without limitation the filing by Agent on behalf of each
Creditor of Uniform Commercial Code amendment statements that provide that the Series B Collateral in favor of Trustee has been subordinated to Agent.

7. Continuing Nature of Subordination; Subrogation. This Agreement shall be irrevocable and shall continue to be effective (notwithstanding the
insolvency, liquidation or dissolution of Company) until the Senior Debt shall have been paid in cash in full and all financing arrangements between Company,
Agent and Lenders have been terminated. This is a continuing agreement of subordination and Agent and Lenders may continue, at any time and without notice to
any Creditor, to extend credit or other financial accommodations and loan monies to or for the benefit of Company on the faith hereof. This Agreement shall
continue to be effective or be reinstated, as the case may be, if at any time any payment of any of the Senior Debt is rescinded or must otherwise be returned by
any holder of Senior Debt, all as though such payment had not been made. Upon the payment in full in cash of all Senior Debt and termination of all financing
arrangements between Company, Agent and Lenders, Creditors shall be subrogated to the extent of the payments or distributions made to Agent, or otherwise
applied to payment of, the Senior Debt pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement.
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8. Additional Agreements Between Company, Agent and Lenders. Agent and each Lender may, at any time and from time to time, without notice to
any Creditor, enter into such agreement or agreements with Company as Agent or such Lender may deem proper, extending the time of payment of or renewing
or otherwise altering, amending, modifying or supplementing the terms of the Loan Agreement, other agreements, instruments and documents evidencing the
Senior Debt or all or any of the Senior Debt or affecting the collateral or any guaranty underlying any or all of the Senior Debt, and may exchange, sell, release,
surrender or otherwise deal with any such security or guaranties, without in any way thereby impairing or affecting this Agreement.

9. Creditors’ Waivers. Each Creditor expressly waives all notice of (i) the existence or creation or nonpayment of all or any portion of the Senior
Debt and (ii) the acceptance by Agent and Lenders of the subordination and other provisions of this Agreement and all the notices not specifically required
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement whatsoever and each Creditor expressly waives reliance by Agent and Lenders upon the subordination and other
agreements as herein provided. This Agreement shall remain valid and effective and the provisions of this Agreement shall apply to each Creditor and Agent
regardless of the validity, enforceability or priority of the Senior Debt or any liens securing the Senior Debt. Each Creditor agrees that neither Agent nor any
Lender has made any warranties or representations with respect to the due execution, legality, validity, completeness or enforceability of the Loan Agreement, or
the collectability of the Senior Debt, that Agent and Lenders shall be entitled to manage and supervise their financial arrangements with Company without
affecting the validity or enforceability of this Agreement and without regard to the existence of any rights that such Creditor may now or hereafter have in or to
any of the assets of Company, and that neither Agent nor any Lender shall have any liability to such Creditor for, and waives any claim which such Creditor may
now or hereafter have against, Agent or any Lender arising out of (i) any and all actions which Agent or any Lender takes or omits to take (including, without
limitation, actions with respect to the creation, perfection or continuation of liens or security interests in any existing or future collateral for the Senior Debt (the
“Collateral”), actions with respect to the occurrence of an Event of Default (as defined in the Loan Agreement), actions with respect to the foreclosure upon, sale,
release, or depreciation of, or failure to realize upon, any of the Collateral and actions with respect to the collection of any claim for all or any part of the Senior
Debt from any account debtor, guarantor or any other party) with respect to the Loan Agreement or any other agreement related thereto or to the collection of the
Senior Debt or the valuation, use, protection or release of the Collateral, (ii) Agent’s election, in any proceeding instituted under Chapter 11 of Title 11 of the
United States Code (11 U.S.C. §101 et seq.) (the “Bankruptcy Code”), of the application of Section 1111(b)(2) of the Bankruptcy Code and/or (iii) any use of cash
collateral under Section 363 of the Bankruptcy Code or any borrowing or grant of a security interest under Section 364 of the Bankruptcy Code by Company, as
debtor in possession. In that regard, each Creditor agrees that (A) if Company desires to use cash collateral under Section 363 of the Bankruptcy Code and Agent
consents to such use, such Creditor will also consent to such use without asserting any objection of any kind (including an objection on the grounds of failure to
provide adequate
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protection for such Creditor’s junior lien on the Series B Collateral), and (B) if Company desires to obtain credit from Agent and Lenders under Section 364 of
the Bankruptcy Code to be secured by the Collateral, such Creditor will consent to such credit without asserting any objection of any kind (including an objection
on the grounds of failure to provide adequate protection for such Creditor’s junior lien on the Series B Collateral). Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, each Creditor waives the right to assert the doctrine of marshalling with respect to any of the Collateral, and consents and agrees that Agent may
proceed against any or all of the Collateral in such order as Agent shall determine in its sole discretion.

10. Agent’s Waivers. No waiver shall be deemed to be made by Agent of any of its rights hereunder, unless the same shall be in a writing, and each
waiver, if any, shall be a waiver only with respect to the specific instance involved and shall in no way impair the rights of Agent or any Lender or the obligations
of Creditors to Agent and each Lender in any other respect at any other time. No delay on the part of Agent or any Lender in the exercise of any right or remedy
shall operate as a waiver thereof, and no single or partial exercise by Agent or any Lender of any right or remedy shall preclude other or further exercise thereof
or the exercise of any other right or remedy.

11. Information Concerning Financial Condition of Company. Each Creditor hereby assumes responsibility for keeping itself informed of the
financial condition of Company, any and all endorsers and any and all guarantors of the Senior Debt and/or the Subordinated Debt and of all other circumstances
bearing upon the risk of nonpayment of the Senior Debt and/or Subordinated Debt that diligent inquiry would reveal, and such Creditor hereby agrees that Agent
shall have no duty to advise such Creditor of information known to Agent regarding such condition or any such circumstances. In the event Agent, in its sole
discretion, undertakes, at any time or from time to time, to provide any such information to any Creditor, Agent shall be under no obligation (i) to provide any
such information to such Creditor on any subsequent occasion or (ii) to undertake any investigation not a part of its regular business routine and shall be under no
obligation to disclose any information which, pursuant to accepted or reasonable commercial finance practices, Agent wishes to maintain confidential. Each
Creditor hereby agrees that all payments received by Agent may be applied, reversed, and reapplied, in whole or in part, to any of the Senior Debt, without
affecting the validity or enforceability of this Agreement and assents to any extension or postponement of the time of payment of the Senior Debt or to any other
indulgence with respect thereto, to any substitution, exchange or release of all or any of the Collateral and to the addition or release of any other party or person
primarily or secondarily liable therefor.

12. No Offset. In the event any Creditor at any time is indebted to Company, such Creditor hereby irrevocably agrees that such Creditor shall not
deduct from or setoff against any amounts owing by such Creditor to Company any amounts such Creditor claims are due to such Creditor with respect to the
Subordinated Debt.

-7-



13. GOVERNING LAW; CONSENT TO JURISDICTION; WAIVERS. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE DEEMED TO HAVE BEEN MADE IN
THE STATE OF ILLINOIS AND SHALL BE INTERPRETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE INTERNAL LAWS OF ILLINOIS AND NOT THE
CONFLICT OF LAWS RULES OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS GOVERNING CONTRACTS TO BE PERFORMED ENTIRELY WITHIN SUCH STATE.
EACH CREDITOR HEREBY AGREES TO THE EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION OF ANY STATE OR FEDERAL COURT LOCATED WITHIN THE
COUNTY OF COOK, STATE OF ILLINOIS OR, AT THE SOLE OPTION OF AGENT, IN ANY OTHER COURT IN WHICH AGENT SHALL INITIATE
LEGAL OR EQUITABLE PROCEEDINGS AND WHICH HAS SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION OVER THE MATTER IN CONTROVERSY. EACH
CREDITOR WAIVES ANY OBJECTION OF FORUM NON CONVENIENS AND VENUE. AGENT AND EACH CREDITOR EACH HEREBY WAIVE THE
RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING BASED UPON, ARISING OUT OF, OR IN ANY WAY RELATING TO THIS
AGREEMENT, WHETHER SOUNDING IN CONTRACT OR TORT OR OTHERWISE.

14. Section Titles; Gender; No Prejudice of Rights. The section titles contained in this Agreement are and shall be without substantive meaning or
content of any kind whatsoever and are not a part of the agreement between the parties hereto. The singular form of any word used in this Agreement shall
include the plural form and the neuter form of any word used in this Agreement shall include the masculine and feminine forms, and vice versa. Agent shall not
be prejudiced in its rights under this Agreement by any act or failure to act of Company or any Creditor, or any noncompliance of Company or any Creditor with
any agreement or obligation, regardless of any knowledge thereof which Agent may have or with which Agent may be charged; and no action of Agent permitted
hereunder shall in any way affect or impair the rights of Agent and the obligations of each Creditor under this Agreement.

15. Notices. Any notice required hereunder shall be in writing and addressed to the party to be notified as follows:

If to the Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc.
Agent, at: One Boston Place, 18th Floor
Boston, Massachusetts 02108
Attn: Technology Finance
Division Manager
Fax No. (617) 523-1697

If to the Mr. John R.C. Porter Zollikon Investments SA Toxford Corporation

Subordinated Chalet Petit Monde c/o Silex Management Ltd. Trust Officer, Rathbones

Noteholders, 1936 Verbier 6, Rue Kleberg Place de Saint Gervais 1

at: Switzerland 1201 Geneva 1211 Geneva
Switzerland Switzerland



If to the U.S. Bank National Association
Trustee, at: 1 Federal Street, 3 Floor
Boston, MA 02110
Ref: Telos Corporation
Attn.: Ms. Julie Kirby

or to such other address as each party may designate for itself by notice. Notice shall be deemed to have been duly given (i) if delivered personally or otherwise
actually received, (ii) if sent by overnight delivery service, (iii) if mailed by first class United States mail, postage prepaid, registered or certified, with return
receipt requested or (iv) if sent by telex with telex confirmation of receipt (with duplicate notice sent by United States mail as provided above). Notice mailed as
provided in clause (iii) above shall be effective upon the expiration of three (3) business days after its deposit in the United States mail. Notice given in any other
manner described in this paragraph shall be effective upon receipt by the addressee thereof; provided, however, that if any notice is tendered to an addressee and
delivery thereof is refused by such addressee, such notice shall be effective upon such tender.

16. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon each Creditor and such Creditor’s successors and assigns and Agent and its
successors and assigns, and shall inure to the benefit of each Creditor and such Creditor’s successors and assigns and
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Agent and its successors and assigns. Any person that refinances or refunds the Senior Debt in whole or in part shall be entitled to rely on this Agreement. Upon
the refinancing or refunding of all or any portion of the Senior Debt by any person, (i) each Creditor hereby agrees, at the request of Agent, to execute and deliver
to such person an agreement (substantially identical to this Agreement) providing for the continued subordination of the Subordinated Debt (and liens securing
same) to the obligations, liabilities and indebtedness of Company (and liens securing same) to such person (provided, that the failure of such Creditor to execute
and deliver such an agreement shall not affect such Creditor’s obligations hereunder to such person or the right of any such person to rely on this Agreement), and
(ii) all references to “Senior Debt” herein shall be deemed to mean the obligations, liabilities and indebtedness of Company to such person and all references to
the “Agent” shall be deemed to mean such person. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the foregoing provisions shall not apply to a person that refinances or refunds
the Senior Debt in part unless such person has obtained Agent’s express prior written consent to rely on this Agreement.

17. Extension of Maturity of Subordinated Notes. On or before April 15, 2008, Creditors agree to amend the Subordinated Notes to extend the
maturity date thereof from October 31, 2008 to a date no earlier than December 30, 2011.

[signature pages follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been signed as of the date first above written.
AGENT:

WELLS FARGO FOOTHILL, INC., as Agent for
Lenders

Its V.P.

Signature Page to Amended and Restated Subordination Agreement



SUBORDINATED NOTEHOLDER:

/s/ John Porter

John Porter

Signature Page to Amended and Restated Subordination Agreement



Signature Page to Amended and Restated Subordination Agreement

SUBORDINATED NOTEHOLDER:

ZOLLIKON INVESTMENTS SA,
Successor in interest to Sir Leslie Porter

By /s/ Brian Padgett

Name Brian Padgett

Its Director




Signature Page to Amended and Restated Subordination Agreement

SUBORDINATED NOTEHOLDER:

TOXFORD CORPORATION

By /s/ Michael Fitzgerald /s/ Ariane Slinger
Name Michael Fitzgerald Ariane Slinger
Its Directors

31/3/2008



TRUSTEE:
U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

(Successor in interest to State Street Bank and Trust Company),
as Trustee

By /FWM

Its Vice President

Signature Page to Amended and Restated Subordination Agreement



The undersigned hereby consents to, and acknowledges receipt of a copy of, the foregoing Subordination Agreement this 4th day of April, 2008, and
agrees that, except as provided in the foregoing Agreement, it will not pay any of the Subordinated Debt or grant any security therefor, until the Senior Debt shall
have been paid in full in cash and all financing arrangements between Company, Agent and Lenders have been terminated. In the event of payment by Company
to any Creditor or the grant of a security interest by Company to any Creditor in any of Company’s assets in violation of the foregoing Agreement, or such other
breach by Company of any of the provisions herein or of the foregoing Agreement, all of the Senior Debt shall, without presentment, demand, protest or notice of
any kind, at the election of Agent, become immediately due and payable.

TELOS CORPORATION

/s/ Michael P. Flaherty

Michael P. Flaherty
EVP, General Counsel, Chief Administrative Officer

Signature Page to Amended and Restated Subordination Agreement



EXHIBIT A-1

SERIES B SUBORDINATED NOTES

See Attached



THIS NOTE HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND MAY NOT
BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED UNLESS IT IS SO REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE UNDER
SAID ACT AND LAWS. THIS NOTE IS SUBORDINATE AND JUNIOR IN RIGHT OF PAYMENT TO SENIOR INDEBTEDNESS DUE TO
NATIONSBANK, N.A. AND/OR CERTAIN OTHER BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, AS PROVIDED IN THE SUBORDINATION
AGREEMENT DATED AS OF OCTOBER 13, 1995 BY AND AMONG TELOS CORPORATION, A MARYLAND CORPORATION, TELOS
CORPORATION, A CALIFORNIA CORPORATION, NATIONSBANK, N.A. AND THE HOLDERS IDENTIFIED IN SCHEDULE A THERETO.

Herndon, Virginia
October 13, 1995

SERIES B SENIOR SUBORDINATED SECURED NOTE DUE OCTOBER 1, 2000

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, Telos Corporation, a Maryland corporation, with offices at 460 Herndon Parkway, Herndon, Virginia 22070 (hereinafter
referred to as “the Borrower” or the “the Company”), promises to pay to the order of Sir Leslie Porter (hereinafter referred to as Lender”), c¢/o Personal Financial
Management Ltd., 12 Hans Road, London SW3 1RT, England, at such other offices or at such other place or places as the holder hereof may from time to time
designate in writing, the principal sum of SEVEN HUNDRED NINE THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED NINETY-SEVEN DOLLARS AND 49/100
($709,497.49) on October 1, 2000 together with interest on the principal amount hereof from time to time outstanding at the rate hereinafter provided until paid in
full.

This is one of a series of the Company’s Notes known as its Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Notes Due October 1, 2000 (collectively referred to
herein as the “Series B Notes™), all of like tenor, except as to the identifying number and principal amount thereof and except for certain variations contained in
this Note. The Series B Notes have been issued in the aggregate principal amount of $6,493,581.93.

I. GENERAL TERMS

1.1 Interest only shall be payable at the rate of fourteen percent (14%) per annum, on the principal balance of this Note from time to time outstanding from
and after the date hereof, and shall be due and payable quarterly, until the principal has been paid in full, on the first day of April, July, October, and January in
each year. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the rate of



interest shall be increased to an amount necessary to result in a payment to the holder of fourteen percent (14%) per annum net of withholding for United States
Federal Income Taxes, it being contemplated that Borrower shall receive substantiation for Federal Income Tax purposes of circumstances supporting withholding
at a rate no greater than seventeen and one-half percent (17 '/2%) of interest hereunder. The first interest payment shall be due January 1, 1996 and shall include
all interest accrued from the date hereof until the date of such interest payment.

1.2 If not sooner paid, the outstanding and unpaid principal balance shall be paid on October 1, 2000, together with accrued and unpaid interest on this
Note. In addition, interest shall be payable at the rate provided in Section 1.1 hereof on any Payment Premium from the date such premium is due until paid in
full.

1.3 Principal, premium, if any, and interest on this note are payable in lawful money of the United States. The principal of this Note may be prepaid at any
time after ten (10) days, written notice to the Lender, in whole or in part, and shall be accompanied by payment in cash of all accrued and unpaid interest on the
amount so prepaid, together with, to the extent not prohibited by applicable law, a Payment Premium.

1.4 In the event of a Public Offering of the common stock of the Company, or in the event of a Refinancing, the principal then outstanding shall become
immediately due and payable, together with, accrued and unpaid interest thereon, and, to the extent not prohibited by applicable law, a Payment Premium in an
amount equal to the lesser of (i) the Net Proceeds of such Public Offering or Refinancing or (ii) the amount determined in accordance with § 1.6(iv). The net
Proceeds shall be applied toward the payment of the outstanding and unpaid principal balance of the Notes, accrued and unpaid interest thereon and, to the extent
not prohibited by applicable law, such Payment Premium.

1.5 In the event of a Merger or Dissolution, the principal then outstanding shall become immediately due and payable, together with accrued and unpaid
interest thereon and, to the extent not prohibited by applicable law, a Payment Premium in the amount determined in accordance with § 1.6(iv).

1.6 Definitions.

@) “Public Offering” shall mean the distribution and sale of the Company’s common stock (some of the proceeds of which sale are available to
the Company) pursuant to a registration statement

-



(i)

(ii)

(iv)

(other than a registration statement on Form S-4 or Form S-8) which has been filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and
become effective.

“Refinancing” shall mean a sale of securities of the Company which results in Net Proceeds to the Company in excess of $1,000,000, other
than (a) obligations for borrowed money due and payable within one year which are not extended, renewed or refinanced beyond such due
date; (b) other obligations for money borrowed from NationsBank and/or its successors, substitutes and participants and their respective
assigns and any refinancing thereof.

“Net Proceeds” shall mean the proceeds to the Company after expenses of sale and distribution, including discounts, commissions and
brokerage and legal fees.

“Payment Premium” shall mean an amount equal to (a) 13 /2% per annum, compounded semiannually from and after the date hereof until
paid, on the principal amount of this Note outstanding from time to time until the time of payment minus (b) the cumulative amount payable
by the Company on account of withholding taxes with respect to interest payable pursuant to Section 1.1 to the date of payment of such
premium. For the avoidance of doubt, the Payment Premium shall not itself be increased on account of withholding taxes, but shall be
subject to, and the amount remitted to the holder reduced by, any withholding tax to which the Payment Premium is subject, with the result
that the total cost to the Company for interest, Payment Premium and withholding taxes shall equal twenty-seven and one-half percent

(27 1/2%) per annum on the principal outstanding from time to time to the date of payment of the Payment Premium.
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W) “Merger” shall mean a merger, consolidation or other combination to which the Company or any subsidiary is a party, in which the Company
is not the surviving corporation or which results in the acquisition of “beneficial ownership” of securities of the Company representing 50%
or more of the total number of votes that may be cast for the election of directors by any “person” or “group” (as such terms are defined in
Rule 13(d) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), or a sale by the Company of all or substantially all of its
assets.

(vi) “Dissolution” shall mean the adoption by the Board of Directors and/or the shareholders of the Company of a resolution to dissolve the
Company and liquidate its assets, the filing by the Company of articles of dissolution or a similar application for dissolution with the
appropriate officer of the state of incorporation of the Company, the entry of an order or other action by such state dissolving the Company,
or the adoption by the Board of Directors or the shareholders of the Company of a plan of liquidation or a resolution approving a liquidating
distribution of the Company’s assets, whichever shall first occur.

1.7 At any time after the third anniversary of the date hereof, the holders of a majority in outstanding principal amount of the Series B Notes and the Series
C Notes issued by the Company Contemporaneously herewith may request, in writing, that the Company effect a Public Offering, at the Company’s cost and
expense. Upon receipt of any such request, the Company shall, as expeditiously as possible, use its best efforts to effect a Public Offering, with the objective of
realizing Net Proceeds sufficient to pay the then-outstanding principal balance of the Series B Notes and the Series C Notes together with accrued, unpaid interest
thereon, and, to the extent not prohibited by applicable law, a Payment Premium in an amount determined in accordance with § 1.4.

1.8 If any payment of principal or interest on this Note shall become due on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday under the laws of the Commonwealth of
Virginia, or any other day on which banking institutions in the Commonwealth of Virginia are obligated or authorized by law or executive order to close, such
payment shall be made on the next succeeding business day in Virginia and any such extended time of the payment of principal shall not be included in
computing compound interest in connection with such payment.
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1.9 Upon receipt by the Borrower of evidence reasonably satisfactory to it of the mutilation; destruction, loss or theft of this Note, the Borrower will make
and deliver to the owner a new note of like tenor in lieu of this Note so mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen.

1.10 Payments made on account hereof shall be applied first to accrued and unpaid interest, then to principal, then to interest on any unpaid Payment
Premium and then to the Payment Premium, if any.

1.11. All payments made by the Company on account of the Series B Notes or any of them shall be made pro rata, in proportion to the outstanding principal
balance of each of the Series B Notes outstanding at the time of any such payment.

1.12 The Company agrees that within 60 days of the date hereof it will enter into a security agreement with the holder granting to a collateral agent,
mutually acceptable to the Holders and the Company, for the holders of the Series B Notes, a perfected security interest in the Company’s plant, property and
equipment, pursuant to documents and agreements in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Lender.

II. DEFAULT

2.1. Tt is expressly agreed by Borrower that the following shall be deemed to be Events of Default under this Note: (a) the failure to pay, when due, any
amount of principal, or no more than five days after due date any amount of premium, if any, or interest on this Note or the Series C Notes, or (b) in the event the
Borrower files any petition, or any petition is filed against it and not dismissed within sixty (60) days, under any bankruptcy or insolvency law or for the
appointment of a receiver for substantially all its assets or in the event the Borrower makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, (c) or any failure by
the Borrower to perform or observe any of the other covenants, agreements or provisions to be performed or observed by it under this Note or the Series C Notes,
and such default shall not be rectified or cured within 10 days after written notice thereof by the Lender to the Company, or (d) any representation or warranty of
the Company under the Bridge Notes Exchange and Conversion Agreement of even date herewith shall be materially false on the date it was made, or (e) an event
of default as specified in the Revolving and Reducing Senior Facility Credit Agreement among the Company, Telos Corporation ( a California
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corporation) and NationsBank, N.A. (the “Senior Credit Agreement”) shall have occurred and be continuing, if (and only if) such event results in acceleration of
the maturity of the indebtedness under such Senior Credit Agreement and such acceleration continues in effect.

2.2 If an Event of Default occurs, the Lender, at his option, may accelerate this Note and may by written notice to Borrower declare the entire unpaid
principal amount of this Note and all interest accrued and unpaid thereon to be immediately due and payable whereupon the unpaid principal amount and all such
accrued interest shall become and be forthwith due and payable, without presentment, demand, protest or further notice of any kind. The failure of the Lender to
give such notice shall, in no event, be deemed a waiver of any of the Lender rights hereunder as long as the Event of Default continues.

2.3 Upon default in the payment of the principal of this Note or any other sum payable hereunder when due upon demand, at maturity or by reason of
acceleration of maturity, or upon the occurrence of any other Event of Default hereunder Borrower agrees to pay all reasonable costs of collection incurred by the
holder of the Note, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, whether suit is brought or not, and all other costs and expenses reasonably connected with collection of
the indebtedness evidenced hereby.

III. SUBORDINATION

3.1 Payment of the principal of, interest on and Payment Premium on this Note are subordinate and subject in right of payment to the prior indefeasible
payment in full in cash or cash equivalents of all Senior Indebtedness (as such term is defined in the Subordination Agreement) in the manner and to the extent
provided in the Subordination Agreement, and each holder of this Note by such holder’s acceptance hereof, acknowledges and confirms such subordination,
represents and warrants that such holder has received and reviewed and become a party to the Subordination Agreement, and covenants and agrees to comply
with the provisions of the Subordination Agreement applicable to holders of the Series B Notes.

This Note shall be construed and enforced in accordance with, and governed by the laws of, the Commonwealth of Virginia without giving effect to conflict
of laws principles.

-6-



The parties hereto, including the undersigned Borrower and all guarantors and endorsers, hereby waive presentment, demand, notice, protest and all other
demands and notices in connection with the delivery, acceptance, performance and enforcement of this Note, and assent to extensions of time of payment, or
forbearance or other indulgence without notice.

Telos Corporation

A 4E
By:

Title: VPGC



Telos Corporation

19886 Ashburn Road
Ashburn, Virginia 20147-2358
Phone: 703-724-3800

Sir Leslie Porter
Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note

By signing below, I agree to an extension so that my Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note Due October 1, 2000, the principal sum of which SEVEN
HUNDRED NINE THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED NINETY-SEVEN AND 49/100 U.S. DOLLARS ($709,497.49) is now due April 1, 2001.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

WITNESS SIR LESLIE PORTER
'ﬁ\ﬁhﬂﬁ&l@ﬂ\-ﬁum /s/ Leslie Porter
Name Name
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Telos Corporation

19886 Ashburn Road
Ashburn, Virginia 20147-2358
Phone: 703-724-3800

March 28, 2000
VIA FACSIMILE 1 760 770 0759

Sir Leslie Porter
12506 Prestwick Court
Rancho Mirage, California 92270

RE: Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note

Dear Sir Leslie:

Telos Corporation (the “Company”) requests you and certain other investors agree to an extension of the Due Date of your Series B Senior Subordinated Secured
Note Due October 1, 2000, the principal sum of which is SEVEN HUNDRED NINE THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED NINETY-SEVEN AND 49/100 U.S.
DOLLARS ($709,497.49).

In consideration for granting this extension, Telos Corporation shall pay to you $16,600.00 (SIXTEEN THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED AND 00/100 U.S.
DOLLARS) on October 1, 2000.

By signing and returning this letter agreement, you agree that the outstanding and unpaid principal balance on your Note shall be due on April 1, 2001, together
with accrued and unpaid interest.

Sincerely,

/s/ William L.P. Brownley

William L.P. Brownley
Vice President & General Counsel

WLLB:aa

Enclosure



Telos Corporation

19886 Ashburn Road
Ashburn, Virginia 20147-2358
Phone: 703-726-2270

Fax: 703-729-7372

Michael P. Flaherty
Executive Vice President
General Counsel

March 27, 2001
VIA FACSIMILE 011 44 20 7616 4707

Sir Leslie Porter

PFM Advisory Limited
79 Mount Street
London

W1Y 5HJ

Dear Sir Leslie:

RE: Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note

Telos Corporation (the “Company”) requests you and certain other investors agree to an conversion and extension of the Due Date of your Series B Senior
Subordinated Secured Note Due April 1, 2001, the principal sum of which is SEVEN HUNDRED NINE THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED NINETY-SEVEN

AND 49/100 U.S. DOLLARS ($709,497.49).

Telos Corporation will convert TWO HUNDRED EIGHTY THREE SEVEN HUNDRED NINETY-NINE AND 00/100 ($283,799.00) into current maturities of
long term debt. The remainder or FOUR HUNDRED TWENTY FIVE SIX HUNDRED NINETY-EIGHT AND 00/100 ($425,698.00) will be extended until

April 1, 2002.

In consideration for granting this extension, Telos Corporation shall pay to you $10,642.00 (TEN THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED FORTY-TWO AND 00/100
U.S. DOLLARS) within 30 days of the Company’s receipt of this signed extension agreement.

By signing and returning this letter agreement, you agree that the outstanding and unpaid principal balance on your Note shall be due on April 1, 2002, together

with accrued and unpaid interest.
Sincerely,

/s/ Michael P. Flaherty

Michael P. Flaherty

Executive Vice President & General Counsel

MPF:das

Enclosure



TEIOS

Sir Leslie Porter
Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note

By signing below, in consideration for the payment of an extension fee, I agree to an extension so that my Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note Due
April 2, 2001, the principal sum of which FOUR HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED NINETY-EIGHT AND 00/100 U.S. DOLLARS
($425,698.00) is now due April 1, 2002.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

WITNESS: SIR LESLIE PORTER
/s/ Cary M. Cervantes /s/ Leslie Porter
Name: Name:

Cary M. Cervantes

49029 Mariposa

Palm Desert. CA. USA
92260



Sir Leslie Porter

PFM Advisory Limited
79 Mount Street
London W1Y 5HJ
England

Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note

In consideration for the payment of an extension fee(s) of 1.5% in the amount of $10,643.00 (ten thousand six hundred forty-three and 00/100 U.S. dollars) within
30 days of Telos Corporation’s receipt of this signed extension agreement, I agree to an extension so that my Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note
presently due April 1, 2002, the principal sum of which is $425,698.00 (four hundred twenty-five thousand six hundred ninety-eight and 00/100 U.S. dollars),
shall now be due on May 23, 2003. I also agree to an extension so that the remaining principal sum currently due and payable in the amount of $283,799.00 (two
hundred eighty-three thousand seven hundred ninety-nine and 00/100 U.S. dollars) shall now be due on May 23, 2003.

Additionally, notwithstanding the above, if by June 30, 2002, the entire principal sum of $709,497 (seven hundred and nine thousand four hundred ninety-seven
and 00/100 U.S. dollars) has not been paid, by July 31, 2002, the Company shall pay an additional extension fee of 1.5% in the amount of $10,643.00 (ten
thousand six hundred forty-three and 00/100 U.S. dollars) or such other amount equal to 1.5% of the principal balance remaining as of June 30, 2002.

SIR LESLIE PORTER Telos Corporation
/s/ Leslie Porter /s/ Michael P. Flaherty
Signature Michael P. Flaherty

Executive Vice President,
General Counsel, and
Chief Administrative Officer

Date: 15 March 2002 March 1, 2002



TEIOS

Telos Corporation

19886 Ashburn Road
Ashburn, Virginia 20147-2358
Phone: 703-726-2270

Fax: 703-729-7372

Michael P. Flaherty
Executive Vice President
General Counsel

March 1, 2002

Sir Leslie Porter

PFM Advisory Limited
79 Mount Street
London W1Y 5HJ
United Kingdom

RE: Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note

Dear Sir Leslie:

Telos Corporation (the “Company”) requests you and certain other investors agree to an extension of the due date of your Series B Senior Subordinated Secured
Note due April 1, 2002, the principal sum of which is $425,698.00 (four hundred twenty-five thousand six hundred ninety-eight and 00/100 U.S. dollars), and an
extension of the remaining principal sum of $283,799.00 (two hundred eighty-three thousand seven hundred ninety-nine and 00/100 U.S. dollars) which is
currently due and payable, to become due and payable on May 23, 2003.

In consideration for granting this extension, Telos Corporation shall pay an extension fee of 1.5% in the amount of $10,643.00 (ten thousand six hundred forty-
three and 00/100 U.S. dollars) within 30 days of the Company’s receipt of a signed extension agreement. Notwithstanding the above, if by June 30, 2002, the
entire principal sum of $709,497 (seven hundred and nine thousand four hundred ninety-seven) has not been paid, the Company shall pay an additional extension
fee of 1.5% in the amount of $10,643.00 (ten thousand six hundred forty-three and 00/100 U.S. dollars) or such other amount equal to 1.5% of the principal
balance remaining as of June 30, 2002.

Thank you for your consideration of the extension of your Note. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you require additional information.

Sincerely,

/s/ Michael P. Flaherty

Michael P. Flaherty

Executive Vice President, General Counsel and

Chief Administrative Officer



Sir Leslie Porter

PFM Advisory Limited
79 Mount Street
London W1Y 5HJ
England

Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note

In consideration for the payment of an extension fee(s) of 1.5% in the amount of $10,643.00 (ten thousand six hundred forty-three and 00/100 U.S. dollars) within
30 days of Telos Corporation’s receipt of this signed extension agreement, I Agree to an extension so that my Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note
presently due April 1, 2002, the principal sum of which is $425,698.00 (four hundred twenty-five thousand six hundred ninety-eight and 00/100 U.S. dollars),
shall now be due on May 23, 2003. I also agree to an extension so that the remaining principal sum currently due and payable in the amount of $283,799.00 (two
hundred eighty-three thousand seven hundred ninety-nine and 00/100 U.S. dollars) shall now be due on May 23, 2003.

Additionally, notwithstanding the above, if by June 30, 2002, the entire principal sum of $709,497 (seven hundred and nine thousand four hundred ninety-seven
and 00/100 U.S. dollars) has not been paid, by July 31, 2002, the Company shall pay an additional extension fee of 1.5% in the amount of $10,643.00 (ten
thousand six hundred forty-three and 00/100 U.S. dollars) or such other amount equal to 1.5% of the principal balance remaining as of June 30, 2002.

SIR LESLIE PORTER Telos Corporation
/s/ Leslie Porter /s/ Michael P. Flaherty
Signature Michael P. Flaherty

Executive Vice President,
General Counsel, and
Chief Administrative Officer

Date: March 1, 2002



ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER OF SUBORDINATED NOTES

Sir Leslie Porter (“Subordinated Noteholder”), with address at ¢/o Seymour Pierce Advisory Ltd., 79 Mount Street, UK-London W1K 2SN, hereby represents,
warrants, covenants to and requests the following from Telos Corporation, a Maryland corporation.

1. Subordinated Noteholder was financially interested in Telos Corporation, a Maryland corporation (“Telos”), in that Telos was indebted to Subordinated
Noteholder with respect to (i) a Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note and (ii) a Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note, both due May 23, 2003
(“Senior Subordinated Notes”).

2. Subordinated Noteholder has assigned and transferred any and all of his financial interest in said Subordinated Notes to Zollikon Investments SA, a
company registered in the British Virgin Islands (“Assignee”), with address at 26 Rue du Mont Blanc, P.O. Box 2211, 1201 Geneva 1, Switzerland. Consequently,
Telos may rely on any and all representations made by any Assignee’s officers or directors whose names and signature are listed on Exhibit A attached hereto.

3. Subordinated Noteholder requests that effective immediately any and all payments and distributions of principal, interest, or premium in respect of said
Subordinated Notes shall be made to Assignee. Bank details will be or have been provided to Telos under separate cover.

4. Subordinated Noteholder acknowledges that the Subordinated Notes are subject to a subordination agreement dated as of 11 October 2002 and entered
into between him, certain other holders of subordinated notes, and Foothill Capital Corporation, as Agent. Assignee has received a copy of said subordination
agreement and has agreed to abide by its terms and conditions in respect to the Subordinated Notes. Assignee’s acknowledgment is attached to this document as
Exhibit B.

The undersigned has executed and delivered this Assignment and Transfer as of this 15 day of December, 2002 under power of attorney, which is attached
as Exhibit C.

/s/ Peter D. Green

Peter D. Green for Sir Leslie Porter



EXHIBIT A
TO ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER OF SUBORDINATED NOTES

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Zollikon Investments SA, a British Virgin Island company

Address: 26 Rue du Mont Blanc
P.O. Box 2211
1201 Geneva 1
Switzerland

Telephone:

Fax:

Directors and Officers as of (date): 13 DECEMBER 2002

AS PER ATTACHED AUTHORISED SIGNATORIES LIST

Name Title Signature

SP (DIRECTORS) WORLDWIDE LIMITED IS THE SOLE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF ZOLLIKON INVESTMENTS SA. THE DIRECTORS OF SP
(DIRECTORS) WORLDWIDE LIMITED, TOGETHER WITH THE OFFICERS, ARE AS ON THE ATTACHED AUTHORISED SIGNATORIES LIST.



EXHIBIT B

TO ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER OF SUBORDINATED NOTES
ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Zollikon Investments SA, a company registered in the British Virgin Islands, with address at 26 Rue du Mont Blanc, P.O. Box 2211, 1201 Geneva 1, Switzerland,
is the assignee and holder of a Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note due May 23, 2003 and of a Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note due May 23,
2003. Zollikon Investments SA acknowledges that said notes are subject to a subordination agreement dated as of 11 October 2002 and entered into between Sir
Leslie Porter, certain other holders of subordinated notes, and Foothill Capital Corporation, as Agent, and herewith agrees to abide by any and all terms and
conditions of said subordination agreement in respect to the Subordinated Notes.

ZOLLIKON INVESTMENTS SA

Ly o7

! 3. el
Signature: —B = {
Title: DIRECTORS
Date: 13 DECEMBER 2002




Zollikon Investments SA
26 Rue du Mont Blanc
P.O. Box 2211

1201 Geneva 1
Switzerland

Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note Originally Issued
to Sir Leslie Porter by Telos Corporation

Pursuant to section 17 of the Subordination Agreement entered into on or about October 11, 2002, between Sir Leslie Porter, Foothill Capital Corporation, and
State Street Bank and Trust Company, we herewith agree to an extension of our Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note presently due May 23, 2002, the
principal sum of which is Two Hundred Thousand Four Hundred Ninety-Seven 00/100 Dollars ($209,497.00), to October 31, 2004.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

ZOLLIKON INVESTMENTS SA
SUCCESSOR IN INTEREST TO

SIR LESLIE PORTER Telos Corporation

By:

/S/ KLAUS BIEDERMANN & MARIO STAGGL /s/ Michael P. Flaherty

Signatures Michael P. Flaherty
Executive Vice President,

KLAUS BIEDERMANN & MARIO STAGGL General Counsel, and

Names Chief Administrative Officer

Directors

Title

Date: 13 December 2002 December 13, 2002



Zollikon Investments SA
Rue Kleberg 6

P.O. Box 2211

1201 Geneva 1
Switzerland

Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note

Pursuant to section 17 of the Subordination Agreement (“Subordination Agreement,” integrated hereto by reference), entered into on or about October 11, 2002,
with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. (formerly Foothill Capital Corporation) and State Street Bank and Trust Company, we herewith agree to an extension of our Series
B Senior Subordinated Secured Note issued by Telos Corporation, the principal sum of which is $209,497.00 (Two Hundred And Nine Thousand Four Hundred
Ninety-Seven 00/100 Dollars), to October 31, 2005.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

ZOLLIKON INVESTMENTS SA
SUCCESSOR IN INTEREST TO

SIR LESLIE PORTER Telos Corporation

By:

/s/ BRIAN PADGETT /s/ Michael P. Flaherty

Signature(s): BRIAN PADGETT Michael P. Flaherty
Executive Vice President,

SILEX MANAGEMENT LIMITED General Counsel, and

Name(s): Chief Administrative Officer

SOLE CORPORATE DIRECTOR
Title:

July 30, 2004 June 29, 2004
Date:




Zollikon Investments SA
Rue Kleberg 6

P.O. Box 2211

1201 Geneva 1
Switzerland

Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note

We herewith agree to an extension of our Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note issued by Telos Corporation, the principal sum of which is $209,497.00
(Two Hundred and Nine Thousand Four Hundred Ninety-Seven and 00/100 Dollars) to October 31, 2008. This Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note shall
remain subject to any and all terms and conditions of the Subordination Agreement (“Subordination Agreement,” integrated hereto by reference), entered into on
or about October 11, 2002 with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. (formerly Foothill Capital Corporation) and State Street Bank and Trust Company.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,
ZOLLIKON INVESTMENTS SA Telos Corporation
SUCCESSOR IN INTEREST TO

SIR LESLIE PORTER
By:

/s/ BRIAN PADGETT /s/ Therese K. Hathaway

Signature(s): Therese K. Hathaway
Vice President, Corporate Secretary
BRIAN PADGETT

Name(s):

DIRECTOR
Title:

March 16, 2005

Date:



Zollikon Investments SA

c/o Silex Management LTd.
Attn: Ms. Jenny Mauroux

6, Rue Kleberg, PO Box 2211
1201 Geneva

Switzerland

Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note

We herewith agree to an extension of our Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note issued by Telos Corporation, the principal sum of which is $209,497.49
(Two Hundred Nine Thousand, Four Hundred Ninety-Seven and 49/100 Dollars) to December 31, 2011. This Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note shall
remain subject to any and all terms and conditions of the Subordination Agreement (“Subordination Agreement,” integrated hereto by reference), entered into on
or about October 11, 2002 with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. (formerly Foothill Capital Corporation) and State Street Bank and Trust Company and previously
extended on March 16, 2005.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGE,

Zollikon Investments SA Telos Corporation

By:

/s LEONARD O’ BRIEN /s/ Therese K. Hathaway
Signature(s): Therese K. Hathaway

Vice President, Corporate Secretary

LEONARD O’ BRIEN
Name(s):

DIRECTOR
Title:

March 13, 2008

Date:



THIS NOTE HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND MAY NOT
BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED UNLESS IT IS SO REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE UNDER
SAID ACT AND LAWS. THIS NOTE IS SUBORDINATE AND JUNIOR IN RIGHT OF PAYMENT TO SENIOR INDEBTEDNESS DUE TO
NATIONSBANK, N.A. AND/OR CERTAIN OTHER BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, AS PROVIDED IN THE SUBORDINATION
AGREEMENT DATED AS OF OCTOBER 13, 1995 BY AND AMONG TELOS CORPORATION, A MARYLAND CORPORATION, TELOS
CORPORATION, A CALIFORNIA CORPORATION, NATIONSBANK, N.A. AND THE HOLDERS IDENTIFIED IN SCHEDULE A THERETO.

Herndon, Virginia
October 13, 1995

SERIES B SENIOR SUBORDINATED SECURED NOTE DUE OCTOBER 1, 2000

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, Telos Corporation, a Maryland corporation, with offices at 460 Herndon Parkway, Herndon, Virginia 22070 (hereinafter
referred to as “the Borrower” or “the Company”), promises to pay to the order of Toxford Corporation, or assigns, (hereinafter referred to as “Toxford
Corporation” or “Lender”), at c/o Rabobank, P.O. Box 348, St. Andrews House, Le Bordage, St. Peter Port, Guernsey, Channel Islands, or at such other offices or
at such other place or places as the holder hereof may from time to time designate in writing, the principal sum of ONE MILLION FOUR HUNDRED SIXTY-
SIX THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED TWENTY-SIX DOLLARS AND 53/100 ($1,466,626.53) on October 1, 2000 together with interest on the principal amount
hereof from time to time outstanding at the rate hereinafter provided until paid in full.

This is one of a series of the Company’s Notes known as its Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Notes Due October 1, 2000 (collectively referred to
herein as the “Series B Notes™), all of like tenor, except as to the identifying number and principal amount thereof and except for certain variations contained in
the Series B Note issued to Sir Leslie Porter. The Series B Notes have been issued in the aggregate principal amount of $6,493,581.93.

I. GENERAL TIMES

1.1 Interest only shall be payable at the rate of fourteen percent (14%) per annum, on the principal balance of this Note from time to time outstanding from
and after the date hereof, and shall be due and payable quarterly, until the principal has been



paid in full, on the first day of April, July, October, and January in each year. The first interest payment shall be due January 1, 1996 and shall include all interest
accrued from the date hereof until the date of such interest payment.

1.2 If not sooner paid, the outstanding and unpaid principal balance shall be paid on October 1, 2000, together with accrued and unpaid interest on this
Note. In addition, interest shall be payable at the rate provided in Section 1.1 hereof on any Payment Premium from the date such premium is due until paid in
full.

1.3 Principal, premium, if any, and interest on this note are payable in lawful money of the United States. The principal of this Note may be prepaid at any
time, after ten (10) days, written notice to the Lender, in whole or in part, and shall be accompanied by payment in cash of all accrued and unpaid interest on the
amount so prepaid, together with, to the extent not prohibited by applicable law, a Payment Premium.

1.4 In the event of a Public Offering of the common stock of the Company, or in the event of a Refinancing, the principal then outstanding shall become
immediately due and payable, together with, accrued and unpaid interest thereon, and, to the extent not prohibited by applicable law, a Payment Premium in an
amount equal to the lesser of (i) the Net Proceeds of such Public Offering or Refinancing or (ii) the amount determined in accordance with § 1.6(iv). The Net
Proceeds shall be applied toward the payment of the outstanding and unpaid principal balance of the Notes, accrued and unpaid interest thereon and, to the extent
not prohibited by applicable law, such Payment Premium.

1.5 In the event of a Merger or Dissolution, the principal then outstanding shall become immediately due and payable, together with accrued and unpaid
interest thereon and, to the extent not prohibited by applicable law, a Payment Premium in the amount determined in accordance with § 1.6(iv).
1.6 Definitions.

1) “Public Offering” shall mean the distribution and sale of the Company’s common stock (some of the proceeds of which sale are available to
the Company) pursuant to a registration statement (other than a registration statement on Form S-4 or Form S-8) which has been filed with
the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and become effective.

-



(ii) “Refinancing” shall mean a sale of securities of the Company which results in Net Proceeds to the Company in excess of $1,000,000, other
than (a) obligations for borrowed money due and payable within one year which are not extended, renewed, or refinanced beyond such due
date; or (b) other obligations for money borrowed from NationsBank and/or its successors, substitutes and participants and their respective
assigns and any refinancing thereof.

(iii)  “Net Proceeds” shall mean the proceeds to the Company after expenses of sale and distribution, including discounts, commissions and
brokerage and legal fees.

(iv) “Payment Premium” shall, except as otherwise provided in § 1.4, mean an amount equal to 13 /2% per annum, compounded semiannually
from and after the date hereof until paid, on the principal amount of this Note outstanding from time to time until the time of payment.

W) “Merger” shall mean a merger, consolidation or other combination to which the Company or any subsidiary is a party, in which the Company
is not the surviving corporation or which results in the acquisition of “beneficial ownership” of securities of the Company representing 50%
or more of the total number of votes that may be cast for the election of directors by any “person” or “group” (as such terms are defined in
Rule 13(d) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), or a sale by the Company of all or substantially all of its
assets.

(vi) “Dissolution” shall mean the adoption by the Board of Directors, and/or the shareholders of the Company of a resolution to dissolve the
Company and liquidate its assets, the filing by the Company of articles of dissolution or a similar application for dissolution with the
appropriate officer of the state of incorporation of the Company, the entry of an order or other action by such state dissolving the Company,
or the adoption by the Board of Directors or the shareholders of the Company of a plan of liquidation or a resolution approving a liquidating
distribution of the Company’s assets, whichever shall first occur.

-3-



1.7 At any time after the third anniversary of the date hereof, the holders of a majority in outstanding principal amount of the Series B Notes and the Series
C Notes issued by the Company contemporaneously herewith may request, in writing, that the Company effect a Public Offering, at the Company’s cost and
expense. Upon receipt of any such request, the Company shall, as expeditiously as possible, use its best efforts to effect a Public Offering, with the objective of
realizing Net Proceeds sufficient to pay the then-outstanding principal balance of the Series B Notes and the Series C Notes together with accrued, unpaid interest
thereon, and, to the extent not prohibited by applicable law, a Payment Premium in an amount determined in accordance with § 1.4.

1.8 If any payment of principal or interest on this Note shall become due on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday under the laws of the Commonwealth of
Virginia, or any other day on which banking institutions in the Commonwealth of Virginia are obligated or authorized by law or executive order to close, such
payment shall be made on the next succeeding business day in Virginia and any such extended time of the payment of principal shall not be included in
computing compound interest in connection with such payment.

1.9 Upon receipt by the Borrower of evidence reasonably satisfactory to it of the mutilation, destruction, loss or theft of this Note, the Borrower will make
and deliver to the owner a new note of like tenor in lieu of this Note so mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen.

1.10 Payments made on account hereof shall be applied first to accrued and unpaid interest, then to principal, then to interest on any unpaid Payment
Premium and then to the Payment Premium, if any.

1.11 All payments made by the Company on account of the Series B Notes or any of them shall be made pro rata, in proportion to the outstanding principal
balance of each of the Series B Notes outstanding at the time of any such payment.

1.12 The Company agrees that within 60 days of the date hereof it will enter into a security agreement with the holder granting to a collateral agent,
mutually acceptable to the Lender and the Company, for the holders of the Series B Notes, a perfected security interest in the Company’s plant, property and
equipment, pursuant to documents and agreements in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Lender.

4-



II. DEFAULT

2.1 It is expressly agreed by Borrower that the following shall be deemed to be Events of Default under this Note: (a) the failure to pay, when due, any
amount of principal, or no more than five days after due date any amount of premium, if any, or interest on this Note or the Series C Notes, or (b) in the event the
Borrower files any petition, or any petition is filed against it and not dismissed within sixty (60) days, under any bankruptcy or insolvency law or for the
appointment of a receiver for substantially all its assets or in the event the Borrower makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, (c) or any failure by
the Borrower to perform or observe any of the other covenants, agreements or provisions to be performed or observed by it under this Note or the Series C Notes,
and such default shall not be rectified or cured within 10 days after written notice thereof by the Lender to the Company, or (d) any representation or warranty of
the Company under the Bridge Notes Exchange and Conversion Agreement of even date herewith shall be materially false on the date it was made, or (e) an event
of default as specified in the Revolving and Reducing Senior Facility Credit Agreement among the Company, Telos Corporation (a California corporation) and
NationsBank, N.A. (the “Senior Credit Agreement”) shall have occurred and be continuing, if (and only if) such event results in acceleration of the maturity of
the indebtedness under such Senior Credit Agreement and such acceleration continues in effect.

2.2 If an Event of Default occurs, the Lender, at his option, may accelerate this Note and may by written notice to Borrower declare the entire unpaid
principal amount of this Note and all interest accrued and unpaid thereon to be immediately due and payable whereupon the unpaid principal amount and all such
accrued interest shall become and be forthwith due and payable, without presentment, demand, protest or further notice of any kind. The failure of the Lender to
give such notice shall, in no event, be deemed a waiver of any of the Lender rights hereunder as long as the Event of Default continues.

2.3 Upon default in the payment of the principal of this Note or any other sum payable hereunder when due upon demand, at maturity or by reason of
acceleration of maturity, or upon the occurrence of any other Event of Default hereunder Borrower agrees to pay all reasonable costs of collection incurred by the
holder of the Note, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, whether suit is brought or not, and all other costs and expenses reasonably connected with collection of
the indebtedness evidenced hereby.

-5-



III. SUBORDINATION

3.1 Payment of the principal of, interest on and Payment Premium on this Note are subordinate and subject in right of payment to the prior indefeasible
payment in full in cash or cash equivalents of all Senior Indebtedness (as such term is defined in the Subordination Agreement) in the manner and to the extent
provided in the Subordination Agreement, and each holder of this Note by such holder’s acceptance hereof, acknowledges and confirms such subordination,
represents and warrants that such holder has received and reviewed and become a party to the Subordination Agreement, and covenants and agrees to comply
with the provisions of the Subordination Agreement applicable to holders of the Series B Notes.

This Note shall be construed and enforced in accordance with, and governed by the laws of, the Commonwealth of Virginia without giving effect to conflict
of laws principles.

The parties hereto, including the undersigned Borrower and all guarantors and endorsers, hereby waive presentment, demand, notice, protest and all other
demands and notices in connection with the delivery, acceptance, performance and enforcement of this Note, and assent to extensions of time of payment, or
forbearance or other indulgence without notice.

Telos Corporation

A
By: K_.

Title: VPGC




Telos Corporation

19886 Ashburn Road
Ashburn, Virginia 20147-2358
Phone: 703-724-3800

March 28, 2000
VIA FACSIMILE 011 41 22 909 8939

Mr. Daniel M. Fleming
Trust Officer, Rathbones
Place de Saint Gervais 1
Case Postale 2049

1211 Geneve 1

RE: Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note (Toxford Corporation)

Dear Mr. Fleming:

Telos Corporation (the “Company”) requests Toxford Corporation and certain other investors agree to an extension of the Due Date of its Series B Senior
Subordinated Secured Note Due October 1, 2000, the principal sum of which is ONE MILLION FOUR HUNDRED SIXTY-SIX THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED
TWENTY-SIX AND 53/100 U.S. DOLLARS ($1,466,626.53).

In consideration for granting this extension, Telos Corporation shall pay to Toxford Corporation $34,400.00 (THIRTY-FOUR THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED
AND 00/100 U.S. DOLLARS) on October 1, 2000.

By signing and returning this letter agreement, you agree that the outstanding and unpaid principal balance on Toxford Corporation’s Note shall be due on April 1,
2001, together with accrued and unpaid interest.

Sincerely,

/s/ William L. P. Brownley

William L. P. Brownley
Vice President & General Counsel

WLLB:aa

Enclosure



Telos Corporation

19886 Ashburn Road
Ashburn, Virginia 20147-2358
Phone: 703-724-3800

Mr. Daniel M. Fleming
Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note

By signing below, I agree to an extension so that Toxford Corporation’s Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note Due October 1, 2000, the principal sum of
which ONE MILLION FOUR HUNDRED SIXTY-SIX THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED TWENTY-SIX AND 53/100 U.S. DOLLARS ($1,466, 626.53) is now
due April 1, 2001.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,
ATTEST: TOXFORD CORPORATION
By: /s/ Daniel M. Fleming Director of Toxford Corporation

Name: Mr. Daniel M. Fleming
Title:  Trust Officer, Rathbones




19886 Ashburn Road
Ashburn, Virginia 20147-2358
Phone: 703-726-2270

Fax: 703-729-7372

Michael P. Flaherty
Executive Vice President
General Counsel

March 27, 2001
VIA FACSIMILE 011 41 22 909 8939

Mr. Daniel M. Fleming
Trust Officer, Rathbones
Place de Saint Gervais 1
Case Postale 2049

1211 Geneve 1

Dear Mr. Fleming:

RE: Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note (Toxford Corporation)

Telos Corporation (the “Company”) requests Toxford Corporation and certain other investors agree to an extension of the Due Date of its Series B Senior
Subordinated Secured Note Due April 1, 2001, the principal sum of which is ONE MILLION FOUR HUNDRED SIXTY-SIX THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED
TWENTY-SEVEN AND 00/100 U.S. DOLLARS ($1,466,627.00).

Telos Corporation will convert SEVENTY-THREE THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED THIRTY-ONE AND 00/100 U.S. DOLLARS ($73,331.00) into current
maturities of long term debt. The remainder or ONE MILLION THREE HUNDRED NINETY-THREE THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED NINETY-SIX AND
00/100 U.S. DOLLARS ($1,393,296.00) will be extended until April 1, 2002.

In consideration for granting this extension, Telos Corporation shall pay to you $34,832.00 (THIRTY-FOUR THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED THIRTY-TWO
AND 00/100 U.S. DOLLARS) within 30 days of the Company’s receipt of this signed extension agreement.

By signing and returning this letter agreement, you agree that the outstanding and unpaid principal balance on your Note shall be due on April 1, 2002, together

with accrued and unpaid interest.
Sincerely,

/s/ Michael P. Flaherty

Michael P. Flaherty

Executive Vice President & General Counsel

MPF;das
Enclosure



TEIOS

Mr. Daniel M. Fleming
Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note

By signing below, I agree to an extension so that Toxford Corporation’s Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note Due April 1,2001, the principal sum
of which ONE MILLION THREE HUNDRED NINETY-THREE THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED NINETY-SIX AND 00/100 U.S. DOLLARS
($1,393,296.00) is now due April 1, 2002.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

ATTEST: TOXFORD CORPORATION

/Z;md/ By:  /s/ Mr. Daniel M. Fleming

Name: Mr. Daniel M. Fleming
Title:  Trust Officer, Rathbones




March 1, 2002

Mr. Daniel M. Fleming
Trust Officer, Rathbones
Place de Saint Gervais 1
1211 Geneve 1
Switzerland

RE: Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note (Toxford Corporation)
Dear Mr. Fleming:

Telos Corporation (the “Company”) requests Toxford Corporation and certain other investors agree to an extension of the due date of its Series B Senior
Subordinated Secured Note presently due April 1, 2002, the principal sum of which is $1,393,296.00 (one million three hundred ninety-three thousand two

hundred ninety-six and %/100 U.S. dollars), and an extension of the remaining principal sum of $73,331.00 (seventy-three thousand three hundred thirty-one and
99/100 U.S. dollars) which is currently due and payable, to become due and payable on May 23, 2003.

In consideration for granting this extension, Telos Corporation shall pay an extension fee of 1% in the amount of $14,666.00 (fourteen thousand six hundred
sixty-six and %/100 U.S. dollars) within 30 days of the Company’s receipt of a signed extension agreement. Notwithstanding the above, if by June 30, 2002, the
entire principal sum of $1,466,627.00 (one million four hundred sixty-six thousand six hundred twenty-seven and %/100 US dollars) has not been paid, by July 31,

2002, the Company shall pay an additional extension fee of 1% in the amount of $14,666.00 (fourteen thousand six hundred sixty-six and /100 US dollars) or
such other amount equal to 1% of the principal balance remaining as of June 30, 2002.

Thank you for your consideration of the extension of your Note. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you require additional information.
Sincerely,

Michael P. Flaherty
Executive Vice President, General Counsel,
and Chief Administrative Officer



Daniel M. Fleming
Trust Officer, Rathbones
Place de Saint Gervais 1
1211 Geneve 1
Switzerland

Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note (Toxford Corporation)

In consideration for the payment of an extension fee(s) of 1% in the amount of $14,666.00 (fourteen thousand six hundred sixty-six and %°/100 U.S. dollars) within
30 days of Telos Corporation’s receipt of this signed extension agreement, Toxford Corporation agrees to an extension so that its Series B Senior Subordinated
Secured Note presently due April 1, 2002, the principal sum of which is $1,393,296.00 (one million three hundred ninety-three thousand two hundred ninety-six
and %/100 U.S. dollars), shall now be due May 23, 2003. Toxford Corporation also agrees to an extension so that the remaining principal sum currently due and
payable in the amount of $73,331.00 (seventy-three thousand three hundred thirty-one and °/ 100 U.S. dollars) shall now be due on May 23, 2003.

Additionally, notwithstanding the above, if by June 30, 2002, the entire principal sum of $1,466,627.00 (one million four hundred sixty-six thousand six hundred
twenty-seven and %/100 US dollars) has not been paid, by July 31, 2002, the Company shall pay an additional extension fee of 1% in the amount of $14,666.00
(fourteen thousand six hundred sixty-six and /100 U.S. dollars) or such other amount equal to 1% of the principal balance remaining as of June 30, 2002.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

For TOXFORD CORPORATION Telos Corporation
Daniel M. Fleming

Title:

/s/ Daniel M. Fleming /s/ Michael P. Flaherty
Signature Michael P. Flaherty

Executive Vice President,
General Counsel, and
Chief Administrative Officer

Date: 11-3-2002 March 1, 2002



Mr. Daniel M. Fleming
Trust Officer, Rathbones
Place de Saint Gervais 1
1211 Geneve 1
Switzerland

Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note

Pursuant to section 17 of the Subordination Agreement entered into on or about October 11, 2002, with Foothill Capital Corporation and State Street Bank and
Trust Company, Toxford Corporation herewith agrees to an extension of its Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note presently due May 23, 2002, the principal
sum of which is One Million Seven Hundred Seventy-Nine Thousand Seven Hundred Twenty-Three ($1,466,627), to October 31, 2004.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

TOXFORD CORPORATION Telos Corporation

/s/ Michael P. Flaherty

Signature Michael P. Flaherty
Executive Vice President,
General Counsel, and
Chief Administrative Officer

Date: November 20, 2002



Toxford Corporation

c/o Mr. Daniel M. Fleming
Trust Officer, Rathbones
Place de Saint Gervais 1
1211 Geneva 1
Switzerland

Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note

Pursuant to section 17 of the Subordination Agreement (“Subordination Agreement,” integrated hereto by reference), entered into on or about October 11, 2002,
with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. (formerly Foothill Capital Corporation) and State Street Bank and Trust Company, we herewith agree to an extension of our Series
B Senior Subordinated Secured Note issued by Telos Corporation, the principal sum of which is $1,466,627.00 (One Million Four Hundred Sixty-Six Thousand
Six Hundred Twenty-Seven 00/100 Dollars), to October 31, 2005.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

TOXFORD CORPORATION Telos Corporation

By:

/s/ Daniel M. Fleming /s/ Michael P. Flaherty

Signature(s): Michael P. Flaherty
Executive Vice President,

Daniel M. Fleming General Counsel, and

Name(s): Chief Administrative Officer

Director

Title:

22-7-04 June 29, 2004

Date:



Toxford Corporation
Trust Officer, Rathbones
Place de Saint Gervais 1
1211 Geneva 1
Switzerland

Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note

We herewith agree to an extension of our Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note issued by Telos Corporation, the principal sum of which is $1,466,627.00
(One Million Four Hundred Sixty-Six Thousand Six Hundred Twenty-Seven and 00/100 Dollars) to October 31, 2008. This Series B Senior Subordinated
Secured Note shall remain subject to any and all terms and conditions of the Subordination Agreement (“Subordination Agreement,” integrated hereto by
reference), entered into on or about October 11, 2002 with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. (formerly Foothill Capital Corporation) and State Street Bank and Trust
Company.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

TOXFORD CORPORATION Telos Corporation
By:
/s/ Marcel Stettler /s/ Javier Otero /s/ Therese K. Hathaway
Signature(s): Therese K. Hathaway
Vice President, Corporate Secretary
Marcel Stettler Javier Otero
Name(s):
/s/ Michael P. Flaherty
Director Director Michael P. Flaherty
Title: Executive Vice President
General Counsel
14.04.05 14.04.05 March 16, 2005

Date:



Toxford Corporation
c/o Rathbones

Mr. Marcel Stettler
Place de Saint Gervais 1
1211 Geneva
Switzerland

Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note

We herewith agree to an extension of our Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note issued by Telos Corporation, the principal sum of which is $1,466,626.53
(One Million, Four Hundred Sixty-Six Thousand, Six Hundred Twenty-Six and 53/100 Dollars) to December 31, 2011. This Series B Senior Subordinated
Secured Note shall remain subject to any and all terms and conditions of the Subordination Agreement (“Subordination Agreement,” integrated hereto by
reference), entered into on or about October 11, 2002 with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. (formerly Foothill Capital Corporation) and State Street Bank and Trust
Company and previously extended on April 14, 2005.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

Toxford Corporation Telos Corporation
By:
/s/ Javier Otero /s/ Michael Fitzgerald /s/ Therese K. Hathaway
Signature(s): Therese K. Hathaway
Vice President, Corporate Secretary
Javier Otero Michael Fitzgerald
Name(s):
Director
Title:
17.03.08 March 13, 2008

Date:



THIS NOTE HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND MAY NOT
BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED UNLESS IT IS SO REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE UNDER
SAID ACT AND LAWS. THIS NOTE IS SUBORDINATE AND JUNIOR IN RIGHT OF PAYMENT TO SENIOR INDEBTEDNESS DUE TO
NATIONSBANK, N.A. AND/OR CERTAIN OTHER BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, AS PROVIDED IN THE SUBORDINATION
AGREEMENT DATED AS OF OCTOBER 13, 1995 BY AND AMONG TELOS CORPORATION, A MARYLAND CORPORATION, TELOS
CORPORATION, A CALIFORNIA CORPORATION, NATIONSBANK, N.A. AND THE HOLDERS IDENTIFIED IN SCHEDULE A THERETO.

THIS NOTE REPLACES THE NOTE ORIGINALLY ISSUED ON OCTOBER 13, 1995 AND INCORPORATES BY REFERENCE THE ATTACHED
AGREEMENT EXECUTED ON AUGUST 13, 2001 BETWEEN TELOS CORPORATION AND JOHN PORTER.

Ashburn, Virginia
August 15, 2001

SERIES B SENIOR SUBORDINATED SECURED NOTE DUE APRIL 1, 2002

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, Telos Corporation, a Maryland corporation, with offices at 19886 Ashburn Road, Ashburn, Virginia 20147-2358 (hereinafter
referred to as “the Borrower” or “the Company”), promises to pay to the order of John Porter, or assigns (hereinafter referred to as “John Porter” or “Lender”), at
Colette House, 52-55 Piccadilly, London W1J ODX, United Kingdom, or at such other offices or at such other place or places as the holder hereof may from time
to time designate in writing, the principal sum of THREE MILLION THREE HUNDRED SIXTY-ONE THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED FORTY-FIVE
DOLLARS AND 92/100 ($3,361,745.92) on April 1, 2002 together with interest on the principal amount hereof from time to time outstanding at the rate
hereinafter provided until paid in full.

This is one of a series of the Company’s Notes known as its Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Notes originally due October 1, 2000 (collectively
referred to herein as the “Series B Notes”), all of like tenor, except as to the identifying number and principal amount thereof and except for certain variations
contained in the Series B Note issued to Sir Leslie Porter. The Series B Notes have been issued in the aggregate principal amount of $6,493,581.93

I. GENERAL TERMS

1.1 Interest only shall be payable at the rate of fourteen percent (14%) per annum, on the principal balance of this Note from time to time outstanding from
and after the date hereof, and shall be due and payable quarterly, until the principal has been paid in full, on the first day of April, July, October, and January in
each year. The first interest payment shall be due January 1, 1996 and shall include all interest accrued from the date hereof until the date of such interest
payment.

Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note due April 1, 2002
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1.2 If not sooner paid, the outstanding and unpaid principal balance shall be paid on April 1, 2002, together with accrued and unpaid interest on this Note.
In addition, interest shall be payable at the rate provided in Section 1.1 hereof on any Payment Premium from the date such premium is due until paid in full.

1.3 Principal, premium, if any, and interest on this Note are payable in lawful money of the United States. The principal of this Note may be prepaid at any
time after ten (10) days, written notice to the Lender, in whole or in part, and shall be accompanied by payment in cash of all accrued and unpaid interest on the
amount so prepaid, together with, to the extent not prohibited by applicable law, a Payment Premium.

1.4 In the event of a Public Offering of the common stock of the Company, or in the event of a Refinancing, the principal then outstanding shall become
immediately due and payable, together with accrued and unpaid interest thereon, and, to the extent not prohibited by applicable law, a Payment Premium in an
amount equal to the lesser of (i) the Net Proceeds of such Public Offering or Refinancing or (ii) the amount determined in accordance with § 1.6(iv). The Net
Proceeds shall be applied toward the payment of the outstanding and unpaid principal balance of the Notes, accrued and unpaid interest thereon and, to the extent
not prohibited by applicable law, such Payment Premium.

1.5 In the event of a merger or dissolution, the principal then outstanding shall become immediately due and payable, together with accrued and unpaid
interest thereon and, to the extent not prohibited by applicable law, a Payment Premium in the amount determined in accordance with § 1.6(iv).

1.6 Definitions.

@) “Public Offering” shall mean the distribution and sale of the Company’s common stock (some of the proceeds of which sale are available to
the Company) pursuant to a registration statement (other than a registration statement on Form S-4 or Form S-8) which has been filed with
the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and become effective.

(ii) “Refinancing” shall mean a sale of securities of the Company which results in Net Proceeds to the Company in excess of $1,000,000, other
than (a) obligations for borrowed money due and payable within one year which are not extended, renewed or refinanced beyond such due
date; or (b) other obligations for money borrowed from NationsBank and/or its successors, substitutes and participants and their respective
assigns and any refinancing thereof.

(iii)  “Net Proceeds” shall mean the proceeds to the Company after expenses of sale and distribution, including discounts, commissions and
brokerage, and legal fees.

Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note due April 1, 2002
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(iv) “Payment Premium” shall, except as otherwise provided in § 1.4, mean an amount equal to 13'/2% per annum, compounded semiannually
from and after the date hereof until paid, on the principal amount of this Note outstanding from time to time until the time of payment.

W) “Merger” shall mean a merger, consolidation or other combination to which the Company or any subsidiary is a party, in which the Company
is not the surviving corporation or which results in the acquisition of “beneficial ownership” of securities of the Company representing 50%
or more of the total number of votes that may be cast for the election of directors by any “person” or “group” (as such terms are defined in
Rule 13(d) promulgated under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), or a sale by the Company of all or substantially all of
its assets.

(vi) “Dissolution” shall mean the adoption by the Board of Directors and/or the shareholders of the Company of a resolution to dissolve the
Company and liquidate its assets, the filing by the Company of articles of dissolution or a similar application for dissolution with the
appropriate officer of the state of incorporation of the Company, the entry of an order or other action by such state dissolving the Company,
or the adoption by the Board of Directors or the shareholders of the Company of a plan of liquidation or a resolution approving a liquidating
distribution of the Company’s assets, whichever shall first occur.

1.7 At any time after the third anniversary of the date hereof, the holders of a majority in outstanding principal amount of the Series B Notes and the Series
C Notes issued by the Company contemporaneously herewith may request, in writing, that the Company effect of a Public Offering, at the Company’s cost and
expense. Upon receipt of any such request, the Company shall, as expeditiously as possible, use its best efforts to effect a Public Offering, with the objective of
realizing Net Proceeds sufficient to pay the then-outstanding principal balance of the Series B Notes and the Series C Notes together with accrued, unpaid interest
thereof, and, to the extent not prohibited by applicable law, a Payment Premium in an amount determined accordance with § 1.4.

1.8 If any payment of principal or interest on this Note shall become due on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday under the laws of the Commonwealth of
Virginia, or any other day on which banking institutions in the Commonwealth of Virginia are obligated or authorized by law or executive order to close, such
payment shall be made on the next succeeding business day in Virginia and any such extended time of the payment of principal shall not be included in
computing compound interest in connection with such payment.

1.9 Upon receipt by the Borrower of evidence reasonably satisfactory to it of the mutilation, destruction, loss or theft of this Note, the Borrower will make
and deliver to the owner a new note of like tenor in lieu of this Note so mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen.

Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note due April 1, 2002
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1.10 Payments made on account hereof shall be applied first to accrued and unpaid interest, then to principal, then to interest on any unpaid Payment
Premium and then to the Payment Premium, if any.

1.11 All payments made by the Company on account of the Series B Notes or any of them shall be made pro rata, in proportion to the outstanding principal
balance of each of the Series B Notes outstanding at the time of any such payment.

1.12 The Company agrees that within 60 days of the date hereof it will enter into a security agreement with the holder granting to a collateral agent,
mutually acceptable to the Lender and the Company, for the holders of the Series B Notes, a perfected security interest in the Company’s plant, property and
equipment, pursuant to documents and agreements in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Lender.

II. DEFAULT

2.1 It is expressly agreed by Borrower that the following shall be deemed to be Events of Default under this Note: (a) the failure to pay, when due, any
amount of principal, or no more than five days after due date any amount of premium, if any, or interest on this Note or the Series C Notes, or (b) in the event the
Borrower files any petition, or any petition is filed against it and not dismissed within sixty (60) days, under any bankruptcy or insolvency law or for the
appointment of a receiver for substantially all its assets or in the event the Borrower makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, (c) or any failure by
the Borrower to perform or observe any of the other covenants, agreements or provisions to be performed or observed by it under this Note or the Series C Notes,
and such default shall not be rectified or cured within 10 days after written notice thereof by the Lender to the Company, or (d) any representation or warranty of
the Company under the Bridge Notes Exchange and Conversion Agreement dated October 13, 1995 shall be materially false on the date it was made, or (e) an
event of default as specified in the Revolving and Reducing Senior Facility Credit Agreement among the Company, Telos Corporation (a California corporation)
and NationsBank, N.A. (the “Senior Credit Agreement”) shall have occurred and be continuing, if (and only if) such event results in acceleration of the maturity
of the indebtedness under such Senior Credit Agreement and such acceleration continues in effect.

2.2 If an Event of Default occurs, the Lender, at his option, may accelerate this Note and may by written notice to Borrower declare the entire unpaid
principal amount of this Note and all interest accrued and unpaid thereon to be immediately due and payable whereupon the unpaid principal amount and all such
accrued interest shall become and be forthwith due and payable, without presentment, demand, protest or further notice of any kind. The failure of the Lender to
give such notice shall, in no event, be deemed a waiver of any of the Lender rights hereunder as long as the Event of Default continues.

2.3 Upon default in the payment of the principal of this Note or any other sum payable hereunder when due upon demand, at maturity or by reason of
acceleration of maturity, or upon the occurrence of any other Event of Default hereunder, Borrower agrees to pay all reasonable costs of collection incurred by the
holder of the Note, including reasonable attorneys’ fees,
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whether suit is brought or not, and all other costs and expenses reasonably connected with collection of the indebtedness evidenced hereby.

[II. SUBORDINATION

3.1 Payment of the principal of, interest on and Payment Premium on this Note are subordinate and subject in right of payment to the prior indefeasible
payment in full in cash or cash equivalents of all Senior Indebtedness (as such term is defined in the Subordination Agreement) in the manner and to the extent
provided in the Subordination Agreement, and each holder of this Note by such holder’s acceptance hereof, acknowledges and confirms such subordination,
represents and warrants that such holder has received and reviewed and become a party to the Subordination Agreement, and covenants and agrees to comply
with the provisions of the Subordination Agreement applicable to holders of the Series B Notes.

This Note shall be construed and enforced in accordance with, and governed by the laws of, the Commonwealth of Virginia without giving effect to conflict
of laws principles.

The parties hereto, including the undersigned Borrower and all guarantors and endorsers, hereby waive presentment, demand, notice, protest and all other
demands and notices in connection with the delivery, acceptance, performance and enforcement of this Note, and assent to extensions of time of payment, or
forbearance or other indulgence without notice.

Telos Corporation

teka/)

By:
Title: Executive Vice President
General Counsel
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Telos Corporation

19886 Ashburn Road
Ashburn, Virginia 20147-2358
Phone: 703-724-3800

March 28, 2000
VIA FACSIMILE 011 44 171 495 8877

Mr. John R. C. Porter
Telos Group

79 Mount Street
London W1Y5HJ
ENGLAND

RE: Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note

Dear Mr. Porter:

Telos Corporation (the “Company”) requests you and certain other investors agree to an extension of the Due Date of your Series B Senior Subordinated Secured
Note Due October 1, 2000, the principal sum of which is THREE MILLION THREE HUNDRED SIXTY-ONE THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED FORTY-
FIVE AND 92/100 U.S. DOLLARS ($3,361,745.92).

In consideration for granting this extension, Telos Corporation shall pay to you $78,800.00 (SEVENTY-EIGHT THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED AND 00/100
U.S. DOLLARS) on October 1, 2000.

By signing and returning this letter agreement, you agree that the outstanding and unpaid principal balance on your Note shall be due on April 1, 2001, together
with accrued and unpaid interest.

Sincerely,

/s/ William L. P. Brownley

William L. P. Brownley
Vice President & General Counsel

WLLB:aa

Enclosure



Telos Corporation

19886 Ashburn Road
Ashburn, Virginia 20147-2358
Phone: 703-724-3800

Mr. John R. C. Porter
Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note

By signing below, I agree to an extension so that my Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note Due October 1, 2000, the principal sum of which is THREE
MILLION THREE HUNDRED SIXTY-ONE THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED FORTY-FIVE AND 92/100 U.S. DOLLARS ($3,361,745.92) is now due April
1, 2001.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,
WITNESS. JOHN R. C. PORTER

/s/ JOHN R. C. PORTER

Name: Name:



Telos Corporation

19886 Ashburn Road
Ashburn, Virginia 20147-2358
Illegible

Michael P. Flaherty
Executive Vice President
General Counsel

March 27, 2001
VIA FACSIMILE 011 44 207 647 1610

Mr. John R. C. Porter
Telos Group

79 Mount Street
London W1Y5HJ
ENGLAND

RE: Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note

Dear Mr. Porter:

Telos Corporation (the “Company”) requests you and certain other investors agree to an extension of the Due Date of your Series B Senior Subordinated Secured
Note Due April 1, 2001, the principal sum of which is THREE MILLION THREE HUNDRED SIXTY-ONE THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED FORTY-SIX
AND 00/100 U.S. DOLLARS ($3,361,746.00).

In consideration for granting this extension, Telos Corporation shall pay to you $84,044.00 (EIGHTY FOUR THOUSAND FORTY FOUR AND 00/100 U.S.
DOLLARS) within 30 days of the company’s receipt of this signed extension agreement.

By signing and returning this letter agreement, you agree that the outstanding and unpaid principal balance on your Note shall be due on April 1, 2002, together
with accrued and unpaid interest.

Sincerely,

/s/ Michael P. Flaherty
Michael P. Flaherty
Executive Vice President and General Counsel

MPF:das

Enclosure
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19886 Ashburn Rd
Ashburn, Virginia 20147-2358
Illegible

Michael P. Flaherty
Executive Vice President
General Counsel

Mr. John R. C. Porter
Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note

By signing below, I agree to an extension so that my Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note Due April 1, 2001, the principal sum of which is
THREE MILLION THREE HUNDRED SIXTY-ONE THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED FORTY-FIVE AND %%/100 U.S. DOLLARS
($3,361,745.92) is now due April 1, 2002.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,
WITNESS: JOHN R.C. PORTER

/s/ JOHN R.C. PORTER
Name: Name:




AGREEMENT
THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between Telos Corporation (“Borrower”) and John Porter (the “Lender”) and executed this 13" day of August 2001.

WHEREAS the Borrower issued a Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note in the amount of $3,361,745.92 (the “Series B Note”) and a Series C Senior
Subordinated Unsecured Note in the amount of $4,079,413.36 (the “Series C Note”) to John Porter (the “Lender”), then at /o PFM Ltd. 12 Hans Road, London
SW3 1RT, United Kingdom, now at Colette House, 52-55 Piccadilly, London W1J ODX, United Kingdom, on October 13, 1995 (individually or collectively, the
“Notes™);

WHEREAS the Series B Note has been extended to April 1, 2002 by the mutual agreement of the parties;
WHEREAS the Borrower fully paid the Series C Note and Lender acknowledges said payment in full;

WHEREAS the Lender, after a diligent search, is not able to locate original promissory Notes and the parties mutually desire to replace the Notes with
newly executed promissory notes under the same terms and conditions as originally entered into,

NOW THEREFORE Borrower agrees to execute a replacement Series B Note and a replacement Series C Note, fully recognizing such Series C Note is
now cancelled. Lender further agrees to deliver such missing notes to Borrower for cancellation, if such notes are found or come into Lender’s possession or
control or into the possession or control of Lender’s successors or assigns. Conversely, should the Borrower locate the Notes, Borrower shall be entitled to destroy
said Notes, and will immediately notify Lender thereof.

1. Lender warrants and represents that Lender has diligently searched its books, records, and minutes kept by Lender with respect to the Notes and has

accordingly determined both the Series B and the Series C Notes were lost, stolen, or destroyed.

2. Lender further represents that neither the Series B nor the Series C Note was assigned, transferred, hypothecated, pledged or otherwise disposed of in
whole or in part and no other person or entity has any right, title, claim or interest in or to the notes.

3. Borrower agrees to execute replacement Notes in the form and for the amounts set forth in the promissory notes attached hereto and incorporated into
this Agreement with the express understanding that the total indebtedness to the Lender under the Notes and the replacement notes is $3,361,745.92.



4. The parties have full legal right, power, and authority to enter into and deliver this Agreement and to consummate the transactions set forth herein and to
perform all the terms and conditions hereto to be performed by it.

5. The execution and delivery of this Agreement by Borrower and the performance by it of the transactions contemplated herein has been duly and validly
authorized by all requisite corporate action of Borrower.

6. To the best of the parties’ knowledge, the statements, representations, and warranties set forth in this Agreement do not include any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary to make the statements, representations, and warranties made not misleading.

7. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia, without reference to the choice of
law principles thereof, as to all matters, including matters of validity, construction, effect, performance, and remedies.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the date first above written.

LENDER: JOHN PORTER BORROWER: TELOS CORPORATION
By: /s/ John Porter By: /s/ Michael P. Flaherty
John Porter Michael P. Flaherty, General Counsel



TEIOS

Telos Corporation

19886 Ashburn Road
Ashburn, Virginia 20147-2358
Phone: 703-726-2270

Fax: 703-729-7372

Michael P. Flaherty
Executive Vice President
General Counsel

March 1, 2002

Mr. John R.C. Porter
Telos Group

79 Mount Street
London W1Y5HJ
United Kingdom

Dear Mr. Porter:

RE: Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note:

Telos Corporation (the “Company”) requests you and certain other investors agree to an extension of the due date of your Series B Senior Subordinated Secured
Note presently due April 1, 2002, the principal sum of which is $3,361,746.00 (three million three hundred sixty-one thousand seven hundred forty-six and
00/100 U.S. dollars), to become due and payable on May 23, 2003.

In consideration for granting this extension, Telos Corporation shall pay an extension fee of 1% in the amount of $33,617.00 (thirty-three thousand six hundred
seventeen and 00/100 U.S. dollars) within 30 days of the Company’s receipt of a signed extension agreement. Notwithstanding the above, if by June 30, 2002, the
entire principal sum of $3,361,746.00 (three million three hundred sixty-one thousand seven hundred forty-six and 00/100 U.S. dollars) has not been paid, by
July 31, 2002, the Company shall pay an additional extension fee of 1% in the amount of $33,617.00 (thirty-three thousand six hundred seventeen and 00/100
U.S. dollars) or such other amount equal to 1% of the principal balance remaining as of June 30, 2002.

Thank you for your consideration of the extension of your Note. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you require additional information.

Sincerely,

/s/ Michael P. Flaherty

Michael P. Flaherty

Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief

Administrative Officer



John R.C. Porter
Telos Group

79 Mount Street
London W1Y5HJ
United Kingdom

Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note

In consideration for the payment of an extension fee(s) of 1% in the amount of $33,617.00 (thirty-three thousand six hundred seventeen and 00/100 U.S. dollars)
within 30 days of Telos Corporation’s receipt of this signed extension agreement. I agree to an extension so that my Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note
presently due April 1, 2002, the principal sum of which is $3,361,746.00 (three million three hundred sixty-one thousand seven hundred forty-six and 00/100 U.S.
dollars), shall now be due May 23, 2003.

Additionally, notwithstanding the above, if by June 30, 2002, the entire principal sum of $3,361,746.00 (three million three hundred sixty-one thousand seven
hundred forty-six and 00/100 U.S. dollars) has not been paid, by July 31, 2002, the Company shall pay an additional extension fee of 1% in the amount of
$33,617.00 (thirty-three thousand six hundred seventeen and 00/100 U.S. dollars) or such other amount equal to 1% of the principal balance remaining as of
June 30, 2002.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

JOHN R.C. PORTER Telos Corporation
/s/ JOHN R.C. PORTER /s/ Michael P. Flaherty
Signature Michael P. Flaherty

Executive Vice President, General Counsel, and Chief
Administrative Officer

Date: March 1, 2002



John R.C. Porter
Redbus Interhouse Plc
227 March Wall
London E14 9SD
United Kingdom

Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note

Pursuant to section 17 of the Subordination Agreement entered into on or about October 11, 2002, with Foothill Capital Corporation and State Street Bank and
Trust Company, I herewith agree to an extension of my Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note presently due May 23, 2002, the principal sum of which is
Eight Hundred Sixty-One Thousand Seven Hundred Forty-Six 00/100 Dollars ($861,746.00), to October 31, 2004.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

JOHN R.C. PORTER Telos Corporation
/s/ JOHN R.C. PORTER /s/ Michael P. Flaherty
Signature Michael P. Flaherty

Executive Vice President, General Counsel, and Chief
Administrative Officer

Date: 11/22/02 November 20, 2002



John R.C. Porter
34 Rue Concorde
1050 Brussels
Belgium

Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note

Pursuant to section 17 of the Subordination Agreement (“Subordination Agreement,” integrated hereto by reference), entered into on or about October 11, 2002,
with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. (formerly Foothill Capital Corporation) and State Street Bank and Trust Company, I herewith agree to an extension of my Series B
Senior Subordinated Secured Note issued by Telos Corporation, the principal sum of which is $861,746.00 (Eight Hundred Sixty-One Thousand Seven Hundred
Forty-Six and 00/100 Dollars), to October 31, 2005.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

JOHN R.C. PORTER Telos Corporation

By:

/s/ JOHN R.C. PORTER /s/ Michael P. Flaherty
Signature(s): Michael P. Flaherty

Executive Vice President,
General Counsel, and
Name(s): Chief Administrative Officer

Title:

June 29, 2004

Date:



John R.C. Porter

17 Carlyle Mansions
Cheyne Walk
London SW35LS
United Kingdom

Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note

We herewith agree to an extension of our Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note issued by Telos Corporation, the principal sum of which is $861,746.00
(Eight Hundred Sixty-One Thousand Seven Hundred Forty-Six and 00/100 Dollars) to October 31, 2008. This Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note shall
remain subject to any and all terms and conditions of the Subordination Agreement (“Subordination Agreement,” integrated hereto by reference), entered into on
or about October 11, 2002 with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. (formerly Foothill Capital Corporation) and State Street Bank and Trust Company.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

JOHN R.C. PORTER Telos Corporation

By:

/s/ JOHN R.C. PORTER /s/ Therese K. Hathaway
Signature(s): Therese K. Hathaway

Vice President, Corporate Secretary

Name(s):

Title:

March 25, 2005

Date:



Mr. John R.C. Porter
Chalet Petit Monde
1936 Verbier
Switzerland

Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note

We herewith agree to an extension of our Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note issued by Telos Corporation, the principal sum of which is $861,745.92
(Eight Hundred Sixty-One Thousand, Seven Hundred Forty-Five and 92/100 Dollars) to December 31, 2011. This Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note
shall remain subject to any and all terms and conditions of the Subordination Agreement (“Subordination Agreement,” integrated hereto by reference), entered
into on or about October 11, 2002 with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. (formerly Foothill Capital Corporation) and State Street Bank and Trust Company and
previously extended on March 25, 2005.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

John R.C. Porter Telos Corporation
/s/ John R.C. Porter /s/ Therese K. Hathaway
Signature(s): Therese K. Hathaway

Vice President, Corporate Secretary

Name(s):

Title:

April 3, 2008

Date:



EXHIBIT A-2

SERIES C SUBORDINATED NOTES

See Attached



THIS NOTE HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND MAY NOT
BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED UNLESS IT IS SO REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE UNDER
SAID ACT AND LAWS. THIS NOTE IS SUBORDINATE AND JUNIOR IN RIGHT OF PAYMENT TO SENIOR INDEBTEDNESS DUE TO
NATIONSBANK, N.A. AND/OR CERTAIN OTHER BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, AS PROVIDED IN THE SUBORDINATION
AGREEMENT DATED AS OF OCTOBER 13, 1995 BY AND AMONG TELOS CORPORATION, A MARYLAND CORPORATION, TELOS
CORPORATION, A CALIFORNIA CORPORATION, NATIONSBANK, N.A. AND THE HOLDERS IDENTIFIED IN SCHEDULE A THERETO.

Herndon, Virginia
October 13, 1995

SERIES C SENIOR SUBORDINATED UNSECURED NOTE DUE OCTOBER 1, 2000

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, Telos Corporation, a Maryland corporation, with offices at 460 Herndon Parkway, Herndon, Virginia 22070 (hereinafter
referred to as “the Borrower” or “the Company”), promises to pay to the order of Sir Leslie Porter (hereinafter referred to as Lender”), c/o Personal Financial
Management Ltd., 12 Hans Road, London SW3, 1RT, England, at such other offices or at such other place or places as the holder hereof may from time to time
designate in writing, the principal sum of EIGHT HUNDRED SIXTY THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED SIXTY-ONE DOLLARS AND 42/100 ($860,961.42) on
October 1, 2000 together with interest on the principal amount hereof from time to time outstanding at the rate hereinafter provided until paid in full.

This is one of a series of the Company’s Notes known as its Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Notes Due October 1, 2000 (collectively referred to
herein as the “Series C Notes™), all of like tenor, except as to the identifying number and principal amount thereof and except for certain variations contained in
this Note. The Series C Notes have been issued in the aggregate principal amount of $7,879,835.51

I. GENERAL TERMS

1.1 Interest only shall be payable at the rate of fourteen percent (14%) per annum, on the principal balance of this Note from time to time outstanding from
and after the date hereof, and shall be due and payable quarterly, until the principal has been paid in full, on the first day of April, July, October, and January in
each year. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the rate of



interest shall be increased to an amount necessary to result in a payment to the holder of fourteen percent (14%) per annum net of withholding for United States
Federal Income Taxes, it being contemplated that Borrower shall receive substantiation for Federal Income Tax purposes of circumstances supporting withholding
at a rate no greater than seventeen and one-half percent (17 /2%) of interest hereunder. The first interest payment shall be due January 1, 1996 and shall include
all interest accrued from the date hereof until the date of such interest payment.

1.2 If not sooner paid, the outstanding and unpaid principal balance shall be paid on October 1, 2000, together with accrued and unpaid interest on this
Note. In addition, interest shall be payable at the rate provided in Section 1.1 hereof on any Payment Premium from the date such premium is due until paid in
full.

1.3 Principal, premium, if any, and interest on this note are payable in lawful money of the United States. The principal of this Note may be prepaid at any
time after ten (10) days, written notice to the Lender, in whole or in part, and shall be accompanied by payment in cash of all accrued and unpaid interest on the
amount so prepaid, together with, to the extent not prohibited by applicable law, a Payment Premium.

1.4 In the event of a Public Offering of the common stock of the Company, or in the event of a Refinancing, the principal then outstanding shall become
immediately due and payable, together with, accrued and unpaid interest thereon, and, to the extent not prohibited by applicable law, a Payment Premium in an
amount equal to the lesser of (i) the Net Proceeds of such Public Offering or Refinancing or (ii) the amount determined in accordance with § 1.6(iv). The Net
Proceeds shall be applied toward the payment of the outstanding and unpaid principal balance of the Notes, accrued and unpaid interest thereon and, to the extent
not prohibited by applicable law, such Payment Premium.

1.5 In the event of a Merger or Dissolution, the principal then outstanding shall become immediately due and payable, together with accrued and unpaid
interest thereon and, to the extent not prohibited by applicable law, a Payment Premium in the amount determined in accordance with § 1.6(iv).

1.6 Definitions.

@) “Public Offering” shall mean the distribution and sale of the Company’s common stock (some of the proceeds of which sale are available to
the Company) pursuant to a registration statement

-



(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(other than a registration statement on Form S-4 or Form S-8) which has been filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and
become effective.

(“Refinancing” shall mean a sale of securities of the Company which results in Net Proceeds to the Company in excess of $1,000,000, other
than (a) obligations for borrowed money due and payable within one year which are not extended, renewed or refinanced beyond such due
date; (b) other obligations for money borrowed from NationsBank and/or its successors, substitutes and participants and their respective
assigns and any refinancing thereof.

“Net Proceeds” shall mean the proceeds to the Company after expenses of sale and distribution, including discounts, commissions and
brokerage and legal fees.

“Payment Premium” shall mean an amount equal to (a) 13 /2% per annum, compounded semiannually from and after the date hereof until
paid, on the principal amount of this Note outstanding from time to time until the time of payment minus (b) the cumulative amount payable
by the Company on account of withholding taxes with respect to interest payable pursuant to Section 1.1 to the date of payment of such
premium. For the avoidance of doubt, the Payment Premium shall not itself be increased on account of withholding taxes, but shall be
subject to, and the amount remitted to the holder reduced by, any withholding tax to which the Payment Premium is subject, with the result
that the total cost to the Company for interest, Payment Premium and withholding taxes shall equal twenty-seven and one-half percent (27
1/2 %) per annum on the principal outstanding from time to time to the date of payment of Payment Premium.

-3-



W) “Merger” shall mean a merger, consolidation or other combination to which the Company or any subsidiary is a party, in which the Company
is not the surviving corporation or which results in the acquisition of “beneficial ownership” of securities of the company representing 50%
or more of the total number of votes that may be cast for the election of directors by any “person” or “group” (as such terms are defined in
Rule 13(d) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), or a sale by the company of all or substantially all of its
asset.

(vi) “Dissolution” shall mean the adoption by the Board of Directors and/or the shareholders of the company of a resolution to dissolve the
Company and liquidate its assets, the filling by the Company of articles of dissolution or a similar application for dissolution with the
appropriate officer of the state of incorporation of the Company, the entry of an order or other action by such state dissolving the Company,
or the adoption by the Board of the Directors or the shareholders of the Company of a plan of liquidation or a resolution approving a
liquidating distribution of the Company’s assets, whichever shall first occur.

1.7 At any time after the third anniversary of the date hereof, the holders of a majority in outstanding principal amount of the Series C Notes and the Series
B Notes issued by the Company contemporaneously herewith may request, in writing, that the Company effect a Public Offering, at the Company’s cost and
expense. Upon receipt of any such request, the company shall, as expeditiously as possible, use its best efforts to effect a Public Offering, with the objective of
realizing Net Proceeds sufficient to pay the then-outstanding principal balance of the Series B Notes and the Series B Notes together with accrued, unpaid interest
thereon, and, to the extent not prohibited by applicable law, a Payment Premium in an amount determined in accordance with $1.4.

1.8 If any payment of principal or interest on this Note shall become due on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday under the laws of the Commonwealth of
Virginia, or any other day on which banking institutions in the Commonwealth of Virginia are obligated or authorized by law or executive order to close, such
payment shall be made on the next succeeding business day in Virginia and any such extended time of the payment of principal shall not be included in
computing compound interest in connection with such payment.

4-



1.9 Upon receipt by the Borrower of evidence reasonably satisfactory to it of the mutilation, destruction, loss or theft of this Note, the Borrower will make
and deliver to the owner a new note of like tenor in lieu of this Note so mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen.

1.10 Payments made on account hereof shall be applied first to accrued and unpaid interest, then to principal, then to interest on any unpaid Payment
Premium and then to the Payment Premium, if any.

1.11 All payment made by the Company on account of the Series C Notes or any of them shall be made pro rata, in proportion to the outstanding principal
balance of each of the Series C Notes outstanding at the time of any such payment.

II. DEFAULT

2.1 It is expressly agreed by Borrower that the following shall be deemed to be Events of Default under this Note: (a) the failure to pay, when due, any
amount of principal, or no more than five days after due date any amount of premium, if any, or interest on this Note or the Series B Notes, or (b) in the event the
Borrower files any petition, or any petition is filed against it and not dismissed within sixty (60) days, under any bankruptcy or insolvency law or for the
appointment of a receiver for substantially all its assets or in the event the Borrower makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, (c) or any failure by
the Borrower to perform or observe any of the other covenants, agreements or provisions to be performed or observed by it under this Note or the Series B Notes ,
and such default shall not be rectified or cured within 10 days after written notice thereof by the Lender to the Company, or (d) any representation or warranty of
the Company under the Bridge Notes Exchange and Conversion Agreement of even date herewith shall be materially false on the date it was made, or (e) an event
of default as specified in the Revolving and Reducing Senior Facility Credit Agreement among the Company, Telos Corporation (a California corporation) and
NationsBank, N.A. (the “Senior Credit Agreement”) shall have occurred and be continuing, if (and only if) such event results in acceleration of the maturity of
the indebtedness under such Senior Credit Agreement and such acceleration continues in effect.

2.2 If an Event of Default occurs, the Lender, at his option, may accelerate this Note and may by written notice to Borrower declare the entire unpaid
principal amount of this Note and all interest accrued and unpaid thereon to be immediately due and payable whereupon the unpaid principal amount and all such

-5-



accrued interest shall become and be forthwith due and payable; without presentment, demand, protest or further notice of any kind. The failure of the Lender to
give such notice shall, in no event, be deemed a waiver of any of the Lender rights hereunder as long as the Event of Default continues.

2.3 Upon default in the payment of the principal of this Note or any other sum payable hereunder when due upon demand, at maturity or by reason of
acceleration of maturity, or upon the occurrence of any other Event of Default hereunder Borrower agrees to pay all reasonable costs of collection incurred by the
holder of the Note, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, whether suit is brought or not, and all other costs and expenses reasonably connected with collection of
the indebtedness evidenced hereby.

III. SUBORDINATION

3.1 Payment of the principal of, interest on and Payment Premium on this Note are subordinated and subject in right of payment to the prior indefeasible
payment in full in cash or cash equivalents of all Senior Indebtedness (as such term is defined in the Subordination Agreement) in the manner and to the extent
provided in the Subordination Agreement, and each holder of this Note by such holder’s acceptance hereof, acknowledges and confirms such subordination,
represents and warrants that such holder has received and reviewed and become a party to the Subordination Agreement, and covenants and agrees to comply
with the provisions of the Subordination Agreement applicable to the holders of the Series C notes.

This Note shall be construed and enforced in accordance with, and governed by the laws of, the Commonwealth of Virginia without giving effect to conflict
of laws principles.

The parties hereto, including the undersigned Borrower and all guarantors and endorsers, hereby waive presentment, demand, notice, protest and all other
demands and notice in connection with the delivery, acceptance, performance and enforcement of this Note, and assent to extensions of time of payment, or
forbearance or other indulgence without notice.

Telos Corporation

2

By N

Title: VPGC




Telos Corporation

19886 Ashburn Road
Ashburn, Virginia 20147-2358
Phone: 703-724-3800

March 28, 2000
VIA FACSIMILE 1 760 770 0759

Sir Leslie Porter
12506 Prestwick Court
Rancho Mirage, California 92270

RE: Series C Senior Subordinated Secured Note

Dear Sir Leslie:

Telos Corporation (the “Company”) requests you and certain other investors agree to an extension of the Due Date of your Series C Senior Subordinated Secured
Note Due October 1, 2000, the principal sum of which is EIGHT HUNDRED SIXTY THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED SIXTY-ONE AND #*/100 U.S.
DOLLARS ($860,961.42)

In consideration for granting this extension, Telos Corporation shall pay to you $20,200.00 (TWENTY THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED AND %/100 U.S.
DOLLARS ) on October 1, 2000.

By signing and returning this letter agreement, you agree that the outstanding and unpaid principal balance on your Note shall be due on April 1, 2001, together
with accrued and unpaid interest.

Sincerely,

/s/ William L. P. Brownley
William L. P. Brownley
Vice President & General Counsel

WLLB:aa

Enclosure



Telos Corporation

Sir Leslie Porter
Series C Senior Subordinated Secured Note

By signing below, I agree to an extension so that my Series C Senior Subordinated Secured Note Due October 1, 2000, the principal sum of which is EIGHT
HUNDRED SIXTY THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED SIXTY-ONE AND 42/100 U.S. DOLLARS ($860,961.42) is now due April 1, 2001.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

WITNESS SIR LESLIE PORTER
T ; /s/ SIR LESLIE PORTER

Name: Name

HOUSEKEEPER

STUDIO 8 CLIFFTOWER

12 RAMAT YAM ST

HERRILYA PITUACH

ISRAEL 46581



Ashburn, Virginia 20147-2358
Phone: 703-726-2270
Fax: 703-729-7372

Michael P. Flaherty
Executive Vice President,
General Counsel

March 27, 2001
VIA FACSIMILE 011 44 20 7616 4707

Sir Leslie Porter

PFM Advisory Limited
79 Mount Street
London

W1Y 5HJ

RE: Series C Senior Subordinated Secured Note

Dear Sir Leslie:

Telos Corporation (the “Company”) requests you and certain other investors agree to an conversion and extension of the Due Date of your Series B Senior
Subordinated Secured Note Due April 1, 2001, the principal sum of which is EIGHT HUNDRED SIXTY THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED SIXTY-ONE AND

00/100 U.S. DOLLARS ($860,961.00)

Telos Corporation will convert THREE HUNDRED FORTY-FOUR THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED EIGHTY-FOUR AND 00/100 ($344,384.00) into current
maturities of long term debt. The remainder or FIVE HUNDRED SIXTEEN THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED SEVENTY-SEVEN AND 00/100 ($516,577.00)

will be extended until April 1, 2002.

In consideration for granting this extension, Telos Corporation shall pay to you $12,914.00 (TWELVE THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED FOURTEEN AND
00/100 U.S. DOLLARS) within 30 days of the Company’s receipt of this signed extension agreement.

By signing and returning this letter agreement, you agree that the outstanding and unpaid principal balance on your Note shall be due on April 1, 2002, together

with accrued and unpaid interest.
Sincerely,

/s/ Michael P. Flaherty

Michael P. Flaherty

Executive Vice President & General Counsel

MPF:das

Enclosure
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Sir Leslie Porter
Series C Senior Subordinated Secured Note

By signing below, in consideration for the payment of an extension fee, I agree to an extension so that my Series C Senior Subordinated Secured Note Due
April 2, 2001, the principal sum of which FIVE HUNDRED SIXTEEN THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED SEVENTY-SEVEN AND 00/100 U.S. DOLLARS
($516,577.00) is now due April 1, 2002.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

WITNESS: SIR LESLIE PORTER
/s/ CARY M. CERVANTES /s/ SIR LESLIE PORTER
Name: Name:

CARY M. CERVANTES
43029 MARIPOSA
PALM DESERT, CA USA 92260

2 April 2001



Telos Corporation

19886 Ashburn Road
Ashburn, Virginia 20147-2358
Phone: 703-728-2270

Fax: 703-729-7372

Michael P. Flaherty
Executive Vice President
General Counsel

March 1, 2002

Sir Leslie Porter

PFM Advisory Limited
79 Mount Street
London W1Y 5HJ
United Kingdom

RE: Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note

Dear Sir Leslie:

Telos Corporation (the “Company”) requests you and certain other investors agree to an extension of the due date of your Series C Senior Subordinated
Unsecured Note presently due April 1, 2002, the principal sum of which is $516,577.00 (five hundred sixteen thousand five hundred seventy-seven and 00/100
U.S. dollars), and an extension of the remaining principal sum of $344,384.00 (three hundred forty-four thousand three hundred eighty-four and 00/100 U.S.
dollars) which is currently due and payable, to become due and payable on May 23, 2003.

In consideration for granting this extension, Telos Corporation shall pay an extension fee of 1.5% in the amount of $12,915.00 (twelve thousand nine hundred
fifteen and 00/100 U.S. dollars) within 30 days of the Company’s receipt of a signed extension agreement. Notwithstanding the above, if by June 30, 2002, the
entire principal sum of $860,961 (eight hundred sixty thousand nine hundred sixty-one and 00/100 US dollars) has not been paid, by July 31, 2002, the Company
shall pay an additional extension fee of 1.5% in the amount of $12,915.00 (twelve thousand nine hundred fifteen and 00/100 U.S. dollars) or such other amount
equal to 1.5% of the principal balance remaining as of June 30, 2002.

Thank you for your consideration of the extension of your Note. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you require additional information.
Sincerely,

/s/ Michael P. Flaherty

Michael P. Flaherty

Executive Vice President, General Counsel,
and Chief Administrative Officer




Sir Leslie Porter

PFM Advisory Limited
79 Mount Street
London W1Y 5HJ
United Kingdom

Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note

In consideration for the payment of an extension fee(s) of 1.5% in the amount of $12,915.00 (twelve thousand nine hundred fifteen and 00/100 U.S. dollars)
within 30 days of Telos Corporation’s receipt of this signed extension agreement, I agree to an extension so that my Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note
presently due April 1, 2002, the principal sum of which is $516,577.00 (five hundred sixteen thousand five hundred seventy-seven and 00/100 U.S. dollars) shall
now be due May 23, 2003. I also agree to an extension so that the remaining principal sum currently due and payable in the amount of $344,384.00 (three
hundred forty-four thousand three hundred eighty-four and 00/100 U.S. dollars) shall now be due May 23, 2003.

Additionally, notwithstanding the above, if by June 30, 2002, the entire principal sum of $860,961 (eight hundred sixty thousand nine hundred sixty-one and
00/100 US dollars) has not been paid, by July 31, 2002, the Company shall pay an additional extension fee of 1.5% in the amount of $12,915.00 (twelve thousand
nine hundred fifteen and 00/100 U.S. dollars) or such other amount equal to 1.5% of the principal balance remaining as of June 30, 2002.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

/s/ SIR LESLIE PORTER

SIR LESLIE PORTER Telos Corporation

/s/ SIR LESLIE PORTER /s/ Michael P. Flaherty
Signature Michael P. Flaherty

Executive Vice President,
General Counsel, and
Chief Administrative Officer

Date: 15 March ‘02 March 1, 2002




ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER OF SUBORDINATED NOTES

Sir Leslie Porter (“Subordinated Noteholder”), with address at ¢/o Seymour Pierce Advisory Ltd., 79 Mount Street, UK-London W1K 2SN, hereby represents,
warrants, covenants to and requests the following from Telos Corporation, a Maryland corporation.

1. Subordinated Noteholder was financially interested in Telos Corporation, a Maryland corporation (“Telos”), in that Telos was indebted to Subordinated
Noteholder with respect to (i) a Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note and (ii) a Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note, both due May 23, 2003
(“Senior Subordinated Notes”).

2. Subordinated Noteholder has assigned and transferred any and all of his financial interest in said Subordinated Notes to Zollikon Investments SA, a
company registered in the British Virgin Islands (“Assignee”), with address at 26 Rue du Mont Blanc, P.O. Box 2211, 1201 Geneva 1, Switzerland. Consequently,
Telos may rely on any and all representations made by any of Assignee’s officers or directors whose names and signatures are listed on Exhibit A attached hereto.

3. Subordinated Noteholder requests that effective immediately any and all payments and distributions of principal, interest, or premium in respect of said
Subordinated Notes shall be made to Assignee. Bank details will be or have been provided to Telos under separate cover.

4. Subordinated Noteholder acknowledges that the Subordinated Notes are subject to a subordination agreement dated as of 11 October 2002 and entered
into between him, certain other holders of subordinated notes, and Foothill Capital Corporation, as Agent. Assignee has received a copy of said subordination
agreement and has agreed to abide by its terms and conditions in respect to the Subordinated Notes. Assignee’s acknowledgment is attached to this document as
Exhibit B.

The undersigned has executed and delivered this Assignment and Transfer as of this 15 day of December, 2002 under power of attorney, which is attached
as Exhibit C.

/s/ Peter D. Green

Peter D. Green for Sir Leslie Porter



EXHIBIT A
TO ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER OF SUBORDINATED NOTES

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Zollikon Investments SA, a British Virgin Island company

Address: 26 Rue du Mont Blanc
P.O. Box 2211
1201 Geneva 1
Switzerland

Telephone:

Fax:

Directors and Officers as of (date): 13 DECEMBER 2002
AS PER ATTACHED AUTHORISED SIGNATORIES LIST

Name Title Signature

SP (DIRECTORS) WORLDWIDE LIMITED IS THE SOLE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF ZOLLIKON INVESTMENTS SA. THE DIRECTORS OF SP
(DIRECTORS) WORLDWIDE UNITED, TOGETHER WITH THE OFFICERS, ARE AS ON THE ATTACHED AUTHORISED SIGNATORIES LIST.

o SN P



EXHIBIT B
TO ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER OF SUBORDINATED NOTES

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Zollikon Investments SA, a company registered in the British Virgin Islands, with address at 26 Rue du Mont Blanc, P.O. Box 2211, 1201 Geneva 1, Switzerland,
is the assignee and holder of a Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Note due May 23, 2003 and of a Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note due May 23,
2003. Zollikon Investments SA acknowledges that said notes are subject to a subordination agreement dated as of 11 October 2002 and entered into between Sir
Leslie Porter, certain other holders of subordinated notes, and Foothill Capital Corporation, as Agent, and herewith agrees to abide by any and all terms and
conditions of said subordination agreement in respect to the Subordinated Notes.

ZOLLIKON INVESTMENTS SA

P

g

Signature:

Title: DIRECTORS

Date: 13 DECEMBER 2002




Zollikon Investments SA
26 Rue du Mont Blanc
P.O. Box 2211

1201 Geneva 1
Switzerland

Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note
Originally Issued to Sir Leslie Porter

Pursuant to sections 17 of the Subordination Agreement entered into on or about October 11, 2002, between Sir Leslie Porter, Foothill Capital Corporation, and
State Street Bank and Trust Company, we herewith agree to an extension of our Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note presently due May 23, 2002, the
principal sum of which is Eight Hundred Sixty Thousand Nine Hundred Sixty-One 00/100 Dollars ($860,961.00), to October 31, 2004.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

ZOLLIKON INVESTMENTS SA
SUCCESSOR IN INTEREST TO

SIR LESLIE PORTER Telos Corporation

By:

/s/ KLAUS BIEDERMANN & MARIO STAGGL /s/ Michael P. Flaherty

Signatures Michael P. Flaherty
Executive Vice President

KLAUS BIEDERMANN & MARIO STAGGL General Counsel, and

Names Chief Administrative Officer

DIRECTORS

Title

Date: 13 DECEMBER 2002 December 13, 2002




Zollikon Investments SA
Rue Kleberg 6

P.O. Box 2211

1201 Geneva 1
Switzerland

Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note

Pursuant to section 17 of the Subordinations Agreement (“Subordination Agreement,” integrated hereto by reference), entered into on or about October 11, 2002,
with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. (formerly Foothill Capital Corporation) and State Street Bank and Trust Company, we herewith agree to an extension of our Series
C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note issued by Telos Corporation, the principal sum of which is $860,961.00 (Eight Hundred Sixty Thousand Nine Hundred
Sixty-One 00/100 Dollars), to October 31, 2005.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

ZOLLIKON INVESTMENTS SA
SUCCESSOR IN INTEREST TO

SIR LESLIE PORTER Telos Corporation

By:

/s/ BRIAN PADGETT /s/ Michael P. Flaherty
Signature(s): BRIAN PADGETT Michael P. Flaherty

Executive Vice President,
SILEX MANAGEMENT LIMITED General Counsel, and

Name(s): Chief Administrative Officer

SOLE CORPORATE DIRECTOR
Title

July 30, 2004 June 29, 2004
Date:




Zollikon Investments SA
Rue Kleberg 6

P.O. Box 2211

1201 Geneva 1
Switzerland

Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note

We herewith agree to an extension of our Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note issued by Telos Corporation, the principal sum of which is $860,961.00
(Eight Hundred Sixty Thousand Nine Hundred Sixty-One and 00/100 Dollars) to October 31, 2008. This Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note shall
remain subject to any and all terms and conditions of Subordination Agreement (“Subordination Agreement,” integrated hereto by reference), entered into on or
about October 11, 2002 with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. (formerly Foothill Capital Corporation) and State Street Bank and Trust Company.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

ZOLLIKON INVESTMENTS SA Telos Corporation
SUCCESSOR IN INTEREST

TO SIR LESLIE PORTER

By:

/s/ BRIAN PADGETT /s/ Therese K. Hathaway

Signature(s): Therese K. Hathaway
Vice President, Corporate Secretary
BRIAN PADGETT

Name(s):

DIRECTOR
Title:

March 16, 2005

Date:



Zollikon Investments SA

c/o Silex Management LTd.
Ms. Jenny Mauroux

6, Rue Kleberg, PO Box 2211
1201 Geneva

Switzerland

Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note

We herewith agree to an extension of our Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note issued by Telos Corporation, the principal sum of which is $860,961.42
(Eight Hundred Sixty Thousand, Nine Hundred Sixty-One and 42/100 Dollars) to December 31, 2011. This Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note shall
remain subject to any and all terms and conditions of the Subordination Agreement (“Subordination Agreement,” integrated hereto by reference), entered into on
or about October 11, 2002 with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. (formerly Foothill Capital Corporation) and State Street Bank and Trust Company and previously
extended on March 16, 2005.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

Zollikon Investments SA Telos Corporation

By:

/s LEONARD O’BRIEN /s/ Therese K. Hathaway
Signature(s): Therese K. Hathaway

Vice President, Corporate Secretary
LEONARD O’BRIEN
Name(s):

DIRECTOR
Title:

March 13, 2008

Date:



THIS NOTE HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1993 OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND MAY NOT
BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED UNLESS IT IS SO REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE UNDER
SAID ACT AND LAWS. THIS NOTE IS SUBORDINATE AND JUNIOR IN RIGHT OF PAYMENT TO SENIOR INDEBTEDNESS DUE TO
NATIONSBANK, N.A. AND/OR CERTAIN OTHER BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, AS PROVIDED IN THE SUBORDINATION
AGREEMENT DATED AS OF OCTOBER 13, 1995 BY AND AMONG TELOS CORPORATION, A MARYLAND CORPORATION, TELOS
CORPORATION, A CALIFORNIA CORPORATION, NATIONSBANK, N.A. AND THE HOLDERS IDENTIFIED IN SCHEDULE A THERETO.

Herndon, Virginia
October 13, 1995

SERIES C SENIOR SUBORDINATED UNSECURED NOTE DUE OCTOBER 1, 2000

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, Telos Corporation, a Maryland corporation, with offices at 460 Herndon Parkway, Herndon, Virginia 22070 (hereinafter
referred to as “the Borrower” or “the Company”), promises to pay to the order of Toxford Corporation, or assigns, (hereinafter referred to as “Toxford
Corporation” or “Lender”), at ¢/o Rabobank, P.O. Box 348, St. Andrews House, Le Bordage, St. Peter Port, Guernsey, Channel Islands, or at such other offices or
at such other place or places as the holder hereof may from time to time designate in writing , the principal sum of ONE MILLION SEVEN HUNDRED
SEVENTY-NINE THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED TWENTY-TWO DOLLARS AND 79/100 ($1,779,722.79) on October 1, 2000 together with interest on the
principal amount hereof from time to time outstanding at the rate hereinafter provided until paid in full.

This is one of a series of the Company’s Notes known as its Senior C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Notes Due October 1, 2000 (collectively referred to
herein as the “Series C Notes”, all of like tenor, except as to the identifying number and principal amount thereof and except for certain variations contained in the
Series C Note issued to Sir Leslie Porter. The Series C Notes have been issued in the aggregate principal amount of $7,879,835.51.

I. GENERAL TERMS

1.1 Interest only shall be payable at the rate of fourteen percent (14%) per annum, on the principal balance of this Note from time to time outstanding from
and after the date hereof, and shall be due and payable quarterly, until the principal has been paid in full, on the first day of April, July, October and



January in each year. The first interest payment shall be due January 1, 1996 and shall include all interest accrued from the date hereof until the date of such
interest payment.

1.2 If not sooner paid, the outstanding and unpaid principal balance shall be paid on October 1, 2000, together with accrued and unpaid interest on this
Note. In addition, interest shall be payable at the rate provided in Section 1.1 hereof on any Payment Premium from the date such premium is due until paid in
full.

1.3 Principal, premium, if any, and interest on this note are payable in lawful money of the United States. The principal of this Note may be prepaid at any
time after ten (10) days, written notice to the Lender, in whole or in part, and shall be accompanied by payment in cash of all accrued and unpaid interest on the
amount so prepaid, together with, to the extent not prohibited by applicable law, a Payment Premium.

1.4 In the event of a Public Offering of the common stock of the Company, or in the event of a Refinancing, the principal then outstanding shall become
immediately due and payable, together with, accrued and unpaid interest thereon, and, to the extent not prohibited by applicable law, a Payment Premium in an
amount equal to the lesser of (i) the Net Proceeds of such Public Offering or Refinancing or (ii) the amount determined in accordance with § 1.6(iv). The Net
Proceeds shall be applied toward the payment of the outstanding and unpaid principal balance of the Notes, accrued and unpaid interest thereon and, to the extent
not prohibited by applicable law, such Payment Premium.

1.5 In the event of a Merger or Dissolution, the principal then outstanding shall become immediately due and payable, together with accrued and unpaid
interest thereon and, to the extent not prohibited by applicable law, a Payment Premium in the amount determined in accordance with § 1.6(iv).

1.6 Definitions.

@) “Public Offering” shall mean the distribution and sale of the Company’s common stock (some of the proceeds of which sale are available to
the Company) pursuant to a registration statement (other than a registration statement on Form S-4 or Form S-8) which has been filed with
the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and become effective.

-



(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

“Refinancing” shall mean a sale of securities of the Company which results in Net Proceeds to the Company in excess of $1,000,000, other
than (a) obligations for borrowed money due and payable within one year which are not extended, renewed or refinanced beyond such due
date; or (b) other obligations for money borrowed money from NationsBank and/or its successors, substitutes and participants and their
respective assigns and any refinancing thereof.

“Net Proceeds” shall mean the proceeds to the Company after expenses of sale and distribution, including discounts, commissions and
brokerage and legal fees.

“Payment Premium” shall, except as otherwise provided in § 1.4, mean an amount equal to 13 /2% per annum, compounded semiannually
from and after the date hereof until paid, on the principal amount of this Note outstanding from time to time until the time of payment.

“Merger” shall mean a merger; consolidation or other combination to which the Company or any subsidiary is a party, in which the Company
is not the surviving corporation or which results in the acquisition of “beneficial ownership” of securities of the Company representing 50%
or more of the total number of votes that may be cast for the total number of votes that may be cast for the election of directors by any
“person” or “group” (as such terms are defined in Rule 13(d) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), or a sale
by the Company of all or substantially all of its assets.

“Dissolution” shall mean the adoption by the Board of Directors and/or the shareholders of the Company of a resolution to dissolve the
Company and liquidate its assets, the filing by the Company of articles of dissolution or a similar application for dissolution with the
appropriate officer of the state of incorporation of the Company, the entry of an order or other action by such state dissolving the Company,
or the adoption by the Board of Directors or the shareholders of the Company of a plan of liquidation or a resolution approving a liquidating
distribution of the Company’s assets, whichever shall first occur.

-3-



1.7 At any time after the third anniversary of the date hereof, the holders of a majority in outstanding principal amount of the Series C Notes and the Series
B Senior Secured Notes issued by the Company contemporaneous herewith may request, in writing, that the Company effect a Public Offering, at the Company’s
cost and expense. Upon receipt of any such request, the Company shall, as expeditiously as possible, use its best efforts to effect a Public Offering, with the
objective of realizing Net Proceeds sufficient to pay the then-outstanding principal balance of the Series C Notes and the Series B Notes together with accrued
unpaid interest thereon, and, to the extent not prohibited by applicable law, a Payment Premium in an amount determined in accordance with § 1.4.

1.8 If any payment of principal or interest on this Note shall become due on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday under the laws of the Commonwealth of
Virginia, or any other day on which banking institutions in the Commonwealth of Virginia are obligated or authorized by law or executive order to close, such
payment shall be made on the next succeeding business day in Virginia and any such extended time of the payment of principal shall not be included in
computing compound interest in connection with such payment.

1.9. Upon receipt by the Borrower of evidence reasonably satisfactory to it of the mutilation, destruction, loss or theft of this Note, the Borrower will make
and deliver to the owner a new note of like tenor in lieu of this Note so mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen.

1.10 Payments made on account hereof shall be applied first to accrued and unpaid interest, then to principal, then to interest on any unpaid Payment
Premium and then to the Payment Premium, if any.

1.11 All payments made by the Company on account of the Series C Notes or any of them shall be made pro rata, in proportion to the outstanding principal
balance of each of the Series C Notes outstanding at the time of any such payment.

II. DEFAULT

2.1 It is expressly agreed by the Borrower that the following shall be deemed to be Events of Default under this Note: (a) the failure to pay, when due, any
amount of principal, or no more than five days after due date any amount of premium, if any, or interest on this Note or the Series B Notes, or (b) in the event the
Borrower files any petition, or any petition is filed against it and not dismissed within sixty (60) days, under any bankruptcy or insolvency law or for the
appointment of a receiver for

4-



substantially all its assets or in the event the Borrower makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, (c) or any failure by the Borrower to perform or
observe any of the other covenants, agreements or provisions to be performed or observed by it under this Note or the Series B Notes, and such default shall not
be rectified or cured within 10 days after written notice thereof by the Lender to the Company, or (d) any representation or warranty of the Company under the
Bridge Notes Exchange and Conversion Agreement of even date herewith shall be materially false on the date it was made, or (e) an event of default as specified
in the Revolving and Reducing Senior Facility Credit Agreement among the Company, Telos Corporation (a California corporation) and NationsBank, N.A. (the
“Senior Credit Agreement”) shall have occurred and be continuing, if (and only if) such event results in acceleration of the maturity of the indebtedness under
such Senior Credit Agreement and such acceleration continues in effect.

2.2 If an Event of Default occurs, the Lender, at his option, may accelerate this Note and may by written notice to Borrower declare the entire unpaid
principal amount of this Note and all interest accrued and unpaid thereon to be immediately due and payable whereupon the unpaid principal amount and all such
accrued interest shall become and be forthwith due and payable, without presentment, demand, protest or further notice of any kind. The failure of the Lender to
give such notice shall, in no event, be deemed a waiver of any of the Lender rights hereunder as long as the Event of Default continues.

2.3 Upon default in the payment of the principal of this Note or any other sum payable hereunder when due upon demand, at maturity or by reason of
acceleration of maturity, or upon the occurrence of any other Event of Default hereunder Borrower agrees to pay all reasonable costs of collection incurred by the
holder of the Note, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, whether suit is brought or not, and all other costs and expenses reasonably connected with collection of
the indebtedness evidenced hereby.

III. SUBORDINATION

3.1 Payment of the principal, of interest on and Payment Premium on this Note are subordinate and subject in right of payment to the prior indefeasible
payment in full in cash or cash equivalents of all Senior Indebtedness (as such term is defined in the Subordination Agreement) in the manner and to the extent
provided in the Subordination Agreement, and each holder of this Note by such holder’s acceptance hereof, acknowledges and confirms such subordination,
represents and warrants that such holder has

_5-



received and reviewed and become a party to the Subordination Agreement, and covenants and agrees to comply with the provisions of the Subordination
Agreement applicable to holders of the Series C Notes.

This Note shall be construed and enforced in accordance with, and governed by the laws of, the Commonwealth of Virginia without giving effect to conflict
of laws principles.

The parties hereto, including the undersigned Borrower and all guarantors and endorsers; hereby waive presentment, demand, notice, protest and all other
demands and notices in connection with the delivery, acceptance, performance and enforcement of this Note, and assent to extensions of time of payment, or
forbearance or other indulgence without notice.

Telos Corporation

1202

By:
Title: VPGC

-6-



TEIOS

Telos Corporation

19886 Ashburn Road
Ashburn, Virginia 20147-2358
Phone: 703-724-3800

March 28, 2000
VIA FACSIMILE 011 41 22 909 8939

Mr. Daniel M. Fleming
Trust Officer, Rathbones
Place de Saint Gervais 1
Case Postale 2049

1211 Geneve 1

RE: Series C Senior Subordinated Secured Note (Toxford Corporation)

Dear Mr. Fleming:

Telos Corporation (the “Company”) requests Toxford Corporation and certain other investors agree to an extension of the Due Date of its Series C Senior
Subordinated Secured Note Due October 1, 2000, the principal sum of which is ONE MILLION SEVEN HUNDRED SEVENTY-NINE THOUSAND SEVEN
HUNDRED TWENTY-TWO AND 79/100 U.S. DOLLARS ($1,779,722.79).

In consideration for granting this extension, Telos Corporation shall pay to Toxford Corporation $41,600.00 (FORTY-ONE THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED AND
00/100 U.S. DOLLARS) on October 1, 2000.

By signing and returning this letter agreement, you agree that the outstanding and unpaid principal balance on Toxford Corporation’s Note shall be due on April 1,
2001, together with accrued and unpaid interest.

Sincerely,

/s/ William L.P. Brownley

William L.P. Brownley
Vice President & General Counsel

WLLB:aa

Enclosure



TEIOS

Telos Corporation

19886 Ashburn Road
Ashburn, Virginia 20147-2358
Phone: 703-724-3800

Mr. Daniel M. Fleming
Series C Senior Subordinated Secured Note

By signing below, I agree to an extension so that Toxford Corporation’s Series C Senior Subordinated Secured Note Due October 1, 2000, the principal
sum of which ONE MILLION SEVEN HUNDRED SEVENTY-NINE THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED TWENTY-TWO AND 79/100 U.S. DOLLARS
($1,779,722.79) is now due April 1, 2001.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,
ATTEST: TOXFORD CORPORATION

By: /s/ Daniel M. Fleming

Name: Mr. Daniel M. Fleming

Title: Trust Officer, Rathbones
Director of Toxford Corporation




TEIOS

Telos Corporation

19886 Ashburn Road
Ashburn, Virginia 20147-2358
Phone: 703-726-2270

Fax: 703-729-7372

Michael P. Flaherty
Executive Vice President
General Counsel

March 27, 2001
VIA FACSIMILE 011 41 22 909 8939

Mr. Daniel M. Fleming
Trust Officer, Rathbones
Place de Saint Gervais 1
Case Postale 2049

1211 Geneve 1

Dear Mr. Fleming:

RE: Series C Senior Subordinated Secured Note (Toxford Corporation)

Telos Corporation (the “Company”) requests Toxford Corporation and certain other investors agree to an extension of the Due Date of its Series C Senior
Subordinated Secured Note Due April 1, 2001, the principal sum of which is ONE MILLION SEVEN HUNDRED SEVENTY-NINE THOUSAND SEVEN
HUNDRED TWENTY-THREE AND 00/100 U.S. DOLLARS ($1,779,723.00).

Telos Corporation will convert EIGHTY-EIGHT THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED EIGHTY-SIX AND 00/100 U.S. DOLLARS ($88,986.00) into current
maturities of long term debt. The remainder or ONE MILLION SIX HUNDRED NINETY THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED THIRTY-SEVEN AND 00/100
U.S. DOLLARS ($1,690,737.00) will be extended until April 1, 2002.

In consideration for granting this extension, Telos Corporation shall pay to you $42,268.00 (FORTY-TWO THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED SIXTY-EIGHT AND
00/100 U.S. DOLLARS) within 30 days of the Company’s receipt of this signed extension agreement.

By signing and returning this letter agreement, you agree that the outstanding and unpaid principal balance on your Note shall be due on April 1, 2002, together

with accrued and unpaid interest.
Sincerely,

/s/ Michael P. Flaherty

Michael P. Flaherty

Executive Vice President & General Counsel

MPF:das
Enclosure



TEIOS

Mr. Daniel M. Fleming
Series C Senior Subordinated Secured Note

By signing below, I agree to an extension so that Toxford Corporation’s Series C Senior Subordinated Secured Note Due April 1, 2001, the principal sum
of which ONE MILLION SIX HUNDRED NINETY THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED THIRTY-SEVEN AND 00/100 U.S. DOLLARS ($1,690,737.00) is
now due April 1, 2002.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

ATTEST: TOXFORD CORPORATION

/ﬁ f%&z{ “zr By:  /s/ Mr. Daniel M. Fleming

Name: Mr. Daniel M. Fleming
Title:  Trust Officer, Rathbones




TEIOS

Telos Corporation

19886 Ashburn Road
Ashburn, Virginia 20147-2358
Phone: 703-726-2270

Fax: 703-729-7372

Michael P. Flaherty
Executive Vice President
General Counsel

March 1, 2002

Daniel M. Fleming
Trust Officer, Rathbones
Place de Saint Gervais 1
1211 Geneva 1
Switzerland

RE: Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note (Toxford Corporation)

Dear Mr. Fleming:

Telos Corporation (the “Company”) requests Toxford Corporation and certain other investors agree to an extension of the due date of its Series C Senior
Subordinated Unsecured Note presently due April 1, 2002, the principal sum of which is $1,690,737.00 (one million six hundred ninety thousand seven hundred
thirty-seven and 00/100 U.S. dollars) to become due and payable on May 23, 2003. I also agree to an extension so that the remaining principal sum currently due
and payable in the amount of $88,986.00 (eighty-eight thousand nine hundred eighty-six and 00/100 U.S. dollars) shall now be due May 23, 2003.

In consideration for granting this extension, Telos Corporation shall pay an extension fee of 1% in the amount of $17,797.00 (seventeen thousand seven hundred
ninety-seven and 00/100 U.S. dollars) within 30 days of the Company’s receipt of a signed extension agreement. Notwithstanding the above, if by June 30, 2002,
the entire principal sum of $1,779,723.00 (one million seven hundred seventy-nine thousand seven hundred twenty-three and 00/100 U.S. dollars) has not been
paid, by July 31, 2002, the Company shall pay an additional extension fee of 1% in the amount of $17,797.00 (seventeen thousand seven hundred ninety-seven
and 00/100 U.S. dollars) or such other amount equal to 1% of the principal balance remaining as of June 30, 2002.

Thank you for your consideration of the extension of your Note. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you require additional information.
Sincerely,

/s/ Michael P. Flaherty

Michael P. Flaherty
Executive Vice President, General Counsel,
and Chief Administrative Officer




Daniel M. Fleming
Trust Officer, Rathbones
Place de Saint Gervais 1
Case Postale 2049

1211 Geneva 1
Switzerland

Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note (Toxford Corporation)

In consideration for the payment of an extension fee(s) of 1% in the amount of $17,797.00 (seventeen thousand seven hundred ninety-seven and 00/100 U.S.
dollars) within 30 days of Telos Corporation’s receipt of this signed extension agreement, Toxford Corporation agrees to an extension so that its Series C Senior
Subordinated Unsecured Note presently due April 1, 2002, the principal sum of which is $1,690,737.00 (one million six hundred ninety thousand seven hundred
thirty-seven and 00/100 U.S. dollars) shall now be due on May 23, 2003. Toxford Corporation also agrees to an extension so that the remaining principal sum
currently due and payable in the amount of $88,986.00 (eighty-eight thousand nine hundred eighty-six 00/100 U.S. dollars) shall now be due May 23, 2003.

Additionally, notwithstanding the above, if by June 30, 2002, the entire principal sum of $1,779,723 (one million seven hundred seventy-nine thousand seven
hundred twenty-three and 00/100 US dollars) has not been paid by July 31, 2002, the Company shall pay an additional extension fee of 1% in the amount of
$17,797.00 (seventeen thousand seven hundred ninety-seven and 00/100 U.S. dollars) or such other amount equal to 1% of the principal balance remaining as of
June 30, 2002.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

For TOXFORD CORPORATION Telos Corporation
Daniel M. Fleming

Title:

/s/ Daniel M. Fleming /s/ Michael P. Flaherty
Signature Michael P. Flaherty

Executive Vice President,
General Counsel, and
Chief Administrative Officer

Date: 11-3-2002 March 1, 2002



Mr. Daniel M. Fleming
Trust Officer, Rathbones
Place de Saint Gervais 1
1211 Geneve 1
Switzerland

Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note

Pursuant to section 17 of the Subordination Agreement entered into on or about October 11, 2002, with Foothill Capital Corporation and State Street Bank and
Trust Company, Toxford Corporation herewith agrees to an extension of its Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note presently due May 23, 2002, the
principal sum of which is One Million Seven Hundred Seventy-Nine Thousand Seven Hundred Twenty-Three ($1,779,723) to October 31, 2004.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

TOXFORD CORPORATION Telos Corporation

/s/ Michael P. Flaherty

Signature Michael P. Flaherty
Executive Vice President,
General Counsel, and
Chief Administrative Officer

Date: November 20, 2002




Toxford Corporation

c/o Mr. Daniel M. Fleming
Trust Officer, Rathbones
Place de Saint Gervais 1
1211 Geneva 1
Switzerland

Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note

Pursuant to section 17 of the Subordination Agreement (“Subordination Agreement,” integrated hereto by reference), entered into on or about October 11, 2002,
with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. (formerly Foothill Capital Corporation) and State Street Bank and Trust Company, we herewith agree to an extension of our Series
C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note issued by Telos Corporation, the principal sum of which is $1,779,723.00 (One Million Seven Hundred Seventy-Nine
Thousand Seven Hundred Twenty-Three 00/100 Dollars), to October 31, 2005.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

TOXFORD CORPORATION Telos Corporation
By:
/s/ Daniel M. Fleming /s/ Michael P. Flaherty
Signature(s): Michael P. Flaherty
Executive Vice President,
Daniel M. Fleming General Counsel, and

Name(s): Chief Administrative Officer

Director
Title:

22.7.04 June 29, 2004

Date:



Toxford Corporation
Trust Officer, Rathbones
Place de Saint Gervais 1
1211 Geneva 1
Switzerland

Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note

We herewith agree to an extension of our Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note issued by Telos Corporation, the principal sum of which is $1,779,723.00
(One Million Seven Hundred Seventy-Nine Thousand Seven Hundred Twenty-Three and 00/100 Dollars) to October 31, 2008. This Series C Senior Subordinated
Unsecured Note shall remain subject to any and all terms and conditions of the Subordination Agreement (“Subordination Agreement,” integrated hereto by
reference), entered into on or about October 11, 2002 with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. (formerly Foothill Capital Corporation) and State Street Bank and Trust
Company.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

TOXFORD CORPORATION Telos Corporation

By:

/s/ Marcel Stettler /s/ Javier Olero /s/ Therese K. Hathaway

Signature(s): Therese K. Hathaway
Vice President, Corporate Secretary

Marcel Stettler Javier Olero

Name(s):

Director Director /s/ Michael P. Flaherty

Title: Michael P. Flaherty
Executive Vice President
General Counsel

14.04.05 14.04.05 March 16, 2005

Date:



Toxford Corporation
c/o Rathbones

Mr. Marcel Stettler
Place de Saint Gervais 1
1211 Geneva
Switzerland

Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note

We herewith agree to an extension of our Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Note issued by Telos Corporation, the principal sum of which is $1,779,722.79
(One Million Seven Hundred Seventy-Nine Thousand, Seven Hundred Twenty-Two and 79/100 Dollars) to December 31, 2011. This Series C Senior
Subordinated Unsecured Note shall remain subject to any and all terms and conditions of the Subordination Agreement (“Subordination Agreement,” integrated
hereto by reference), entered into on or about October 11, 2002 with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. (formerly Foothill Capital Corporation) and State Street Bank and

Trust Company and previously extended on April 14, 2005.
AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

TOXFORD CORPORATION
By:

/s/ Javier Olero /s/ Michael Fitzgerald

Signature(s):

Javier Olero Michael Fitzgerald

Name(s):

Director

Title:

17.3.08

Date:

Telos Corporation

/s/ Therese K. Hathaway

Therese K. Hathaway
Vice President, Corporate Secretary

March 13, 2008



EXHIBIT B
SERIES B COLLATERAL

“Series B Collateral” means (i) all real or personal property, plant, building, facility, structure, equipment or unit, or other asset now or hereafter
owned, leased or operated by the Grantor, (ii) all of the Grantor’s equipment and fixtures, including furniture, machinery, vehicles and trade fixtures, whether now
owned or hereafter acquired, together with any and all accessions, parts and appurtenances thereto, substitutions and replacements therefor and replacements
thereof now or hereafter owned, lease or operated by the Grantor and (iii) all of the products or proceeds or any kind of any of the property described in clauses
(i) and (ii) of this definition; provided, however, that under no circumstances does the property described under this definition include any of the Grantor’s
Accounts, Chattel Paper, Instruments (except to the extent described in clause (iii) of this definition) or Inventory, including any proceeds or profits therefrom.

For purposes of the definition of Series B Collateral:

(a) terms defined in the UCC (as defined below) and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings provided therein;
(b) “UCC” means the Uniform Commercial Code as in effect in the Commonwealth of Virginia as of February 1, 1996;

(c) “Grantor” means Telos Corporation, a Maryland corporation.



EXHIBIT C
SERIES B COLLATERAL DOCUMENTS
See Attached

[Collateral Trust and Security Agreement dated as of February 1, 1996]



EXECUTION COPY

TELOS CORPORATION
COLLATERAL TRUST AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

This Collateral Trust and Security Agreement, dated as of February 1, 1996, is among Telos Corporation, a Maryland corporation (the “Grantor”), State
Street Bank and Trust Company, as trustee (the “Collateral Trustee”), and the holders of the Grantor’s Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Notes Due
October 1, 2000 listed on Exhibit A hereto (each a “Lender” and collectively, the “Lenders”).

RECITALS

A. The Grantor has issued to the Lenders Series B Senior Subordinated Secured Notes Due October 1, 2000 in the total principal amount of $6,493,581.93
(the “Series B Notes”).

B. The Grantor is required under the terms of the Series B Notes and the Bridge Notes Exchange and Conversion Agreement dated as of October 13, 1995
among the Grantor and the Lenders to enter into a security agreement with the Lenders granting to a Collateral Trustee a perfected security interest in all of the
Grantor’s right, title and interest in the Collateral (as defined herein).

C. The Grantor, Telos Corporation, a California corporation, NationsBank, N.A. (“NationsBank”) and the Lenders have entered into a Subordination
Agreement dated as of October 13, 1995 (the “Subordination Agreement”) pursuant to which the Lenders have agreed to be subject to certain restrictions with
respect to the Collateral.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties acknowledge the receipt of sufficient consideration and agree as follows:

1. Definitions; Certain Rules of Construction. Except as otherwise explicitly specified to the contrary, (a) the capitalized term “Section” refers to sections of this
Collateral Trust and Security Agreement, (b) references to a particular Section include all subsections thereof, (c) the word “including” shall be construed as
“including without limitation” and (d) terms defined in the UCC (as defined below) and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings provided therein.
Certain capitalized terms are used in this Agreement as specifically defined in this Section 1 as follows:

1.1. “Collateral” means (i) all real or personal property, plant, building, facility, structure, equipment or unit, or other asset now or hereafter owned, leased
or operated by the Grantor, (ii) all of the Grantor’s equipment and fixtures, including furniture, machinery, vehicles and trade fixtures, whether now owned or
hereafter acquired, together with any and



all accessions, parts and appurtenances thereto, substitutions and replacements therefor and replacements thereof now or hereafter owned, leased or operated by
the Grantor and (iii) all of the products or proceeds of any kind of any of the property described in clauses (i) and (ii) of this definition; provided, however, that

under no circumstances does the property described under this definition include any of the Grantor’s Accounts, Chattel Paper, Instruments (except to the extent
described in clause (iii) of this definition) or Inventory including any proceeds or profits therefrom.

1.2. “Collateral Trustee” means State Street Bank and Trust Company in its capacity as collateral agent and trustee hereunder on behalf of the Lenders, and
each successor designated under Section 4.8 hereof.

1.3. “Events of Default” is defined in Section 8.

1.4. “Lien” means, with respect to the Grantor (or any other Person):

(@

(b)

any encumbrance, mortgage, pledge, lien, charge or security interest of any kind upon any property or assets of the Grantor (or any other Person),
whether now owned or hereafter acquired, or upon the income or profits therefrom; and

the acquisition of, or the agreement to acquire, any property or asset upon conditional sale or subject to any other title retention agreement, device or
arrangement (including a capitalized lease).

1.5. “Permitted Liens” means, with respect to the Grantor, those liens set forth in Schedule 1.5 hereto and the following:

(@)
(b)

©

(d)

Liens for taxes, assessments or other governmental charges or claims the payment of which is not at the time required;
statutory Liens of landlords and Liens of carriers, warehousemen, mechanics and materialmen and other like Liens incurred in the ordinary course of
business for sums not yet due;

Liens (other than any Lien imposed by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended from time to time, and the regulations
thereunder) incurred or deposits made in the ordinary course of business in connection with workman’s compensation, unemployment insurance and

other types of social security;
such imperfections of title, covenants, restrictions, easements and encumbrances on real property that, in each case, do not arise out of the incurrence
of any

-



indebtedness and that do not interfere with or impair in any material respect the utility or value of the real property on which such Lien is imposed;
and

(e) Liens securing $600,000 in outstanding aggregate principal amount of a Senior Subordinated Note, Series A issued by the Grantor to Cottonwood
Holdings, Inc., a British Virgin Islands corporation, and assigned to John Porter.

1.6. “Person” means any present or future natural person or any corporation, association, partnership, joint venture, company, business trust, trust,
organization, business or government or any governmental agency or political subdivision thereof.

1.7. “UCC” means the Uniform Commercial Code as in effect in the Commonwealth of Virginia on the date hereof.

2. Collateral.

2.1. Grant. As security for the prompt and complete payment and performance when due (whether at stated maturity, by acceleration or otherwise) of the
Series B Notes, whether for principal, interest, fees, expenses or otherwise, the Grantor hereby mortgages, pledges, collaterally grants and assigns and creates a
security interest in favor of the Collateral Trustee, and its successors, in trust, for the benefit of the Lenders in, all of the Grantor’s right, title and interest now
existing or hereafter arising in and to (but none of its obligations or liabilities with respect to) the Collateral, whether now owned or hereafter acquired, together
with all rights and remedies that the Grantor might exercise with respect thereto but for the execution of this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement.

2.2. Financing Statements. The Grantor has executed and delivered, and from time to time hereafter, the Grantor shall execute and deliver to the Collateral
Trustee, such of the following as are provided to the Grantor by the Collateral Trustee to be executed and delivered: (i) UCC-1 financing statements, suitable for
filing in the appropriate jurisdictions covering that portion of the Collateral that can be subjected to a security interest under the UCC by filing a UCC-1 financing
statement; and (ii) with respect to any states in which UCC-1 financing statements must be filed at county or city levels in addition to state level filings, UCC-1
financing statements, suitable for filing in the financing and real estate records of such counties or cities.

2.3. Instruments. Upon the execution and delivery of this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement and from time to time thereafter, the Grantor shall
endorse in blank and deliver to the Collateral Trustee any other evidence of indebtedness or other Instruments that are proceeds of the Collateral as to which filing
is not sufficient to perfect the security interest granted herein within ten (10) days of receipt of same.
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2.4. Filing. The Collateral Trustee is authorized to file such financing statements, assignments, mortgages and other documents in all places where filing is
necessary or advisable to protect and perfect its rights. The Collateral Trustee is irrevocably authorized to execute and file continuation statements and similar
documents which are appropriate to protect and perfect its rights; provided, however, that the Collateral Trustee shall provide the Grantor and NationsBank with
notice and copies of any such statements or documents prior to filing. A photocopy of any security agreement, continuation statement, amendment or assignmerit
shall be sufficient for filing as if it were an original.

3. Collateral Trustee’s Appointment as Attorney-in-Fact.

3.1. The Grantor hereby irrevocably appoints the Collateral Trustee and any agent thereof, with full power of substitution, as its true and lawful attorney-in-
fact with full authority in the place and stead of the Grantor and in the name of the Grantor or in its own name or otherwise, for the purpose of carrying out the
terms of this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement and to act in accordance with the Subordination Agreement, to take such action and to execute such
documents and instruments (other than amendments or changes to this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement) as are necessary or advisable to accomplish the
purpose of this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement and the Subordination Agreement and, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, hereby gives the
Collateral Trustee the power and right, on behalf of the Grantor, without notice to or assent by the Grantor, to do the following only upon the occurrence and
during the continuance of any Event of Default:

(1) (A) to receive payment of and give receipt for any and all monies, claims and other amounts due and to become due at any time in respect of or
arising out of any Collateral; (B) to sign and endorse invoices, freight or express bills, bills of lading, storage or warehouse receipts, drafts against debtors,
assignments, verifications and notices in connection with accounts and other documents relating to the Collateral; (C) to commence and prosecute any
suits, actions or proceedings at law or in equity in any court of competent jurisdiction to collect the Collateral or any proceeds thereof and to enforce any
other right in respect of any Collateral; (D) to defend any suit, action or proceeding brought against the Grantor with respect to any Collateral; (E) to settle,
compromise or adjust and suit, action or proceeding described above and, in connection therewith, to give appropriate discharges or releases and (F)
generally to sell, transfer, assign, pledge, make any agreement with respect to or otherwise deal with any of the Collateral as fully and completely as though
the Collateral Trustee were the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, and to do, at the Grantor’s expense, at any time, or from time to time, all acts and
things necessary or advisable to protect, preserve or realize upon the Collateral and the Collateral Trustee’s security interest therein, in order to effect the
intent of this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement, all as fully and effectively as the Grantor might do; and
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(ii) to pay or discharge taxes and Liens levied or placed on or threatened against the Collateral.

3.2. Power Coupled with an Interest. The power of attorney granted to the Collateral Trustee under Section 3.1 hereof is a power coupled with an interest
and shall be irrevocable.

3.3. No Duty Imposed. The powers conferred on the Collateral Trustee hereunder are solely to protect its interest in the Collateral, for the benefit of the
Lenders, and shall not impose any duty upon the Collateral Trustee to exercise any such powers. In particular, the Collateral Trustee shall not be required to make
any demand or to make any inquiry as to the nature or sufficiency of any payment received by it or to present or file any claim for moneys due or to become due
in respect of the Collateral. The Collateral Trustee shall be accountable only for amounts actually received by it as a result of its exercise of such powers, and
neither the Collateral Trustee nor any of its officers, directors, employees or agents shall be responsible to the Grantor or the Lenders for any act or failure to act
by it under this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement, except for its own gross negligence or willful misconduct. The Collateral Trustee shall be entitled to rely
upon any paper, instrument or document which it in good faith believes to be genuine and correct and to have been signed or sent by the proper Person or Persons.

3.4. Execution of Documents. The Grantor also authorizes the Collateral Trustee, at any time and from time to time, to execute, in connection with the sale
or sales by the Collateral Trustee provided for herein, any endorsements, assignments or other instruments of conveyance or transfer with respect to the Collateral.

4. Collateral Trustee.

4.1. Acceptance of Trust. The Collateral Trustee, for itself and its successors, hereby accepts the trust created by this Collateral Trust and Security
Agreement upon the terms and conditions hereof.

4.2. Appointment and Authorization. Each Lender hereby irrevocably appoints and authorizes the Collateral Trustee to take such action and to exercise
such powers as are delegated to the Collateral Trustee by the terms hereof or are reasonably incidental thereto. This appointment and authorization is intended
solely for the purpose of facilitating the enforcement of this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement and does not constitute appointment of the Collateral Trustee
as trustee for any Lender for any other purpose.

4.3. Action by Collateral Trustee. The Collateral Trustee shall be required to act or not act solely upon the instructions of the Lenders and those instructions
shall be binding upon the Collateral Trustee; provided, however, that the Collateral Trustee shall not be required to act or not act (i) if to do so would be contrary
to law or would result, in the reasonable
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judgment of the Collateral Trustee, in substantial risk of liability to the Collateral Trustee, and (ii) unless the Collateral Trustee has received security and
indemnity from the Lenders that is reasonably satisfactory to the Collateral Trustee, provided that the Collateral Trustee shall not be entitled to indemnification
for its own gross negligence or willful misconduct. The Collateral Trustee shall have no liability to any Lender for acting as instructed by the Lenders, or for
refraining from acting, if so instructed.

4.4. Liability of Collateral Trustee. Neither the Collateral Trustee nor any of its directors, officers, agents, employees or attorneys shall be liable for any
action taken or not taken by them under or in connection with this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement except for their own gross negligence or willful
misconduct. Without limitation on the foregoing, the Collateral Trustee and its directors, officers, agent, employees and attorneys:

(@

(b)

©

(d)

(e

®

May consult with legal counsel (including in-house legal counsel), accountants (including in-house accountants) and other professionals or experts
selected by it and shall not be liable for any action taken or not taken by it in good faith in accordance with any advice of such legal counsel,
accountants or other professionals or experts;

Will not be responsible to the Lenders for any statement, warranty or representation made in this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement or in any
notice, report, request or other statement, written or oral, given or made in connection with this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement;

Shall have no duty to ask or inquire as to the performance or observance by the Grantor of any of the terms, conditions or covenants of this Collateral
Trust and Security Agreement or to inspect any Collateral or the property, books or records of the Grantor;

Will not be responsible (whether under this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement or applicable Law) to the Lenders for the due execution,
legality, validity, enforceability, perfection, genuineness, effectiveness, sufficiency or value of this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement or any
Lien created hereunder any other instrument or writing furnished pursuant hereto or in connection herewith or any Collateral;

Shall not be deemed to have knowledge of an Event of Default unless it has been notified in writing of such Event of Default by the Grantor or the
Lenders;

Will not incur any liability by acting or not acting in reliance upon any notice, consent, certificate, statement, request or other instrument or writing
believed by it to be genuine and signed or sent by the proper party or parties; and
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(g) Shall not be charged with knowledge of or any duties or responsibilities in connection with any other document or agreement except the
Subordination Agreement.

4.5. Successor Collateral Trustee. The Collateral Trustee may and at the request of the Lenders shall, resign as Collateral Trustee upon 30 days’ written
notice to the Grantor and the Lenders. If the Collateral Trustee so resigns, (a) the Lenders shall appoint a successor Collateral Trustee, who fulfills the
requirements of Section 4.9; (b) upon a successor’s acceptance of appointment as Collateral Trustee, the successor will thereupon succeed to and become vested
with all the rights, powers, privileges and duties of the resigning Collateral Trustee or the removed Collateral Trustee; and (c) upon the effectiveness of any
resignation, the resigning Collateral Trustee thereupon will be discharged from its duties and obligations other than obligations arising as a result of any action or
inaction of the resigning Collateral Trustee prior to the effectiveness of such resignation.

4.6. Exculpatory Provisions. The Collateral Trustee shall not be responsible in any manner whatsoever for the correctness of any recitals, statements,
representations or warranties contained in this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement, except for those made by the Collateral Trustee. The Collateral Trustee
makes no representations as to the value or condition of the Collateral or any part thereof or as to the title of the Grantor thereto or as to the security afforded by
this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement and the Collateral Trustee shall incur no liability or responsibility in respect of any such matters. The Collateral
Trustee shall have no obligation or responsibility with respect to the failure of any other party to perform its obligations. The Collateral Trustee shall not be
responsible for insuring the Collateral or for the payment of taxes, charges, assessments or liens upon the Collateral or otherwise as to the maintenance of the
Collateral, except that the Collateral Trustee shall exercise such care as it uses in the ordinary course of its own business to preserve the Collateral in its
possession.

4.7. Delegation of Duties. The Collateral Trustee may execute any of its powers hereunder and perform any of its duties hereunder either directly or by or
through agents, nominees or attorneys-in-fact reasonably selected by the Collateral Trustee; provided, however that the Collateral Trustee shall obtain a written
acknowledgment from each agent, nominee or attorney-in-fact that it shall be liable to each Lender for losses or damages incurred by any such Lender as a result
of such agent’s, nominees’s or attorney-in-fact’s gross negligence or willful misconduct as and to the extent the Collateral Trustee would be liable for such losses
or damages if the actions or omissions of such agent, nominee or attorney-in-fact constituting such gross negligence or willful misconduct had been actions or
omissions of the Collateral Trustee. The Collateral Trustee shall not be responsible for the gross negligence or misconduct of any agents, nominees or attorneys-
in-fact selected by it without gross negligence or willful misconduct.
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4.8. Successors to the Collateral Trustee. Every successor to any Collateral Trustee appointed pursuant to this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement shall
(i) be a bank or trust company in good standing and having power so to act, incorporated or organized under the laws of the United States or any State thereof or
the District of Columbia and shall also have combined capital and surplus of not less than $100,000,000, and (ii) upon such appointment, be, for all purposes
under this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement, the Collateral Trustee.

4.9. Representations and Warranties. The Collateral Trustee hereby represents and warrants to each Lender as follows:

(@

(b)

©

(d)

4.10.

The Collateral Trustee is a trust company duly organized, legally existing and in good standing under the laws of The Commonwealth of
Massachusetts and has all required corporate power and authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this Collateral Trust and Security
Agreement.

The execution, delivery and performance by the Collateral Trustee of this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement has been duly authorized by all
necessary corporate action on the part of the Collateral Trustee.

This Collateral Trust and Security Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Collateral Trustee and is the legally valid and binding
obligation of the Collateral Trustee, enforceable against the Collateral Trustee in accordance with its terms.

No Uniform Commercial Code financing statements or other filings or recordings executed by or on behalf of the Collateral Trustee, have been filed
or recorded by the Collateral Trustee with respect to any of the Collateral except for filings and recordings naming the Collateral Trustee as secured
party or lienholder and made pursuant to this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement.

Notice by Collateral Trustee. Promptly and in any event within three business days after its receipt of any written notice under this Collateral Trust

and Security Agreement, the Collateral Trustee shall give written notice thereof to each Lender.

4.11. No Implied Duties. The Collateral Trustee shall have no implied duties to any Person or any obligation to take any action under this Collateral Trust
and Security Agreement except for action specifically provided for in this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement to be taken by the Collateral Trustee. The
Collateral Trustee’s duties and responsibilities shall be entirely administrative and not discretionary and shall be determined only with reference to this Collateral
Trust and Security Agreement.
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4.12. Fees of the Collateral Trustee: Other Costs, Expenses and Taxes. The Grantor shall pay periodic fees and expenses to the Collateral Trustee as set
forth in a letter of even date herewith between the Grantor and the Collateral Trustee. The Grantor shall also pay on demand the reasonable costs and expenses
(including attorneys’ fees) of the Collateral Trustee and the Lenders in connection with:

(i) the negotiation, preparation, execution and delivery of this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement;

(ii) each amendment or modification of or supplement to this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement and each waiver, approval, consent and
enforcement or attempted enforcement of this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement and any matter related hereto, in each case including filing fees,
recording fees, title insurance fees, appraisal fees, search fees and other out-of-pocket expenses and the reasonable fees and out-of-pocket expenses of any
legal counsel (including the allocated fees and all disbursements and other expenses of any internal legal counsel), independent public accountants and
other outside experts retained by the Collateral Trustee and/or the Lenders and including any costs, expenses or fees incurred or suffered by the Collateral
Trustee and/or the Lenders in connection with or during the course of any bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings of the Grantor. The Grantor shall pay any
and all costs expenses, fees and charges payable or determined to be payable in connection with the filing or recording of any documents related to the
transactions contemplated hereby, or in connection with any act of the Collateral Agent and/or the Lenders pursuant hereto, and shall reimburse, hold
harmless and indemnify the Collateral Trustee and/or the Lenders from and against any and all loss, liability or legal or other expense with respect to or
resulting from any delay in paying or failure to pay any cost, expense, fee or charge that the Collateral Trustee and/or the Lenders may suffer or incur by
reason of the failure of the Grantor to perform its obligations hereunder. Any amount payable under this Section 4.12 shall bear interest at the interest rate
described in Section 1.1 of the Series B Notes from the second business day after a demand for payment. The obligations of the Grantor under this Section
4.12 shall survive the termination of this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement; and

(iii) any other duties and responsibilities incurred in connection with the terms of this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement.
The Lenders agree, jointly and severally, to reimburse the Collateral Trustee for any reasonable expenses not reimbursed by the Grantor (without limiting
the obligation of the Grantor to make such reimbursement) for which the Collateral Trustee is entitled to reimbursement by the Grantor under this Collateral Trust

and Security Agreement. The Grantor agrees to pay all costs of the Lenders, including attorneys’ fees, incurred by the Lenders with respect to the negotiation,
preparation, execution and delivery of this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement.

9-



4.13. Indemnity by Grantor. The Grantor agrees to indemnify, save and hold harmless the Collateral Trustee and the Lenders and their respective directors,
officers, agents, attorneys and employees from and against:

(@

(b)

©

(d)

any and all claims, demands, actions, or causes of action that are asserted against them by and any Person, if the claim, demand, action or cause of
action directly or indirectly relates to a claim, demand, action or cause that such Person asserts or may assert against the Grantor;

any and all claims, demands, actions or causes of action if the claim, demand, action or cause of action arises out of or relates to this Collateral Trust
and Security Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby;

any administrative or investigative proceeding by any governmental agency arising out of or related to a claim, demand, action or cause of action
described in clause (a) or (b) above; and

any and all liabilities, losses, costs or expenses including attorneys’ fees and disbursements and other professional services (including any such fees
and disbursements related to claims between any of the parties hereto) that the Collateral Trustee and/or the Lenders suffer or incur as a result of the
assertion of any foregoing claim, demand, action or cause of action; provided, however; that the Collateral Trustee and/or the Lenders shall not be
entitled to indemnification for any loss caused by their own gross negligence or willful misconduct. If any claim, demand, action or cause of action is
asserted against the Collateral Trustee and/or the Lenders, the Collateral Trustee and/or the Lenders shall promptly notify the Grantor, but the failure
to so promptly notify the Grantor shall not affect the Grantor’s obligations under this Section 4.13. The Collateral Trustee and/or the Lenders are
authorized to employ and select counsel in enforcing its rights hereunder and in defending any claim, demand, action or cause of action covered by
this Section 4.13.

The Lenders shall, jointly severally indemnify the Collateral Trustee and its officers, directors employees and agents (to the extent not reimbursed by the
Grantor and without limiting the obligation of the Grantor to do so) from and against any and all liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, actions,
judgments, suits, costs, expenses or disbursements of any kind whatsoever that may at any time be imposed on, incurred by or asserted against the Collateral
Trustee relating to or arising out of this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby; provided, however, that the foregoing
shall not extend to actions or omissions that are taken by the Collateral Trustee with gross negligence or willful misconduct.
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Any obligation or liability of the Grantor to the Collateral Trustee and/or the Lenders and of the Lenders to the Collateral Trustee under this Section 4.13
shall survive the expiration or termination of this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement.

5. Representations and Warranties. The Grantor hereby represents and warrants that:

5.1. Organization. The Grantor is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of Maryland, which is the state of its organization,
with all power and authority, corporate or otherwise, to execute, deliver and perform this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement and to perform and implement
all provisions hereof.

5.2. Authorization. The execution, delivery and performance by the Grantor of this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement has been duly authorized by all
requisite action and will not violate any provision of law or of its charter or by-laws or regulations or any contractual provision binding on it or any of its assets or
result in the creation of any Lien (except for Liens created or confirmed hereby) on any of its properties.

5.3. Enforceability. This Collateral Trust and Security Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Grantor and constitutes its legal, valid and
binding obligation, enforceable against it in accordance with its terms. Except for other filings to perfect the security interest granted hereby which have been
made or which are contemplated hereby, no consent of any other party which has not heretofore been duly obtained and no consent, license, approval or
authorization of, or filing, registration or declaration with, any court or governmental department, commission, board, bureau, agency or instrumentality, foreign
or domestic, is required in connection with the execution, delivery, performance, validity or enforceability of this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement.

5.4. Title. Except for the security interests granted to the Collateral Trustee under this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement, the Grantor is the sole
owner of each item of Collateral and has good and marketable title thereto, free and clear of all Liens, except for Permitted Liens.

5.5. No Other Liens. No security agreement, financing statement, equivalent security or Lien, instrument or continuation statement covering all or any part
of the Collateral is on file or of record in any public office except such documents in favor of the Collateral Trustee, and except for Permitted Liens.

5.6. List of Collateral. Schedule A hereto is a true and complete list of all of the Collateral as of the date hereof to the best knowledge of the Grantor;
provided, however, that the security interest granted hereby shall extend to all the Collateral, whether or not included on Schedule A.
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5.7. Location of Offices. The chief executive office and the chief place of business of the Grantor and the only office where it keeps its records concerning
the Collateral is located at 460 Herndon Parkway, Herndon, Virginia 22070. The Grantor will not change the location of its chief executive office, its chief place
of business or any office where it keeps its records concerning the Collateral without giving ten days’ prior written notice to the Collateral Trustee and each
Lender.

6. Covenants. The Grantor covenants and agrees with the Collateral Trustee that from and after the date of this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement and until
the Series B Notes are indefeasibly paid in full and satisfied:

6.1. Further Documentation. At any time and from time to time, and at its sole expense, the Grantor will promptly and duly execute and deliver to the
Collateral Trustee such notices, financing statements, pledges, assignments, mortgages and other documents that are necessary or advisable for the perfection of
the security interests and Liens of the Collateral Trustee hereunder, such notices, financing statements, pledges, assignments, mortgages and other documents to
be in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Lenders, and will execute and deliver to the Collateral Trustee such additional agreements, instruments
and other documents, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Collateral Trustee, and do such further acts and things of any nature, whether similar to
the acts enumerated above or not, as may be necessary or advisable to carry into effect the purposes of this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement or to better
assure and confirm unto its rights, powers and remedies hereunder. The Grantor also hereby authorizes the Collateral Trustee to file any such assignments,
financing or continuation statements without Grantor’s signature to the extent permitted by law.

6.2. Maintenance of Records. The Grantor will keep and maintain at its own cost and expense satisfactory and complete books and records relating to the
Collateral. It will mark its books and records pertaining to the Collateral in such manner as the Collateral Trustee may reasonably require to reflect the security
interests and Liens granted by this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement. For the Collateral Trustee’s further security, it agrees that the Collateral Trustee shall
have a special property interest, subject to the terms and conditions of the Subordination Agreement, in all of the Grantor’s books and records pertaining to the
Collateral (and in any computer programs necessary to use such books and records) and following the occurrence and during the continuance of any Event of
Default, it shall deliver and turn over copies of any such books and records (and such programs) to the Collateral Trustee or its representative at any time on
demand of the Collateral Trustee.

6.3. Compliance with Laws. The Grantor will comply, in all material respects, with all laws, acts, rules, regulations, orders, decrees and directions of any
governmental authority applicable to the Collateral or any part thereof or to the operation of its business (to the extent that the same may affect the Collateral);
provided, however, that it may contest any action,
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regulation, order, decree or direction in any reasonable manner which shall not adversely affect the Collateral Trustee’s rights or the perfection of its security
interest in the Collateral.

6.4. Payment of Obligations. The Grantor will pay promptly when due, all taxes, assessments and governmental charges or levies imposed upon the
Collateral or in respect of its income or profits therefrom, as well as all claims of any kind (including claims for labor, materials and supplies), except that no such
charge need be paid if (i) the validity thereof is being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings, (ii) such proceedings do not involve any danger of the
sale, forfeiture or loss of any of the Collateral or any interest therein and (iii) such charge is adequately reserved against in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

6.5. Limitation on Liens on Collateral or Other Financing Statements. Except with respect to Permitted Liens, or Liens for taxes which are not yet due and
payable or for taxes, assessments, charges or levies permitted to be unpaid pursuant to Section 6.4 hereof, which Liens are not material, the Grantor will not
create, permit or suffer to exist, and it will defend the Collateral against and take such other action as is necessary to remove, any Lien on the Collateral, and it
will defend the right, title and interest of the Collateral Trustee in and to any of its rights in and to the Collateral against the claims and demands of all Persons
whomsoever. Except for financing statements or assignments filed pursuant to this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement or relating to Permitted Liens, the
Grantor shall not, without the prior written consent of the Collateral Trustee, file or suffer to be on file or authorize or permit to be filed or to be on file in any
jurisdiction any financing statement or like instrument with respect to the Collateral in which the Collateral Trustee is not named as the sole secured party.

6.6. Limitations on Dispositions of Collateral. The Grantor will not sell, transfer, assign or otherwise dispose of any of the Collateral, or attempt, offer or
contract to do so, other than in the ordinary course of its business consistent with past practice. Notwithstanding the foregoing, so long as no Event of Default
shall have occurred and be continuing, the Grantor may, consistent with the terms of this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement, dispose of or otherwise utilize
cash proceeds of the Collateral in the ordinary course of its business. Whether or not any Event of Default has occurred or is continuing, the proceeds of the
Collateral, other than those referred to in this Section 6.6, immediately upon receipt thereof by the Grantor, shall be held by the Collateral Trustee as additional
Collateral hereunder.

6.7. Insurance. The Grantor will, at all times, maintain or cause to be maintained on the Collateral, insurance against loss or damage by fire or other
casualty to the extent customary with respect to like properties of companies conducting similar businesses and will maintain or cause to be maintained public
liability and workmen’s compensation insurance insuring the Grantor to the extent customary with respect to companies conducting similar businesses and, upon
request, will furnish to the Collateral Trustee satisfactory evidence of the
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same. In the case of all insurance policies insuring the Collateral, any proceeds thereof shall be payable to the Collateral Trustee for the benefit of the Lenders
after the payment of amounts due and payable to NationsBank. All such policies, or those required hereunder, shall be deposited with the Collateral Trustee; and,
subject to the agreement of the issuer of any such policy, such policies shall contain provisions that no such insurance may be canceled or decreased without 10
days’ prior written notice to the Collateral Trustee. If the Grantor shall at any time fail to obtain and maintain any of the policies of insurance required herein, or
fail to pay any premium in whole or in part relating to any such policies, the Collateral Trustee may, but shall not be obligated to, obtain or cause to be maintained
insurance coverage with respect to the Collateral, and pay all or part of the premium thereunder, without waiving any Event of Default by the Grantor, and any
sums disbursed by the Collateral Trustee shall be obligations of the Grantor to the Collateral Trustee payable on demand. Following the occurrence and during the
continuance of an Event of Default, or event which, with the giving of notice or the lapse of time, or both, would constitute an Event of Default, the Collateral
Trustee, subject to the terms of the Subordination Agreement, shall have the right to settle and compromise any and all claims under any of the policies required
to be maintained by the Grantor hereunder, to demand and receive all monies payable thereunder, and to execute in the name of the Grantor and/or the Collateral
Trustee any proof of loss, notice or other instruments in connection with such policies or any loss thereunder.

6.8. Notices. The Grantor will advise the Collateral Trustee promptly, in reasonable detail, (i) of any Lien or claim made or asserted against any of the
Collateral; (ii) of any material change in the composition or location of the Collateral or records with respect thereto; (iii) of the occurrence of any other event
which would have a material effect on the aggregate value of the Collateral or on the security interest created hereunder; and (iv) of the occurrence of any “Event
of Default” as described in the Series B Notes or the Grantor’s Series C Senior Subordinated Unsecured Notes Due October 1, 2000 (the “Series C Notes”).

6.9. Right of Inspection. Except as otherwise restricted by law, the Collateral Trustee shall at all times have full and free access during normal business
hours to all Grantor’s books, correspondence and records related to the Collateral, and the Collateral Trustee or representatives of the Collateral Trustee may
examine the same, take extracts therefrom and make photocopies thereof, and Grantor agrees to render to the Collateral Trustee, at its sole cost and expense, such
clerical and other assistance as may be reasonably requested with regard thereto.

6.10. Further Assurances. The Grantor will promptly cure, or cause to be cured, any defects in the execution and delivery of this Collateral Trust and
Security Agreement and any other documents arising herefrom. It will, at its sole expense, promptly execute and deliver, or cause to be executed and delivered, to
the Collateral Trustee, all such other and further documents, agreements and instruments in compliance with or necessary to the accomplishment of its covenants
and agreements hereunder, and obtain or cause to be obtained any consents as may be necessary or advisable in connection herewith or to give effect hereto.
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7. Performance by Collateral Trustee of Grantor’s Obligations. If the Grantor fails to perform or comply with any of its agreements contained herein and the
Collateral Trustee or its agent shall perform or comply, or otherwise cause performance or compliance, with such agreement, the expenses of the Collateral
Trustee or its agent incurred in connection with such performance or compliance, together with interest thereon at the rate provided in Section 1.1 of the Series B
Notes, shall be payable by the Grantor to the Collateral Trustee on demand.

8. Events of Default.
The following events shall be referred to herein as “Events of Default”:

(a) Failure to perform any covenant contained herein in any material respect which continues for fifteen (15) days after written notice to the Grantor
from the Collateral Trustee.

(b)  Any representation or warranty contained herein shall be untrue in any material respect as of the date when made.

(c) The occurrence and continuance of any “Event of Default” as described in the Series B Notes or the Series C Notes.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, in the Series B Notes or in the Series C Notes, the occurrence of an Event of Default under this
Section 8 shall be deemed to constitute an Event of Default under the Series B Notes and the Series C Notes, which shall entitle the Lenders to take all actions
and to exercise all remedies available to the Lenders under the Series B Notes and Series C Notes, including the rights set forth in Sections 2.2 and 2.3 of such
Notes. Further, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, in the Series B Notes and in the Series C Notes, and notwithstanding any default under
the Series B Notes or the Series C Notes, the security interest granted herein shall only be enforced for the payment of Grantor’s obligations with respect to the
Series B Notes and no provision of this Security Agreement shall be enforced or otherwise used in any way for the repayment in whole or in part of any other
indebtedness or obligation of the Grantor to the Lenders, including the Series C Notes.

9. Rights and Remedies Upon Default.

9.1. Subordination Agreement. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement to the contrary, all the rights and
remedies of the Collateral Trustee and the rights and remedies of the Lenders and the Collateral Trustee with respect to the Collateral and the disposition thereof
shall be subject to the terms and conditions contained in the Subordination Agreement. If, and to the extent, any provision in this Collateral Trust and Security
Agreement is inconsistent with the provisions of the
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Subordination Agreement, the provisions of the Subordination Agreement shall be binding. The Collateral Trustee hereby acknowledges that it has had presented
to it and has read the Subordination Agreement and agrees to be bound by all of the obligations of the Lenders therein as a party thereto, including the provisions
of Sections 2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 2.4, 2.5 and 2.14.

9.2. Proceeds. Following the occurrence and during the continuance of any Event of Default, or an event set forth in Section 8 hereof which, with the
giving of notice or the lapse of time, or both, would constitute an Event of Default, any proceeds, if and when collected by the Grantor, whether consisting of
checks, notes, drafts, bills of exchange, money orders, commercial paper of any kind whatsoever, or other instruments or documents, received in payment for any
Collateral shall be promptly turned over to the Collateral Trustee by the Grantor in precisely the form received, except for its endorsement when required, and
until so turned over, shall be deemed to be held in trust by the Grantor for and as the Collateral Trustee’s property and shall not be commingled with the Grantor’s
other funds. Such proceeds, when turned over, shall continue to be security for all of the Series B Notes and shall be applied by the Collateral Trustee on account
of the Series B Notes in the order and manner set forth in Section 9.4 hereof. Following the occurrence and during the continuance of any Event of Default, or an
event set forth in Section 8 hereof which, with the giving of notice or the lapse of time, or both, would constitute an Event of Default, the Grantor shall deliver to
the Collateral Trustee all original and other documents evidencing, or relating to, the Collateral.

9.3. Payments. Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of any Event of Default:

(i) All payments received by the Grantor under or in connection with any of the Collateral shall be held by the Grantor in trust for the Collateral
Trustee, shall be segregated from other funds of the Grantor and shall forthwith upon receipt by the Grantor be turned over to the Collateral Trustee, in the
same form as received by the Grantor (duly endorsed by the Grantor to the Collateral Trustee, if required); and

(ii) any and all such payments so received by the Collateral Trustee (whether from the Grantor or otherwise) shall be applied by the Collateral
Trustee against the Series B Notes in such order and manner as set forth in Section 9.4 hereof. Any balance of such payments held by the Collateral Trustee
and remaining after application in full of all such amounts to the Series B Notes shall be held in trust for the account of and paid over to the Grantor or to
whomsoever may be lawfully entitled to received the same.

9.4. Foreclosure. If any Event of Default shall occur and be continuing, the Collateral Trustee may exercise, in addition to all other rights and remedies
granted to it in this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement and in any other instrument, document or
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agreement securing, evidencing or relating to the Series B Notes, all rights and remedies of a secured party under the UCC or other applicable law. Without
limiting the generality of the foregoing, to the extent permitted by law, the Grantor expressly agrees that in any such event the Collateral Trustee, without demand
of performance or other demand, advertisement or notice of any kind (except the notice specified below of time and place of public or private sale) to or upon the
Grantor or any other Person (all and each of which demands, advertisements and notices are hereby expressly waived), may forthwith collect, receive, appropriate
and realize upon the Collateral, or any part thereof, and may forthwith sell, lease, assign, give an option or options to purchase, or otherwise dispose of and
deliver said Collateral (or contract to do so), or any part thereof, at a public or private sale or sales, at any exchange or broker’s board or at any of the Collateral
Trustee’s offices or elsewhere at such price or prices as it may deem satisfactory, for cash or on credit or for future delivery without assumption of any credit risk,
and the Collateral Trustee may enter into any property where any Collateral is located and take possession thereof with or without judicial process; provided,
however, that notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement, the Collateral Trustee may not take any action
to foreclose or otherwise realize upon the Collateral or to take possession of the Collateral except in express accordance with the Subordination Agreement and
Section 9.5 hereof. Prior to the disposition of any Collateral, the Collateral Trustee may store, process, repair or recondition the Collateral or otherwise prepare it
for disposition in any manner and to the extent that the Collateral Trustee deems appropriate. The Collateral Trustee shall have the right upon any such public sale
or sales and, to the extent permitted by law, upon any such private sale or sales, to purchase the whole or any part of said Collateral so sold on behalf of the
Lenders, and to offset the purchase price thereof against the Series B Notes or any portion thereof, and thereafter to hold the same, absolutely free and clear of any
claim or right of whatsoever kind, including any right or equity of redemption in the Grantor, which right or equity is, to the extent permitted by law, hereby
waived and released. Upon any such sale, the Collateral Trustee shall have the right to deliver, assign and transfer to the purchaser thereof the Collateral sold.
Each purchaser at any such sale shall hold the property sold absolutely free from any claim or right of whatsoever kind, including any right or equity of
redemption in the Grantor, which right or equity is, to the extent permitted by law, hereby waived and released, and any rights of stay or appraisal which the
Grantor has or may have under any rule of law or statute how existing or hereafter adopted. Any such public or private sale shall be held at such time or times
within ordinary business hours and at such place or places as may be required by law, as the Collateral Trustee may fix in the notice of such sale. At any such
private or public sale the Collateral may be sold as an entirety or in separate parcels, as the Collateral Trustee may determine. The Collateral Trustee shall not be
obligated to make any sale pursuant to any such notice. The Collateral Trustee may, without notice or publication, adjourn any public or private sale or cause the
same to be adjourned from time to time by announcement at the time and place fixed for such sale, and such sale may without further notice be made at any time
or place to which the same may be so adjourned. In case of any sale of all or any part of the Collateral on credit or for future delivery, the Collateral so sold may
be retained by the Collateral Trustee until the selling price is paid by the purchaser thereof, but the Collateral
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Trustee shall not incur any liability in case of the failure of such purchaser to take up and pay for the Collateral so sold and, in case of any such failure, such
Collateral may again be sold upon like notice. The Collateral Trustee, however, instead of exercising the power of sale herein conferred upon it may proceed by a
suit or suits at law or in equity to foreclose the security interest granted pursuant to this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement and sell the Collateral or any
portion thereof, under a judgment or decree of court or courts of competent jurisdiction, the Grantor having been given notice of all such action. The Grantor
further agrees, at the Collateral Trustee’s request, to assemble the Collateral and make it available to the Collateral Trustee at places that the Collateral Trustee
shall reasonably select, whether at the Grantor’s premises or elsewhere. The proceeds of any such collection, sale, enforcement or other realization of all or any
part of the Collateral, and any other cash at the time held by the Collateral Trustee pursuant to the terms of this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement, shall be
applied by the Collateral Trustee:

(i) First, to the payment of all costs and expenses of every kind paid or incurred by the Collateral Trustee in connection with this Collateral Trust and
Security Agreement or the exercise of any right or remedy hereunder, including the costs and expenses of any collection, sale, enforcement or other
realization, and the costs and expenses incidental to the care or safe-keeping of any or all of the Collateral until such costs and expenses shall be paid in
full;

(ii) Second, application to payment of the Series B Notes (including any principal, interest, fees or expenses due under the terms of the Series B
Notes) until all such Series B Notes shall be paid in full; and

(iii) Third, after the irrevocable payment in full of the amount referred to in paragraphs (i) and (ii), the balance, if any, shall be paid over to such
other Person or Persons as may be required by law.

To the extent permitted by law, the Grantor waives all claims, damages and demands against the Collateral Trustee arising out of the repossession, retention or
sale of the Collateral. The Grantor agrees that the Collateral Trustee need not give more than ten business days’ prior notice (which notification shall be deemed
given when mailed, postage prepaid, addressed to it at its address set forth in Section 11 hereof) of the time and place of any public sale or of the time after which
a private sale may take place and that such notice is reasonable notification of such matters. The Grantor shall remain liable for any deficiency if the proceeds of
any sale or disposition of the Collateral are insufficient to pay all amounts to which the Lenders are entitled, the Grantor also being liable for the fees of counsel
employed by the Collateral Trustee to collect such deficiency.

9.5. Permission of Lenders. The Collateral Trustee may not foreclose, collect, receive, appropriate or realize upon the Collateral, or any part thereof, or sell,
lease, assign, give an option or options to purchase, or otherwise dispose of and deliver said Collateral (or
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contract to do so), or any part thereof, without the prior written consent of the Lenders holding at least 90% of the outstanding principal amount of the Series B
Notes at such time. In addition, any action, consent, waiver, instruction, or other approval by the Lenders under this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement shall
require the prior written consent of the Lenders holding at least 90% of the outstanding principal amount of the Series B Notes at such time.

9.6. Waivers of Notice. The Grantor waives presentment, demand, protest or any notice (to the extent permitted by law) of any kind in connection with this
Collateral Trust and Security Agreement or any Collateral.

9.7. No Liability of the Collateral Trustee and the L.enders. Neither the Collateral Trustee nor the Lenders shall incur any liability to the Grantor as a result
of the sale of the Collateral, or any part thereof, at any private sale conducted in a commercially reasonable manner. The Grantor hereby waives any claims
against the Collateral Trustee and the Lenders arising by reason of the fact that the price at which the Collateral may have been sold at such private sale was less
than the price which might have been obtained at a public sale or was less than the aggregate amount of the Series B Notes even if the Collateral Trustee accepts
the first offer received and does not offer the Collateral to more than one offeree; provided, that the Collateral Trustee conducts any such sale in a commercially
reasonable manner.

10. Limitation on Collateral Trustee’s Duty in Respect of Collateral. Beyond the use of reasonable care in the custody and preservation thereof, the Collateral
Trustee shall not have any duty as to any Collateral in its possession or control or in the possession or control of any agent or nominee of the Collateral Trustee or
any income thereon or as to the preservation of rights against prior parties or any other rights pertaining thereto.

11. Notices. Any notice or any other communication to a Lender shall be given in writing and deemed received when delivered by overnight courier or hand
delivery, or when sent by facsimile transmission to the office of such Lender indicated on Exhibit A hereto with a copy to:

Ropes & Gray

One International Place

Boston, MA 02110-2624
Telecopy: (617) 951-7050
Attention: Steven A. Wilcox, Esq.

or such other address as may be advised in writing.

Any notice or any other communication to the Collateral Trustee shall be given in writing and deemed received when delivered by overnight courier or
hand delivery, or when sent by facsimile transmission to the office of the Collateral Trustee at:
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State Street Bank and Trust Company
Corporate Trust Department

Two International Place

Boston, MA 02110

Telecopy: (617) 664-5371

Attention: Henry W. Seemore, Jr.

or such other address as may be advised in writing.

Any notice or any other communication to the Grantor hereunder shall be given in writing and deemed received when delivered by overnight courier or
hand delivery, or when sent by facsimile transmission to the office of the Grantor at:

Telos Corporation

460 Herndon Parkway

Herndon, Virginia 22070
Telecopy: (703) 834-3311
Attention: Chief Financial Officer

with a copy to:

Hale and Dorr

60 State Street

Boston, MA 02109

Telecopy: (617) 526-5000
Attention: S. Donald Gonson, Esq.

or such other address as may be advised in writing.

12. No Waiver; Cumulative Remedies; Amendments.

The Collateral Trustee shall not by any act, delay, omission or otherwise be deemed to have waived any of its rights or remedies hereunder and no waiver
shall be valid as to the Collateral Trustee unless in writing and signed by the Collateral Trustee and then only to the extent therein set forth. A waiver by the
Collateral Trustee of any right or remedy hereunder on any one occasion shall not be construed as a bar to any right or remedy which the Collateral Trustee would
otherwise have had on any future occasion. No failure to exercise nor any delay in exercising on the part of the Collateral Trustee of any right, power or privilege
hereunder, shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right, power or privilege hereunder preclude any other or further
exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege. The rights and remedies hereunder provided are cumulative and may be exercised singly or
concurrently, and are not exclusive of any rights and remedies provided by law. None of the terms or provisions of this Collateral Trust
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and Security Agreement may be waived, altered, modified or amended, nor any consent given thereunder, except by an instrument in writing, duly executed by
the Grantor, the Collateral Trustee and each Lender.

13. Successors and Assigns. This Collateral Trust and Security Agreement and all obligations of the Grantor hereunder shall be binding upon the successors and
assigns of the Grantor, and shall, together with the rights and remedies of the Collateral Trustee hereunder, inure to the benefit of the Collateral Trustee and its
successors. Each Lender may assign this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement and any assignee of any such Lender shall have such rights as if originally
named herein in place of such Lender.

14. Governing Law. This Collateral Trust and Security Agreement, and all rights, obligations and liabilities arising hereunder, shall be governed by and construed
in accordance with the internal laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia.

15. Severability. Any provision of this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement which is prohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such
jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the remaining provisions hereof, and any such prohibition or
unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall not invalidate or render unenforceable such provision in any other jurisdiction.

16. Security Interest Absolute. All rights of the Collateral Trustee and security interests hereunder, and all obligations of the Grantor hereunder, shall be absolute
and unconditional irrespective of:

(a) any lack of validity or enforceability of any provision of any Series B Note;
(b) any change in the time, manner or place of payment of, or in any other term of, all or any of the Series B Notes;

(c) any exchange, release or non-perfection of any Collateral, or any release or amendment or waiver of or consent to departure from any guaranty, for
all or any of the Series B Notes; or

(d) any other circumstance which might otherwise constitute a defense available to, or a discharge of the Grantor.

17. Further Indemnification. The Grantor agrees to pay, and to hold harmless the Collateral Trustee and the Lenders from, any and all liabilities with respect to, or
resulting from any delay in paying, any and all excise, sales or other taxes which may be payable or determined to be payable with respect to any of the Collateral
or in connection with any of the transactions contemplated by this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement.
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18. Termination. When all the Series B Notes shall have been fully, finally and indefeasibly paid, discharged and retired, this Collateral Trust and Security
Agreement shall terminate, and the Collateral Trustee shall forthwith cause to be assigned, transferred and delivered, against receipt but without any recourse,
warranty or representation whatsoever, the Collateral and any money received in respect thereof, to or on the order, of the Grantor, and to execute such
termination statements as required by the Grantor.

19. Counterparts. This Collateral Trust and Security Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts and all of such counterparts taken together shall
constitute one and the same instrument.

20. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL AND SETOFF: CONSENT TO JURISDICTION.

GRANTOR HEREBY WAIVES, TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LITIGATION IN ANY COURT WITH
RESPECT TO, IN CONNECTION WITH, OR ARISING OUT OF THIS COLLATERAL TRUST AND SECURITY AGREEMENT, THE COLLATERAL OR
ANY INSTRUMENT OR DOCUMENT DELIVERED PURSUANT TO THIS COLLATERAL TRUST AND SECURITY AGREEMENT, OR THE VALIDITY,
PROTECTION, INTERPRETATION, COLLECTION OR ENFORCEMENT THEREOF, OR ANY OTHER CLAIM OR DISPUTE HOWSOEVER ARISING,
BETWEEN GRANTOR ON THE ONE HAND, AND THE COLLATERAL TRUSTEE, ON THE OTHER HAND; AND GRANTOR HEREBY WAIVES, TO
THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE RIGHT TO INTERPOSE ANY SETOFF OR COUNTERCLAIM OR CROSS-CLAIM IN CONNECTION WITH
ANY SUCH LITIGATION, IRRESPECTIVE OF THE NATURE OF SUCH SETOFF, COUNTERCLAIM OR CROSS-CLAIM EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT
THAT THE FAILURE SO TO ASSERT ANY SUCH SETOFF, COUNTERCLAIM OR CROSS-CLAIM WOULD PERMANENTLY PRECLUDE THE
PROSECUTION OF OR RECOVERY UPON SAME. GRANTOR HEREBY IRREVOCABLY CONSENTS TO THE NONEXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION OF
THE COURTS OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS AND, TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, OF ANY FEDERAL COURT
LOCATED IN THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS IN CONNECTION WITH ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR
RELATING TO ANY ONE OR MORE OF THIS COLLATERAL TRUST AND SECURITY AGREEMENT, ANY SERIES B NOTE OR ANY DOCUMENT
OR INSTRUMENT DELIVERED PURSUANT TO THIS COLLATERAL TRUST AND SECURITY AGREEMENT.

21. General. The headings in this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not limit or otherwise affect the
meaning hereof. This Collateral Trust and Security Agreement constitutes the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and
supersedes all prior and current understandings and agreements, whether written or oral.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor, the Collateral Trustee and each Lender have caused this Collateral Trust and Security Agreement to be executed by
their duly authorized officers as of the date first set forth above.

TELOS CORPORATION

By: /s/ William L.P. Brownley

Name: William L.P. Brownley
Title:  V.P. General Counsel

STATE STREET BANK AND TRUST COMPANY,
as Collateral Trustee

By: /s/ ERIC J. DONAGHEY

Name: ERICJ. DONAGHEY
Title:  Assistant Vice President

SECOND CONSOLIDATED TRUST PLC

By:  /s/R.L. RICHARDS

Name: R.L. RICHARDS
Title: AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY

NORTH ATLANTIC SMALLER COMPANIES

INVESTMENT TRUST PLC
By: M “
Name:

Title:

J O HAMBRO INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LTD.

Name:
Title:
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INVESCO ENGLISH & INTERNATIONAL TRUST PLC

By: /s/ 1. A. CARSTAIRS

Name: I. A. CARSTAIRS
Title:  Director
INVESCO ASSET MANAGEMENT LTD

TOXPORD CORPORATION

ey O

Name: Higuee | Cou o

Title: DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

/s/ John Porter

John Porter

/s/ Sir Leslie Porter

Sir Leslie Porter



EXHIBIT A

Second Consolidated Trust PLC
Exchange House

Primrose Street

London EC2A 2NY

United Kingdom

Telecopy: 011-44-71-782-9834
Attention: Roderick L. Richards

North Atlantic Smaller Companies
Investment Trust PLC

10 Park Place

London SW1A 1LP

United Kingdom

Telecopy: 011-44-71-233-1503

Attention: Christopher H.B. Mills

J.0. Hambro Investment Management Ltd.
10 Park Place

London SW1A 1LP

United Kingdom

Telecopy: 011-44-71-222-2020

Attention: Christopher H.B. Mills

INVESCO English & International Trust PLC (formerly named and
known as Drayton English & International Investment Trust)

11 Devonshire Square

London EC2M 4YR

United Kingdom

Telecopy: 011-44-071-623-3339

Attention: Andrew Crossley

John Porter

Party America

63 Chester Square

London SW1

United Kingdom

Telecopy: 011-44-71-396-0106



Toxford Corporation

c/o Rabobank

P.O. Box 348

St. Andrews House

Le Bordage

St. Peter Port, Guernsey, Channel Islands
Telecopy: 011-44481-725-157
Attention: Roy Smith

Sir Leslie Porter

c/o Personal Financial Management Limited
12 Hans Road

London SW3 1RT England

Attention: Mr. Craig Renaud
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Exhibit 10.15
PREFERRED STOCKHOLDERS STANDBY AGREEMENT

THIS PREFERRED STOCKHOLDERS STANDBY AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), dated as of April 14, 2008, entered into between Wells Fargo
Foothill, Inc. (formerly known as Foothill Capital Corporation), as agent (“Agent”) for itself and for the Lenders (defined below), and the party identified on the
signature page hereto as the “Preferred Stockholder” (the “Preferred Stockholder”).

WHEREAS, Preferred Stockholder is financially interested in Telos Corporation, a Maryland corporation (“Company™), in that Company has issued
certain of its Series A-1 Redeemable Preferred Stock (“Series A-1”) and its Series A-2 Redeemable Preferred Stock (“Series A-2”; Series A-1 and Series A-2 are
collectively the Preferred Stock”) to Preferred Stockholder;

WHEREAS, Company is indebted to Agent and Lenders in connection with the advances of monies and other financial arrangements by Agent and
Lenders to Company; and

WHEREAS, such advances of monies and other financial arrangements are evidenced by various agreements, instruments and documents, including,
without limitation, that certain Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement dated as of April 3, 2008, but effective as of March 31, 2008, between
Company, certain financial institutions from time to time party thereto as lenders (“Lenders”) and Agent (the “Loan Agreement”);

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by hereby agree with
Agent as hereinafter set forth.

1. Agreement. Preferred Stockholder will not ask, demand, sue for, take or receive from Company or any other party, by setoff or in any other
manner, the whole or any part of any indebtedness, obligations and liabilities which may now or hereafter be owing by Company, or any successor or assign of
Company, including, without limitation, a receiver, trustee or debtor in possession (the term “Company” hereinafter shall include any such successor and assign of
Company), to the Preferred Stockholder in respect of the Preferred Stock (including, without limitation, any payments in respect of dividends or redemptions in
respect of the Preferred Stock), unless and until all obligations, liabilities, and indebtedness of Company to Agent and Lenders, whether now existing or hereafter
arising directly between Company and Agent or any Lender, or acquired outright, conditionally or as collateral security from another by Agent or any Lender,
shall have been fully paid and satisfied in cash with interest, including, without limitation, any interest accruing after the commencement of insolvency
proceedings with respect to Company, whether or not such interest is allowed as a claim in such proceeding (all such obligations, indebtedness and




liabilities of Company to Agent and each Lender being hereinafter referred to as the “Senior Debt”) and all financing arrangements between Company, Agent and
Lenders have been terminated.

2. Priority of Agent and Lenders. In the event of any distribution, division or application, partial or complete, voluntary or involuntary, by operation
of law or otherwise, of all or any part of the assets of Company or the proceeds thereof to the creditors of Company or readjustment of the obligations and
indebtedness of Company, whether by reason of liquidation, bankruptcy, arrangement, receivership, assignment for the benefit of creditors or any other action or
proceeding involving the readjustment of all or any part of the Preferred Stock, or the application of the assets of Company to the payment or liquidation thereof,
or upon the dissolution, liquidation, cessation or other winding up of Company’s business, or upon the sale of all or substantially all of Company’s assets, then,
and in any such event, (i) Agent, for the benefit of itself and Lenders, shall be entitled to receive payment in cash in full of any and all of the Senior Debt then
owing prior to the payment of all or any part of the Preferred Stock and (ii) any payment or distribution of any kind or character, whether in cash, securities or
other property, which shall be payable or deliverable upon or with respect to any or all of the Preferred Stock shall be paid or delivered directly to Agent for
application on any of the Senior Debt, due or not due, until such Senior Debt shall have first been fully paid and satisfied in cash.

3. Payments Received by Preferred Stockholder. Should any payment, distribution, security or instrument, or any proceeds thereof, be received by
the Preferred Stockholder upon or with respect to the Preferred Stock prior to the satisfaction of all of the Senior Debt in cash and termination of all financing
arrangements between Company, Agent and Lenders, the Preferred Stockholder shall receive and hold the same in trust, as trustee, for the benefit of Agent and
Lenders and shall forthwith deliver the same to Agent in precisely the form received (except for the endorsement or assignment by the Preferred Stockholder
where necessary), for application on any of the Senior Debt, due or not due, and, until so delivered, the same shall be held in trust by the Preferred Stockholder as
the property of Agent.

4. Instrument Legend; Amendments. Any instrument or certificate evidencing any of the Preferred Stock, or any portion thereof, will be inscribed
with a legend conspicuously indicating that payment thereof is subject to the terms of this Agreement, and a copy thereof will be delivered to Agent.

5. Extension of Maturity of Preferred Stock. Preferred Stockholder hereby agrees that the redemption date of the Preferred Stock shall be extended
until December 31, 2011.

6. GOVERNING LAW; CONSENT TO JURISDICTION; WAIVERS. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE DEEMED TO HAVE BEEN MADE IN
THE STATE OF ILLINOIS AND SHALL BE INTERPRETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE INTERNAL LAWS OF ILLINOIS AND NOT THE
CONFLICT OF LAWS RULES OF THE STATE

-



OF ILLINOIS GOVERNING CONTRACTS TO BE PERFORMED ENTIRELY WITHIN SUCH STATE. PREFERRED STOCKHOLDER HEREBY AGREES
TO THE EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION OF ANY STATE OR FEDERAL COURT LOCATED WITHIN THE COUNTY OF COOK, STATE OF ILLINOIS OR,
AT THE SOLE OPTION OF AGENT, IN ANY OTHER COURT IN WHICH AGENT SHALL INITIATE LEGAL OR EQUITABLE PROCEEDINGS AND
WHICH HAS SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION. OVER THE MATTER IN CONTROVERSY. PREFERRED STOCKHOLDER WAIVES ANY
OBJECTION OF FORUM NON CONVENIENS AND VENUE. AGENT AND PREFERRED STOCKHOLDER EACH HEREBY WAIVE THE RIGHT TO
TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING BASED UPON, ARISING OUT OF, OR IN ANY WAY RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT,
WHETHER SOUNDING IN CONTRACT OR TORT OR OTHERWISE.

7. Notices. Any notice required hereunder shall be in writing and addressed to the party to be notified as follows:

If to the Agent, at: Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc.
One Boston Place, 18th Floor
Boston, Massachusetts 02108
Attn: Technology Finance Division Manager
Fax No. (617) 523-1697

If to the Preferred North Atlantic Smaller Companies Investment
Stockholder, at: Trust PLC

c/o North Atlantic Value LLP

Ground Floor, Ryder Court

14 Ryder Street

London SW1Y 6QB

England

or to such other address as each party may designate for itself by notice. Notice shall be deemed to have been duly given (i) if delivered personally or otherwise
actually received, (ii) if sent by overnight delivery service, (iii) if mailed by first class United States mail, postage prepaid, registered or certified, with return
receipt requested or (iv) if sent by telex with telex confirmation of receipt (with duplicate notice sent by United States mail as provided above). Notice mailed as
provided in clause (iii) above shall be effective upon the expiration of three (3) business days after its deposit in the United States mail. Notice given in any other
manner described in this paragraph shall be effective upon receipt by the addressee thereof; provided, however, that if any notice is tendered to an addressee and
delivery thereof is refused by such addressee, such notice shall be effective upon such tender.

-3-



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been signed as of the date first above written.

4-

AGENT:

WELLS FARGO FOOTHILL, INC., as Agent for Lenders

... 4

Its V.P.

PREFERRED STOCKHOLDER:

NORTH ATLANTIC SMALLER COMPANIES
INVESTMENT TRUST PLC

A M

Its CEO
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PREFERRED STOCKHOLDERS STANDBY AGREEMENT

THIS PREFERRED STOCKHOLDERS STANDBY AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), dated as of April 14, 2008, entered into between Wells Fargo
Foothill, Inc. (formerly known as Foothill Capital Corporation), as agent (“Agent”) for itself and for the Lenders (defined below), and the party identified on the
signature page hereto as the “Preferred Stockholder” (the “Preferred Stockholder”).

WHEREAS, Preferred Stockholder is financially interested in Telos Corporation, a Maryland corporation (“Company™), in that Company has issued
certain of its Series A-1 Redeemable Preferred Stock (“Series A-1”) and its Series A-2 Redeemable Preferred Stock (“Series A-2”; Series A-1 and Series A-2 are
collectively the Preferred Stock”) to Preferred Stockholder;

WHEREAS, Company is indebted to Agent and Lenders in connection with the advances of monies and other financial arrangements by Agent and
Lenders to Company; and

WHEREAS, such advances of monies and other financial arrangements are evidenced by various agreements, instruments and documents, including,
without limitation, that certain Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement dated as of April 3, 2008, but effective as of March 31, 2008, between
Company, certain financial institutions from time to time party thereto as lenders (“Lenders”) and Agent (the “Loan Agreement”);

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by hereby agree with
Agent as hereinafter set forth.

1. Agreement. Preferred Stockholder will not ask, demand, sue for, take or receive from Company or any other party, by setoff or in any other
manner, the whole or any part of any indebtedness, obligations and liabilities which may now or hereafter be owing by Company, or any successor or assign of
Company, including, without limitation, a receiver, trustee or debtor in possession (the term “Company” hereinafter shall include any such successor and assign of
Company), to the Preferred Stockholder in respect of the Preferred Stock (including, without limitation, any payments in respect of dividends or redemptions in
respect of the Preferred Stock), unless and until all obligations, liabilities, and indebtedness of Company to Agent and Lenders, whether now existing or hereafter
arising directly between Company and Agent or any Lender, or acquired outright, conditionally or as collateral security from another by Agent or any Lender,
shall have been fully paid and satisfied in cash with interest, including, without limitation, any interest accruing after the commencement of insolvency
proceedings with respect to Company, whether or not such interest is allowed as a claim in such proceeding (all such obligations, indebtedness and




liabilities of Company to Agent and each Lender being hereinafter referred to as the “Senior Debt”) and all financing arrangements between Company, Agent and
Lenders have been terminated.

2. Priority of Agent and Lenders. In the event of any distribution, division or application, partial or complete, voluntary or involuntary, by operation
of law or otherwise, of all or any part of the assets of Company or the proceeds thereof to the creditors of Company or readjustment of the obligations and
indebtedness of Company, whether by reason of liquidation, bankruptcy, arrangement, receivership, assignment for the benefit of creditors or any other action or
proceeding involving the readjustment of all or any part of the Preferred Stock, or the application of the assets of Company to the payment or liquidation thereof,
or upon the dissolution, liquidation, cessation or other winding up of Company’s business, or upon the sale of all or substantially all of Company’s assets, then,
and in any such event, (i) Agent, for the benefit of itself and Lenders, shall be entitled to receive payment in cash in full of any and all of the Senior Debt then
owing prior to the payment of all or any part of the Preferred Stock and (ii) any payment or distribution of any kind or character, whether in cash, securities or
other property, which shall be payable or deliverable upon or with respect to any or all of the Preferred Stock shall be paid or delivered directly to Agent for
application on any of the Senior Debt, due or not due, until such Senior Debt shall have first been fully paid and satisfied in cash.

3. Payments Received by Preferred Stockholder. Should any payment, distribution, security or instrument, or any proceeds thereof, be received by
the Preferred Stockholder upon or with respect to the Preferred Stock prior to the satisfaction of all of the Senior Debt in cash and termination of all financing
arrangements between Company, Agent and Lenders, the Preferred Stockholder shall receive and hold the same in trust, as trustee, for the benefit of Agent and
Lenders and shall forthwith deliver the same to Agent in precisely the form received (except for the endorsement or assignment by the Preferred Stockholder
where necessary), for application on any of the Senior Debt, due or not due, and, until so delivered, the same shall be held in trust by the Preferred Stockholder as
the property of Agent.

4. Instrument Legend;_ Amendments. Any instrument or certificate evidencing any of the Preferred Stock, or any portion thereof, will be inscribed
with a legend conspicuously indicating that payment thereof is subject to the terms of this Agreement, and a copy thereof will be delivered to Agent.

5. Extension of Maturity of Preferred Stock. Preferred Stockholder hereby agrees that the redemption date of the Preferred Stock shall be extended
until December 31, 2011.

6. GOVERNING LAW; CONSENT TO JURISDICTION; WAIVERS. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE DEEMED TO HAVE BEEN MADE IN
THE STATE OF ILLINOIS AND SHALL BE INTERPRETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE INTERNAL LAWS OF ILLINOIS AND NOT THE
CONFLICT OF LAWS RULES OF THE STATE

-



OF ILLINOIS GOVERNING CONTRACTS TO BE PERFORMED ENTIRELY WITHIN SUCH STATE. PREFERRED STOCKHOLDER HEREBY AGREES
TO THE EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION OF ANY STATE OR FEDERAL COURT LOCATED WITHIN THE COUNTY OF COOK, STATE OF ILLINOIS OR,
AT THE SOLE OPTION OF AGENT, IN ANY OTHER COURT IN WHICH AGENT SHALL INITIATE LEGAL OR EQUITABLE PROCEEDINGS AND
WHICH HAS SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION OVER THE MATTER IN CONTROVERSY. PREFERRED STOCKHOLDER WAIVES ANY
OBJECTION OF FORUM NON CONVENIENS AND VENUE. AGENT AND PREFERRED STOCKHOLDER EACH HEREBY WAIVE THE RIGHT TO
TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING BASED UPON, ARISING OUT OF, OR IN ANY WAY RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT,
WHETHER SOUNDING IN CONTRACT OR TORT OR OTHERWISE.

7. Notices. Any notice required hereunder shall be in writing and addressed to the party to be notified as follows:

If to the Agent, at: Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc.
One Boston Place, 18th Floor
Boston, Massachusetts 02108
Attn: Technology Finance Division Manager
Fax No. (617) 523-1697

If to the Preferred North Atlantic Value LLP A/C B
Stockholder, at: c/o North Atlantic Value LLP
Ground Floor, Ryder Court
14 Ryder Street
London SW1Y 6QB
England

or to such other address as each party may designate for itself by notice. Notice shall be deemed to have been duly given (i) if delivered personally or otherwise
actually received, (ii) if sent by overnight delivery service, (iii) if mailed by first class United States mail, postage prepaid, registered or certified, with return
receipt requested or (iv) if sent by telex with telex confirmation of receipt (with duplicate notice sent by United States mail as provided above). Notice mailed as
provided in clause (iii) above shall be effective upon the expiration of three (3) business days after its deposit in the United States mail. Notice given in any other
manner described in this paragraph shall be effective upon receipt by the addressee thereof; provided, however, that if any notice is tendered to an addressee and
delivery thereof is refused by such addressee, such notice shall be effective upon such tender.

-3-



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been signed as of the date first above written.

4-

AGENT:

WELLS FARGO FOOTHILL, INC., as Agent for Lenders

.. 4

Its V.P.

PREFERRED STOCKHOLDER:

NORTH ATLANTIC VALUE LLP A/CB

o YA

Its C/O
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North Atlantic Small Companies Investment Trust PLC
c/o North Atlantic Value LLP

James Ryan

Ground Floor, Ryder Court

14 Ryder Street

London SW1Y 6QB

UNITED KINGDOM

Series A-1 and Series A-2 Redeemable Preferred Stock

North Atlantic Small Companies Investment Trust PL.C herewith consents to an extension of the redemption date of its 99.25 shares of Series A-1 Redeemable
Preferred Stock and 138.95 shares of Series A-2 Redeemable Preferred Stock, issued by Telos Corporation, to December 31, 2011. This stock shall remain subject
to any and all terms and conditions of the Preferred Stockholders Standby Agreement (integrated hereto by reference), entered into by North Atlantic Small
Companies Investment Trust PLC’s predecessor, Hare & Co., on or about January 27, 2003 with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. (formerly Foothill Capital
Corporation).

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

North Atlantic Small Companies Investment Trust PLC Telos Corporation

By:

%/ M /s/ Therese K. Hathaway
Signature(s): Therese K. Hathaway

Vice President, Corporate Secretary

C A& MMty

Name(s):

17224

Title:

6/4/2008 March 13, 2008
Date:
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North Atlantic Value LLP A/C B
c/o North Atlantic Value LLP
James Ryan

Ground Floor, Ryder Court

14 Ryder Street

London SW1Y 6QB

UNITED KINGDOM

Series A-1 and Series A-2 Redeemable Preferred Stock

North Atlantic Value LLP A/C B herewith consents to an extension of the redemption date of its 6.85 shares of Series A-1 Redeemable Preferred Stock and 9.58
shares of Series A-2 Redeemable Preferred Stock, issued by Telos Corporation, to December 31, 2011. This stock shall remain subject to any and all terms and
conditions of the Preferred Stockholders Standby Agreement (integrated hereto by reference), entered into by North Atlantic Value LLP’s predecessor, RBSI
Custody Bank, Ltd. on or about January 14, 2003 with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. (formerly Foothill Capital Corporation).

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

North Atlantic Value LLP A/C B Telos Corporation

By:

%/ M /s/ Therese K. Hathaway
Signature(s): Therese K. Hathaway

Vice President, Corporate Secretary

C#tt 2 Ay

Name(s):

V22

Title:

6/4/2008 March 13, 2008
Date:
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Toxford Corporation
c/o Rathbones

Place de Saint Gervais 1
1211 Geneva
Switzerland

Series A-1 and Series A-2 Redeemable Preferred Stock

Toxford Corporation herewith consents to an extension of the redemption date of its 907.75 shares of Series A-1 Redeemable Preferred Stock and 1270.85 shares
of Series A- 2 Redeemable Preferred Stock, issued by Telos Corporation, to December 31, 2011. This stock shall remain subject to any and all terms and
conditions of the Preferred Stockholders Standby Agreement (integrated hereto by reference), entered into on or about October 11, 2002 with Wells Fargo
Foothill, Inc. (formerly Foothill Capital Corporation), and previously extended on April 14, 2005.

AGREED AND ACKNOWLEDGED,

Toxford Corporation Telos Corporation
By:
/s/ Javier Olero /s/ Michael Fitzgerald /s/ Therese K. Hathaway
Signature(s): Therese K. Hathaway
Vice President, Corporate Secretary
Javier Olero Michael Fitzgerald
Name(s):
Directors
Title:
17.3.08 March 13, 2008

Date:



Company Name
Ubiquity.com, Inc.

Xacta Corporation

Telos Delaware, Inc.

Teloworks, Inc.

Telos Identity Management Solutions, LL.C

Subsidiary List

Active subsidiaries of the Company as of December 31, 2008:

State of Incorporation

Exhibit 21

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, John B. Wood, certify that:

1. T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Telos Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to

adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: April 15, 2009

/s/ John B. Wood

John B. Wood
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Michele Nakazawa, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Telos Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to

adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: April 15, 2009

/s/ Michele Nakazawa

Michele Nakazawa
Chief Financial Officer
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Telos Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ending December 31, 2008 as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), we, John B. Wood and Michele Nakazawa, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to our knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
Date: April 15, 2009

/s/ John B. Wood

John B. Wood
Chief Executive Officer

Date: April 15, 2009

/s/ Michele Nakazawa
Michele Nakazawa
Chief Financial Officer




